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This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains “forwabking statements” within the meaning of the “shégbor” provisions of Sectic
21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as daterand Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1883mended. All statements, other-
statements of historical fact, included herein nelyag our future product development and regulatevgnts and goals, product collaboratic
our business intentions and financial estimates seuililts are forward-looking statements. Words sastexpect,” “anticipate,” “intend,”
“plan,” “believe,” “seek,” “estimate,” “think,” “ma y,” “could,” “will,” “would,” “should,” “continue,”  “potential,” “likely,” “opportunity”
and similar expressions or variations of such woads intended to identify forwardoking statements, but are not the exclusive med
identifying forwardlooking statements in this Annual Report. Additignastatements concerning future matters suchhasdevelopment
regulatory approval of new products, enhancemeffitexisting products or technologies, third partyrfpemance under key collaborati
agreements, revenue and expense levels and otttem&nts regarding matters that are not historaa forward-looking statements.

Although forwardlooking statements in this Annual Report refleet good faith judgment of our management, suchrsgtés can on
be based on facts and factors currently known byCamsequently, forwarlboking statements are inherently subject to riskd uncertaintie
and actual results and outcomes may differ matigrilom the results and outcomes discussed in dicigated by the forwardeoking
statements. Factors that could cause or contritateuch differences in results and outcomes incluideout limitation those discussed un
the heading “Risk Factorsin Part I, Item 1A below, as well as those discdssdsewhere in this Annual Report. Readers aredirg# to plac
undue reliance on these forwalobking statements, which speak only as of the ofatieis Annual Report. We undertake no obligatmnevise
or update any forwardeoking statements in order to reflect any eventiocumstance that may arise after the date of thimual Repor
Readers are urged to carefully review and consither various disclosures made in this Annual Repshich attempt to advise interes
parties of the risks and factors that may affeatlmusiness, financial condition, results of opevas and prospect

References to “Halozyme,” "the Company" “we,” “usind “our” refer to Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. and its whollyned subsidiar
Halozyme, Inc., and Halozyme, Inc.'s wholly ownedsgliary, Halozyme Holdings Ltd. References“Notes” refer to the Notes
Consolidated Financial Statements included herggfef to Part Il, ltem 8).

PART |
Item 1. Business

Overview

Halozyme is a scienadriven, biopharmaceutical company committed to mgkmolecules into medicines for patients in needr
research focuses primarily on human enzymes that tle extracellular matrix. The extracellular mats a complex matrix of proteins a
carbohydrates surrounding the cell that providascgiral support in tissues and orchestrates mappitant biological activities, including c
migration, signaling and survival. Over many yeave, have developed unique technology and sciergifjmertise enabling us to pursue
target-rich environment for the development of épées.

Our proprietary enzymes can be used to facilifagedelivery of injected drugs and fluids, thus erdiag the efficacy and the convenie
of other drugs or can be used to alter abnormsiig¢istructures for clinical benefit. We have chaseexploit our technology and expertise
balanced way to modulate both risk and spend bydéVeloping our own proprietary products in thewaic areas with significant unn
medical needs, such as diabetes, oncology and t#ogg, and (2) licensing our technology to biophaceutical companies to collaborati\
develop products which combine our technology it collaborators' proprietary compounds.

The majority of our approved product and producididates are based on rHuPH20, our patented recambhuman hyaluronide
enzyme. rHUPH20 temporarily breaks down hyaluromiid (HA) - a naturally occurring substance that is a major pmment of th
extracellular matrix in tissues throughout the badgh as skin and cartilage. We believe this teargodegradation creates an opportun
window for the improved subcutaneous delivery géétable biologics, such as monoclonal
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antibodies and other large therapeutic molecukesyedl as small molecules and fluids. We refer® @pplication of rHUPH20 to facilitate
delivery of other drugs or fluids as Enharizeechnology. rHUPH20 is also the active ingredienbir first commercially approved prodt
Hylenex® recombinant. Additionally, we are expanding ouentfic work in the extracellular matrix by develog other enzymes and age
that target its unique aspects, giving rise to pidly new molecular entities that can be indidaite endocrinology, oncology and dermatolo

Our proprietary pipeline consists of multiple ctiai stage products in diabetes, oncology and detomt. We currently hay
collaborations with F. Hoffmann-La Roche, Ltd. addffmannia Roche, Inc. (Roche), Pfizer Inc. (Pfizer), Baxtéealthcare Corporatis
(Baxter) and Intrexon Corporation (Intrexon), witho products approved for marketing in Europe, pneduct candidate which has b
submitted for regulatory approval in the U.S., gmeduct candidate which has been submitted forla¢gny approval in Europe and |
received a positive opinion from the European Cottemifor Medicinal Products for Human Use (CHMP)veell as several others at vari
stages of development.

We were founded in 1998 and reincorporated fronSa¢e of Nevada to the State of Delaware in Nowsr2B07. Our operations to d
have involved: (i) building infrastructure for asthffing our operations; (ii) acquiring, developiagd securing proprietary protection for
technology; (iii) developing our proprietary prodyzipeline; (iv) entering into and supporting owllaborations with other companies
advance licensed product candidates; and (v) getlur own approved commercial produdtjlenexrecombinant. Currently, we have recei
only limited revenue from the saleskdylenexrecombinant, in addition to other revenues fromanllaborations.

Future revenues from the sales and/or royaltiesuofproduct candidates which have not been approvédve recently been appro
will depend on the ability of Halozyme and our eblbrators to develop, manufacture, secure regylatoprovals for and commercialize
product candidates. We have incurred net operdtinges each year since inception, with an accueuldeficit of approximately$382.:
million as of December 31, 2013 .

Our principal offices and research facilities apeated at 11388 Sorrento Valley Road, San Diegdifo@@a 92121. Our telepho
number is (858) 794-8889 and our e-mail addregdagdhalozyme.comOur website addressyugvw.halozyme.cominformation found on, ¢
accessible through, our website is not a partrad,ia not incorporated into, this Annual ReportFamrm 10K. Our periodic and current repc
that we filed with the SEC are available on our sitshatwww.halozyme.comfree of charge, as soon as reasonably practicdtede we hav
electronically filed such material with, or furnesththem to, the SEC, including our annual repant&arm 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10
Q, current reports on FormK-and any amendments to those reports. Furtheesagithese reports are located at the SEC's PRbfierenc
Room at 100 F Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20548, online ahttp://www.sec.gov

Technology

The majority of our approved product and produatdidates are based on rHuPH20, a patented recontbimanan hyaluronida
enzyme. rHUPH20 temporarily breaks down H& naturally occurring substance that is a majonmanent of the extracellular matrix in tiss
throughout the body such as skin and cartilage.b&leeve this temporary degradation creates an dppistic window for the improve
subcutaneous delivery of injectable biologics, sashmonoclonal antibodies and other large therapeuglecules, as well as small moleci
and fluids. The HA reconstitutes its normal dengitighin several days and, therefore, we anticiphtet any effect of rHUPH20 on
architecture of the subcutaneous space is tempordyPH20 can thus be applied as a drug deliveayfgrin to increase dispersion
absorption of other injected drugs and fluids te injected under the skin or in the muscle thersthancing efficacy or convenience.
example, rHUPH20 can be used to convert drugsntiiat be delivered intravenously into subcutaneaojegiions or to reduce the numbe
subcutaneous injections needed for effective therdfe refer to the application of rHuPH20 to faeile the delivery of other drugs or fluids
Enhanze technology. rHUPH20 is also the activeeidignt in our first commercially approved prodiitylenexrecombinant.

Additionally, we are expanding our scientific wotd develop other enzymes and agents that targeéxtracellular matrix's uniq!
aspects, giving rise to potentially new moleculatitees that can be applicable to endocrinologycadagy and dermatology. For example,
are developing a formulation of rHUPH20 and insidinthe treatment of diabetes mellitus. We are dksveloping
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a PEGylated version of the rHUPH20 enzyme (PEGPHR@] lasts for an extended period in the bloedstr, and may therefore better ta
solid tumors by degrading the surrounding HA ardlioéng the interstitial fluid pressure within madant tumors to allow better penetratior
chemotherapeutic agents. Also in development is-%00l, which is an engineered drug formulation variahcathepsin L (a lysoson
proteinase), that acts by degrading collagen. 5{0ll-is a proprietary product candidate which isngeileveloped for cellulite and otl
diseases/conditions involving collagen. HTI-501his first enzyme in the category of what we caliditionally-active biologic (CAB) that is
biologics that are only active under certain phiggiic conditions such as acidic conditions in theecof HTI501. In theory, CABs should he
the benefit of reducing side effects of therapentimecules through their selective action. We cargito conduct research aimed at ful
development of CABs.

Strategy

Our business model is based both on developingoour proprietary products as well as entering ingghhvalue collaborations. Tt
business model allows for growth in which revenaengred from collaboration products buffers thenspen proprietary products, resulting
long term sustained growth.

Key aspects of our corporate strategy include dlieviing:

e Gain approval for and launch our proprietaryduet candidates We have three clinical stage product candidatescdme(
below). We intend to continue our efforts to adwatitese programs toward regulatory approval andreengial launch.

e Maximize royalty revenue from existing collabtioas - Two of the products under our collaborations hageerbapproved
the European Union (EU) and other countries andpgmauct candidates have been submitted for appfowua in the EU ar
another in the U.S.). We will continue to provider @ollaborators assistance as specified undeapipécable agreements
support the commercialization of those producthassupplying bulk rHuPH20.

« Expand and deepen collaborationsWe currently have four collaborations with multipfgoduct candidates unc
development. We intend to work with our existindlaoorators to expand our collaborations to add tengets and prodt
candidates under the terms of the operative agmetsmén addition, we will continue our efforts tater into nev
collaborations to further exploit our technologyaterive value therefrom.




Product and Product Candidates

We have one marketed proprietary product and nmelfpoprietary product candidates targeting sevieditations in various stages
development. The following table summarizes oupgetary product and product candidates as wefiraducts and product candidates u
development with our collaborators:

Product, Collaboration
Productsand Product Therapeutic Use/ Phase Phase  Phase

=

Candidates Area Indication Preclinical 1 i 3 Filed Approved
PROPRIETARY PRODUCT AND PRODUCT CANDIDATES

TR ol Various reesmoeate | D
(hyaluronidase human injection) andfluid delivery

g Endociinaagy  Dizbees e

PEGPH20 Oncology PancresticCancerpoy) (D

PEGPH20 Oncology Pancreatic Cancer (SWOG) ()

HTI-501* Dermatology Aesthetics & scarting ]

COLLABORATION PRODUCTS AND PRODUCT CANDIDATES

Rocheiuo o 8 ponia targess)

Herceptin®SC Oncology Breast cancer

Mab TheraoC Oncology Non Hodglinslymphora
: Primary & 4 specified (PCSK-9) [ )

Pfizer oo Spoeniel wgesl  gpacialCare 2 pending

Baxter

:—IGyQ'dia“* with HaPHI) Immunology Primary immunodeficiency

Intrexon

Alpha t-ansrypsin with PHuPH2) Immunalogy Hereditary emphysema -

# Clinical study conducted in Mexico. U.5.IND has not been filed.
= Approvedin EU, filed in other selected countries around the world. Notfiled inU.5. and Japan.
*#* FDA CRL, a= of 8142

Proprietary Pipeline
Hylenex Recombinant (hyaluronidase human injection)

Hylenexrecombinant is a formulation of rHUPH20 that haseieed the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FCaésproval to facilitat
subcutaneous fluid administration for achievingtagion, to increase the dispersion and absorptiaiteer injected drugs and, in subcutant
urography, to improve resorption of radiopagque &geave reintroducetllylenexrecombinant to the market in December 2011 afteslutior
of Baxter's voluntary recall and the return by Baxter of netirkg rights to us. Upon its return to the market;, focus was to take advantag
the initial markets previously developed by Baxtéylenexrecombinant is currently the number one prescrimagided hyaluronidase. We
continuing to assess our commercial and stratggiors for the product to address additional uses sis in connection with insulin pump:
described further below undeitttrafast Insulin Program”




Ultrafast Insulin Program

Our most advanced proprietary program combines H20Pwith prandial (mealtime) insulin intended foetdiabetes market. Diabe
mellitus is an increasingly prevalent, costly caioti associated with substantial morbidity and mlitst. Attaining and maintaining target blc
sugar levels to seek to minimize the long-termicéihrisks is a key treatment goal for people liyimith diabetes.

The primary goal of our ultrafast insulin prograsntd enable a best-itlass prandial insulin product, with demonstratidiaal benefit:
for diabetes mellitus patients, in comparison @ ¢hirrent standard of care analog insulin produatsvards that goal, we pair rHUPH20 v
prandial insulin to facilitate faster insulin disp®n in, and absorption from, the subcutaneousespdo the vascular compartment, intende
lead to a faster insulin response and a shorteatidar of action similar to that found in people it diabetes. A number of clinical tri
investigating the various attributes of our prodeantdidates have been completed.

We currently view two distinct opportunities to enthe prandial insulin market:

The first opportunity (what we refer to as the Gombdus Subcutaneous Insulin Injection (CSIl) marketo pretreat the insulin infusic
site with Hylenexrecombinant at the time of infusion site changecéoevery 3 days). Pump therapy is growing in tH. dmong patients wi
Type 1 and Type 2 diabetes. We believe that therpegment of the infusion site witHylenexrecombinant could provide faster onset
shorter duration of insulin action. We currentlyeind to commercializelylenexrecombinant in CSll ourselves, with an initial fgscon adult
with Type 1 diabetes.

For the CSIl market, we have published interim dadan a study evaluating the use ldflenexrecombinant in analog insulin pui
therapy that showed pre-administrationHylenexrecombinant provided what appeared to be “fastéramn “faster-off” effects than curre
rapid insulin analogs. Copies of these publicatiocen be found at http://www.halozyme.com/Technoldgyrnals-Abstracts-And-
Posters/default.aspx. Data from the double-blimngsover study showed that pre-treatment of thesiah site wittHylenexrecombinant, at tt
time of infusion set change, accelerated the altisorand shortened the action of mealtime insylioyvided a more consistent insulin ac
profile and improved post-prandial glucose control.

In preparation for commercializirigylenexrecombinant in the CSIl market in Type 1 diabetgspfeadministration with analog insul
we are conducting supportive clinical studies, d@pieg our regulatory and commercial strategy, nfacturing product and developing
administration convenience kit. In the first quarté 2013, we initiated CONSISTENT 1, the largebiseveral planned studies for the C
market. The CONSISTENT 1 study is evaluating ttfetgaand efficacy oHylenexrecombinant in a 24 month trial conducted in ov@d Zype
1 diabetic patients who were randomized 3:1 toeeithpid acting analog insulin (RAI) delivered b$ICwith Hylenex or standard CSII usi
RAI alone. Subjects randomized to the Hylenex gradminister 150 units of Hylenex once every thregsdthrough each new infus
cannula, immediately prior to initiation of insuldtelivery. The primary efficacy endpoint is comgan of change from baseline of A1C le
(A1C is a measure of average blood sugar over timeeths) using an industry standard non inferionitgrgin of 0.4%. The time point 1
assessment of the primary endpoint for the study neeently changed from four months to six monthseld on feedback we received fromr
FDA. Secondary endpoints for the study are hypagtyia rates, hyperglycemia comparisons, glucosabiity and safety endpoints (adve
events, local tolerability and immunogenicity). Biiment for this trial was completed in the thirdagter of 2013. We plan to communicate
line results from the CONSISTENT 1 study in thestfiguarter of 2014. We are currently in dialog witie FDA regarding the path fo
labeling update to include key efficacy and safktta prior to initiating promotion dfylenexrecombinant for this use.

The second opportunity (what we refer to as thetiglel Daily Injection (MDI) market) is to combinéduPH20 with an FDA approwv:
RAI, e.g., insulin lispro (Humalo§ ) (Lispro-PH20), insulin aspart (Novoldt) (Aspart-PH20) and insulin glulisine (Apidfa) (Glulisine-
PH20), (each such combination, anaRig20), to accelerate their action. Based on thal rfee broad commercial reach to success
introduce a new prandial insulin to the injectiorarket, we believe that to maximize value, partreerimith a large biotechnology
pharmaceutical company with global access to dahptimary care and endocrinology markets may geired.
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With regard to the MDI opportunity, we publishedalérom two treatment studiesone in Type 1 diabetes patients and one in Ty
diabetes patients. Copies of these publications dmn found at http://www.halozyme.com/Technologyfdals-Abstracts-And-
Posters/default.aspx. Both studies met their pyneaidpoints of A1C non-inferiority and improved ppsandial glucose control comparec
patients who were treated with RAI alone. Additinadata from the Type 1 diabetes treatment stndjcated that AnalogrH20 formulation
reduced hypoglycemia compared to RAI alone.

PEGPH20

We are developing PEGPH20, a new molecular erg#tyg candidate for the systemic treatment of tuth@tsaccumulate HA. PEGylati
refers to the attachment of polyethylene glycalHaPH20, thereby creating PEGPH20. One of the npragberties of PEGPH20 is that it le
for an extended duration in the bloodstream aretefore, can be used to maintain therapeutic efifeireat systemic disease.

Solid malignancies often accumulate high level$i8f including pancreatic, lung, breast, colon amdspate cancers, and therefore
believe that PEGPH20 has the potential to helpeptdiwith these types of cancer. Among solid tumnpasicreatic ductal adenocarcinom
associated with the highest frequency of HA overesgion.

Over 100,000 patients in the U.S. and EU are disghavith pancreatic cancer annually and are frefyuaot diagnosed until late stag
The pathologic accumulation of HA, along with othmeatrix components, creates a unique microenvironife the growth of tumor ce
compared to normal cells. We believe that depleting HA component of the tumor architecture withGFH20 disrupts the tum
microenvironment, resulting in tumor growth inhibit. In addition, removal of HA rich matrix results opening previously constricted ves:
to allow anticancer therapies to have greater access to thertumhich may enhance the treatment effect of complaary therapeut
modalities. Increased blood flow may also enabtedased efficacy of radiotherapy treatment.

In June 2013, we presented the results from a PHasdinical study of PEGPH20 in combination witbngcitabine for the treatment
patients with stage IV metastatic pancreatic cafeaase 1b PEGPH20 Clinical Study) at the 2013 AgarrSociety of Clinical Oncoloy
(ASCO) Annual meeting. This study enrolled 28 pagewith previously untreated stage IV pancreatictal adenocarcinoma. Patients v
treated with one of three doses of PEGPH20 (1®ahd 3.0 g/kg twice weekly for four weeks, then weekly tredter) in combination wit
gemcitabine 1000 mg/m2 administered intravenouslyhis study, the overall response rate (complesponse + partial response) by REC
1.1 criteria was 42 percent (10 of 24 patientsp@&gent Cl 22 62 percent) for those treated at therapeutic dossd of PEGPH20 (1.6 and
pg/kg) as assessed by an independent radiologgywevi

In September 2013, at the European Cancer Congfds} we presented exploratory pbst analysis of progression free survival
overall survival of a small subset of patients teedawith PEGPH20 with available biopsy samples HAdscores in the Phase 1b study. E
progression free survival and overall survival wkneger in patients with high levels of tumor HAngpared to patients with low levels
tumor HA. The observation that patients with tumohsiracterized by high levels of HA may respond besPEGPH20 has resulted in
effort to develop a companion diagnostic to engioéeselection of these patients.

In the second quarter of 2013, we initiated a PRaswruilticenter, randomized clinical trial evalugtiREGPH20 as a firdine therapy fa
patients with stage IV metastatic pancreatic cankpproximately 124 patients are expected to coteple the study and receive gemcital
and nab-paclitaxel (ABRAXANE" ) either with or without PEGPH20. The primary outeo will be to measure progressifsree surviva
between patients administered with PEGPH20 ancetivb® are not. We expect to complete enrollmethigstudy in the second half of 20
In addition, in October 2013, SWOG, a cancer reteapboperative group of more than 4,000 researdhenser 500 institutions around !
world, initiated a 144 patient Phase 1b/2 randothieknical trial of PEGPH20 in combination with nifidd FOLFIRINOX chemotheray
(mFOLFIRINOX) compared to mFOLFIRINOX treatment radoin patients with metastatic pancreatic adenauamta.

HTI-501

HTI-501, an engineered drug formulation variant of ep#iin L (a lysosomal proteinase), that acts by atbgg collagen, is our fir
conditionally-active biologic. Collagen is an abundant proteithig body, particularly in connective tissue, angriesent in high amounts in
extracellular matrix in the form of collagen fibeollagens are a class of helical proteins that ar
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assembled into macromolecular fibrils and fiberse Tollagen fiber network provides a structuralffeéding framework in the extracellul
matrix. In the skin, these collagen fibers conrbet superficial epithelial tissues to the undegdygonnective tissues. Collagen abnormal
contribute to a number of conditions, includingzea shoulder, Dupuytren’s contracture, Peyronissake and cellulite.

A conditionally active biologic is a molecule thatonly active under certain physiological condigo HTI-501 is active under mild
acidic conditions and inactive at the neutral pthmally found in the tissue. The enzyme is combiwéti a mildly acidic buffer and injected
its active state. The enzyme is only active localtg for a short period of time. Once the mildljdacconditions of the HTBO1 administratio
have been neutralized by the body, the enzyme besamactive. We intend to harness this conditiaatilvity to exert control over the durat
and location of the enzynmetherapeutic activity, potentially improving th#i@acy or safety of this product candidate forbaohedical an
aesthetic conditions.

We are exploring HTBO1 as an approach to the treatment of edematbusséierotic panniculopathy, also known as ceBulithe
condition affects the great majority of post-adoksg women and is prevalent in all races. We belitvat the collagen fibers (“fibrous septa”
anchor the epidermis against the swelling of subeenus fat, which creates the dimpled appeararsoeiated with the condition. We beli
that HTI-501 deposited under the skin can release the tensite collagenous fibrous septa and thereby #mmpthe dimpled appearance
the skin. HTI-501 may also be potentially utilizasl a treatment for other conditions involving ogdla, such as frozen shoulder, Dupuytsen
contracture, Peyronie’s disease, keloids and hggyehic scarring.

In September 2011, we initiated a Phase 1/2 clirica for HTI-501 outside the U.S. in women with moderate to ige¢ellulite. Th
Phase 1 dosescalation portion of the trial was completed irl2@vhile the ongoing Phase 2 portion of the triadesigned to assess
pharmacologic activity of HTBO1 and extend the safety assessment to multijdetions in a treatment area. In the third quanfe2013, w
completed the enrollment for the Phase 2 portiahtha independent panel review of one month data.

Interim results from this trial were presented JA8e 2013 at the 9th Annual World Congress of Cdenieermatology in Athen
Greece. The primary endpoint is physician assessateDay 28, supported by secondary endpoints bjest selfevaluations and objecti
measurements of changes to the skin topography.irkéem results from 12 of the planned 34 evalagbhtients from this Phase 1/2 1
indicates pharmacologic activity at the primaryd2§ observation point, with 83 percent of subjétfof 12) showing improvement from
pretreatment assessment, with a median improveai&& percent (p=.006) by the primary physiciareasment. In comparison, 75 percet
subjects (9 of 12) showed improvement with a medimprovement of 22 percent (p=.009) for the vehicigction control at the sar
observation point. The objective measure (skin goaphy) for the treated area showed modest impreméin 80 percent of evaluable subj
(8 of 10) treated with HTI-501 (p=.042), but wag s@mnificantly changed for the vehicle control (®4) or a post-hoc evaluation of non
injected areas. To query the robustness of anyystadclusions, an independent blinded panel evialaif images will be performed on -
evaluable subjects at one and six months follovitegtment. The HTBO1 enzyme and its formulation have been well &gzt so far in th
trial at all doses and formulations tested, withsedous or severe adverse events. The most corsidereffects have been mild to mode
transient injection site discomfort and mild to recate injection site bruising, resolving within abdwo weeks without intervention. \
expect to report top line data at the three monthsix month endpoints in the first quarter of 2014

We currently do not have an investigational newgdapplication (IND) in the U.S., which would be wégd for us to conduct clinic
trials in the U.S. for HTBO1. In order for us to file an IND, we will neeal ¢onduct significant development work includinggmical studie
and manufacturing development. We are currentljuatimg strategic options for further developmefithis product candidate.
Collaborations

Roche Collaboration

In December 2006, we and Roche entered into areagnet under which Roche obtained a worldwide, esxetulicense to develop a
commercialize product combinations of rHUPH20 wifhto thirteen Roche target compounds (the Roclilalitwation). Roche initially had t
exclusive right to apply rHuUPH20 to only three piefined Roche biologic targets with the
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option to exclusively develop and commercialize PHi20 with ten additional targets. As of DecemberZ113, Roche has elected a tota
five exclusive targets and retains the option teettgp and commercialize rHuPH20 with three addaidargets through the payment of an
license maintenance fees.

In September 2013, Roche launched a subcutaned)sf¢@nulation of Herceptir? (trastuzumab) (Herceptin SC) in Europe for
treatment of patients with HERbsitive breast cancer. This formulation utilizag eecombinant human hyaluronidase (rHUPH20) a
administered in two to five minutes, rather thant80 minutes with the standard intravenous foRache received European marke
approval for Herceptin SC in August 2013. The EegpCommission’s approval was based on data frochéPhase 3 HannaH study wt
showed that the subcutaneous formulation of Heimtepas associated with comparable efficacy (pathiold complete response, pCR
Herceptin administered intravenously in women WBR2-positive early breast cancer and resultecbminferior trastuzumab plasma lewvt
Overall, the safety profile in both arms of the HaH study was consistent with that expected frommdsrd treatment with Herceptin
chemotherapy in this setting. No new safety sigmase identified. Breast cancer is the most comeamcer among women worldwide. E
year, about 1.4 million new cases of breast caamediagnosed worldwide, and over 450,000 womelndiglof the disease annually. In HE-
positive breast cancer, increased quantities oftiraan epidermal growth factor receptor 2 (HER®) present on the surface of the tu
cells. This is known as “HERZ2 positivity” and aftecapproximately 15% to 20% of women with breasices. HER2positive cancer is
particularly aggressive form of breast cancer.

In December 2012, Roche submitted Line Extensioplidations to the European Medicines Agency (EM#&) MabThera SC, Roche’

SC formulation of MabTher&(rituximab) using rHUPH20. In January 2014, the CHMBommended that the European Commission ap
MabThera SC for the treatment of patients with camnforms of normHodgkin lymphoma (NHL). NHL is a type of cancer ttedfect:
lymphocytes (white blood cells). An estimated 66,0@w cases of NHL were diagnosed in the U.S. BB2ARith approximately 356,000 ni
cases reported worldwide. In December 2012, aatimeial meeting of the American Society of Hematpl&pche presented positive data f
the first stage of its twetage Phase 3 clinical study investigating pharikiaetics, efficacy and safety of MabThera SC. Thenary endpoir
in the first stage of the study was met, showing kabThera SC injection resulted in niofierior MabThera concentrations in the bl
compared with IV-infused MabThera (MabThera IV).

Additional information about the Phase 3 Herce@d and Phase 3 MabThera SC clinical trials canobad atwww.clinicaltrials.go'
andwww.roche-trials.com Information available on these websites is nobiporated into this report.

Baxter Gammagard Collaboration

GAMMAGARD LIQUID is a current Baxter product that indicated for the treatment of primary immunodeficy disorders associa
with defects in the immune system. In Septembefi720@ and Baxter entered into an agreement undehvBaxter obtained a worldwic
exclusive license to develop and commercialize pcodombinations of rHUPH20 with GAMMAGARD LIQUIDHyQvia) (the Gammaga
Collaboration).

Baxter filed a biologic license application (BLAQrfHyQuvia in the U.S. in the second quarter of 2024 August 1, 2012, we announ
that the FDA had issued a complete response IgRL) for Baxters HyQvia BLA. The CRL requested additional predaiidata to suppc
the BLA. The primary issues raised in the CRL faexl®n nomeutralizing antibodies generated against rHuPHRDthe possible effects
these antibodies on reproduction, development artditfy. Elevated antrtHuPH20 antibody titers were detected in the regfisin trial, bu
have not been associated with any adverse evesridirig) Baxter and us providing additional prechhidata sufficient to address the regula
guestions, the FDA has requested that patientdaimoulonger be dosed with rHUPH20 in the BaxteQdia program. In December 2013,
and Baxter announced that Baxter has completed isalum of the amended BLA to the FDA toindtiate the review process for approva
HyQvia. Baxter submitted additional preclinical@at response to the CRL from the FDA in 2012 axpkets a six-month review.

In May 2013, the European Commission granted Baxiketing authorization in all EU Member Statestfe use of HyQvia (solutic
for subcutaneous use) as replacement therapy @dir gatients with primary and secondary immunodeficies. This therapy offers patients
option to administer their therapy at home, inrek subcutaneous site every three to four weeks.
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Baxter launched HyQuvia in the first EU country ilyJ2013 and in a number of other EU countrieshim $econd half of 2013. Baxter plan
expand the launch to additional EU countries in2201

Pfizer Collaboration

In December 2012, we and Pfizer entered into aabohation and license agreement, under which Pfiasrthe worldwide license
develop and commercialize products combining rHUPE2zyme with Pfizer proprietary biologics directedup to six targets in primary ci
and specialty care indications (the Pfizer Collation). Targets may be selected on an exclusiveoarexclusive basis. In September 2(
Pfizer elected the fourth therapeutic target oreadusive basis. In December 2013, Pfizer annoutticatione of the targets is propro
convertase subtilisin/kexin type 9, also known &SR9, which is an enzyme that in humans is enciyetthe PCSK9 gene. The PCSK9 ¢
provides instructions for making a protein thatgsalegulate the amount of cholesterol in the blteds.

Intrexon Collaboration

In June 2011, we and Intrexon entered into a cofkimn and license agreement under which Intreotmtained a worldwide exclusi
license for the use of rHUPH20 enzyme in the dgraknt and commercialization of a subcutaneous talpbe formulation of Intrexor
recombinant human alphaaltitrypsin (rHUA1AT) (the Intrexon Collaboratiorih addition, the license provides Intrexon witltkesivity for e
defined indication.

ViroPharma Collaboration

In May 2011, we and ViroPharma entered into a boltation and license agreement under which Virofhaobtained a worldwic
exclusive license for the use of rHUPH20 enzymehm development and commercialization of a sub&das injectable formulation
ViroPharmas commercialized product, Cinryze (C1 esterasebitdri [human]) (the ViroPharma Collaboration). lddition, the licens
provides ViroPharma with exclusivity to C1 esterasgbitor and to hereditary angioedema, a raréijlitigting and potentially fatal gene
disease, along with three additional orphan inthoat This agreement was terminated by ViroPhamfgebruary 2014.

For a further discussion of the material termswfallaboration agreements, refer to Not€dllaborative Agreementso our
consolidated financial statements.

Customers

For the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 antd,21% , 45% and 19% of total revenues, respdgtinwere from Roche and 10%
17% and 42% of total revenues, respectively, wesenfBaxter. For the years ended December 31, 20#132812, 4%and 22% of tot:
revenues, respectively, were from Pfizer. In additifor the year ended December 31, 2011, 22% &84 af total revenues were fr(
ViroPharma and Intrexon, respectively. For infonmatregarding our revenues from external custonrefer to Note 2Summary of Significa
Accounting Policie— Concentrations of Credit Risk, Sources of SuaptySignificant Customers

Patents and Proprietary Rights

Patents and other proprietary rights are essentialir business. Our success will depend in padwrability to obtain patent protecti
for our inventions, to preserve our trade secmetsta operate without infringing the proprietarghis of third parties. Our strategy is to acti
pursue patent protection in the U.S. and certaieido jurisdictions for technology that we belieeebe proprietary to us and that offers 1
potential competitive advantage. Our patent pddfoicludes 20 issued patents in the U.S., 57 sqaents in Europe and other countrie
the world and a number of pending patent applioatidn general, patents have a term of 20 yeam ft®e application filing date or earl
claimed priority date. Our issued patents will egpgbetween 2022 and 2030. We are the exclusivadem of the University of Connecti
under a patent covering the DNA sequence that escbdman hyaluronidase. This patent expires in . 20bhave multiple patents and pa
applications throughout the




world pertaining to our recombinant human hyaludaise and methods of use and manufacture, inclagingsued U.S. patent which expire
2027 and an issued European patent which expir@®24, which we believe cover the products and gbdandidates under our exisi
collaborationsHylenexrecombinant, PEGPH20 and our endocrinology prodantidates. In addition, we have, under prosecuticoughou
the world, multiple patent applications that relapecifically to individual product candidates undevelopment, the expiration of which
only be definitely determined upon maturation iotr issued patents. We believe our patent filirgggesent a barrier to entry for poter
competitors looking to utilize these hyaluronidases

In addition to patents, we rely on unpatented traeerets, proprietary knotvew and continuing technological innovation. Wek
protection of these trade secrets, proprietary khow and innovation, in part, through confidentialind proprietary information agreeme
Our policy is to require our employees, directemsultants, advisors, collaborators, outside &fiecollaborators and sponsored researc
other advisors and other individuals and entitiesexecute confidentiality agreements upon the siikmployment, consulting or ott
contractual relationships with us. These agreemprugide that all confidential information develaber made known to the individual
entity during the course of the relationship ibtokept confidential and not disclosed to thirdtiparexcept in specific circumstances. In
case of employees and some other parties, theragnée provide that all inventions conceived byittddvidual will be our exclusive proper
Despite the use of these agreements and our effonsotect our intellectual property, there willvays be a risk of unauthorized use
disclosure of information. Furthermore, our tradersts may otherwise become known to, or be indigrety developed by, our competitors.

We also file trademark applications to protect tlanes of our products and product candidates. Taggkcations may not mature
registration and may be challenged by third parti#e are pursuing trademark protection in a nunabelifferent countries around the woi
There can be no assurances that our registeredregiatered trademarks or trade names will notrigé on rights of third parties or will
acceptable to regulatory agencies.

Research and Development Activities

Our research and development expenses consistryirof costs associated with the development arahufacturing of our produ
candidates, compensation and other expenses fearodsand development personnel, supplies and iadaterosts for consultants and rel:
contract research, clinical trials, facility coatrsd amortization and depreciation. We charge a#taech and development expenses to oper.
as they are incurred. Our research and developawtintties are primarily focused on the developnafdur various product candidates.

Since our inception in 1998 through December 31,.320ve have incurred research and development experisg125.8 million. Frol
January 1, 2011 through December 31, 2048proximately 21% and 18% of our research an@ldpment expenses were associated wit
development of our ultrafast insulin and PEGPH26dpct candidates, respectively. Due to the unceytan obtaining the FDA and ott
regulatory approvals, our reliance on third paréied competitive pressures, we are unable to egtimigh any certainty the additional costs
will incur in the continued development of our priepary product candidates for commercializatiomwdver, we expect our research
development expenses to increase as our produdidedes advance into later stages of clinical dgwakent.

Manufacturing

We do not have our own manufacturing facility for @roduct and product candidates, or their agtivermaceutical ingredient (API)
bulk forms, or the capability to package our pradi¥e have engaged third parties to manufacturk ilPH20 and our produtiylene;
recombinant.

We have existing supply agreements with contraatufecturing organizations Avid Bioservices, Incv{@ and Cook Pharmica LL
(Cook) to produce supplies of bulk rHUPH20. Thesmufacturers each produce bulk rHUPH20 under cuf@ed Manufacturing Practic
(cGMP) for clinical uses. Avid currently produceslib rHuPH20 for use irHylenexrecombinant and our other collaboration producd
product candidates. We rely on their ability tocssfully manufacture these batches accordingddyat specifications, and Cook has lim
experience manufacturing bulk rHUPH20. In additime, have been working to scalp; validate and qualify Cook as a manufactureouwk
rHUPH20 for use in the product and product candglander the Roche collaboration. To date, Coolnbabeen submitted to the Europ
regulatory authorities by Roche as an approved
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manufacturer for Herceptin SC and MabThera SG #ésisential for our business for Cook and Avid)toefain their status as cGMépprove:
manufacturing facilities; (ii) to successfully sealp bulk rHUPH20 production; or (iii) manufactuhe bulk rHUPH20 required by us and
collaborators for use in our proprietary and cadi@bion products and product candidates. In additiosupply obligations, Avid and Cook v
also provide support for the chemistry, manufaotyand controls sections for FDA and other regujefitings.

We have a commercial manufacturing and supply ageeé with Baxter, a cGMBpproved manufacturing facility, under which Ba
provides the final fill and finishing steps in thpeoduction process dflylenexrecombinant. Under our commercial manufacturing sungply
agreement with Baxter, Baxter has agreed to fitl finish Hylenexrecombinant product for us until December 31, 2GiHhject to furthe
extensions in accordance with the terms of theeagemt. We and Baxter are currently engaged initranisig the fill, finish and packaging
Hylenexrecombinant from the existing manufacturing lineathigher capacity and more efficient line at Baxeied gaining FDA approval f
the new line beforélylenexrecombinant can be filled, finished and packagethfthat line. In June 2011, we entered into a sesvagreeme
with another third party manufacturer for the tealogy transfer and manufacture, fill, finish or gaging ofHylenexrecombinant. We will als
need to gain regulatory approval for the third ypartanufacturer prior to commencing use of thisdhparty for manufacture dflylene;
recombinant.

Sales, Marketing and Distribution
HYLENEX Recombinant

Our commercial activities currently focus blylenexrecombinant. We have a team of sales specialiatspttovide hospital and surg:
center customers with the information abéitlenexrecombinant and information needed to obtain foemulapproval for, and incree
utilization of, Hylenexrecombinant. Our commercial activities also inclnggrketing and related services and commercial@tiggrvices suc
as commercial operations, managed markets and cmiaihanalytics. We also employ thighrty vendors, such as advertising agen
market research firms and suppliers of marketirdy@her sales support related services to asdistour commercial activities.

We sellHylenexrecombinant in the U.S. to wholesale distributarlp sell to hospitals, ambulatory surgery centews @ther endisers
We have engaged Integrated Commercial SolutionsS)(ICa division of AmerisourceBergen Specialty Group subsidiary ¢
AmerisourceBergen, to act as our exclusive distobfor commercial shipment and distributionHbflenexrecombinant to our customers in
United States. In addition to distribution servicé8S provides us with other key services relatedogistics, warehousing, returns
inventory management, contract administration amatgebacks processing aadcounts receivable management. In addition, weeithirc
parties to perform various other services for uatirgg to regulatory monitoring, including call den management, adverse event repol
safety database management and other product mairtte services.

Competition

The pharmaceutical industry is characterized bydhg@dvancing technologies, intense competitiod arstrong emphasis on proprie
therapeutics. We face competition from a numbesairces, some of which may target the same inditatas our product or prod
candidates, including large pharmaceutical comarsenaller pharmaceutical companies, biotechnologypanies, academic institutio
government agencies and private and public resemsiitutions, many of which have greater finandiasources, sales and marke
capabilities, including larger, well establishedesdorces, manufacturing capabilities, experieincebtaining regulatory approvals for proc
candidates and other resources than us. We facpetition not only in the commercialization blfylenexrecombinant, but also for the in-
licensing or acquisition of additional product calades, and the ouicensing of our Enhanze technology. In additionr oollaborators fac
competition in the commercialization of the prodeendidates for which the collaborators seek margeapproval from the FDA or ott
regulatory authorities.

HYLENEX Recombinant

Hylenexrecombinant is currently the only FD&pproved recombinant human hyaluronidase on th&ehaBausch & Lomb Inc.
currently the only other manufacturer that has BAfapproved product, Vitrase, an ovine (ram) hyaluronidase. In addition,
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some commercial pharmacies compound hyaluronideesgapations for institutions and physicians evesugih compounded preparations
not FDA-approved products.

Government Regulations

The FDA and comparable regulatory agencies in gor@ountries regulate extensively the manufactaek sale of the pharmaceuti
products that we have developed or currently aveldping. The FDA has established guidelines afetywatandards that are applicable tc
laboratory and preclinical evaluation and clinicelestigation of therapeutic products and stringegulations that govern the manufacture
sale of these products. The process of obtainigglagory approval for a new therapeutic productallguequires a significant amount of ti
and substantial resources. The steps typicallyiredtbefore a product can be introduced for hurrssinclude:

» animal pharmacology studies to obtain preliminafpimation on the safety and efficacy of a drug

» laboratory and preclinical evaluationvitro andin vivoincluding extensive toxicology studi

The results of these laboratory and preclinicallists may be submitted to the FDA as part of an Bpplication. The sponsor of an Il
application may commence human testing of the cam@@®0 days after submission of the IND, unlesgiadtto the contrary by the FDA.

The clinical testing program for a new drug typigahvolves three phases:

» Phase 1 investigations are generally conducteckaitthy subjects (in certain instances, Phase liestulat determine the maxim
tolerated dose and initial safety of the productdidate are performed in patients with the disease)

e Phase 2 studies are conducted in limited numbessitgects with the disease or condition to be éeaind are aimed at determining
most effective dose and schedule of administratieveluating both safety and whether the product atestnates therapeu
effectiveness against the disease; and

» Phase 3 studies involve large, wedhtrolled investigations in diseased subjects amedaimed at verifying the safety and effective
of the drug.

Data from all clinical studies, as well as all lsdory and preclinical studies and evidence of pobdjuality, are typically submitted
the FDA in a new drug application (NDA). The resuif the preclinical and clinical testing of a loigic product candidate are submitted tc
FDA in the form of a BLA, for evaluation to detemei whether the product candidate may be approvecbfomercial sale. In responding 1
BLA or NDA, the FDA may grant marketing approvakquest additional information, or deny the appiarat Although the FDAS
requirements for clinical trials are well estabéghand we believe that we have planned and cordioeteclinical trials in accordance with
FDA's applicable regulations and guidelines, theseireaents, including requirements relating to testime safety of drug candidates, ma
subject to change as a result of recent announdsmegarding safety problems with approved drugidi#onally, we could be required
conduct additional trials beyond what we had plantiee to the FDAS safety and/or efficacy concerns or due to difiginterpretations of ti
meaning of our clinical data. (See Part I, ltem Risk Factors)

The FDA's Center for Drug Evaluation and Researcistnapprove an NDA and the FDACenter for Biologics Evaluation and Rese
must approve a BLA for a drug before it may be retall in the United States. If we begin to marketproposed products for commercial
in the U.S., any manufacturing operations that t@yestablished in or outside the U.S. will alscshbject to rigorous regulation, includ
compliance with cGMP. We also may be subject tailagn under the Occupational Safety and Health the Environmental Protection A
the Toxic Substance Control Act, the Export Confol and other present and future laws of gengaglieation. In addition, the handling, ¢
and use of laboratory animals are subject to thielélines for the Humane Use and Care of Laboraforymals published by the Natior
Institutes of Health.
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Regulatory obligations continue pagtproval, and include the reporting of adverse &svernen a drug is utilized in the broader pa
population. Promotion and marketing of drugs i® a#sictly regulated, with penalties imposed foolations of FDA regulations, the Lanh
Act and other federal and state laws, includingféueral anti-kickback statute.

We currently intend to continue to seek, directhtlorough our collaborators, approval to market products and product candidate
foreign countries, which may have regulatory preessthat differ materially from those of the FDAeVanticipate that we will rely up
pharmaceutical or biotechnology companies to lieeasr proposed products or independent consultanteek approvals to market
proposed products in foreign countries. We cansstii@ you that approvals to market any of our ppedgroducts can be obtained in
country. Approval to market a product in any onefign country does not necessarily indicate that@gal can be obtained in other countries.

From time to time, legislation is drafted and itmoed in Congress that could significantly charfgestatutory provisions governing
approval, manufacturing and marketing of drug posluln addition, FDA regulations and guidance @ten revised or reinterpreted by
agency or reviewing courts in ways that may sigaifitly affect our business and development of oodyct candidates and any products
we may commercialize. It is impossible to predidiether additional legislative changes will be eedgctor FDA regulations, guidance
interpretations changed, or what the impact of sugh changes may be.

Segment Information

We operate our business as one segment, whichdeglall activities related to the research, devaetg and commercialization
human enzymes that either transiently modify tisgnder the skin to facilitate the delivery of iniedt drugs and fluids or to alter abnor
tissue structures for clinical benefit. This segialso includes revenues and expenses related) tesGarch and development activi
conducted under our collaboration agreements whittdl tparties and (ii) product sales ldf/lenexrecombinant. The chief operating decision
maker reviews the operating results on an aggrdgggis and manages the operations as a singletiogesagment. We had no foreign be
operations and no long-lived assets located indareountries as of and for the years ended DeceBhe2013, 2012 and 201Refer to th
Notes for additional financial information regardiour operating segmel

Executive Officers of the Registrant

Information concerning our executive officers, umihg their names, ages and certain biographid¢atrimation can be found in Part
Item 10,Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govere. This information is incorporated by referenceiRfrt | of this report.

Employees

As of February 24, 2014 , we had 170 fithe employees. None of our employees are unioranedwe believe our employee relation
be good.

Item 1A. Risk Factors
Risks Related to Our Business

We have generated only minimal revenue from prodseles to date; we have a history of net losses aedative cash flow, and we m
never achieve or maintain profitability.

Relative to expenses incurred in our operationshaxe generated only minimal revenues from prodatgs, licensing fees, milestt
payments, bulk rHUPH20 supply payments and rese@iaibursements to date and we may never geneuffieient revenues from futu
product sales, licensing fees and milestone paysntenoffset expenses. Even if we ultimately do eehisignificant revenues from prod
sales, licensing fees, research reimbursementk, lblUPH20 supply payments and/or milestone paymemes expect to incur significe
operating losses over the next few years. We haverrbeen profitable, and we may never becometpbddi. Through December 31, 2018¢
have incurred aggregate net losses of approxim@ga®.1 million .

13




If our product candidates do not receive and maiimtaegulatory approvals, or if approvals are not @ined in a timely manner, suc
failure or delay would substantially impair our alify to generate revenues.

Approval from the FDA or equivalent health authiestis necessary to manufacture and market phatutiealeproducts in the Units
States and the other countries in which we antieiming business have similar requirements. Tloegss for obtaining FDA and ot
regulatory approvals is extensive, timeasuming, risky and costly, and there is no guarathat the FDA or other regulatory bodies
approve any applications that may be filed withpees to any of our product candidates, or thattbméng of any such approval will |
appropriate for the desired product launch schethrle product candidate. We and our collabora&dtempt to provide guidance as to
timing for the filing and acceptance of such reguia approvals, but such filings and approvals may occur when we or our collaboral
expect, or at all. The FDA or other foreign regoigtagency may refuse or delay approval of our pebactandidates for failure to colls
sufficient clinical or animal safety data and requis or our collaborators to conduct additionalichl or animal safety studies which n
cause lengthy delays and increased costs to ogrgns. For example, we announced on August 1, Btdt2the FDA had issued a CRL
Baxter's HyQvia BLA. The CRL requested additionagbinical data to support the BLA. The primaryuiss raised in the letter focused on nor
neutralizing antibodies generated against rHUPH2® the possible effects of these antibodies onorhmtion, development and fertili
Elevated antrHuPH20 antibody titers were detected in the regfiisin trial, but have not been associated with adyerse events. Pend
Baxter and us providing additional preclinical datdficient to address the regulatory questions,RBA has requested that patients shou
longer be dosed with rHUPH20 in the Baxter clinstaldies. In view of the issues raised in the HEQURL, we contacted the FDA regarc
the impact orHylenexrecombinant. After reviewing the applicable datariited by us, FDA confirmed that there was no nigdaction:
againstHylenexrecombinant or clinical programs under tHglenexrecombinant IND application(s). Subsequent to timsAugust 2013, ot
collaborator ViroPharma announced that it was diinaing its study of subcutaneous administratibioryze in combination with rHUPH.:
in adolescents and adults with hereditary angioedattacks, following discussion with FDA regarditi;e emergence of an unexpel
incidence and titer of non-neutralizing artiuPH20 antibodies in a number of patients with fbenulation being used in this stu
ViroPharma terminated its collaboration and liceageeement with us in February 2014. Although tresibodies have not been associ
with any adverse clinical effects, we cannot asgorethat they will not arise and have an adverggaict on future development of rHUPH2!
future sales oHylenexrecombinant.

There can be no assurance that Baxter and we avidble to resolve the issues raised by the FDAtimealy manner which could result
a delay or failure to gain regulatory approval fioee HyQvia product candidate. Furthermore, althowghdo not believe at this time that
issues raised by the FDA with respect to the Hy@liA or the ViroPharma Phase 2 study will havegngicant impact on our proprietary &
other collaboration product candidates, there camd assurance that these concerns will not alsmaised by the FDA or other hee
authorities in the future.

Only two of our collaboration product candidatesiéhdeen approved for commercialization and two of oollaboration produ
candidates are currently in the regulatory apprpvatess. Only one of our proprietary productstisen approved for commercialization,
we have no proprietary product candidates curreintithe regulatory approval process. We and oulabotators may not be successft
obtaining such approvals for any potential produotsa timely manner, or at all. Refer to the rigdctbr titled “ Our proprietary an
collaboration product candidates may not receivgulatory approvals or their development may be ygethfor a variety of reasons, includ
unsuccessful clinical trials, regulatory requirenteror safety concern$ for additional information relating to the approwed produc
candidates.

Additionally, even with respect to products whicavh been approved for commercialization, in ordecdntinue to manufacture &
market pharmaceutical products, we or our collalosamust maintain our regulatory approvals. If aeany of our collaborators ¢
unsuccessful in maintaining our regulatory appreyvalr ability to generate revenues would be a@eedfected.

Use of our product candidates or those of our ctitaators could be associated with side effects dverse events.

As with most pharmaceutical products, use of oodpct candidates or those of our collaboratorsccbel associated with side effect:
adverse events which can vary in severity (fromanneactions to death) and frequency (infrequemgrevalent). Side effects or adverse ev
associated with the use of our product candidatéisose of our collaborators may be observed at
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anytime, including in clinical trials or when a gret is commercialized, and any such side effecedwerse events may negatively affect
or our collaborators' ability to obtain regulat@yproval or market our product candidates. Sideceffsuch as toxicity or other safety is:
associated with the use of our product candidatéisase of our collaborators could require us aranllaborators to perform additional stuc
or halt development or sale of these product catedslor expose us to product liability lawsuits ehhivill harm our business. We or «
collaborators may be required by regulatory agentiseconduct additional animal or human studiesndiog the safety and efficacy of
pharmaceutical product candidates which we have ptexined or anticipated. Furthermore, there cannbeassurance that we or
collaborators will resolve any issues related tg product related adverse events to the satisfactiche FDA or any regulatory agency i
timely manner or ever, which could harm our businesospects and financial condition.

If our contract manufacturers are unable to manufaere and supply to us bulk rHuUPH20 in the quantignd quality required by us or ot
collaborators for use in our products and producardidates, our product development and commercagiizn efforts could be delayed
stopped and our collaborations could be damaged.

We have existing supply agreements with contrachufacturing organizations Avid and Cook to produmgk rHuPHZ20. Thes
manufacturers each produce bulk rHUPH20 under cun@®MP for clinical uses. Avid currently produdeslk rHUPH20 for use ifdylene;
recombinant and our other collaboration products product candidates. In addition to supply oblma, Avid and Cook will also provi
support for the chemistry, manufacturing and cdatsections for FDA and other regulatory filingseWely on their ability to successfL
manufacture these batches according to producifigagions, and Cook has relatively limited expade manufacturing bulk rHuPH20.
addition, we have been working to scafe-validate and qualify Cook as a manufactureowk rHuPH20 for use in the product and pro
candidates under the Roche collaboration. To dadek has not been submitted to the European regylatithorities by Roche as an apprc
manufacturer for Herceptin SC and MabThera SC.délCis unable to obtain status as an approved raaturfng facility, or if either Avid ¢
Cook: (i) is unable to retain status as an apprawediufacturing facilities; (ii) is unable to othese successfully scale up bulk rHuP}
production; or (iii) fails to manufacture and supplulk rHUPH20 in the quantity and quality requitegus or our collaborators for use in
proprietary and collaboration products and prodtanididates for any other reason, our businessbheiladversely affected. In additior
significant change in such parties' business aniifal condition could adversely affect their dlah to fulfill their contractual obligations to.
We have not established, and may not be able ablesdt, favorable arrangements with additional bitdiPH20 manufacturers and supplier
the ingredients necessary to manufacture bulk rFA@P$hould the existing manufacturers and suppliecome unavailable or in the event
our existing manufacturers and suppliers are unebedequately perform their responsibilities. Wavén attempted to mitigate the impac
supply interruption through the establishment afems bulk rHUPH20 inventory, but there can be morasices that this safety stock will
maintained or that it will be sufficient to addremsy delays, interruptions or other problems exgered by Avid and/or Cook. Any dela
interruptions or other problems regarding the gbdf Avid and/or Cook to bulk rHUPH20 on a timddgsis could: (i) cause the delay of clin
trials or otherwise delay or prevent the regulatmpyproval of proprietary or collaboration produahdidates; (ii) delay or prevent the effec
commercialization of proprietary or collaboratiomgucts; and/or (iii) cause us to breach contrdahbbgations to deliver bulk rHUPH20 to ¢
collaborators. Such delays would likely damagerelationship with our collaborators under our keylaboration agreements, and they wt
have a material adverse effect on our businessiaacial condition.

If any party to a key collaboration agreement, incding us, fails to perform material obligations umd such agreement, or ifa k
collaboration agreement, or any other collaborati@greement, is terminated for any reason, our busss could significantly suffer.

We have entered into multiple collaboration agresthender which we may receive significant futuagmpents in the form of milesto
payments, target designation fees, maintenanceafaksoyalties. We are dependent on our collabmgatodevelop and commercialize proc
candidates subject to our collaborations in orderus to realize any financial benefits from thes#laborations. Our collaborators may
devote the attention and resources to such effoatswe would to such efforts ourselves, changé firemotional efforts or simultaneou
develop and commercialize products in competitmthbse products we have licensed to them. Anhede actions could not be visible tc
immediately and could negatively impact the beseditd revenue we receive from such collaboratiomddition, in the event that a party f
to perform under a key collaboration agreementf arkey collaboration agreement is terminated, rguction in anticipated revenues cc
delay or suspend our product development
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activities for some of our product candidates, &l \as our commercialization efforts for some or @&l our products. Specifically, t
termination of a key collaboration agreement by oheur collaborators could materially impact obility to enter into additional collaborati
agreements with new collaborators on favorable ¢eifvat all. In certain circumstances, the terrtioraof a key collaboration agreement wc
require us to revise our corporate strategy gaimgdrd and reevaluate the applications and valiminfechnology.

Most of our current proprietary and collaboration rpducts and product candidates rely on the rHuPH2Mhzyme, and any advel
development regarding rHUPH20 could substantiallympact multiple areas of our business, including cant and potentie
collaborations, as well as proprietary programs.

rHUPH20 is a key technological component of Enhaerénology and our most advanced proprietary aldhmoration products al
product candidates, including the product candglateder our Roche, Pfizer, Baxter and Intrexonabaltations, our ultrafast insulin progri
our PEGPH20 program andlylenexrecombinant. An adverse development for rHUPH2@. (an adverse regulatory determination relatir
rHUPH20, if we are unable to obtain sufficient qtitees of rHUPH20, if we are unable to obtain orimt@n material proprietary rights
rHUPH20 or if we discover negative characterist€sHuPH20) would substantially impact multiple aseof our business, including curt
and potential collaborations, as well as propriefamograms. For example, elevated ahtitPH20 antibody titers have been detected ii
registration trial for Baxter's HyQvia product céate as well as in ViroPharma's Phase 2 clinidal with subcutaneous Cinryze w
rHUPH20, but have not been associated, in eithez, cgith any adverse events. Baxter has submitielipical data to the FDA regarding
antibodies in its BLA resubmission in responseht €RL received for the HyQvia BLA and is awaitiregponse from the FDA. ViroPhar
has chosen to discontinue the Phase 2 clinicdl withh subcutaneous Cinryze with rHUPH20 due to tilexpected incidence and titel
antibodies in a number of patients with the forrtiatabeing used in this study and has terminat®datlaboration and license agreement
us in February 2014. We monitor for antibodiesHolPH20 in our collaboration and proprietary progsamind although we do not beliew
this time that the incidence of non-neutralizingi-aHuPH20 antibodies in either the HyQvia prograntha ViroPharma program will hawve
significant impact on our other proprietary andestbollaboration product candidates, there candoassurance that there will not be other
occurrences in our other programs or that conaemerding these antibodies will not also be ralsgethe FDA or other health authorities in
future, which could result in delays or discontitioas of our development or commercialization dti#¢ or deter entry into additior
collaborations with third parties.

Our proprietary and collaboration product candidatemay not receive regulatory approvals or their dBpment may be delayed fo
variety of reasons, including unsuccessful clinictilals, regulatory requirements or safety concerns

Clinical testing of pharmaceutical products is agpexpensive and uncertain process, and the éadudelay of a clinical trial can oct
at any stage. Even if initial results of precliniaad nonclinical studies or clinical trial resudtre promising, we or our collaborators may ot
different results in subsequent trials or studies fail to show the desired levels of safety affidacy, or we may not, or our collaborators r
not, obtain applicable regulatory approval for @ietg of other reasons. Preclinical, nonclinicaldaclinical trials for any of our proprietary
collaboration product candidates could be unsuéalesghich would delay or prohibit regulatory apped and commercialization of the prod
candidates. In the United States and other juttisdis, regulatory approval can be delayed, limiteshot granted for many reasons, includ
among others:

» clinical results may not meet prescribed endpdimtshe studies or otherwise provide sufficientadtat support the efficacy of ¢
product candidates;

» clinical and nonclinical test results may revealeseffects, adverse events or unexpected safetgsssssociated with the us¢
our product candidates;

* regulatory review may not find a product candidsgée or effective enough to merit either contintesting or final approve

* regulatory review may not find that the data froraqtinical testing and clinical trials justifies@pval.

» regulatory authorities may require that we changestudies or conduct additional studies which migyificantly delay or mat
continued pursuit of approval commercially unatika; for example, based on FDA feedback, we rdgafianged the time poi
for assessment of the primary endpoint of mderiority of A1C from four months to six months our CONSISTENT 1 trial fc
Hylenex recombinant for use in CSII;
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e a regulatory agency may reject our trial data aragiee with our interpretations of either clinitahl data or applicab
regulations;

» the cost of clinical trials required for productpapval may be greater than what we originally apéte, and we may decide to
pursue regulatory approval for such a product;

e aregulatory agency may not approve our manufagjypsrocesses or facilities, or the processes dliti@e of our collaborator
our contract manufacturers or our raw material Sapg

e a regulatory agency may identify problems or otteficiencies in our existing manufacturing procesee facilities, or th
existing processes or facilities of our collaborat@ur contract manufacturers or our raw matsuagbpliers;

e aregulatory agency may change its formal or infdrapproval requirements and policies, act contraugrevious guidance, ads
new regulations or raise new issues or concerasiahe approval process; or

» a product candidate may be approved only for iriina that are narrow or under conditions that @lédte product at
competitive disadvantage, which may limit the saled marketing activities for such product candidat otherwise adverst
impact the commercial potential of a product.

If a proprietary or collaboration product candideteot approved in a timely fashion on commergialhble terms, or if development
any product candidate is terminated due to diffiealor delays encountered in the regulatory amdrprocess, it could have a material adv
impact on our business, and we will become morexddent on the development of other proprietaryotlaboration product candidates ant
our ability to successfully acquire other produatsl technologies. There can be no assurancesrthgiraprietary or collaboration prod
candidate will receive regulatory approval in aglynmanner, or at all. For example, we are curyentidialog with the FDA regarding the p
for a labeling update to include key efficacy aafety data prior to initiatinglylenexrecombinant for use in CSIl. There can be no asse
that we will be able to gain clarity as to the FRA&quirements or that the requirements may bsfigatiby us in a commercially feasible w
If we are not successful in updating data intoHlyeenexrecombinant labeling, our ability to promote thggwvill be limited and may advers
impact our projected market for the CSlI use.

We anticipate that certain proprietary and collattion products will be marketed, and perhaps marurfed, in foreign countries. T
process of obtaining regulatory approvals in faneiguntries is subject to delay and failure formbasons set forth above, as well as for re:
that vary from jurisdiction to jurisdiction. The pqoval process varies among countries and jurisdistand can involve additional testing.
time required to obtain approval may differ fronatthequired to obtain FDA approval. Foreign requiatagencies may not provide appro
on a timely basis, if at all. Approval by the FDAeas not ensure approval by regulatory authoritiesther countries or jurisdictions, ¢
approval by one foreign regulatory authority does ensure approval by regulatory authorities ireofloreign countries or jurisdictions or
the FDA.

Our third party collaborators are responsible forqviding certain proprietary materials that are esstial components of our collaboratic
products and product candidates, and any failuresdopply these materials could delay the developnerd commercialization efforts fc
these collaboration products and product candidatesl/or damage our collaborations.

Our development and commercialization collaboratars responsible for providing certain proprietamaterials that are essen
components of our collaboration products and prbdacdidates. For example, Roche is responsiblprfmtucing the Herceptin and MabTh
required for its subcutaneous products and Basteesponsible for producing the GAMMAGARD LIQUID rfats product HyQvia. If
collaborator, or any applicable third party servimevider of a collaborator, encounters difficudtim the manufacture, storage, delivery,
finish or packaging of the collaboration productpooduct candidate or component of such produgraduct candidate, such difficulties ca
(i) cause the delay of clinical trials or otherwiglay or prevent the regulatory approval of cal@bion product candidates; and/or (ii) dela
prevent the effective commercialization of colladttn products. Such delays could have a matedisrae effect on our business and final
condition. For example, Baxter received a Warnirgtdr from the FDA in January 2010 regarding Bagst6&@AMMAGARD LIQUID
manufacturing facility in Lessines, Belgium. The Alhdicated in March 2010 that the issues raiseth@WWarning Letter had been addre:
by Baxter, and we do not expect these issues tadtthe development of the HyQvia product.
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We rely on third parties to prepare, fill, finishrad package our products and product candidates, ahduch third parties should fail t
perform, our commercialization and development etfofor our products and product candidates could delayed or stopped.

We rely on third parties to store and ship bulk PH20 on our behalf and to also prepare, fill, finésxd package our products and pro
candidates prior to their distribution. If we ameable to locate third parties to perform these fions on terms that are acceptable to us, or
third parties we identify fail to perform their aiphtions, the progress of clinical trials could Helayed or even suspended and
commercialization of approved product candidataddcbe delayed or prevented. For examplglenexrecombinant product was volunta
recalled in May 2010 because a portion of ttygenexrecombinant manufactured by Baxter was not in caanpk with the requirements of
underlyingHylenexrecombinant agreements. During the second quairt201dl, we submitted the data that the FDA had estad to suppc
the reintroduction oHylenexrecombinant. The FDA approved the submitted dathgranted the reintroduction éfylenexrecombinant, ar
we reintroduceddylenexrecombinant to the market in December 2011. In R01d, we entered into a commercial manufacturimdy suppl
agreement with Baxter, under which Baxter will,fifinish and packagélylenexrecombinant product for us Under our commerci
manufacturing and supply agreement with Baxter t®&alkas agreed to fill and finidhylenexrecombinant product for us until December
2015, subject to further extensions in accordanitke the terms and conditions of the agreement. Hewethe fill, finish and packaging
Hylenexrecombinant is being transitioned from the existingnufacturing line to a higher capacity and mdfieient line at Baxter. The ne
manufacturing line will need approval by the FDAfdye Hylenexrecombinant can be filled, finished and packagedfthat line. If we ar
Baxter are unable to timely accomplish the traosito the new manufacturing line or if we are umabl timely gain FDA approval of the n
line, the supply oHylenexrecombinant could be significantly constrained vahigould adversely affect our existing commercidesaant
potentially affect our ability to explollylenexrecombinant in connection with CSII. In June 204&,entered into a services agreement w
third party manufacturer for the technology transfiad manufacture, fill, finish or packaging dflenexrecombinant. If we are unable
receive regulatory approval for the third party mf@cturer prior to the expiration of the commerer@nufacturing and supply agreement
Baxter or if the new manufacturer encounters diffies in the manufacture, fill, finish or packagiof Hylenexrecombinant, our business i
financial condition could be adversely effected.

If we are unable to sufficiently develop our salesarketing and distribution capabilities or ententio successful agreements with th
parties to perform these functions, we will not Bble to fully commercialize our products.

We may not be successful in marketing and promatimgapproved producHylenexrecombinant, or any other products we develc
acquire in the future. Our sales, marketing antfidigion capabilities are very limited. In order¢commercialize any products successfully
must internally develop substantial sales, marigetind distribution capabilities or establish caoflediions or other arrangements with t
parties to perform these services. We do not hatensive experience in these areas, and we mapeable to establish adequatehimist
sales, marketing and distribution capabilities ngage and effectively manage relationships withdtiparties to perform any or all of st
services. To the extent that we enter intgpoomotion or other licensing arrangements, our pebdevenues are likely to be lower than if
directly marketed and sold our products, and amgmaes we receive will depend upon the efforthfitparties, whose efforts may not nr
our expectations or be successful. These thirdgsawould be largely responsible for the speed smupe of sales and marketing efforts,
may not dedicate the resources necessary to maxipnaduct opportunities. Our ability to cause thised parties to increase the speed
scope of their efforts may also be limited. In &iddi, sales and marketing efforts could be negbtiepacted by the delay or failure to obt
additional supportive clinical trial data for ouropucts. In some cases, third party collaboratoes@sponsible for conducting these additi
clinical trials, and our ability to increase théoefs and resources allocated to these trials nealjntited. For example, in January 2011, we
Baxter mutually agreed to terminate the collaboratigreement for the marketing rightd-yfienexrecombinant and the associated agreem

If we or our collaborators fail to comply with redatory requirements applicable to promotion, saled manufacturing of approve
products, regulatory agencies may take action agdins or them, which could significantly harm oumnkiness.

Any approved products, along with the manufacturprgcesses, postpproval clinical data, labeling, advertising anerpotiona
activities for these products, are subject to carai requirements and review by the FDA, statefarglgn regulatory
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bodies. Regulatory authorities subject a marketedyzt, its manufacturer and the manufacturinglifas to continual review and periot
inspections. We, our collaborators and our respeatbntractors, suppliers and vendors, will be ettbfo ongoing regulatory requireme
including complying with regulations and laws redjag advertising, promotion and sales of drug potslurequired submissions of safety
other postmarket information and reports, registration reguoients, cGMP regulations (including requiremenigtirey to quality control ar
quality assurance, as well as the correspondingterance of records and documentation), and théresnents regarding the distributior
samples to physicians and recordkeepiguirements. Regulatory agencies may change mgistiquirements or adopt new requiremen
policies. We, our collaborators and our respedatiwetractors, suppliers and vendors, may be sloadapt or may not be able to adapt to t
changes or new requirements.

In particular, regulatory requirements applicaldepharmaceutical products make the substitutiosupiliers and manufacturers co
and time consuming. We have minimal internal mactuféng capabilities and are, and expect to bé&énftiture, entirely dependent on cont
manufacturers and suppliers for the manufacturewf products and for their active and other ingeatli. The disqualification of the
manufacturers and suppliers through their failaree@mply with regulatory requirements could neggtivimpact our business because
delays and costs in obtaining and qualifying atiézrsuppliers (if such alternative suppliers arailable, which we cannot assure) could d
clinical trials or otherwise inhibit our ability toring approved products to market, which wouldénavmaterial adverse effect on our busi
and financial condition. Likewise, if we, our cdilarators and our respective contractors, suppdiedsvendors involved in sales and promc
of our products do not comply with applicable leavel regulations, for example débel or false or misleading promotion, this comdterially
harm our business and financial condition.

Failure to comply with regulatory requirements magult in any of the following:

* restrictions on our products or manufacturing pssee

* warning letters

« withdrawal of the products from the marl

e voluntary or mandatory recz

+ fines

» suspension or withdrawal of regulatory appro»

e suspension or termination of any of our ongoingicél trials
» refusal to permit the import or export of our proti

» refusal to approve pending applications or supptem approved applications that we suk
»  product seizur

* injunctions; o

» imposition of civil or criminal penaltie

We may wish to raise additional capital in the nemtelve months and there can be no assurance thatwill be able to obtain such funds.

During the next twelve months, we may wish to radditional capital to continue the developmenbwf product candidates or for ot
current corporate purposes. Our current cash resexnd expected revenues during the next few yeaysnot be sufficient for us to contir
the development of our proprietary product candislato fund general operations and conduct oumnbasiat the level desired. In additiol
we engage in acquisitions of companies, producteainologies in order to execute our businessestyawe may need to raise additic
capital. We may raise additional capital in thaufatthrough one or more financing vehicles that iayvailable to us including (i) the pul
or private issuance of securities; (ii) new colletiive agreements; and/or (iii) expansions or fewisto existing collaborative relationships.

In view of our stage of development, business prosp the nature of our capital structure and gg#nmarket conditions, if we &
required to raise additional capital in the futuhey additional financing may not be available andfable terms, or at all. If additional capite
not available on favorable terms when needed, iebeirequired to raise capital on adverse termsigmificantly reduce operating exper
through the restructuring of our operations. If laése additional capital, a substantial numberdxfitoonal shares may be issued, and t
shares will dilute the ownership interest of ourreat investors.
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We currently have significant debt and failure bysuto fulfill our obligations under the applicableohn agreements may cause
repayment obligations to accelerate.

On December 27, 2013, we entered into an AmendddRastated Loan and Security Agreement (the Loareégent) with Oxfor
Finance LLC, a Delaware limited liability comparand Silicon Valley Bank, a California corporatidoollectively, the Lenders) amending i
restating in its entirety the Loan and Security @gnent dated as of December 28, 2012 (the Oriioah Agreement). The Original Lo
Agreement provided for a $30 million secured sirgjlaw term loan facility with a maturity date of dany 1, 2017. The original term loan \
fully drawn at close. The Loan Agreement exten@sdtginal $30 million term loan and provides for @dditional $20 million new term lot
bringing the total term loan balance to $50 millidilne amended and restated term loan facility neaton January 1, 2018. The amendec
restated term loan facility is secured by substdigtiall of the assets of the Company and its gliasj, Halozyme, Inc., except that
collateral does not include any equity interestélalozyme, Inc., any intellectual property (inclagiall licensing, collaboration and sim
agreements relating thereto), and certain othetudgd assets. The Loan Agreement contains customsmesentations, warranties
covenants by us, which covenants limit our abii@yconvey, sell, lease, transfer, assign or otterwlispose of certain of our assets; enga
any business other than the businesses currergbged in by us or reasonably related thereto;difei or dissolve; make certain manage!
changes; undergo certain change of control evergate, incur, assume, or be liable with respecettain indebtedness; grant certain liens:
dividends and make certain other restricted paysjanbke certain investments; make payments on abgrdinated debt; and enter i
transactions with any of our affiliates outsidettid ordinary course of business or permit our slidges to do the same. In addition, subje
certain exceptions, we are required to maintaih Biticon Valley Bank our primary deposit accousscurities accounts and commaodities,
to do the same for our domestic subsidiary. Complywith these covenants may make it more diffiéait us to successfully execute
business strategy.

The Loan Agreement also contains customary indecatiibn obligations and customary events of defantiuding, among other thing
our failure to fulfill certain of our obligationsnder the Loan Agreement and the occurrence of amahtdverse change which is defined
material adverse change in our business, operatioosndition (financial or otherwise), a mateiiapairment of the prospect of repaymer
any portion of the loan, or a material impairmenttie perfection or priority of lenderlien in the collateral or in the value of suchiateral. Ir
the event of default by us under the Loan AgreentaetLenders would be entitled to exercise theinedies thereunder, including the rigk
accelerate the debt, upon which we may be requ@redpay all amounts then outstanding under thenLAgreement which could harm «
financial condition.

If proprietary or collaboration product candidatesre approved for marketing but do not gain marketceptance, our business may suf
and we may not be able to fund future operations.

Assuming that our proprietary or collaboration prodcandidates obtain the necessary regulatoryospfs for commercial sale, a num
of factors may affect the market acceptance ofettegsting product candidates or any other prodwtish are developed or acquired in
future, including, among others:

» the price of products relative to other therapagtie same or similar treatmel

» the perception by patients, physicians and othenibees of the health care community of the effectéss and safety of the
products for their prescribed treatments relativether therapies for the same or similar treatsjent

» our ability to fund our sales and marketing effatal the ability and willingness of our collaboratto fund sales and market
efforts;

» the degree to which the use of these productsideted by the approved product lal

» the effectiveness of our sales and marketing effmnt the effectiveness of the sales and markeffogs of our collaborator

« the introduction of generic competitors; .

» the extent to which reimbursement for our prodwuid related treatments will be available from thpatty payors includir
government insurance programs (Medicare and Mat)icaid private insurers.

If these products do not gain market acceptancanaenot be able to fund future operations, inalgdhe development or acquisitior
new product candidates and/or our sales and magkefforts for our approved products, which wowddige our business to suffer.

20




In addition, our proprietary and collaboration poticandidates will be restricted to the labelsrapgd by FDA and applicable regulat
bodies, and these restrictions may limit the mamkeand promotion of the ultimate products. If #pproved labels are restrictive, the sales
marketing efforts for these products may be negitiaffected.

Developing and marketing pharmaceutical products ftuman use involves significant product liabilitsisks for which we currently hav
limited insurance coverage.

The testing, marketing and sale of pharmaceuticadlycts involves the risk of product liability alas by consumers and other ti
parties. Although we maintain product liability imance coverage, product liability claims can tghtin the pharmaceutical industry, and
insurance may not sufficiently cover our actuabilities. If product liability claims were to be ma against us, it is possible that the liabil
may exceed the limits of our insurance policy, or imsurancesarriers may deny, or attempt to deny, coverageeitain instances. If a laws
against us is successful, then the lack or ingefiity of insurance coverage could materially andeegkly affect our business and finan
condition. Furthermore, various distributors of phaceutical products require minimum product ligpihsurance coverage before purchas
acceptance of products for distribution. Failuresatisfy these insurance requirements could impedebility to achieve broad distribution
our proposedgroducts, and higher insurance requirements canftbse additional costs on us. In addition, sinceyma our collaboratio
product candidates include the pharmaceutical mtsdaf a third party, we run the risk that problemi¢h the third party pharmaceuti
product will give rise to liability claims againss.

Our inability to attract, hire and retain key managnent and scientific personnel could negativelyeft our business.

Our success depends on the performance of key rear@ad and scientific employees with relevant exgrere. We depend substanti
on our ability to hire, train, motivate and retaigh quality personnel, especially our scientistd management team. Particularly in view of
small number of employees on our staff to cover mumerous programs and key functions, if we areblento retain existing personnel
identify or hire additional personnel, we may netdble to research, develop, commercialize or mankeproducts and product candidate
expected or on a timely basis and we may not betathdequately support current and future alliandgéh strategic collaborators.

Furthermore, if we were to lose key managementopers, we would likely lose some portion of ourtingional knowledge ar
technical knowhow, potentially causing a substantial delay in onenore of our development programs until adequepdacement personi
could be hired and trained. We currently have &smce policy applicable to all employees and agdan control policy applicable to ser
executives. We have not adopted any other policiesntered into any other agreements specificadlsighed to motivate officers or ot
employees to remain with us.

We do not have key man life insurance policieshanlives of any of our employees.
Our operations might be interrupted by the occuri@of a natural disaster or other catastrophic eten

Our operations, including laboratories, offices arder research facilities, are located in fourldiogs in San Diego, California. v
depend on our facilities and on our collaboratoositractors and vendors for the continued operaifavur business. Natural disasters or ¢
catastrophic events, interruptions in the supplynafural resources, political and governmental ghanwildfires and other fires, floo
explosions, actions of animal rights activists tlequakes and civil unrest could disrupt our operetior those of our collaborators, contrac
and vendors. Even though we believe we carry comialr reasonable business interruption and ligbitisurance, and our contractors t
carry liability insurance that protect us in cemtaivents, we may suffer losses as a result of bssiinterruptions that exceed the cove
available under our and our contractors' insurgmaiies or for which we or our contractors do halve coverage. Any natural disaste
catastrophic event could have a significant negaitivpact on our operations and financial resulterédver, any such event could delay
research and development programs.
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If we or our collaborators do not achieve projectelévelopment, clinical or regulatory goals in thaemeframes we publicly announce
otherwise expect, the commercialization of our punts and the development of our product candidateay be delayed and, as a res
our stock price may decline, and we may face lausuélating to such declines.

From time to time, we or our collaborators may [mlplarticulate the estimated timing for the accdistpment of certain scientifi
clinical, regulatory and other product developmgoéls. The accomplishment of any goal is typicelged on numerous assumptions, an
achievement of a particular goal may be delayedafoyr number of reasons both within and outside wfamntrol. If scientific, regulator
strategic or other factors cause us to not meetad gegardless of whether that goal has been gyldrticulated or not, our stock price n
decline rapidly. For example, the announcemenhefGRL received for HyQvia caused a rapid declineur stock price. Stock price decli
may also trigger direct or derivative shareholdevduits. As with any litigation proceeding, the vl outcome of any legal action is diffic
to predict. If any such lawsuits occur, we will imcexpenses in connection with the defense of thessuits, and we may have to |
substantial damages or settlement costs in commewiith any resolution thereof. Although we havsuirance coverage against which we
claim recovery against some of these expenses @std, dthe amount of coverage may not be adequatevier the full amount or cert:
expenses and costs may be outside the scope pblibges we maintain. In the event of an adverse@ue or outcomes, our business coul
materially harmed from depletion of cash resourocegiative impact on our reputation, or restrictionchanges to our governance or ¢
processes that may result from any final dispasitd the lawsuit. Moreover, responding to and défieg pending litigation significant
diverts management's attention from our operations.

In addition, the consistent failure to meet pulglishnounced milestones may erode the credibilitpusfmanagement team with respe:
future milestone estimates.

Future acquisitions could disrupt our business amérm our financial condition.

In order to augment our product pipeline or otheeagtrengthen our business, we may decide to @&cgditional businesses, prodi
and technologies. As we have limited experiencevaluating and completing acquisitions, our ability an organization to make s
acquisitions is unproven. Acquisitions could regusignificant capital infusions and could involvamy risks, including, but not limited to, 1
following:

* we may have to issue convertible debt or equityisiées to complete an acquisition, which wouldutdl our stockholders a
could adversely affect the market price of our camratock;

* an acquisition may negatively impact our resultspérations because it may require us to amortizerite down amounts relat
to goodwill and other intangible assets, or inauagsume substantial debt or liabilities, or it ncayse adverse tax consequer
substantial depreciation or deferred compensatianges;

 we may encounter difficulties in assimilating amdeprating the business, products, technologiessopeel or operations
companies that we acquire;

e certain acquisitions may impact our relationshiphwéxisting or potential collaborators who are cetitiye with the acquire
business, products or technologies;

e acquisitions may require significant capital infuss and the acquired businesses, products or tlegji@® may not gener:
sufficient value to justify acquisition costs;

« we may take on liabilities from the acquired compaunch as debt, legal liabilities or business vi$lch could be significar

e an acquisition may disrupt our ongoing businesgrtliresources, increase our expenses and distiactanagemer

e acquisitions may involve the entry into a geograpribusiness market in which we have little opnior experience; ar

* key personnel of an acquired company may decidéonwbrk for us

If any of these risks occurred, it could adversfgct our business, financial condition and opegatesults. There is no assurance the
will be able to identify or consummate any futuogaisitions on acceptable terms, or at all. If veepdrsue any acquisitions, it is possible
we may not realize the anticipated benefits frochsacquisitions or that the market will not vievekwacquisitions positively.
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Security breaches may disrupt our operations andineour operating results.

The wrongful use, theft, deliberate sabotage orathgr type of security breach with respect to ahgur information technology store
and access systems could result in disclosure ssediination of our proprietary and confidentialomnfiation that is electronically stor
including research or clinical data, resulting imaterial adverse impact on our business, operatisigits and financial condition. Our sect
and data recovery measures may not be adequatetecipagainst computer viruses, bréadk- and similar disruptions from unauthori
tampering with our electronic storage systems. Hewrhore, any physical break- or trespass of our facilities could result ine
misappropriation, theft, sabotage or any other typsecurity breach with respect to our proprietanyl confidential information, includi
research or clinical data or damage to our researth development equipment and assets. Such ade#fesg#s could be material a
irrevocable to our business, operating resultsfiawashcial condition.

Risks Related To Ownership of Our Common Stock
Our stock price is subject to significant volatiit

We participate in a highly dynamic industry whiditea results in significant volatility in the markerice of common stock irrespective
company performance. As a result, our high anddales prices of our common stock during the twetemths ended December 31, 2@i&re
$16.36 and $5.03respectively. We expect our stock price to camito be subject to significant volatility and,addition to the other risks a
uncertainties described elsewhere in this AnnualdReon Form 1K and all other risks and uncertainties that atieeginot known to us at tt
time or which we deem to be immaterial, any offtiilowing factors may lead to a significant dropaar stock price:

» the presence of competitive products to those baévgloped by u

» failure (actual or perceived) of our collaboratéosdevote attention or resources to the developroertommercialization
product candidates licensed to such collaborator;

» a dispute regarding our failure, or the failureook of our third party collaborators, to complywthe terms of a collaborati
agreement;

» the termination, for any reason, of any of ouraodiration agreemen

» the sale of common stock by any significant stodl#tég including, but not limited to, direct or imdctt sales by members
management or our Board of Directors;

» the resignation, or other departure, of membemariagement or our Board of Direct

» general negative conditions in the healthcare itmg)

» general negative conditions in the financial masi

» the failure, for any reason, to obtain regulatgrpraval for any of our proprietary or collaboratiproduct candidate

» the failure, for any reason, to secure or defendrdellectual property positio

» for those products that are not yet approved fonroercial sale, the failure or delay of applicaldgulatory bodies to apprc
such products;

» identification of safety or tolerability issu

» failure of clinical trials to meet efficacy endptsi

« suspensions or delays in the conduct of clinigalsor securing of regulatory approv:

» adverse regulatory action with respect to oud anr collaboratorsproducts and product candidates such as clinichdsl
imposition of onerous requirements for approvgbrmduct recalls;

» our failure, or the failure of our third party caitlorators, to successfully commercialize produgfs@ved by applicable regulat
bodies such as the FDA,;

» our failure, or the failure of our third party calfiorators, to generate product revenues anticifigtéavestors

»  problems with a bulk rHUPH20 contract manufactarea fill and finish manufacturer for any productpwoduct candidat

» the sale of additional debt and/or equity seciitig us

» our failure to obtain financing on acceptable tero

e arestructuring of our operatio
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Future transactions where we raise capital may négaly affect our stock price.

We are currently a “Well-Known Seasoned Issusnd may file automatic shelf registration statermeattany time with the SEC.
addition, we currently have the ability to offerdasell additional equity, debt securities and watgato purchase such securities, e
individually or in units, under an effective autaimahelf registration statement. Sales of sub&tbaimounts of shares of our common stoc
other securities under our shelf registration statgts could lower the market price of our commarlsiand impair our ability to raise cap
through the sale of equity securities. In the fefwe may issue additional options, warrants oertierivative securities convertible into
common stock.

Trading in our stock has historically been limitedo investors may not be able to sell as much staglthey want to at prevailing mark
prices.

Our stock has historically traded at a low daibding volume. If low trading volume continues, iayrbe difficult for stockholders to s
their shares in the public market at any given tanprevailing prices.

Our rights agreement and antiakeover provisions in our charter documents and |[B&are law may make an acquisition of us mi
difficult.

We are party to a Rights Agreement designed ta @dtiesive takeover tactics and to encourage préispexcquirors to negotiate with
board of directors rather than attempt to acquirénta manner or on terms that our board deemsceptable, which could delay or discour
takeover attempts that stockholders may consideréble.

In addition, antitakeover provisions in our charter documents aniédwWere law may make an acquisition of us more diffi First, ou
board of directors is classified into three classkdirectors. Under Delaware law, directors ofaaporation with a classified board may
removed only for cause unless the corporation'sificate of incorporation provides otherwise. Ounended and restated certificate
incorporation, as amended, does not provide otlserwn addition, our bylaws limit who may call sigaeneetings of stockholders, permitt
only stockholders holding at least 50% of our aurtding shares to call a special meeting of stoddrsl Our amended and restated certif
of incorporation, as amended, does not includeoaigipn for cumulative voting for directors. Undamimulative voting, a minority stockholc
holding a sufficient percentage of a classbéres may be able to ensure the election of omeooe directors. Finally, our bylaws estab
procedures, including advance notice procedurdh, igard to the nomination of candidates for @ecas directors and stockholder propos

These provisions may discourage potential takeattempts, discourage bids for our common stock @teanium over market price
adversely affect the market price of, and the \gp#nd other rights of the holders of, our commarlst These provisions could also discou
proxy contests and make it more difficult for stbolders to elect directors other than the cand&ateninated by our board of directors.

In addition, because we are incorporated in Delayare are governed by the provisions of Section @03he Delaware Gene
Corporation Law, which may prohibit large stockheslfrom consummating a merger with, or acquisitirus.

These provisions may deter an acquisition of usrtfight otherwise be attractive to stockholders.
Risks Related to Our Industry

Our products must receive regulatory approval bedothey can be sold, and compliance with the exteasgovernment regulations
expensive and time consuming and may result in tieday or cancellation of product sales, introduati® or modifications.

Extensive industry regulation has had, and willtoare to have, a significant impact on our businédk pharmaceutical compani
including ours, are subject to extensive, compbastly and evolving regulation by the health retprig agencies including the FDA (and v
respect to controlled drug substances, the U.Sg Bnforcement Administration (DEA)) and equivalémteign regulatory agencies and s
and local/regional government agencies. The Fedayat, Drug and Cosmetic Act, the Controlled Sulxsta Act and other domestic
foreign statutes and regulations govern or inflgettee testing, manufacturing, packaging, labelstgring, recordkeeping, safety, appro
advertising, promotion, sale and distribution of puoducts. We are dependent on receiving FDA ahdragovernmental approvals priol
manufacturing, marketing and shipping
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our products. Consequently, there is always atlisk the FDA or other applicable governmental arities will not approve our products
may impose onerous, costly and tiemisuming requirements such as additional clinicadnimal testing. Regulatory authorities may ree
that we change our studies or conduct additionaliss, which may significantly delay or make conéid pursuit of approval commercie
unattractive; for example, based on FDA feedbaakr@cently changed the time point for assessmetttegbrimary endpoint of noimferiority
of A1C from four months to six months in our CONSENT 1 trial for Hylenexrecombinant for use in CSIl. We are currently inlog witt
the FDA regarding the path for a labeling updatenttude key efficacy and safety data prior toiatihg Hylenexrecombinant for use in CS
There can be no assurance that we will be ablaito darity as to the FDA's requirements or that thquirements may be satisfied by us
commercially feasible way. The FDA or other foreigrgulatory agency may, at any time, halt our and anllaborators' development ¢
commercialization activities due to safety concetnsaddition, even if our products are approvesjutatory agencies may also take pos
approval action limiting or revoking our ability sell our products. Any of these regulatory actiorey adversely affect the economic bel
we may derive from our products and therefore hawmfinancial condition.

Under certain of these regulations, we and ourrechtsuppliers and manufacturers are subject tdgierinspection of our or the
respective facilities, procedures and operatiomgarihe testing of products by the FDA, the DEAI ather authorities, which conduct peric
inspections to confirm that we and our contractplieps and manufacturers are in compliance withapplicable regulations. The FDA a
conducts pre-approval and pegiproval reviews and plant inspections to deternvitiether our systems, or our contract supplierd
manufacturers' processes, are in compliance witdR@nd other FDA regulations. If we, or our contrawpplier, fail these inspections,
may not be able to commercialize our product imefty manner without incurring significant additelrcosts, or at all.

In addition, the FDA imposes a number of complegutatory requirements on entities that advertisd promote pharmaceutic
including, but not limited to, standards and retjates for direct-to-consumer advertising, off-lapebmotion, industrysponsored scientific a
educational activities, and promotional activitiegolving the internet.

We may be subject, directly or indirectly, to var®broad federal and state healthcare laws. If we anable to comply, or have not fu
complied, with such laws, we could face civil, ciiml and administrative penalties, damages, mongtdines, disgorgement, possil
exclusion from participation in Medicare, Medicai@nd other federal healthcare programs, contractudhmages, reputational harr
diminished profits and future earnings and curtailemt or restructuring of our operations, any of whiccould adversely affect our abili
to operate.

Our business operations and activities may be tijirear indirectly, subject to various broad fedesad state healthcare laws, incluc
without limitation, antikickback laws, false claims laws, civil monetannpky laws, data privacy and security laws, tracangl tracking law
as well as transparency laws regarding paymentgher items of value provided to healthcare proid&hese laws may restrict or prohikt
wide range of business activities, including, bot timited to, research, manufacturing, distribatigricing, discounting, marketing &
promotion and other business arrangements. Thesentmy impact, among other things, our currentviiets with principal investigators a
research subjects, as well as sales, marketingdumchtion programs. Many states have similar hesdéhfraud and abuse laws, some of w
may be broader in scope and may not be limitetetas or services for which payment is made by @&guowent health care program.

Efforts to ensure that our business arrangemeritsomply with applicable healthcare laws may inkbkubstantial costs. While we h
adopted a healthcare corporate compliance progtasnpossible that governmental and enforcemetitaities will conclude that our busini
practices may not comply with current or futuregtiss, regulations or case law interpreting apple#&raud and abuse or other healthcare |
If our operations or activities are found to beviolation of any of the laws described above or ather governmental regulations that app
us, we may be subject to, without limitation, ciwiriminal and administrative penalties, damagesnetary fines, disgorgement, poss
exclusion from participation in Medicare, Medicaidd other federal healthcare programs, contradamages, reputational harm, diminis
profits and future earnings and curtailment orreesttiring of our operations, any of which could exbely affect our ability to operate.

In addition, any sales of products outside the éthitates will also likely subject us to foreigmiealents of the healthcare laws
mentioned above, among other foreign laws.
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We may be required to initiate or defend againsgjdé proceedings related to intellectual propertghits, which may result in substanti
expense, delay and/or cessation of the developraadtcommercialization of our products.

We primarily rely on patents to protect our intetleal property rights. The strength of this pratatthowever, is uncertain. For exam
it is not certain that:

« we will be able to obtain patent protection for punducts and technologi

» the scope of any of our issued patents will beigefit to provide commercially significant exclugy for our products ar
technologies;

« others will not independently develop similar aieahative technologies or duplicate our technolegied obtain patent protect
before we do; and

« any of our issued patents, or patent pending agics that result in issued patents, will be heltid, enforceable and infring
in the event the patents are asserted againssother

We currently own or license several patents and hbve pending patent applications applicable taPHR20 and other propriet:
materials. There can be no assurance that ouirrexigatents, or any patents issued to us as at r&fsolr pending patent applications, 1
provide a basis for commercially viable products| provide us with any competitive advantageswailt not face third party challenges or
the subject of further proceedings limiting thaiope or enforceability. A European patent, EP16Q36kiming rHUPH20 was granted to us
November 11, 2009 with claims to the human PH2@apyotein, PEGylated variants, a method of prodyehe glycoprotein produced
recombinant methods, and pharmaceutical compositiath other agents, including antibodies, insyliogokines, a chemotherapeutic ag
and additional therapeutic classes. A third papgpaosed this patent in the European Patent Offic20itD; however, the opposition has t
resolved with claims maintained in amended formy Aaknesses or limitations in our patent portfatald have a material adverse effec
our business and financial condition. In additidrany of our pending patent applications do nauiein issued patents, or result in iss
patents with narrow or limited claims, this couddult in us having no or limited protection agamesheric or biosimilar competition against
product candidates which would have a material emveffect on our business and financial condition.

We may become involved in interference proceedingbe U.S. Patent and Trademark Office, or otliec@edings in other jurisdictiol
to determine the priority, validity or enforceabyildf our patents. In addition, costly litigatioouwdd be necessary to protect our patent position

We also rely on trademarks to protect the namesuofproducts (e.gHylenexrecombinant). We may not be able to obtain tradk
protection for any proposed product names we selecaddition, product names for pharmaceuticaldpods must be approved by he
regulatory authorities such as the FDA in additionmeeting the legal standards required for tradkmeotection and product names
propose may not be timely approved by regulatognags which may delay product launch. In additaur, trademarks may be challengec
others. If we enforce our trademarks against thadies, such enforcement proceedings may be exgens

We also rely on trade secrets, unpatented propyiétaow-how and continuing technological innovation that sexk to protect wi
confidentiality agreements with employees, considtaand others with whom we discuss our businesspuies may arise concerning
ownership of intellectual property or the applidéypior enforceability of these agreements, andmight not be able to resolve these disput
our favor.

In addition to protecting our own intellectual pesty rights, third parties may assert patent, tnaatl or copyright infringement or ott
intellectual property claims against us. If we bmeoinvolved in any intellectual property litigatiowe may be required to pay substa
damages, including but not limited to treble dansag#torneys' fees and costs, for past infringenfeintis ultimately determined that c
products infringe a third party's intellectual peoly rights. Even if infringement claims againstawe without merit, defending a lawsuit ta
significant time, may be expensive and may diveanagement's attention from other business conc€uther, we may be stopped fr
developing, manufacturing or selling our productgiluve obtain a license from the owner of the valg technology or other intellect
property rights. If such a license is availablaljtit may require us to pay substantial royaltesther fees.
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Patent protection for proteirbased therapeutic products and other biotechnolagyentions is subject to a great deal of uncertainand il
patent laws or the interpretation of patent lawsariges, our competitors may be able to develop amtroercialize products based on ¢
discoveries.

Patent protection for proteimased therapeutic products is highly uncertain iamdlves complex legal and factual questions. Icere
years, there have been significant changes in penincluding the legal standards that govemgbope of protein and biotechnology pat:
Standards for patentability of fulbngth and partial genes, and their correspondintgjms, are changing. Recent court decisions hzage i
more difficult to obtain patents, by making it mat#ficult to satisfy the patentable subject mattequirement and the requirement of nor
obviousness, have decreased the availability ahttjons against infringers, and have increasedikbhéhood of challenging the validity of
patent through a declaratory judgment action. Takgether, these decisions could make it moreadiffiand costly for us to obtain, license
enforce our patents. In addition, the Le&@mith America Invents Act (HR 1249) was signed ilaew in September 2011, which among o
changes to the U.S. patent laws, changes patenitprirom “first to invent” to "first to file," inplements a pogrant opposition system 1
patents and provides for a prior user defenseftmgement. These judicial and legislative chanlyage introduced significant uncertainty
the patent law landscape and may potentially negigtimpact our ability to procure, maintain andane patents to provide exclusivity for
products.

There also have been, and continue to be, polisgudsions concerning the scope of patent protectiwarded to biotechnolo
inventions. Social and political opposition to leichnology patents may lead to narrower patent giiote within the biotechnology indust
Social and political opposition to patents on gesmas proteins and recent court decisions concenpagntability of isolated genes may lea
narrower patent protection, or narrower claim iptetation, for isolated genes, their correspondireins and inventions related to their
formulation and manufacture. Patent protectiontireyato biotechnology products is also subject tyeat deal of uncertainty outside the Ur
States, and patent laws are evolving and undergmigion in many countries. Changes in, or différenterpretations of, patent la
worldwide may result in our inability to obtaor enforce patents, and may allow others to usedmaoveries to develop and commercie
competitive products, which would impair our busisie

If third party reimbursement and customer contracase not available, our products may not be accepire the market.

Our ability to earn sufficient returns on our protiuwill depend in part on the extent to which feimsement for our products and rel:
treatments will be available from government healtlministration authorities, private health insarenanaged care organizations and ¢
healthcare providers.

Third-party payors are increasingly attempting to lingttbthe coverage and the level of reimbursememiewf drug products to conti
costs. Consequently, significant uncertainty exast$o the reimbursement status of newly approeadtiicare products. Third party payors |
not establish adequate levels of reimbursemerthfoproducts that we commercialize, which couldtltimeir market acceptance and result
material adverse effect on our financial condition.

Customer contracts, such as with group purchagiggnizations and hospital formularies, will oftent wffer contract or formulary stat
without either the lowest price or substantial gnoclinical differentiation. If our products arenepared to animadlerived hyaluronidases
these entities, it is possible that neither of ¢hesnditions will be met, which could limit markatceptance and result in a material ady
effect on our financial condition.

The rising cost of healthcare and related pharmadieal product pricing has led to cost containmentgssures that could cause us to
our products at lower prices, resulting in less sswe to us.

Any of the proprietary or collaboration productatthave been, or in the future are, approved by may be purchased or reimbur
by state and federal government authorities, peivegalth insurers and other organizations, sucheath maintenance organizations
managed care organizations. Such third party payumneasingly challenge pharmaceutical productipgic The trend toward manag
healthcare in the United States, the growth of sargfanizations, and various legislative proposald anactments to reform healthcare
government insurance programs, including the Medi€@aescription Drug Modernization Act of 2003, kbsignificantly influence the manr
in which pharmaceutical products are prescribed and
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purchased, resulting in lower prices and/or a rédndn demand. Such cost containment measureshaalthcare reforms could advers
affect our ability to sell our products.

In March 2010, the United States adopted the Raflestection and Affordable Care Act, as amendedhlyHealth Care and Educat
Reconciliation Act (the Healthcare Reform Act). §kaw substantially changes the way healthcara@nted by both governmental and pri
insurers, and significantly impacts the pharmacatindustry. The Healthcare Reform Act contaimsienber of provisions that are expecte
impact our business and operations, in some casemys we cannot currently predict. Changes that affect our business include th
governing enrollment in federal healthcare programasnbursement changes, fraud and abuse and enferd. These changes will img
existing government healthcare programs and willtein the development of new programs, includiigdicare payment for performar
initiatives and improvements to the physician gyatporting system and feedback program.

Additional provisions of the Healthcare Reform Athy negatively affect our revenues in the futuie. &ample, the Healthcare Reft
Act imposes a nodeductible excise tax on pharmaceutical manufaweimporters that sell branded prescription drtigU.S. governme
programs that we believe will impact our revenuesnf our products. In addition, as part of the Hezdte Reform Act's provisions closin
funding gap that currently exists in the MedicaatPD prescription drug program, we will also bguieed to provide a 50% discount
branded prescription drugs dispensed to benefsiamder this prescription drug program. We exfreitthe Healthcare Reform Act and o
healthcare reform measures that may be adoptéa:ifuture could have a material adverse effectwriralustry generally and on our ability
maintain or increase our product sales or succlssiommercialize our product candidates or courdtl or eliminate our future spending
development projects.

Furthermore, individual states have become inonghsiaggressive in passing legislation and impletmgnregulations designed
control pharmaceutical product pricing, includingcp or patient reimbursement constraints, discgur@strictions on certain product acc
importation from other countries and bulk purchgsihegally mandated price controls on paymamounts by third party payors or ot
restrictions could negatively and materially impauat revenues and financial condition. We anti@ghgat we will encounter similar regulat
and legislative issues in most other countriesidetthe U.S.

We face intense competition and rapid technologichlnge that could result in the development of duets by others that are superior
our proprietary and collaboration products under delopment.

Our proprietary and collaboration products have emaas competitors in the United States and abroeldiding, among others, ma
pharmaceutical and specialized biotechnology firamyersities and other research institutions tieate developed competing products.
competitors foHylenexrecombinant include, but are not limited to, Bau&chomb Inc. and Amphastar Pharmaceuticals, Ing.dto ultrafas
insulin product candidates, such competitors majude Biodel Inc., Eli Lily, Sanofi Aventis, Novoadxdisk Inc. and Mannkind Corporatic
These competitors may develop technologies andugtedhat are more effective, safer, or less cdbtiy our current or future proprietary .
collaboration product candidates or that could eenolur technologies and product candidates obsaleteoncompetitive. Many of the
competitors have substantially more resources andugt development, manufacturing and marketingeggpce and capabilities than we
In addition, many of our competitors have signifita greater experience than we do in undertakireglmical testing and clinical trials
pharmaceutical product candidates and obtaining BBd\other regulatory approvals of products andafies for use in healthcare.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Commen
None.

Item 2. Properties

Our administrative offices and research faciliges currently located in San Diego, California. \&ase an aggregate of approxime
76,000 square feet of office and research spaca fioonthly rent expense of approximately $145,00€ of costs and property taxes assoc
with the operation and maintenance of the subleta®lities. We believe the current space is adegit@ our immediate needs.
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Item 3. Legal Proceeding:

From time to time, we may be involved in disputas|uding litigation, relating to claims arising toof operations in the normal course
our business. Any of these claims could subjedbusostly legal expenses and, while we generalligbe that we have adequate insuranc
cover many different types of liabilities, our imance carriers may deny coverage or our policytirmay be inadequate to fully satisfy
damage awards or settlements. If this were to hgppe payment of any such awards could have ariabaelverse effect on our consolide
results of operations and financial position. Aabdially, any such claims, whether or not successmlild damage our reputation and busit
We currently are not a party to any legal procegslithe adverse outcome of which, in managemeantinion, individually or in the aggregz
would have a material adverse effect on our codatdid results of operations or financial position.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosure
Not applicable.
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PART Il

Item 5. Market for Registran’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters anduser Purchases of Equity Securitit
Market Information

Our common stock is listed on the NASDAQ GlobaleseMarket under the symbol “HALOThe following table sets forth the high :
low sales prices per share of our common stockaduwrach quarter of the two most recent fiscal years

2013 2012
High Low High Low
First Quarter $8.5¢ $5.1¢ $13.5( $9.0(
Second Quarter $8.4¢ $5.0: $13.0¢ $7.17
Third Quarter $12.1¢ $6.51 $9.92 $3.8¢
Fourth Quarter $16.3¢ $9.3: $7.62 $4.8(

On February 24, 2014 , the closing sales priceuofoommon stock on the NASDAQ Global Select Markas $16.0%er share. As
February 24, 2014 , we had approximately 9,415$tiders of record.

Dividends

We have never declared or paid any dividends orcommmon stock. We currently intend to retain avddacash for funding operatiol
therefore, we do not expect to pay any dividendsoon common stock in the foreseeable future. Initadd the provisions of our Lo
Agreement limit, among other things, our abilitypay dividends and make certain other payments. fAtwre determination to pay divider
on our common stock will be at the discretion of board of directors and will depend upon, amortepfactors, our results of operatic
financial condition, capital requirements, contnasitrictions, business prospects and other faotardoard of directors may deem relevant.
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Stock Performance Graph and Cumulative Total Return

Notwithstanding any statement to the contrary iy ahour previous or future filings with the SE@e tfollowing information relating
the price performance of our common stock shallbeotieemed to be “filed” with the SEC or to be fsiting material” under the Securitit
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the Exchaogad it shall not be deemed to be incorporatgddierence into any of our filings uni
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the dhgd Act, except to the extent we specificallyrpmate it by reference into such filing.

The graph below compares Halozyme Therapeutics;slmumulative fiveyear total shareholder return on common stock i
cumulative total returns of the NASDAQ Compositddr and the NASDAQ Biotechnology Index. The gragtcks the performance of a $:
investment in our common stock and in each of tigdexes (with the reinvestment of all dividendshifr®ecember 31, 2008 @ecember 3:
2013 . The historical stock price performance ideltiin this graph is not necessarily indicativéudfire stock price performance.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc., The NASDAQ Composite Index
And The NASDAQ Biotechnology Index
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- Halozyme Therapeutics Inc

*$100 invested on 12/31/08 in stock or index, including reinvestment of dividends. Fiscal year ending December 31

12/2008 12/2009 12/2010 12/2011 12/2012 12/2013
Halozyme Therapedtics, Inc. $100 $105 $141 $17( $120 $268
NASDAQ Composite $100 $144 $170 $169 $199 8%27
NASDAQ Biotechnology $100 $110 $127 $142 $188 $312
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Item 6. Selected Financial Dat:

The selected consolidated financial data set foeflbow as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 , and fofifical years endeldecember 3.
2013, 2012 and 201,lare derived from our audited consolidated finahsfatements included elsewhere in this reporis Hfiormation shoul
be read in conjunction with those consolidatedrfgial statements, the notes thereto, and witMiahagemens Discussion and Analysis
Financial Condition and Results of Operatic.” The selected consolidated financial data set foeflow as of December 31, 2011, 2010
2009, and for the fiscal years ended December 810 zand 2009, are derived from our audited conatgl financial statements that
contained in reports previously filed with the SEGt included herein.

Summary Financial Information

Statement of Operations Data:

Total revenues
Net loss
Net loss per share, basic and diluted

Shares used in computing net loss per share, aadic
diluted

Balance Sheet Data:

Cash and cash equivalents and available-for-sale
marketable securities

Working capital

Total assets

Deferred revenue
Long-term debt, net

Total liabilities
Stockholders’ (deficit) equity

Year Ended December 31,

2013%" 20129 20119 2010 2009
(in thousands, except for per share amounts)
$ 54,79¢ $ 42328 $ 56,08 $ 13,62« $ 13,67
(83,479 (53,55:) (19,770 (53,247 (58,36))
(0.79) (0.4€) (0.19 (0.56) (0.67)
112,80! 111,07 102,56t 94,35¢ 86,70(
As of December 31,
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
(in thousands)

$ 7150 $ 99,50 $ 52,37¢ $ 82,75¢ $ 66,91f
69,74 111,68. 46,23¢ 73,65¢ 59,49¢
101,79: 134,72¢ 65,75¢ 91,34t 77,15(
53,14: 43,84¢ 40,88¢ 58,09¢ 60,48:
49,77: 29,66: — — —
121,78 85,87t 54,85¢ 70,99¢ 70,24¢
(29,99 48,85« 10,90( 20,35 6,90:

(1) Revenues in 2013 reflected increases in supphpulk rHUPH20 to Roche and product salesHylenexrecombinant, which wi

relaunched in December 2011.

(2) Revenues in 2012 included $9.5 million in revenodar collaborative agreements from the Pfizer @oltation

(3) Revenues in 2011 included revenue under collalveragreements totaling $18.0 million related to dp&ont payments received fr(
the ViroPharma and Intrexon Collaborations and $1@&illion related to recognition of unamortized eleéd prepaid produdiase:
payments and unamortized deferred upfront paynmeobmnection with the termination of the collab@amatwith Baxter for the marketi
rights ofHylenexrecombinant (the Hylenex Collaboration) in July 201
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Item 7. Managemen's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition drResults of Operatio

In addition to historical information, the followgndiscussion contains forwaldeking statements that are subject to risks
uncertainties. Actual results may differ substditirom those referred to herein due to a numbkfactors, including but not limited to ris
described in the Part I, Item 1A, Risks Factorg] atsewhere in this Annual Report. References tmébl' are Notes included in our Notes
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Overview

Halozyme is a scienadriven, biopharmaceutical company committed to mgkmolecules into medicines for patients in needr
research focuses primarily on human enzymes that tle extracellular matrix. The extracellular mats a complex matrix of proteins a
carbohydrates surrounding the cell that providascgiral support in tissues and orchestrates mappitant biological activities, including c
migration, signaling and survival. Over many yeavs, have developed unique technology and sciergijmertise enabling us to pursue
target-rich environment for the development of épégs.

Our proprietary enzymes can bged to facilitate the delivery of injected drugsl dluids, thus enhancing the efficacy and the emmenc
of other drugs or can be used to alter abnormsli¢istructures for clinical benefit. We have chaseexploit our technology and expertise
balanced way to modulate both risk and spend bydéleloping our own proprietary products in thetac areas with significant unn
medical needs, such as diabetes, oncology and t®#agg, and (2) licensing our technology to biophaceutical companies to collaborati
develop products which combine our technology whith collaborators' proprietary compounds.

The majority of the products and product candidatesur current pipeline are based on rHUPH20, ®mad recombinant hum
hyaluronidase enzyme. rHUPH20 temporarily breaksndoyaluronic acid (HA) a naturally occurring substance that is a majorgmment o
the extracellular matrix in tissues throughoutlleely such as skin and cartilage. We believe tmgpt@ary degradation creates an opportur
window for the improved subcutaneous delivery gdédtable biologics, such as monoclonal antibodres@her large therapeutic molecules
well as small molecules and fluids. The HA recdasts its normal density within several days ahdyrdfore, we anticipate that any effec
rHUPH20 on the architecture of the subcutaneousesgatemporary. rHUPH20 can thus be applied asug delivery platform to increa
dispersion and absorption of other injected drugd #uids that are injected under the skin or ie thuscle thereby enhancing efficac
convenience. For example, rHUPH20 can be usedneecbdrugs that must be delivered intravenoudly subcutaneous injections or redu
the number of subcutaneous injections needed fectafe therapy. We refer to the application of BHR0 to facilitate the delivery of ott
drugs or fluids as EnhanZzé technology. rHUPH20 is also the active ingrediemtour first commercially approved produddylenex®
recombinant (hyaluronidase human injection). Additilly, we are expanding our scientific work in thdracellular matrix by developing otl
enzymes and agents that target its unique aspgiuteg rise to potentially new molecular entitidsat can be indicated in endocrinolc
oncology and dermatology.

Our proprietary pipeline consists of multiple ctiai stage products in diabetes, oncology and detomt. We currently hay
collaborations with F. Hoffmann-La Roche, Ltd. addffmannia Roche, Inc. (Roche), Pfizer Inc. (Pfizer), Baxtéealthcare Corporatis
(Baxter) and Intrexon Corporation (Intrexon), witho products approved for marketing in Europe, pneduct candidate which has b
submitted for regulatory approval in the U.S., gmeduct candidate which has been submitted forla¢gny approval in Europe and |
received a positive opinion from the European Cottemifor Medicinal Products for Human Use (CHMP)veell as several others at vari
stages of development.

Our operations to date have involved: (i) buildinfrastructure for and staffing our operations) écquiring, developing and secur
proprietary protection for our technology; (iii)\ddoping our proprietary product pipeline; (iv) erihg into and supporting our collaborati
with other companies to advance licensed produuddidates; and (v) selling our own approved
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commercial productlylenexrecombinant. Currently, we have received only kgditevenue from the salesh§lenexrecombinant, in additic
to other revenues from our collaborations.

Future revenues from the sales and/or royaltiesuofproduct candidates which have not been appraittdiepend on the ability
Halozyme and our collaborators to develop, manufag¢tsecure regulatory approvals for and commaezeidhe product candidates. We h
incurred net operating losses each year since tiocgpvith an accumulated deficit of approximat&B82.1 million as of December 31, 2013 .

Our 2013 and recent key accomplishments and busshighklights are as follows:

e On February 10, 2014, we completed an underwrigighlic offering and issued 8,846,153 shares of comrstock, includin
1,153,846 shares sold pursuant to the full exerofsan overallotment option granted to the underwriters. Aflitbe shares we
offered at a public offering price of $13.00 peras$) generating approximately $107.8 million in geeds after deducting 1
underwriting discounts and commissions and estidhexpenses.

e In January 2014, Roche announced that the CHMPRdwsnmended that the European Commission approead®subcutanec
(SC) formulation of MabTherd& (rituximab) using rHUPH20 for the treatment of pats with common forms of nddedgkir
lymphoma (NHL).

 In December 2013, Baxter announced that it has tEeg submission of an amended biologics licens#iagtion (BLA) to the
United States Food and Drug Administration (FDA)denitiate the review process for approval of HyQuibyQvia is a combinatic
of human immune globulin and rHuUPH20 which faciét subcutaneous infusion for the treatment oftagatients with primai
immunodeficiency.

» In September 2013, Roche launched in Europestlbeutaneous formulation of Herceptiftrastuzumab) using rHUPH20 (Herce
SC) for the treatment of patients with HER@sitive breast cancer. Roche received the Europeaketing approval for Herceptin .
in August 2013. The first commercial sale of HetaefC triggered a $10 million payment to us.

e In July 2013, Baxter launched HyQvia (solution fabcutaneous use) as replacement therapy for pdtiétnts with primary ar
secondary immunodeficiencies in the first EuropBaion (EU) country. The first commercial sale of @lia triggered a $4 millic
payment to us. The European Commission grantedeBaxarketing authorization in all EU Member Stdtasthe use of HyQvia
May 2013.

e In the first quarter of 2013, we initiated a Béa& clinical study The Continuous Subcutaneous Insulin Infusion Stadsolling Type
1 (CONSISTENT 1) - that will evaluatdylenexrecombinant as an adjunct in the treatment of pewith type 1 diabetes using inst
pumps.

e In the first quarter of 2013, we initiated a Phasemulticenter, randomized clinical trial evaluatiREGPH20, a proprieta
investigational drug, as a first-line therapy fatipnts with stage IV metastatic pancreatic cancer.

Results of Operations
Comparison of Years Ended December 31, 2013, 20122011

Product Sales, Net— Product sales increased in 2013 compared to 2018$2b.6 million, or 746%, primarily due to $14.8lion in
product sales of bulk rHUPH20 for Herceptin SC alyfQvia. The increase was also due to a $6.8 miilmmnease in product sales ldflene;
recombinant, which included a one-time increaseeh product sales of $0.7 million relating to thecge from the sell-through to séil-
revenue recognition method. Subsequent to thepeoéithe European marketing approvals of Herceftthin August 2013 and HyQvia
May 2013, revenue from bulk rHUPH20 supply for tn@soducts to the collaborators is recorded asymtoshles revenue, instead of revel
under collaborative agreements. Based on the Earopeprovals of Herceptin SC and HyQvia in 2013 toed reintroduction oHylene;
recombinant in December 2011, we expect produesdalincrease in future periods.
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Product sales increased in 2012 compared to 201$1Hy million, or 57%, primarily due to the incredsproduct sales dflylene;
recombinant resulting from the reintroduction Hhflenexrecombinant in December 2011. Product sales in 28dlided the recognition
approximately $991,000 of deferred revenue relatedP! for Hylenexrecombinant previously delivered to Baxter, becatlme earning
process related to these product sales was cordpie911. Excluding the recognition of the $99D,@® deferred revenue, our product sale
2011 would have been $845,000.

Revenues Under Collaborative Agreements Revenues under collaborative agreements for thes yaaleddecember 31, 2013, 20
and 2011 were as follows (in thousands):

2013 Change 2012 Change 2011
Upfront payments, license maintenance fees andtaation of deferred
upfront, license fees and product-based payments:
Roche $ 2,33¢ 16% $ 2,01¢ 2% $ 1,96¢
Pfizer 1,50(C (84%) 9,50( n/e —
ViroPharma 1,00(¢ —% 1,00( (89%) 9,00(
Intrexon 1,00 —% 1,00¢ (89%) 9,00(
Baxter 60€ 25% 482 (97%) 17,62
Other — (10C%) 42¢ 504% 71
6,44¢ (55%) 14,42¢ (62%) 37,66:
Milestone payments:
Roche — (10C%) 8,00( 60% 5,00(
Baxter — — — (10C%) 3,00(¢
ViroPharma = — = (10C%) 3,00(¢
— (10C%) 8,00( (27%)  11,00(
Reimbursements for research and development seraiw supply of
bulk rHUPH20:
Roche® 19,08¢ 115% 8,897 16C% 3,41¢
Baxter® 4,05¢ (40%) 6,74z 301% 1,681
ViroPharma 181 (86%) 1,27( 194% 43z
Pfizer 58¢ n/e — — —
Other — (100%) 101 71% 59
23,91t 41% 17,01( 204% 5,58¢
Total revenues under collaborative agreements $ 30,36( (23%) $39,43¢ (27%) $ 54,25

(1) Subsequent to the European approvals of Herce@im3wugust 2013 and HyQvia in May 2013, revenwfrsupply of bulk rHuPHZ
for those products to the collaborators is reco@egroduct sales.

In 2012, we recognized $9.5 million in license fegenue in connection with the Pfizer Collaboratibm2011, we recognized $1!
million in license fee revenue in connection withe tViroPharma and Intrexon Collaborations. Also2ill, we recognized revenue
approximately $9.3 million related to the deferqgebpaid producbased payments and approximately $7.8 million edlab the deferre
upfront payment upon termination of certain agresibetween us and Baxter for the marketing rightdylenexrecombinant in 2011.

Revenue from reimbursements for research and dewvelot services and bulk rHuPh20 supply increasé&Di8 compared to 2012 ¢
to the increase in reimbursements for manufactusienyices to support the potential launches by Bo&evenue from reimbursements
research and development services and supply kfrBulPH20 increased in 2012 compared to 2011
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due to the increase in services requested by tifebooators, particularly manufacturing serviceses®arch and development services rent
by us on behalf of our collaborators are at theuest of the collaborators; therefore, the amounfutfre revenues related to reimburs
research and development services and supply & BdllPH20 is uncertain. We expect the meimnbursement revenues under
collaborative agreements to continue to fluctuatéuture periods based on our collaboratatsilities to meet various clinical and regula
milestones set forth in such agreements and olitiebio obtain new collaborative agreements.

Cost of Product Sales— Cost of product sales increased in 2013 compar@D1@, by $5.2 million, or 471%, primarily due tdba.¢
million increase in cost of product sales relatedhe increaseéiylenexrecombinant product sales and $2.3 million in afsproduct sale
related to the product sales of bulk rHUPH20 forddptin SC. Cost of product sales increased in 2@f2pared to 2011 by $0.8 million,
324%, primarily due to the increased product safddylenexrecombinant. Based on the reintroductiorHgfenexrecombinant in Decemt
2011 and the European approvals of Herceptin SGHy@Qlia in 2013, we expect cost of product salesatatinue to increase in the future.

Cost of product sales of bulk rHUPH20 for Hercef@i@ and HyQvia for 2013 excluded the related mastufang costs totaling $1C
million that were incurred prior to receiving therketing approvals and thus were charged to relseanrd development expenses in the pe
such costs were incurred. Of the $10.0 million nfacwring costs, the amounts charged to researdhdemelopment expenses were !
million and $1.0 million for 2013 and 2012, respeely. Therefore, cost of product sales of bulk HHR0 for Herceptin SC and HyQ
recognized in 2013 was materially reduced.

The estimated selling price of the zemst inventory of bulk rHUPH20 for Herceptin SC band as of December 31, 2013,
approximately $0.3 million. We expect to sell thiwentory by the end of the first half of 2014. éftthis zercsost inventory has be
consumed, we expect the estimated cost of produes $0 be approximately 83% of API product satsenue. There was no HyQvia /
inventory on hand as of December 31, 2013.

Research and Development Research and development expenses incurred fgetirs ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and @@td
as follows (in thousands):

2013 2012 2011
Programs
Product Candidates:
Ultrafast insulin program $ 24,720 $ 5251 $ 16,61¢
PEGPH20 18,74 12,47¢ 8,39¢
Hylenex recombinant 10,73« 11,68: 4,12¢
HTI-501 2,712 1,962 3,91¢
Enhanze collaboratiortd 31,10¢ 26,15: 7,464
rHUPH20 platforni? 5,89¢ 7,708 14,10(
Other 2,73( 4,81: 2,941
Total research and development expenses $ 96,64C $ 70,04« $ 57,56

(1) Subsequent to the European approvals of HerceginnSAugust 2013 and HyQvia in May 2013, the mantifédng costs of bu
rHUPH20 for these collaboration products are céipéd as inventory.

(2) Includes research, development and manufacturinmereses related to our proprietary rHUPH20 enzynies& expenses were
designated to a specific program at the time tiperges were incurred.

Research and development expenses increased inc@@iared to 2012 by $26.6 million, or 38%. Redearmd development expen
relating to our ultrafast insulin and PEGPH20 pemgs increased in 2013 compared to 2012 by $191®mibr 371%,
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and $6.3 million, or 50%, respectively, primarilyedto the increased clinical trial activities relgtto the CONSISTENT 1 and ageing Phas
2 PEGPH20 clinical trials. Research and developregpenses relating to our Enhanze collaboratiooeased in 2013 compared to 201!
$5.0 million, or 19%, primarily due to a $9.8 nolfi increase in manufacturing activities to supfwthe's preparation for the launches c
collaboration product and product candidates; bffsgart by a $4.6 million decrease in manufactyrexpenses to support Baxter's launc
its collaboration product. Subsequent to the Ewaopgpprovals of Herceptin SC in August 2013 and Hg@ May 2013, the manufacturi
costs of bulk rHUPH30 for these products are chpita as inventory. We expect research and devedoprpsts to increase in future period
we continue with our clinical trial programs andhtinue to develop and manufacture our product chatds.

Research and development expenses increased inc@diared to 2011 by $12.5 million, or 22%, prifyadue to a $11.8 millic
increase in manufacturing activities to support oallaborators' potential launches of the collaboraproduct candidates and to proc
validation batches dflylenexrecombinant with a second fill/finish manufactuaeid a $5.3 million increase in research activit@fset in pai
by a $5.2 million decrease in clinical trial acties primarily related to our ultrafast insulin gram.

Selling, General and Administrative— Selling, general and administrative (SG&A) expeniseseased in 2013 compared to 201:
$7.5 million, or 30%, primarily due to a $3.9 nuoli increase in compensation costs, including a $@ilfon increase in stockase:
compensation, mainly resulting from an increaskaadcount and higher bonus accruals, and a $1li®mmihcrease in marketing activities
Hylenexrecombinant product.

SG&A expenses increased in 2012 compared to 20146b% million, or 37%, primarily due to a $4.5 nwh increase in compensat
costs, including a $1.4 million increase in std@dsed compensation, mainly resulting from buildthg infrastructure of our commerc
organization in connection with the reintroductmirHylenexrecombinant in December 2011. In connection withrigintroduction oHylene;
recombinant in December 2011, we expect SG&A expeisincrease in future periods as we plan teas® sales and marketing activities.

Interest Expense— Interest expense included interest expense andtizatan of the debt discount related to the ldaegn debt acquire
in December 2012.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our principal sources of liquidity are our existiogsh, cash equivalents and available-for-sale etalole securities. As december 3.
2013, we had cash, cash equivalents and marketableitteswf approximately $71.5 million. On Februdf, 2014, we sold approximat
8.8 million shares of common stock at a public wffg price of $13.00 per share, generating appratéty $107.8 million in proceeds al
deducting the underwriting discounts and commissiand estimated expenses. We will continue to Isigmeificant cash requirements
support product development activities. The amamtt timing of cash requirements will depend onghecess of our clinical developm
programs, regulatory and market acceptance, anattoeirces we devote to research and other conmatization activities.

We believe that our current cash, cash equival@msmarketable securities will be sufficient todusur operations for at least the r
twelve months. Excluding the proceeds from the &atyr 2014 financing, we currently anticipate totat cash burn of approximately $4:
$55 million for the year ending December 31, 20de€pending on the progress of various preclinical @mical programs, the timing of ¢
manufacturing scale up, the achievement of vanilisstones and royalties under our existing coltatiee agreements and our potential €
into new collaborative agreement(s). We expectitmifour operations going forward with existing cestources, anticipated revenues from
existing collaborations and cash that we may r#tiseugh future transactions. We may finance futteish needs through any one of
following financing vehicles: (i) the public offery of securities; (i) new collaborative agreemeil(ii§) expansions or revisions to exist
collaborative relationships; (iv) private financsm@nd/or (v) other equity or debt financings.

In February 2012, we filed an automatic shelf regtion statement on Form S-3 (Registration No.-833444) with the SEC, whi
allows us, from time to time, to offer and sell g@gudebt securities and warrants to purchase &sych securities,
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either individually or in units. We may, in the due, offer and sell equity, debt securities andraras to purchase any of such securities, ¢
individually or in units to raise capital to funigkt continued development of our product candidétescommercialization of our products or
other general corporate purposes.

Our existing cash, cash equivalents and marketsdaterrities may not be adequate to fund our opemtimtii we become cash fl
positive, if ever. We cannot be certain that addgi financing will be available when needed oravkilable, financing will be obtained
favorable terms. If we are unable to raise suffitiinds, we may need to delay, scale back or ehtei some or all of our research
development programs, delay the launch of our pbdandidates, if approved, and/or restructureoperations. If we raise additional funds
issuing equity securities, substantial dilutionetasting stockholders could result. If we raiseiiddal funds by incurring debt financing,
terms of the debt may involve significant cash pagtrobligations, the issuance of warrants that oitignately dilute existing stockholde
when exercised and covenants that may restricability to operate our business.

Cash Flows
Operating Activities

Net cash used in operations was $49.3 million ih3®2€ompared to $64.3 millioof net cash used in operations in 2012. The $18l®r
decrease in utilization of cash in operations wamiy due to receipts of the first commercial sai¢estone payments totaling $14.0 millior
2013 from Roche and Baxter and an increase in atsqayable; offset in part by the increase inloss after adjusted for narash item
including stock-based compensation and depreciatimhamortization.

Net cash used in operations was $64.3 million ih22€ompared to $34.3 millioof net cash used in 2011. This change was primecit
to the increase in net loss of $33.8 million adidsfor non-cash items including stolbsed compensation and depreciation and amortize
addition to changes in working capital.

Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities was $47.9ionilin 2013 compared to $1.4 millidn 2012 and $0.8 million in 2011. This incre
was primarily due to the purchases of marketaldarites of $48.9 million in 2013. The increasengt cash used in investing activities in 2
as compared to 2011 was primarily due to an iner@apurchases of property and equipment durin@201

Financing Activities

Net cash provided by financing activities was $2®illion in 2013 compared to $112.8 millioan 2012 and $4.7 million in 2011. M
cash provided by financing activities in 2013 cetesil of net proceeds of $20.0 million from the adeshlongterm debt and $5.5 million fro
option exercises. Net cash provided by financintg/dies in 2012 consisted of net proceeds of $8iilion from the sale of our common st
in February 2012, $29.7 million from the loterm debt and $2.0 million from option exercisest Mash provided by financing activities dui
2011 primarily consisted of proceeds from stockarpexercises.

Long-Term Debt

On December 27, 2013, we entered into an AmendddRastated Loan and Security Agreement (the Loareégent) with Oxfor
Finance LLC, a Delaware limited liability comparand Silicon Valley Bank, a California corporatidoollectively, the Lenders) amending i
restating in its entirety the Loan and Security égmnent dated as of December 28, 2012 (the Origioah Agreement). The Original Lo
Agreement provided for a $30 million secured sirdjlaw term loan facility with a maturity date of dany 1, 2017. The original term loan \
fully drawn at close. The Loan Agreement exten@sdtiginal $30 million term loan and provides for additional $20 million new term loz
bringing the total term loan balance to $50 millidihe amended and restated term loan facility reaten January 1, 2018. Similar to
Original Loan Agreement, the Loan Agreement prositte a 7.55% interest rate on the term loans afiahpayment of 8.5% of the origir
principal amount, which is due when the term loaedmes due or upon the prepayment of the facilihe amended term loan repayn
schedule provides for
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interest only payments in arrears for the firstnd@nths, followed by consecutive equal monthly paymentpiirficipal and interest in arre.
starting in February 2015 and continuing through ttinaturity date. We have the option to prepay thistanding balance of the term loa
full, subject to a prepayment fee of 1% to 3% dejregn upon when the prepayment occurs. Leemga debt, net was $49.8 million and $:
million as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respelstiv

The amended and restated term loan facility isreechy substantially all of the assets of the Camyand Halozyme, Inc., except that
collateral does not include any equity interest$lalozyme, Inc., any intellectual property (inclagiall licensing, collaboration and sim
agreements relating thereto), and certain othetudgd assets. The Loan Agreement contains customemesentations, warranties
covenants by us, which covenants limit our abii@yconvey, sell, lease, transfer, assign or otterwlispose of certain of our assets; enga
any business other than the businesses currergbged in by us or reasonably related thereto;d@fei or dissolve; make certain manage!
changes; undergo certain change of control evergate, incur, assume, or be liable with respecettain indebtedness; grant certain liens:
dividends and make certain other restricted paysjanbke certain investments; make payments on abgrdinated debt; and enter i
transactions with any of our affiliates outsidettid ordinary course of business or permit our slidges to do the same. In addition, subje
certain exceptions, we are required to maintaih Biticon Valley Bank our primary deposit accousscurities accounts and commaodities,
to do the same for our domestic subsidiary.

The Loan Agreement also contains customary indecatiibn obligations and customary events of defantiuding, among other thing
our failure to fulfill certain of our obligationsnder the Loan Agreement and the occurrence of amahtdverse change which is defined
material adverse change in our business, operatioosndition (financial or otherwise), a mateiiapairment of the prospect of repaymer
any portion of the loan, or a material impairmenttie perfection or priority of lenderlien in the collateral or in the value of suchiateral. Ir
the event of default by us under the Loan AgreentaetLenders would be entitled to exercise theinedies thereunder, including the rigk
accelerate the debt, upon which we may be requoredpay all amounts then outstanding under thenl&greement, which could harm «
financial condition.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of December 31, 2013we did not have any relationships with unconsabd entities or financial partnerships, such asies ofter
referred to as structured finance or special pumstities, which would have been establishedHerpurpose of facilitating otfalance she
arrangements or other contractually narrow or Baiipurposes. In addition, we did not engage iniricadctivities involving norexchang
traded contracts. As such, we are not materialfyos&d to any financing, liquidity, market or creds that could arise if we had engage
these relationships.
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Contractual Obligations

As of December 31, 2013, future minimum payments uhder our contractual obligations are as follGwshousands):

Payments Due by Period

Less than More than

Contractual Obligations ¢ Total 1 Year 1-3Years  4-5 Years 5 Years
Long-term debt, including intere'st $ 64,056 $ 3461 $ 54,790 $ 5806 $ =
Operating leas€ed 8,34( 1,99t 6,26¢ 80 —
License payments 60C 30C 30C — —
Third-party manufacturing obligatioff$ 10,96¢ 10,96¢ — — —
Purchase obligations 38¢ 8C 23¢ 66 —
Total $ 84,34¢ $ 16,80 $ 61598 $ 595 $ —

(1) Does not include milestone or contractual paymddigations contingent upon the achievement of @ertailestone or events if t
amount and timing of such obligations are unknowareertain.

(2) Longterm debt obligations include future monthly insrpayments based on a fixed rate of 7.55% andah payment of $4.25 millic
for our long-term debt due in January 2018.

(3) Includes minimum lease payments related tedsaf our office and research facilities and deraitos under nonancelable operatil
leases.

(4) We have contracted with third-party manufaetsirfor the supply of bulk rHUPH20 and fill/finigii Hylenexrecombinant. Under the
agreements, we are required to purchase certaimtitjea each year during the terms of the agreesndite amounts presented repre
our estimates of the minimum required payments utigdese agreements.

(5) Excludes contractual obligations already recordedur consolidated balance sheet as current liigisi

Contractual obligations for purchases of goodseawvises include agreements that are enforceablelegyadly binding on us and tt
specify all significant terms, including fixed orimmmum quantities to be purchased; fixed, minimumvariable price provisions; and -
approximate timing of the transaction. For obligati with cancellation provisions, the amounts idelliin the preceding table were limite:
the non-cancelable portion of the agreement temtiseominimum cancellation fee.

For the restricted stock units granted, the nunobbshares issued on the date the restricted stoitk west is net of the minimum statut
withholding requirements that we pay in cash toappropriate taxing authorities on behalf of ouplyees. The obligation to pay the reley
taxing authority is not included in the precediagle, as the amount is contingent upon continuggla@ment. In addition, the amount of
obligation is unknown, as it is based in part canarket price of our common stock when the awaeds

The expected timing of payments of the obligatiabsve is estimated based on current informatiomifig of payments and acti
amounts paid may be different, depending on the tifireceipt of goods or services, or changes teeajupon amounts for some obligations.

Our future capital uses and requirements depentuarerous forwardeoking factors. These factors may include, butrastlimited to
the following:

» the rate of progress and cost of research and aj@weint activities
» the number and scope of our research activ

» the costs of filing, prosecuting, defending ancbecihg any patent claims and other intellectuapprty rights

40




* our ability to establish and maintain productadivery and development collaborations, includicejesup manufacturing costs for our
collaborators’ product candidates;

» the amount of product sales fdylenexrecombinan

» the costs of obtaining and validating additiomainufacturers dflylenexrecombinan

» the effect of competing technological and markefettgpments

« the terms and timing of any collaborative, licegsamd other arrangements that we may establisl

» the extent to which we acquire orlioense new products, technologies or busine

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

This discussion and analysis of our financial ctiadiand results of operations are based on ousdtolated financial statements, wr
have been prepared in accordance with U.S. gepearatiepted accounting principles, or U.S. GAAP. Pineparation of our consolidai
financial statements requires us to make estimatdsjudgments that affect the reported amountsséta, liabilities, revenues and expe
and related disclosure of contingent assets amdities. We review our estimates on an ongoingidad#/e base our estimates on histo
experience and on various other assumptions thdielieve to be reasonable under the circumstaticesesults of which form the basis
making judgments about the carrying values of assed liabilities. Actual results may differ frotmese estimates under different assump
or conditions. We believe the following accountipglicies to be critical to the judgments and estewaused in the preparation of
consolidated financial statements.

Revenue Recognition

We generate revenues from product sales and coliib® agreements. Payments received under codtiberagreements may incl
nonrefundable fees at the inception of the agre&snboense fees, milestone payments for specifitewements designated in the collabor:
agreements, reimbursements of research and devehtmarvices and supply of bulk rHUPH20 and/or It®gon sales of products result
from collaborative arrangements.

We recognize revenue in accordance with the autiiwmé guidance on revenue recognition. Revenuedésgnized when all of tl
following criteria are met: (1) persuasive evidewfean arrangement exists; (2) delivery has occuaeservices have been rendered; (3
seller’s price to the buyer is fixed or determirglaind (4) collectibility is reasonably assured.

At December 31, 2013, we had developed sufficigstbtical experience and data to reasonably estiffitditire returns and chargeback
Hylenexrecombinant. As a result, effective December 31,32@e began recognizingylenexrecombinant product sales and related cc
product sales at the time title transfers to thelegalers and providing for an estimate of futunedpct returns and chargebacks at that tim
connection with the change in the timing of rectigni of product sales, we recorded a ¢ing adjustment to recognize revenue and re
costs that had previously been deferred at DeceBithe2012, resulting in additional net product sale€ $624,00@&nd cost of product sales
$179,0000r the year ended December 31, 2013. Based oaralysis and information available at this time,als recorded a net decreas
the allowances for estimated product returns aratgebacks, resulting in an increase to net prodalgs of $73,00@or the year ende
December 31, 2013. We recorded a total increasettproduct sales of $697,000 for the year endeztdéer 31, 2013.

We believe that our estimated reserve for prodetttrns forHylenexrecombinant requires a high degree of judgmentiarsiibject t
change based on our experience and certain quastitand qualitative factors. We have monitoreduakteturns history on an individt
product lot basis since product launch. We considi¢gne dating of product at the time of shipmetd the distribution channel and change
the estimated levels of inventory within the distition channel to estimate our exposure for retlmpeduct. Because of the shelf life
Hylenexrecombinant and our lengthy return period, therg b®a significant period of time between whengheduct is shipped and when
issue credits on returned product. If actual redtiffer from our estimates, we will be requireditiake adjustments to this reserve in the fu
which could have an effect on product sales revenuthe period of adjustments. A 1% increase orekse in our returns reserve ¢
percentage of product sales would have a finastaiément impact of approximately $159,000 and®B2for the years ended Decembel
2013 and 2012, respectively.
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Refer to Note 2 for a further discussion of ouremwe recognition policies for product sales ancemeres under our collaborat
agreements and Note 4 for a further discussioruptollaborative agreements.

Share-Based Payments

We use the fair value method to account for shaseth payments in accordance with the authoritajividance for sharbase!
compensation. The fair value of each option awarestimated on the date of grant using a Black-8skderton option pricing model (Black-
Scholes model) that uses assumptions regardingr@eruof complex and subjective variables. Changethése assumptions may leau
variability with respect to the amount of expenserecognize in connection with shdrased payments. Refer to Note 2 for a further disiot
of share-based payments.

Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses include sadariebenefits, facilities and other overhead expgeneseernal clinical trial expens
research related manufacturing services, contmctices and other outside expenses. Research amdlogment expenses are charge
operations as incurred when these expenditureterédaour research and development efforts and Inavalternative future usesAfter
receiving marketing approval from the FDA or congi@e regulatory agencies in foreign countries faraduct, costs related to purchase
manufacturing of bulk rHUPH20 for such product eapitalized as inventory. The manufacturing co$tsutk rHUPH20 for Herceptin SC a
HyQvia incurred after the receipt of the Europeaarkating approvals in 2013 are capitalized as itorgn Refer to Note 2 for a furth
discussion of research and development expenses.

Due to the uncertainty in obtaining the FDA andeottegulatory approvals, our reliance on thirdiparand competitive pressures, we
unable to estimate with any certainty the additiauests we will incur in the continued developmehbur proprietary product candidates
commercialization. However, we expect our reseancti development expenses to increase this yeareasomtinue with our clinical tri
programs and continue to develop and manufacturermguct candidates.

Clinical development timelines, likelihood of susseand total costs vary widely. We anticipate thatwill make ongoing determinatic
as to which research and development projects tsupuand how much funding to direct to each projectin ongoing basis in respons
existing resource levels, the scientific and chihiprogress of each product candidate, and othékehand regulatory developments. We |
on focusing our resources on those proprietary @idboration product candidates that representnibet valuable economic and strat
opportunities.

Product candidate completion dates and costs \gnjfisantly for each product candidate and ardialift to estimate. The lengt
process of seeking regulatory approvals and theegplent compliance with applicable regulations ireqthe expenditure of substan
resources. Any failure by us to obtain, or any gétaobtaining, regulatory approvals could causeresearch and development expenditur
increase and, in turn, have a material adversetedfe our results of operations. We cannot be icertden, or if, our product candidates
receive regulatory approval or whether any net dafébw from our other product candidates, or depehent projects, will commence.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at lower of cost or marRest is determined on a first-in, firstit basis. Refer to Note 2 for a further discussit
our inventories.

The above listing is not intended to be a comprsiveriist of all of our accounting policies. In nyacases, the accounting treatment
particular transaction is specifically dictatedWys. GAAP. There are also areas in which our mamegés judgment in selecting any availa
alternative would not produce a materially diffareasult. Refer to Note 2 for a further discussidrour significant accounting policies ¢
other disclosures required by U.S. GAAP.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Refer to Note 2Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Adaptof Recent Accounting Pronouncemand Pending Adoption
Recent Accounting Pronouncem, for a discussion of recent accounting pronouncesnand their effect, if any, on us.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MarkRisk

As of December 31, 2013, our cash equivalents aadketable securities consisted of investments inapanarket funds, corporate d
obligations, commercial paper and certificates epakit. These investments were made in accordaiite owr investment policy whic
specifies the categories, allocations, and ratoigsecurities we may consider for investment. Thmary objective of our investment activit
is to preserve principal while at the same time imé&ing the income we receive without significanthcreasing risk. Some of the finani
instruments that we invest in could be subject tokmat risk. This means that a change in prevailmgrest rates may cause the value o
instruments to fluctuate. For example, if we pusgha security that was issued with a fixed interast and the prevailing interest rate |
rises, the value of that security will probably litee. As of December 31, 2013 based on our cuireistment portfolio, we do not believe t
our results of operations would be materially imtpddy an immediate change of 10% in interest rates

We do not hold or issue derivatives, derivative oadity instruments or other financial instrumeras $peculative trading purpos
Further, we do not believe our cash, cash equitgland marketable securities have significant agklefault or illiquidity. We made th
determination based on discussions with our investradvisors and a review of our holdings. Whilebeéeve our cash, cash equivalents
marketable securities do not contain excessive wskcannot provide absolute assurance that ifutiiee our investments will not be subjec
adverse changes in market value. All of our caabh @quivalents and marketable securities arededat fair market value.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Dz
Our financial statements are annexed to this rdpginning on page F-1.

Item 9. Changes In and Disagreements with Accountants orcdgnting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Item 9A. Control and Procedure
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and proceduresdtmtesigned to ensure that information requioelget disclosed in our Exchange
reports is recorded, processed, summarized andteelpwithin the timelines specified in the Secestand Exchange Commissisnules an
forms, and that such information is accumulated eochmunicated to our management, including our fChiecutive Officer and Chi
Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timelgcision regarding required disclosure. In desigrind evaluating the disclosure controls
procedures, management recognized that any comtnolgrocedures, no matter how well designed aedatgd, can only provide reason:
assurance of achieving the desired control objestiand in reaching a reasonable level of assurammeagement necessarily was require
apply its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefiationship of possible controls and procedures.

Under the supervision and with the participationoof management, including our principal executiféicer and principal financi
officer, we conducted an evaluation of our discitestontrols and procedures, as such term is definddr Rule 134:5(e) promulgated unc
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendeskedan this evaluation, our principal executivdceif and our principal financial offic
concluded that our disclosure controls and proesiurere effective as of the end of the period axvéry this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There have been no significant changes in our riatecontrol over financial reporting that occurrddring the quarter end
December 31, 2013 that have materially affectedrereasonably likely to materially affect, outeimal control over financial reporting.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingraamhtaining adequate internal control over finahoggorting. Internal control ov
financial reporting is defined in Rule 13a-15(f)daRule 15d15(f) promulgated under the Securities Exchange &ci934 as a proce
designed by, or under the supervision of, our [palcexecutive and principal financial officers amffected by our board of directc
managemerand other personnel, to provide reasonable assiragarding the reliability of financial reportiagd the preparation of financ
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles and ttetuthose policies and procedures that:

« Pertain to the maintenance of records that in retsle detail accurately and fairly reflect the sactions and dispositions of our as

» Provide reasonable assurance that transactiorre@eded as necessary to permit preparation ofi¢iahstatements in accordance \
generally accepted accounting principles, andrixzipts and expenditures are being made onlydardance with authorizations of «
management and directors; and

» Provide reasonable assurance regarding preventiimely detection of unauthorized acquisition, usedisposition of our assets t
could have a material effect on our financial steats.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or détmisstatements. Projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods at@exct to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, o
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdaces may deteriorate.

Our management assessed the effectiveness of @unah control over financial reporting as of Ded®mn31, 2013 In making thi
assessment, our management used the criteriardebjothe Committee of Sponsoring Organizationthef Treadway Commission (COSO
Internal Control-Integrated Framework (1992).

Based on our assessment, management concludedstaftDecember 31, 2013ur internal control over financial reportingeffective
based on the COSO criteria.

The independent registered public accounting finat taudited the consolidated financial statememas &re included in this Annt
Report on Form 10-K has issued an audit reporhereffectiveness of our internal control over ficiahreporting as of December 31, 2013
The report appears below.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc.

We have audited Halozyme Therapeutics, fddternal control over financial reporting as oéd@mber 31, 2013, based on crit
established in Internal Controllategrated Framework issued by the Committee ofnSpng Organizations of the Treadway Commis
(1992 framework) (the COSO criteria). Halozyme Hpautics, Incs management is responsible for maintaining effedtiternal control o
financial reporting, and for its assessment of dffectiveness of internal control over financiapeeing included in the accompany
Management’'s Report on Internal Control Over Fim@nReporting. Our responsibility is to express @rinion on the compang’interna
control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the staisdof the Public Company Accounting Oversight lo@Jnited States). Tho
standards require that we plan and perform thetdodbbtain reasonable assurance about whethectigeinternal control over financ
reporting was maintained in all material respe€ar audit included obtaining an understanding ¢érimal control over financial reportir
assessing the risk that a material weakness etésting and evaluating the design and operatifec®@feness of internal control based on
assessed risk, and performing such other procedigege considered necessary in the circumstancesbéleve that our audit provide
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is agess designed to provide reasonable assurancaliregéhe reliability o
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantfegeinerally accepted accounting princi
A companys internal control over financial reporting inclsdihose policies and procedures that (1) pertathéamaintenance of records tl
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflbet transactions and dispositions of the assetseofompany; (2) provide reasonable assui
that transactions are recorded as necessary toitpgraparation of financial statements in accorédamdth generally accepted accoun
principles, and that receipts and expenditureshef dompany are being made only in accordance withoaizations of management
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanasisurance regarding prevention or timely deteadfounauthorized acquisition, use
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzaneterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohwver financial reporting may not prevent or @etmisstatements. Also, projections
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periodssabject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in conditior
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. maimé¢al, in all material respects, effective internahtcol over financial reporting as
December 31, 2013, based on the COSO criteria

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight BogUnited States), tl
consolidated balance sheets of Halozyme Therapeutic. as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, anddla¢ed consolidated statement:
operations, comprehensive loss, cash flows, arakistdders’ fleficit) equity for each of the three years in pegiod ended December 31, 2
of Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. and our report d&eloruary 28, 2014 expressed an unqualified opittiereon.

/sErnst & Young LLP

San Diego, California
February 28, 2014
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Item 9B. Other Information

None.
PART Il

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Goverree

The information required by this item regardingediors is incorporated by reference to our defigitProxy Statement (the Prc
Statement) to be filed with the Securities and Bxgie Commission in connection with our 2014 Anriekting of Stockholders under
heading “Election of Directors.The information required by this item regarding gdiance with Section 16(a) of the Securities ExgeAc
of 1934, as amended, is incorporated by referemtieet information under the caption “Compliancetwitection 16(a) of the Exchange Att”
be contained in the Proxy Statement. The informatequired by this item regarding our code of ethg incorporated by reference to
information under the caption “Code of Conduct &thics” to be contained in the Proxy Statement. The inféionarequired by this ite
regarding our audit committee is incorporated bfgnence to the information under the caption “Bobtdetings and CommitteesAudit
Committeeto be contained in the Proxy Statement. The inftionarequired by this item regarding material chesgf any, to the process
which stockholders may recommend nominees to oardoof directors is incorporated by reference tittiormation under the captioBbarc
Meetings and Committees—Nominating and Governarmargittee” to be contained in the Proxy Statement.

Executive Officers

Helen TorleyM.B. Ch. B., M.R.C.P. (51), President, Chief ExéeaitOfficer and Director. Dr. Torley joined Halozgnin January 20:
as President and Chief Executive Officer, andnseanber of Halozyme'Board of Directors. Throughout her career, Drl&ohas led sevel
successful product launches, including KyprélisProlia® , Sensipa® , and Miacalcin®. Dr. Torley previously served as Executive \
President and Chief Commercial Officer for Onyx iPhaceuticals (Onyx) overseeing the collaboratiothwgiayer on Nexavatand Stivarg®
and the U.S. launch of Kyprolis. She was respoadin the development of Onyx's commercial cap@dslin exdS markets and in particul
in Europe. Prior to Onyx, Dr. Torley spent 14 yearamanagement positions at Amgen Inc., servingsagseral Manager of both the
Nephrology Business Unit and the U.S. Bone Healdsifess Unit. From 1997 to 2002, she held vari@rsos management positions
Bristol-Myers Squibb, including Regional Vice PresidenCafrdiovascular and Metabolic Sales and Head ofi@aadcular Global Marketin
She began her career at Sandoz/Novartis, wherelshmtely served as Vice President of Medical Affadeveloping and conducting post
marketing clinical studies across all therapeut&as, including oncology. Before joining the inadysDr. Torley was in medical practice &
senior registrar in rheumatology at the Royal firy in Glasgow, Scotland. Dr. Torley received Bachelor of Medicine and Bachelor
Surgery degrees (M.B. Ch.B.) from the University@asgow and is a Member of the Royal College ofsiiians (M.R.C.P).

David A. Ramsay49), Vice President, Chief Financial Officer. MRamsay joined Halozyme in 2003 as Chief Financific& anc
served in that capacity until 2009 when he was eppd Vice President, Corporate Development. Aipending four years in varic
commercial and operational roles, Mr. Ramsay wamimped Chief Financial Officer. Prior to Halozyntee served in various financial ra
including Vice President, Chief Financial Officef loathian Systems. Prior to Lathian, Mr. Ramsay Wase President, Treasurer of I(
Pharmaceuticals, now called Valeant Pharmaceuticéésnational, a multinational, specialty pharma@al company. Mr. Ramsay join
Valeant from ARCO, where he spent four years inowar financial roles, most recently serving as MgraFinancial Planning & Analysis
the companys Retail Marketing division. Prior to ARCO, he seavas Vice President, Controller for Security Radifsian Bank, a subsidia
of Security Pacific Corporation. He began his cam@® an Auditor at Deloitte & Touche, where he otgtd his CPA license. Mr. Rams
received his B.S in Business Administration frora thniversity of California, Berkeley, and his MBA Finance and Strategic Managen
from The Wharton School at the University of Pervayia.

James P. Shaffer (47)Vice President, Chief Commercial Officer. Mr. §hajoined Halozyme in 2011 with over 23 yearscofnmercie
operations experience. From 2007 to 2011, he w&éirstal Data, Inc. where he was responsible farkating,
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sales, business development and manufacturinghistinost recent position as Executive Vice Pregided Chief Commercial Officer. Pr
to Clinical Data, he worked at New River Pharmaicald, Prestwick Pharmaceuticals, InterMune and G$Khas experience in both large
small pharmaceutical companies in the areas of degy, Psychiatry, Oncology, Gl and Pulmonary Cefith specialized experience
developing and marketing genetic tests in Oncokngy Cardiology. Mr. Shaffer received his M.B.A Ntarketing and B.S. in Economics fr
Ohio State University.

Jean I. Liu (45)Vice President, General Counsel and SecretarylLMgoined Halozyme in 2011. Prior to Halozyme, seeved as tt
Chief Legal Officer and Secretary of Durect Corpiora (Durect) from 1998 to 2011. She has 20 yedrprofessional experience advis
pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies. MssLaarly career included work at Pillsbury, Madigosutro (now Pillsbury Winthroj
and the Venture Law Group where she focused ondbavaas of legal advisory for early stage companreduding technology transfi
licensing, patents, and copyright and trademaidsaliton. During her tenure at Durect, she held mlper of titled roles as the senior most I
officer, ending her tenure as Chief Legal Offidds. Liu obtained her B.S. in Cellular and MolecuBiology with highest distinction from tl
University of Michigan at Ann Arbor, her M.S.in Bagy from Stanford University, and her J.D. froml@uabia University where she wa
Harlan Fiske Stone Scholar.

ltem 11. Executive Compensatio

The information required by this item is incorpediby reference to the information under the capti&xecutive Compensatidnto be
contained in the Proxy Statement.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners ainagement and Related Stockholder Matt

Other than as set forth below, the information nexflby this item is incorporated by referencette information under the caption “
Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners Mahagement and Related Stockholder Mattéosbe contained in the Proxy Statement.
Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table summarizes our compensationplander which our equity securities are authorfpedssuance as of
December 31, 2013 :

Number of
Shares
Remaining
Available for
Future
Number of Issuance
Shares to Be under Equity
Issued upon Weighted-Average Compensation
Exercise of Exercise Price Plans
Outstanding of Outstanding (Excluding
Options and Options and Shares
Restricted Stock Restricted Stock Reflected in
Units Units Column (a))
Plan Category (@) (b) (2) (c)
Equity compensation plans approved by stockholéers 7,437,271 $7.11 6,946,33
Equity compensation plans not approved by stocldrsld — — —
7,437,271 $7.11 6,946,33

(1) Represents stock options and restricted stock wmiter the Amended and Restated 2011 Stock Pl&§ 3€ock Plan, 2008 Outs
Directors’ Stock Plan, 2006 Stock Plan, 2005 Owtdiirectors'Stock Plan, 2004 Stock Plan and the 2001 Stock Blations under tt
2001 Stock Plan were assumed by Halozyme as p#nredflarch 2004 merger between DeliaTroph Pharmmeds; Inc., or DeliaTrop
and Global Yacht Services, Inc. The 2001 Stock Rlas approved by the shareholders
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of DeliaTroph prior to the merger and the formearsiolders of DeliaTroph held approximately 90%ta&f voting stock of Halozyn
immediately following the merger. The 2001 StochrPéxpired in January 2011.

(2) This amount does not include restricted stock wastghere is no exercise price for restricted stotts

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, anutector Independenc

The information required by this item is incorpactby reference to the information under the capticCertain Relationships ai
Related Transactior” to be contained in the Proxy Statement.
Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Servict

The information required by this item is incorpaaty reference to the information under the capti®rincipal Accounting Fees a
Services to be contained in the Proxy Statement.
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PART IV

Iltem 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedul

€)) Documents filed as part of this report

1. Financial Statements

Page

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfingn F-1
Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2QL3GkP F-2
Consolidated Statements of Operations for Eachelears Ended December 31, 2013, 2012

and 2011 F-3
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Lossdoh Bf the Years Ended December 31, 2013, 2012
and 2011 F-4
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for Eacheofriears Ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 F-5
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ (DefiEdyity for Each of the Years Ended December 31,

2013, 2012 and 2011 F-6
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements F-7

2. List of all Financial Statement schedules.

The following financial statement schedule of Hgloe Therapeutics, Inc. is filed as part of this AahReport on Form 18-on pag:
F-34 and should be read in conjunction with thesotidated financial statements of Halozyme Ther&pguinc.

Schedule II: Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

All other schedules are omitted because they ateapplicable or the required information is shownthie Financial Statements
notes thereto.

3. List of Exhibits required by Item 601 of Regfibn S-K. See part (b) below.

(b)  Exhibits.

The exhibits listed in the accompanying "Exhibiléx" are incorporated herein by reference.
(c) Financial Statement Schedules. See Item 15(a) 2 abo
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regiithas duly caused this report tc
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduaty authorized.

Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc.,
a Delaware corporation

Date: February 28, 2014 By: /s/ Helenl. Torley, M.B. Ch.B, M.R.C.P.
Helen I. Torley, M.B. Ch.B, M.R.C.P.
President and Chief Executive Officer
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POWER OF ATTORNEY

Know all persons by these presents, that each pevhose signature appears below constitutes angiregpgHelen |. Torley and David
Ramsay, and each of them, as his true and lawtfiodnetys-infact and agents, with full power of substitutiordaesubstitution, for him and
his name, place, and stead, in any and all capactth sign any and all amendments to this AnnealoR, and to file the same, with all exhi
thereto, and other documents in connection thehewitth the Securities and Exchange Commissiomtgrg unto said attorneys-fiact ant
agents, and each of them, full power and authddtylo and perform each and every act and thingisgéquand necessary to be don
connection therewith, as fully to all intents angrginses as he might or could do in person, heralifying and confirming that all se
attorneys-in-fact and agents, or any of them aor threhis substitute or substituted, may lawfully or cause to be done by virtue thereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this Annual Report has been sigpedow by the following perso
on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacitiesan the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/sl Helen |. Torley, M.B. Ch.B, M.R.C.P. President and Chief Executive Officer February 28, 2014
Helen I. Torley, M.B. Ch.B, M.R.C.P. (Principal Executive Officer), Director
/s/ David A. Ramsay Vice President and Chief Financial Officer February 28, 2014
David A. Ramsay (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
/sl Kenneth J. Kelley Chairman of the Board of Directors February 28, 2014

Kenneth J. Kelley

/sl Robert L. Engler, M.D. Director February 28, 2014
Robert L. Engler, M.D.

/sl Kathryn E. Falberg Director February 28, 2014
Kathryn E. Falberg

/sl Randal J. Kirk Director February 28, 2014
Randal J. Kirk
/s/ Connie L. Matsui Director February 28, 2014

Connie L. Matsui

/sl John S. Patton, Ph.D. Director February 28, 2014
John S. Patton, Ph.D.

/sl Matthew L. Posard Director February 28, 2014
Matthew L. Posard
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. as of mbee 31, 2013 and 2012, ¢
the related consolidated statements of operatammaprehensive loss, cash flows, and stockholddefidt) equity for each of the three year
the period ended December 31, 2013. Our auditsiattuded the financial statement schedule ligtetthe Index at Iltem 15(a). These finan
statements and schedule are the responsibilithefQompany's management. Our responsibility isxfiress an opinion on these finan
statements and schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstas of the Public Company Accounting Oversighaglo(United States). Thc
standards require that we plan and perform thet dodibtain reasonable assurance about whethdimidugcial statements are free of mate
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on altasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disids in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princiged and significant estimates made by managenentelhas evaluating the overall finan
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referredabove present fairly, in all material respedt® tonsolidated financial position
Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. at December 31, 201328112, and the consolidated results of its opamatand its cash flows for each of
three years in the period ended December 31, 20knformity with U.S. generally accepted accoogtprinciples. Also, in our opinion, t
related financial statement schedule, when consitier relation to the basic financial statemenitetiaas a whole, presents fairly in all mate
respects the information set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bog@dnited States), Halozyr
Therapeutics, Inc.’s internal control over finahaieporting as of December 31, 2013, based onriaitestablished in Internal Control -
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee onSpiong Organizations of the Treadway Commissidd®Lframework) and our rep
dated February 28, 2014 expressed an unqualifisdoopthereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

San Diego, California
February 28, 2014




HALOZYME THERAPEUTICS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31, December 31,
2013 2012
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 27,356,94 $ 99,501,26
Marketable securities, available-for-sale 44,145,69 —
Accounts receivable, net 9,097,08 15,703,08
Inventories 6,169,98 2,670,69
Prepaid expenses and other assets 8,425,68 12,752,88
Total current assets 95,195,39 130,627,93
Property and equipment, net 3,421,501 3,700,46:
Prepaid expenses and other assets 2,675,69: —
Restricted cash 500,00( 400,00(
Total Assets $ 101,792,559 $ 134,728,39
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' (DEFICIT) EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 3,134,775 $ 2,271,68
Accrued expenses 14,920,44 7,783,44
Deferred revenue, current portion 7,397,82 8,891,01
Total current liabilities 25,453,03 18,946,15
Deferred revenue, net of current portion 45,745,44 34,954,96
Long-term debt, net 49,771,73 29,661,68
Lease financing obligation — 1,450,001
Deferred rent, net of current portion 794,78:. 861,87¢
Other long-term liability 18,26¢ —
Commitments and contingencies (Note 9)
Stockholders’ (deficit) equity:
Preferred stock — $0.001 par value; 20,000,000eshanthorized; no shares issued and
outstanding — —
Common stock —&.001 par value; 200,000,000 shares authorized533466 shares issued ¢
outstanding at December 31, 2013 and 150,000,08@slauthorized; 112,709,174 shares
issued and outstanding at December 31, 2012 114,53« 112,70¢
Additional paid-in capital 361,929,93 347,314,65
Accumulated other comprehensive income 17,05 —
Accumulated deficit (382,052,19) (298,573,64)
Total stockholders’ (deficit) equity (19,990,67) 48,853,71
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ (Deficit) Equyit $ 101,792,59 $ 134,728,339

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgistents.
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HALOZYME THERAPEUTICS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Revenues:
Product sales, net $ 24,439,72 $ 2,887,44. $ 1,836,10.
Revenues under collaborative agreements 30,359,72 39,437,78 54,250,33
Total revenues 54,799,44 42,325,22 56,086,43
Operating expenses:
Cost of product sales 6,245,76. 1,094,401 257,83:
Research and development 96,639,57 70,044,07 57,563,47
Selling, general and administrative 32,347,74 24,812,19 18,104,07
Total operating expenses 135,233,08 95,950,67 75,925,37
Operating Loss (80,433,63) (53,625,44) (19,838,94)
Other income (expense):
Investment and other income 229,22¢ 73,44« 69,09(
Interest expense (3,274,14) — —
Net Loss $ (83,478,55) $ (53,552,00) $ (19,769,85)
Basic and diluted net loss per share $ 0.7 $ (0.4¢) $ (0.19)
Shares used in computing basic and diluted netdesshare 112,805,43 111,077,10 102,566,08

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgistents.
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HALOZYME THERAPEUTICS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Net loss $ (83,478,55) $ (53,552,00) $ (19,769,85)
Other comprehensive income:

Unrealized gain on marketable securities 17,05« — —
Total Comprehensive Loss $ (83,461,49) $ (53,552,00) $ (19,769,85)

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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HALOZYME THERAPEUTICS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Operating activities:
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash usegerating activities:
Share-based compensation
Depreciation and amortization
Non-cash interest expense
Amortization of premiums on investments, net ofration of discounts
Loss (gain) on disposal of equipment
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable, net
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Restricted cash
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Deferred rent
Deferred revenue
Net cash used in operating activities
Investing activities:
Purchases of marketable securities
Proceeds from sales of marketable securities
Purchases of property and equipment
Net cash used in investing activities
Financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt, net

Proceeds from issuance of common stock underyeimaientive
plans, net

Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net
Net cash provided by financing activities
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equisalent
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Interest paid
Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing amah€ing activities:

Capitalized property and liability associated watbuild-to-suit lease
arrangement

Amounts accrued for purchases of property and eagiip

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
$ (83,47855) $ (53,552,00) $ (19,769,85)
9,538,05 8,348,58 5,569,89!
1,226,92 1,079,42: 1,095,82:
155,80¢ 8,62t —
1,115,62! — —
— 7,37C (1,566)
6,606,00: (13,440,62) 65,80:
(3,499,28) (2,103,43) (373,84)
1,958,58; (4,420,64) (4,611,34)
(100,00() 50,00( 50,00(
7,888,53! (3,263,48) 711,77
(48,479 44,89 172,43
9,297,29! 2,961,99: (17,209,56)
(49,339,47)  (64,279,29)  (34,300,42)
(48,946,61) — —
3,375,001 — —
(2,297,51) (1,412,58) (828,50%)
(47,869,13) (1,412,58) (828,50%)
19,985,25 29,660,60 —
5,079,041 1,680,17: 4,748,61.
— 81,476,84 —
25,064,29 112,817,61 4,748,61
(72,144,31) 47,125,73 (30,380,32)
99,501,26 52,375,52 82,755,84
$ 2735694 $ 99,501,260 $ 52,375,52
$ 309888 $ 18,87 $ —
$ (1,450,000 $ 1,450,000 $ —
$ 100,45 $ 153,62, $ 189,89¢

See accompanying notes to consolidated financ#tistents.
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BALANCE AT JANUARY 1, 2011
Share-based compensation expense

Issuance of common stock pursuant to exerc
of stock options and vesting of restricted stoc
units, net

Issuance of restricted stock awards

Net loss

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2011
Share-based compensation expense
Issuance of common stock for cash, net

Issuance of common stock pursuant to exerc
of stock options and vesting of restricted stoc
units, net

Issuance of restricted stock awards
Net loss

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2012
Share-based compensation expense

Issuance of common stock pursuant to exercise

of stock options and vesting of restricted stock
units, net

Issuance of restricted stock awards
Other comprehensive income
Net loss

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2013

HALOZYME THERAPEUTICS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' (DEFICIT) EQUITY

Accumulated

Common Stock Additional Other Total
Paid-In Comprehensive Accumulated Stockholders’
Shares Amount Capital Income Deficit (Deficit) Equity
100,580,84 $ 100,58: $ 245502,67 $ — $ (225,251,79) $ 20,351,45
— — 5,569,89! — — 5,569,89
3,060,54 3,06( 4,745,43: — — 4,748,49:
347,88 34¢ (229 — — 12C
— — — — (19,769,85) (19,769,85)
103,989,27 103,99( 255,817,77 — (245,021,64) 10,900,11
— — 8,348,58 — — 8,348,58
7,820,001 7,82( 81,469,02 — — 81,476,84
525,70° 52t 1,679,64 — — 1,680,17:
374,19! 374 (379 — — —
— — — — (53,552,00) (53,552,00)
112,709,17 112,70¢ 347,314,65 — (298,573,64) 48,853,71
— — 9,538,05! — — 9,538,05!
1,362,56: 1,362 5,077,68. — — 5,079,04
461,72¢ 462 (462) — — —
— — — 17,054 — 17,05«
— — — — (83,478,55) (83,478,55)
114,533,46 $ 11453 $ 361,92993 $ 17,05« $ (382,052,19) $(19,990,67)

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Organization and Busines

Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. is a scieieien, biopharmaceutical company committed to mgknolecules into medicines for patie
in need. Our research focuses primarily on humayraes that alter the extracellular matrix. The @egtlular matrix is a complex matrix
proteins and carbohydrates surrounding the cellgh@vides structural support in tissues and orttaEs many important biological activiti
including cell migration, signaling and survivalv€ many years, we have developed unique technaadyscientific expertise enabling u:
pursue this target-rich environment for the develept of therapies.

Our proprietary enzymes can be used to facilitatedelivery of injected drugs and fluids, thus emiag the efficacy and the convenie
of other drugs or to alter abnormal tissue stresor clinical benefit. We have chosen to expbait technology and expertise in a balat
way to modulate both risk and spend by: (1) devialppur own proprietary products in therapeuticaareith significant unmet medical nee
such as diabetes, oncology and dermatology, andig@)sing our technology to biopharmaceutical cames to collaboratively devel
products which combine our technology with the alodirators' proprietary compounds.

The majority of the product candidates in our cotrpipeline are based on rHuPH20, a patented humemmbinant hyaluronida
enzyme. rHUPH20 temporarily breaks down hyalur@ui - a naturally occurring substance that is a major pmmment of the extracellul
matrix in tissues throughout the body such as skid cartilage. We have one proprietary commerdiatlyct, Hylenex® recombinant. Ot
proprietary pipeline consists of multiple clinicihge products in diabetes, oncology and dermatold@ currently have collaborations witt
Hoffmann-La Roche, Ltd. and Hoffmann-La Roche, IffRoche”), Pfizer Inc. (“Pfizer”), Baxter Healthea Corporation (“Baxter”)anc
Intrexon Corporation (“Intrexon”)with two approved products for marketing in Europee product candidate which has been submitte
regulatory approval in the U.S. and one productiziate which has been submitted for regulatory epgdrin Europe as well as several otl
at various stages of development.

We were founded in 1998 and reincorporated from Skee of Nevada to the State of Delaware in Nowsn#907. Except whe
specifically noted or the context otherwise requireeferences to “Halozyme,” “the Company,” “we@uf,” and “us”in these Notes
Consolidated Financial Statements refer to Haloz§merapeutics, Inc. and our wholly owned subsidibtglozyme, Inc., and Halozyme, In
wholly owned subsidiary, Halozyme Holdings Ltd.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policie
Basis of Presentation
The consolidated financial statements include twants of Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. and our Wyhmlvned subsidiary, Halozyr
Inc., and Halozyme, Inc.'s wholly owned subsididdg@lozyme Holdings Ltd. All intercompany accountsldransactions have been eliminated
Reclassifications
Certain prior period amounts have been reclasstfieztbnform to current period presentation. Spealily, we have reclassifies400,00!
from cash and cash equivalents to restricted ¢agiei consolidated balance sheet at December 32, 20
Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statesémtconformity with U.S. generally accepted acdoun principles (“U.S. GAAPY
requires management to make estimates and assmsighiat affect the amounts reported in our conatdd financial statements ¢
accompanying notes. On an ongoing basis, we ewatuat estimates and judgments, which are basedstoribal and anticipated results :
trends and on various other assumptions that mamagebelieves to be reasonable under the
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circumstances. By their nature, estimates are sulie an inherent degree of uncertainty and, a$,sactual results may differ frc
management’s estimates.

Cash Equivalents and Marketable Securities

Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investtsemeadily convertible to cash, that mature withinety days or less from date
purchase. Our cash equivalents consist of monekehfunds.

Marketable securities are investments with origimaturities of more than ninety days from the daft@urchase that are specific:
identified to fund current operations. Marketaldegities are considered available-fate. These investments are classified as curssets
even though the stated maturity date may be oneagremore beyond the current balance sheet datehwieflects management's intentiol
use the proceeds from the sale of these investrbefitsid our operations, as necessary. Such alaifabsale investments are carried at
value with unrealized gains and losses recordeathier comprehensive loss and included as a sepeawatponent of stockholders' (defi
equity. The cost of marketable securities is adpi$br amortization of premiums or accretion ofcdisnts to maturity, and such amortizatio
accretion is included in investment income. We tigespecific identification method for calculatingplized gains and losses on market
securities sold. Realized gains and losses andhésedh value judged to be other-thi@mporary on marketable securities, if any, ardéuohec
in investment income in the consolidated stateroéoperations.

Restricted Cash

Under the terms of the leases on our facilities,anerequired to maintain letters of credit as ggcdeposits during the terms of si
leases. At December 31, 2013 and 2012 , restrizast of $500,000 and $400,00@espectively, was pledged as collateral for #ttels o
credit.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The authoritative guidance for fair value measumamestablishes a three tier fair value hierarettyich prioritizes the inputs used
measuring fair value. These tiers include: Levetldfined as observable inputs such as quoted piricastive markets; Level 2, defined
inputs other than quoted prices in active markeds are either directly or indirectly observabledd evel 3, defined as unobservable inpu
which little or no market data exists, thereforguigng an entity to develop its own assumptions.

Our financial instruments include cash equivalemtgailable-forsale marketable securities, accounts receivablepam expense
accounts payable, accrued expenses andteEmg-debt. Fair value estimates of these instrusnarég made at a specific point in time, base
relevant market information. These estimates maguigective in nature and involve uncertainties amatters of significant judgment &
therefore cannot be determined with precision. Tagying amount of cash equivalents, accounts vab&, prepaid expenses, acco
payable and accrued expenses are generally coeditterbe representative of their respective falues because of the shoetrm nature ¢
those instruments. Further, based on the borrovates currently available to us for loans with $&mterms, we believe the fair value of long
term debt approximates its carrying value.

Available-forsale marketable securities consist of corporate deburities, commercial paper and certificatesdeposit and we
measured at fair value using Level 2 inputs. Lév&hancial instruments are valued using marketgsrion less active markets and proprie
pricing valuation models with observable inputs;liiling interest rates, yield curves, maturity daissue dates, settlement dates, rep
trades, broker-dealer quotes, issue spreads, bemklsacurities or other market related data. Wainlthe fair value of Level thvestment
from our investment manager, who obtains thesevilires from a thirgharty pricing service. We validate the fair valuwéd evel 2 financie
instruments provided by our investment managerdmyparing these fair values to a third-party prickogirce.
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The following table summarizes, by major secumtye, our cash equivalents and marketable secutiiti¢ésare measured at fair value ¢
recurring basis and are categorized using theséire hierarchy:

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
Total estimated Total estimated
Level 1 Level 2 fair value Level 1 Level 2 fair value
Cash equivalents:
Money market funds $ 5,710,75 $ — $ 5,710,75 $ 98,024,26 $ — $ 98,024,26
Availab!e_—for-sale marketable
securities:
Corporate debt securities — 35,147,32 35,147,32 — — —
Commercial paper — 5,998,37 5,998,37 — —_ —
Certificate of deposit — 3,000,00! 3,000,00! — — —
$ 5,710,75 $ 44,14569 $ 49,856,45 $ 98,02426 $ — $ 98,024,26

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Lewlthe fair value hierarchy for the years endedddeber 31, 2013 and 2012Ve
have no instruments that are classified within LL&vas of December 31, 2013 and 2012 .

Concentrations of Credit Risk, Sources of Supplyda8ignificant Customers

We are subject to credit risk from our portfolioaafsh equivalents and marketable securities. Tingestments were made in accordz
with our investment policy which specifies the cptees, allocations, and ratings of securities way reonsider for investment. The prim
objective of our investment activities is to pregeprincipal while at the same time maximizing theome we receive without significan
increasing risk. We maintain our cash and cashvatgnt balances with one major commercial bank madketable securities with anot
financial institution. Deposits held with the fir@al institutions exceed the amount of insurana®vigled on such deposits. We are expos
credit risk in the event of a default by the finahdnstitutions holding our cash, cash equivalemtsl marketable securities to the ex
recorded on the balance sheet.

We are also subject to credit risk from our acceurgceivable related to our product sales and @gmnder our license ¢
collaborative agreements. We have license andhbmidive agreements with pharmaceutical compameégruwhich we receive payments
license fees, milestone payments for specific agments designated in the collaborative agreemeaisibursements of research
development services and supply of bulk formulatémHuPH20. In addition, we selylenex® recombinant in the United States to a lim
number of established wholesale distributors in pharmaceutical industry. Credit is extended bamedan evaluation of the customer’
financial condition, and collateral is not requirddanagement monitors our exposure to accountsviame by periodically evaluating t
collectibility of the accounts receivable basedaorariety of factors including the length of tinetreceivables are past due, the financial h
of the customer and historical experience. Basauh tpe review of these factors, we recorded nonaiwe for doubtful accounts Becembe
31, 2013 and 2012 . Approximately 81% and 88%the accounts receivable balance at Decembe2@li3 and 2012, respectively, repres
amounts due from Roche and Pfizer. For the yeadedkmecember 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 , 64% , 458618f0 of total revenue
respectively, were from Roche and 10% , 17% and 42%tal revenues, respectively, were from Baxkan the years endddecember 3:
2013 and 2012 , 4% and 22% of total revenues, ctispy, were from Pfizer. In addition, for the yeended December 31, 2011, 22% 46&t
of total revenues were from ViroPharma and Intrexespectively.

Worldwide revenues from external customers forytbars ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 20mhsisted of domestic revenue:
approximately $19.0 million , $22.7 million and $@4million , respectively, and foreign revenuesapproximately $35.8 million $19.¢
million and $11.2 million , respectively. Of outtébforeign revenues for the years ended Decembe2(@®L3,

F-9




2012 and 2011 , approximately $35.2 million , $168lion , $10.4 million, respectively, were attributable to Switzerlande \Attributs
revenues under collaborative agreements to theithdil countries where the collaborator is headigwad. We attribute revenues from prot
sales to the individual countries to which the prids shipped. For the years ended December 313, 2012 and 2011 , we had faveigr
based operations, and we had no long-lived assedsald in foreign countries.

We rely on two third-party manufacturers for theply of bulk rHUPH20 for use in the manufactureryflenexrecombinant and o
other collaboration products and product candidd&agments due to these suppliers represented 8%08a0f the accounts payable balanc
December 31, 2013 and 2012 , respectively. We ralsoon a third-party manufacturer for the fill afidish of Hylenexrecombinant produ
under a contract. Payments due to this supplieresemted 2% and 8% of the accounts payable baEnBPecember 31, 2013 and 2012
respectively.

Accounts Receivable, Net

Accounts receivable is recorded at the invoicedwarhand is norinterest bearing. Accounts receivable is recordetdoh allowances f
doubtful accounts, cash discounts for prompt payneistribution fees and chargebacks. We recordedllowance for doubtful accounts
December 31, 2013 and 2012 as the collectibilitgadounts receivable was reasonably assured.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at lower of cost or markest is determined on a first-in, firstit basis. Inventories are reviewed periodicalk
potential excess, dated or obsolete status. Managieevaluates the carrying value of inventoriesaaregular basis, taking into account ¢
factors as historical and anticipated future sate®pared to quantities on hand, the price we exjgeobtain for products in their respec
markets compared with historical cost and the ramgishelf life of goods on hand.

Prior to receiving marketing approval from the UF8od and Drug Administration (“FDAQr comparable regulatory agencies in for
countries, costs related to purchases of bulk rHiPENd raw materials and the manufacturing of tleelyct candidates are recordec
research and development expense. All direct matwiag costs incurred after receiving marketingrapal are capitalized as inventc
Inventories used in clinical trials are expensethattime the inventories are packaged for theadirtrials.

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012 , inventoriesistets of $2.6 million oHylenexrecombinant inventory and $3.5 million and zefo
bulk rHUPH20, respectively, for use in the manufeetof Herceptir SC. Roche received European marketing approvaitfazollaboratio
product, Herceptin SC, in August 2013 and Baxterit®collaboration product, HyQvia, in May 2013s Auch, direct manufacturing cost:
bulk rHUPH20 for Herceptin SC and HyQvia incurréigiathe receipt of the European marketing approaa¢ being capitalized as inventory.

Property and Equipment, Net

Property and equipment are recorded at cost, lesgnaulated depreciation and amortization. Equiprmeeet depreciated using -
straight-line method over their estimated usefugdi of three years and leasehold improvementsraggtized using the straighine metho
over the estimated useful life of the asset orl#fase term, whichever is shorter. Leased buildumyger build-tosuit lease arrangements
capitalized and included in property and equipnveimén we are involved in the construction of thedural improvements or take construc
risk prior to the commencement of the lease. Upompdetion of the construction under the buildstgt leases, we assess whether t
arrangements qualify for sales recognition underdhleleaseback accounting guidance. If we continue tthbedeemed owner, the facilit
would be accounted for as financing leases.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

We account for long-lived assets in accordance waitthoritative guidance for impairment or dispostlong-lived assets. Lonkied
assets are reviewed for events or changes in cgt@noes, which indicate that their carrying valusymot be recoverable. For the years e
December 31, 2013 and 2012 , there was no impatrafghe value of such assets.
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Deferred Rent

Rent expense is recorded on a stralgtg-basis over the initial term of the lease. Tifference between rent expense accruec
amounts paid under lease agreements is recordigfexsed rent in the accompanying consolidatednoal@heets.

Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Comprehensive income (loss) is defined as the ehamgquity during the period from transactions atfier events and circumstan
from non-owner sources.

Revenue Recognition

We generate revenues from product sales and cofiib® agreements. Payments received under codéiberagreements may inclt
nonrefundable fees at the inception of the agre&nboense fees, milestone payments for specifitevements designated in the collabor:
agreements, reimbursements of research and devetdmarvices and supply of bulk rHUPH20, and/oaktigs on sales of products resul
from collaborative arrangements.

We recognize revenues in accordance with the atdkive guidance for revenue recognition. We reg¢ogmevenue when all of t
following criteria are met: (1) persuasive evidewtean arrangement exists; (2) delivery has occuareservices have been rendered; (3
seller’s price to the buyer is fixed or determirglaind (4) collectibility is reasonably assured.

Product Sales, Net
Hylenex Recombinant

In December 2011, we reintroducklglenexrecombinant to the market. We skElylenexrecombinant in the United States to whole
pharmaceutical distributors, who sell the prodochospitals and other entser customers. Sales to wholesalers provide fiinggrices the
are fixed on the date of sale, although we offescalints to certain group purchasing organizatid@Qs"), hospitals and governm
programs. The wholesalers take the title to thelpeg bear the risk of loss of ownership and haaemic substance to the inventory. Fur
we have no significant obligations for future perfiance to generate pulirough sales; however, we allow the wholesalengtorn produc
that is damaged or received in error. In additir, accept unused product to be returned beginningienths prior to and endingvelve
months following product expiration.

Prior to December 31, 2018lylenexrecombinant had a limited sales history and we ccodt reliably estimate expected returns
chargebacks of the product at the time the produast sold to the wholesalers. Accordingly, we deférthe recognition of revenue on sale
Hylenexrecombinant to wholesalers, and instead, recognmizeghue at the time when evidence existed to warthiat pullthrough sales fro
wholesalers to the hospitals or other ersé+ customers had occurred or the right of reterionger existed, whichever occurred earlier.h&
time product sales revenue was recognized, we dedallowances for product returns and chargeblaaksd on our best estimates at the
Shipments of product that were not recognized asmge were treated as deferred revenue.

At December 31, 2013, we had developed sufficiéstblical experience and data to reasonably estiffiuditire returns and chargeback
Hylenexrecombinant. As a result, effective December 31,.32@e began recognizingylenexrecombinant product sales and related cc
product sales at the time title transfers to theledalers and providing for an estimate of futii@dpct returns and chargebacks at that tinm
connection with the change in the timing of rectigni of product sales, we recorded a dinge adjustment to recognize revenue and re
costs that had previously been deferred at Decethe2012, resulting in additional net product salé$624,00@nd cost of product sales
$179,000for the year ended December 31, 2013. Based oarmalysis and information available at this time,al& recorded a net reduct
to allowances for estimated product returns andgehmcks, resulting in a net increase to net prodales of $73,00€or the year ende
December 31, 2013. As a result, we recorded aitatedase to net product sales of $697,000 foy#ae ended December 31, 2013.
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Allowances for product returns and chargebacksbased on amounts owed or to be claimed on theetkkdles. We believe that
estimated product returns fétylenexrecombinant requires a high degree of judgmentisralibject to change based on our experienc
certain quantitative and qualitative factors. Imdear to develop a methodology to reliably estimatture returns and provide a basis
recognizing revenue on sales to wholesale diswilsuive analyzed many factors, including, withamitation: (1) actuaHylenexrecombinar
product return history, taking into account prodexpiration dating at the time of shipment, (2)order activities of the wholesalers as we
their customers and (3) levels of inventory atwhelesale channel. We have monitored actual rdtistory on an individual product lot ba
since product launch. We considered the datingroflyct at the time of shipment into the distribatichannel and changes in the estim
levels of inventory within the distribution channelestimate our exposure for returned product.cdfesidered historical chargebacks act
and current contract prices to estimate our exgolurreturned product. Based on the data gatheredhelieve we have the information nee
to reasonably estimate product returns and chacisba

We recognize product sales allowances as a reductiproduct sales in the same period the relagedrue is recognized. Because o
shelf life of Hylenexrecombinant and our lengthy return period, therg bea significant period of time between whenpgheduct is shippe
and when we issue credits on returned productctliad results differ from our estimates, we will lEguired to make adjustments to tf
allowances in the future, which could have an ¢ftecproduct sales revenue and earnings in thegefiadjustments.

We record certain sales reserves and allowancaseaiiction to gross revenue. These reserves lwbalkces include:

* Product Return:. The product returns reserve is based on managesrigst estimate of the products sold that areipated tc
be returned. The product returns reserve is redoadea reduction of product sales revenue in threegzeriod the related prod
sales revenue is recognized and is included iruadoexpenses.

» Distribution Fees. The distribution fees, based on contractuallydeined rates, arise from contractual agreementlave witt
certain wholesalers for distribution services tipegvide with respect télylenexrecombinant. These fees are generally a
percentage of the price of the product purchasethédywholesalers. At the time the sale is mad&é¢aréspective wholesalers,
record distribution fees as reduction of produtésaevenue and accounts receivable.

« Prompt Payment Discoun. We offer cash discounts to certain wholesalerarafgncentive to meet certain payment terms
expect our customers will take advantage of thssalint; therefore, at the time the sale is madbdaaespective wholesalers,
record the entire prompt payment discount, basethergross amount of each invoice, as reductiopraduct sales revenue ¢
accounts receivable.

e Other Discounts and FeesWe provide discounts to entser members of certain GPOs under collective @sioy contrac
between us and the GPOs. We also provide discaordsrtain hospitals, who are members of the GRik, which we do nc
have contracts. The engser members purchase products from the wholesales contracted discounted price, and
wholesalers then charge back to us the differeeted®en the current retail price and the price tidusers paid for the produ
In the period product sales revenue is recognizedestimate the related sales from our wholes#detisese GPOs and accrue
the chargebacks we anticipate from our wholes&lasgd on current contract prices and historicalgetmcks activity. We recc
accrued chargebacks as a reduction to our accoecdé$vable. GPO administrative service fees fos¢hwansactions are a
recorded in the same period the related produessalvenue is recognized and are included in ad@xpenses. We also prov
predetermined discounts under certain governmegrams, which are recorded at the time of sale.

Bulk rHUPH20

Subsequent to receiving marketing approval fromRB& or comparable regulatory agencies in foreigantries, sales of bulk rHuPH
for use in collaboration commercial products agnized as product sales when the materials hatalithe specifications required for
customer's acceptance and title and risk of loge transferred to the customer. Following the
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receipts of European marketing approvals of RodHeleeptin SC product in August 2013 and Baxtey®ta product in May 2013, rever
from the sales of bulk rHUPH20 for these collabioraproducts are recognized as product sales. Heogé¢ar ended December 31, 2013
recognized $13.7 million and $1.1 million in protlsales of bulk rHUPH20 for Herceptin SC and HyQuéspectively.

Revenues under Collaborative Agreements

We have license and collaboration agreements uwtiah the collaborators obtained worldwide rights the use of our propriete
rHUPH20 enzyme in the development and commerciaizaf the collaboratorshiologic compounds. The collaborative agreementgaic
multiple elements including nonrefundable paymaeattshe inception of the arrangement, license fegslusivity fees, payments based
achievement of specified milestones designatechéncollaborative agreements, annual maintenance feembursements of research
development services, payments for supply of budkiFH20 for the collaborator and/or royalties onesabf products resulting frc
collaborative agreements. We analyze each elenfepnuiocollaborative agreements and consider a tyaé¢ factors in determining tl
appropriate method of revenue recognition of edement.

In order to account for the multipldement arrangements, we identify the deliverainielsided within the agreement and evaluate w
deliverables represent units of accounting. Analyzhe arrangement to identify deliverables requihe use of judgment, and each delivel
may be an obligation to deliver services, a righticense to use an asset, or another performahtgation. The deliverables under
collaborative agreements include (i) the licenseunrHuPH20 technology, (ii) at the collaborasoréquest, research and development sel
which are reimbursed at contractually determingédstaand (iii) at the collaboratsrrequest, supply of bulk rHUPH20 which is reimledra
our cost plus a margin. A delivered item is congdea separate unit of accounting when the delivéean has value to the collaborator ¢
standalone basis based on the consideration ofreglevant facts and circumstances for each arrangenfeactors considered in t
determination include the research capabilitiesth&f collaborator and the availability of researctpeatise in this field in the gene
marketplace.

Arrangement consideration is allocated at the iticemf the agreement to all identified units o€aenting based on their relative sel
price. The relative selling price for each deliy#eais determined using vendor specific objectivelence (“WSOE") of selling price or third-
party evidence of selling price if VSOE does nasexf neither VSOE nor thirgharty evidence of selling price exists, we uselmst estima
of the selling price for the deliverable. The amiooinallocable arrangement consideration is limi@@mounts that are not contingent upor
delivery of additional items or meeting other sfiedi performance conditions. The consideration ikewkis allocated among the separate |
of accounting, and the applicable revenue recagnitriteria are applied to each of the separatts.u@hanges in the allocation of the s
price between delivered and undelivered elementsiropact revenue recognition but do not changettts revenue recognized under
agreement.

Nonrefundable upfront license fee payments aregrized upon delivery of the license if facts andtwinstances dictate that the lice
has standalone value from the undelivered itemschwhenerally include research and developmenticesvand the manufacture of b
rHUPH20, the relative selling price allocation leétlicense is equal to or exceeds the upfront diedae, persuasive evidence of an arrange
exists, our price to the collaborator is fixed etetminable and collectibility is reasonably asduképfront license fee payments are deferr
facts and circumstances dictate that the licenss dot have standalone value. The determinatidimeoiength of the period over which to dt
revenue is subject to judgment and estimation anchave an impact on the amount of revenue recedriiza given period.
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The terms of our collaborative agreements provieniilestone payments upon achievement of certaweldpment and regulatc
events and/or specified sales volumes of commé&ethlproducts by the collaborator. We account fdestone payments in accordance \
the provisions of ASU No. 2010-1Revenue Recognition - Milestone MethoWe recognize consideration that is contingentnupe
achievement of a milestone in its entirety as rereeim the period in which the milestone is achiewaly if the milestone is substantive in
entirety. A milestone is considered substantivemiheneets all of the following criteria:

1. The consideration is commensurate with eitherentitys performance to achieve the milestone or the ex@dment of the value
the delivered item(s) as a result of a specificonte resulting from the entity’s performance toiech the milestone,

2. The consideration relates solely to past perforraaant
3. The consideration is reasonable relative to athefdeliverables and payment terms within the aearent

A milestone is defined as an event (i) that cary drd achieved based in whole or in part on eitherdntitys performance or on t
occurrence of a specific outcome resulting from #mity’s performance, (ii) for which there is substantiuecertainty at the date f
arrangement is entered into that the event wikh&igeved and (iii) that would result in additiopalyments being due to the vendor.

Reimbursements of research and development semtieagcognized as revenue during the period ichvtiie services are performec
long as there is persuasive evidence of an arraagerthe fee is fixed or determinable and collecid the related receivable is reason
assured. Revenue from the manufacture of bulk rH@PI4 recognized when the materials have met atifipations required for tl
collaborator's acceptance and title and risk of loave transferred to the collaborator. We do meictly control when any collaborator v
request research and development services or supphplk rHuPH20; therefore, we cannot predict whea will recognize revenues
connection with research and development servicdsapply of bulk rHUPH20.

Royalty revenue from sales of collaboration produzy our collaborators will be recognized when nem@ which is generally in tl
quarter following the quarter in which the corresgimg sales occur.

The collaborative agreements typically providedbBaborators the right to terminate such agreerimewhole or on a product-byroduc
or target-by-target basis at any time upon 30 tod&@s prior written notice to us. There are no penénce, cancellation, termination or ref
provisions in any of our collaborative agreemehg tontain material financial consequences to us.

Refer to Note 4;Collaborative Agreements, for further discussion on our collaborative agaments.

Cost of Product Sales

Cost of product sales consists primarily of rawemats, thirdparty manufacturing costs, fill and finish costgidht costs, internal co:
and manufacturing overhead associated with theyat@mh of Hylenexrecombinant. Cost of product sales also consisth@fvritedown o
excess, dated and obsolete inventories and the-giffibf any inventories that do not meet certainduct specifications. Prior to Europ
marketing approvals of Herceptin SC in August 2868 HyQvia in May 2013, all costs related to thenofacturing of bulk rHuUPH20 for the
products were charged to research and developmpanses in the periods such costs were incurregkrefdre, cost of bulk rHuPH20 prod
sales for these collaboration products for the pealed December 31, 2013 excluded the related raetowiing costs totaling $10.0 milligrof
which $9.0 million and $1.0 milliomvere charged to research and development expeosésef years ended December 31, 2013 and
respectively. Of the bulk rHUPH20 for Herceptin & hand as of December 31, 2013 , $265,@0thanufacturing costs were previot
recorded as research and development expensesg. iasmo bulk rHuUPH20 for HyQvia on hand as of Dewer 31, 2013.
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Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses include sadamiebenefits, facilities and other overhead expermeernal clinical trial expens
research related manufacturing services, contractices and other outside expenses. Research amdogment expenses are charge
operations as incurred when these expenditureserédaour research and development efforts and mavelternative future uses fter
receiving approval from the FDA or comparable ratnly agencies in foreign countries for a prodwdsts related to purchases
manufacturing of bulk rHUPH20 for product are caliied as inventory. The manufacturing costs okbitluPH20 for Herceptin SC a
HyQvia incurred after the receipt of the Europeaarkating approvals are capitalized as inventory.

In accordance with certain research and developagmrtements, we are obligated to make certain mipfrayments upon execution
the agreement. Advance payments, including nondafiole amounts, for goods or services that will feduor rendered for future research
development activities are deferred and capitalifacch amounts will be recognized as an expendbeaselated goods are delivered or
related services are performed or such time whedaugot expect the goods to be delivered or sesuiwde performed.

Milestone payments that we make in connection witlicensed technology for a particular research am@bbpment project that have
alternative future uses (in other research and Idpreent projects or otherwise) and therefore nassp economic values are expense
research and development costs at the time the emstincurred. We have no linensed technologies that have alternative futiges il
research and development projects or otherwise.

Clinical Trial Expenses

Payments in connection with our clinical trials aften made under contracts with multiple contrastearch organizations that cont
and manage clinical trials on our behalf. The firiahterms of these agreements are subject to iaigot and vary from contract to contr
and may result in uneven payment flows. Gener#ilgse agreements set forth the scope of work felfermed at a fixed fee, unit price or
a time-andmaterial basis. Payments under these contractndepe factors such as the successful enrolimetrteatment of patients or t
completion of other clinical trial milestones.

Expenses related to clinical trials are accruecedasn our estimates and/or representations fromiceeproviders regarding wc
performed, including actual level of patient emr@ht, completion of patient studies and progresthefclinical trials. Other incidental co
related to patient enrollment or treatment arewsstwhen reasonably certain. If the contracted amscare modified (for instance, as a rest
changes in the clinical trial protocol or scopenafrk to be performed), we modify our accruals adoagly on a prospective basis. Revision
the scope of a contract are charged to expenskeirpeériod in which the facts that give rise to teeision become reasonably cert
Historically, we have had no material changes inicdl trial expense accruals that had a materigdact on our consolidated results
operations or financial position.

Share-Based Compensation

We record compensation expense associated witlkk stptions and other shabmsed awards in accordance with the authoril
guidance for stockased compensation. The cost of employee sengcesved in exchange for an award of an equity imsémt is measured
the grant date, based on the estimated fair vdltizecaward, and is recognized as expense on igtgtime basis, net of estimated forfeitul
over the requisite service period of the award.r&based compensation expense recognized during thedge based on the value of
portion of share-based payment awards that is atéty expected to vest during the period. SheE®ed compensation expense for an a
with a performance condition is recognized whenatigievement of such performance condition is d@texd to be probable. If the outcom
such performance condition is not determined topb@bable or is not met, no compensation expensedsgnized and any recogni
compensation expense is reversed. As shased compensation expense recognized is basegandsaultimately expected to vest, it has t
reduced for estimated forfeitures. The guidanceiireq forfeitures to be estimated at the time afhgrand revised, if necessary, in subsec
periods if actual forfeitures differ from thoseipsites. Pre-vesting forfeitures were estimatedet@pproximately 10%or employees for tt
years endeDecember 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 based on ouribatexperience for the years then ended.
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Total share-based compensation expense relatedate-based awards for the years ended Decemb@03B, 2012 and 201vas
comprised of the following:

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011

Research and development $ 447553 $ 4,190,931 $ 2,815,36:
Selling, general and administrative 5,062,521 4,157,64 2,754,53
Share-based compensation expense $ 9,538,05 $ 8,34858 $ 5,569,389
Net share-based compensation expense, per bastilated share $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0t
Share-based compensation expense from:

Stock options $ 5,499,444/ $ 4,722,62° $ 3,230,82,

Restricted stock awards and restricted stock units 4,038,61. 3,625,95! 2,339,07

$ 9,538,05 $ 8,34858 $ 5,569,89

Cash flows resulting from tax deductions in excefshe cumulative compensation cost recognizedofitions exercised (excess
benefits) are classified as cash inflows providgdfibancing activities and cash outflows used irem@ping activities. Due to our net |
position, no tax benefits have been recognizetiérconsolidated statements of cash flows.

Income Taxes

We provide for income taxes using the liability hed. Under this method, deferred income tax assetdiabilities are determined ba
on the differences between the financial staternanying amounts of existing assets and liabiliié®ach year end and their respective
bases and are measured using enacted tax ratifsdnfer the year in which the differences areentpd to affect taxable income. Deferrec
assets and other tax benefits are recorded whsmibre likely than not that the position will bestained upon audit. Valuation allowan
have been established to reduce our net deferredstsets to zero, as we believe that it is momlikhan not that such assets will no
realized.

Net Loss Per Share

Basic net loss per common share is computed byidiyiloss for the period by the weighted averagmlmer of common shar
outstanding during the period, without consideratior common stock equivalents. Stock options, stec restricted stock awards (“RSAs”
and unvested restricted stock units (“RSUafg¢ considered common stock equivalents and ane inoluded in the calculation of dilut
earnings per common share when their effect igidduBecause of our net loss, outstanding stodlong, outstanding RSUs and unve:
RSAs totaling approximately 8,070,141 , 7,444,388 ,365,66&vere excluded from the calculation of diluted ressl per common share
the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2@s%pectively, because their effect was anti-dikitiv

Segment Information

We operate our business in osegment, which includes all activities relatedhe tesearch, development and commercializatiorut
proprietary enzymes that can be used to facilitagedelivery of injected drugs and fluids, thus @mting the efficacy and the convenienc
other drugs or to alter abnormal tissue structtoeslinical benefit. This segment also includegereues and expenses related to (i) researc
development and APl manufacturing activities conedander our collaborative agreements with thadips and (ii) product sales of Hylel
recombinant. The chief operating decisimaker reviews the operating results on an aggrdumdes and manages the operations as a
operating segment.
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Adoption of Recent Accounting Pronouncement

Effective January 1, 2013, we adopted Financial odoting Standards Board's (“FASB”) Accounting Stards Update (*ASUy
No. 201:-02, Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Reporting of ArteoReclassified Out of Accumulated Other ComprgilierincomeThe
provisions of ASU No. 20182 require companies to present reclassificatiamsod accumulated other comprehensive income ahdi
amounts of other comprehensive income separategabl component of other comprehensive income @fatte of the financial statement:
in the notes. This update is effective prospectivet reporting periods beginning after December 2B12. The adoption of ASU No. 2003-
did not have a material impact on our consolidditegincial position or results of operations as tbguirements are disclosure only in nai
ASU No. 2013-02 did not impact our disclosureshesd were no reclassifications in any periods rieglor

Pending Adoption of Recent Accounting Pronouncement

In July 2013, FASB issued ASU No. 2013-1dacome Taxes (Topic 740), Presentation of an Unyazzed Tax Benefit When a
Operating Loss Carryforward, a Similar Tax Loss,aofax Credit Carryforward Exist§.he provisions of ASU No. 20181 require entities
present unrecognized tax benefits as a decreas@adh operating loss, similar tax loss or tax drediryforward if certain criteria are met. °
determination of whether a deferred tax asset &lahle is based on the unrecognized tax benefittha deferred tax asset that exists a
reporting date and presumes disallowance of thetsition at the reporting date. The guidance alilninate the diversity in practice in 1
presentation of unrecognized tax benefits but moll alter the way in which entities assess defaiardissets for realizability. The amendm
are effective for public companies for fiscal yeamad interim periods within those fiscal yearsgibaing after December 15, 2014. ~
amendments should be applied prospectively to ogrézed tax benefits that exist at the effectivéed&arly adoption is permitted. T
adoption of ASU No. 2013-11 will not have a mateirigact on our consolidated financial positiorresults of operations.

3. Marketable Securities

Available-for-sale marketable securities consistethe following:

December 31, 2013

Gross Gross

Unrealized Unrealized Estimated Fair

Description Amortized Cost Gains Losses Value
Corporate debt securities $ 35,130,27 $ 20,18 $ (3,13) $ 35,147,32
Commercial paper 5,998,37. — — 5,998,37.
Certificate of deposit 3,000,001 — — 3,000,001

$ 4412864 $ 20,18t $ (3,13) $ 44,145,69

As of December 31, 2013, $44.1 million of our éalie-forsale marketable securities are scheduled to maditimen the next 12 month
Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale secarfbethe year ended December 31, 2013 were $3lébmi There was noealized gain or lo:
for the year ended December 31, 2013. Nohéhese investments have been in a continuousalired loss position for more than twe
months as of December 31, 2013 . Based on ourwevighese securities, we believe we had no oth@mtemporary impairments on the
securities as of December 31, 2013 because wetdatead to sell these securities and it is noterlikely than not that we will be requirec
sell these securities before the recovery of tamiortized cost basis. We had no marketable sexsie of December 31, 2012.
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4. Collaborative Agreement:
Roche Collaboration

In December 2006, we and Roche entered into adecand collaborative agreement under which Rockeirea a worldwide, exclusi
license to develop and commercialize product coatmns of rHuUPH20 and up to thirteen Roche targetnmounds (the Roche
Collaboration”). As of December 31, 2013 , Rochel l@dected a total of fiveexclusive targets and retains the option to develog
commercialize rHUPH20 with three additional targetevided that Roche continues to pay annual ranarice fees to us. As beEcember 3:
2013 , we have received $72.5 million from Roclheluding the $20.0 millioupfront license fee payment for the applicatiomtéfiPH20 t
the initial three Roche exclusive targets, $21.50ian in connection with Roche's election of tvealditional exclusive targets and ant
license maintenance fees for the right to desigtiseremaining targets as exclusive targets, $&8lbn in clinical development milesto
payments, $8.0 million in regulatory milestone payts and a $10.0 million sales-based payment.

In August 2013, Roche received European marketppgaval for its collaboration product, Herceptin,S@r the treatment of patiel
with HER2-positive breast cancer and launched HrirceSC in the European Union ("EU") which triggéra $10.0 millionpayment to us fc
the achievement of the first commercial sale purstmthe terms of the Roche Collaboration. We migiteed this payment to be a salesse:
payment. Due to our continuing involvement obligati, revenue from the $10.0 million salessed payment was deferred and is t
recognized over the remaining term of the RochdaBotation.

Roche assumes all development, manufacturingcelinfegulatory, sales and marketing costs undeiRihche Collaboration, while
are responsible for the supply of bulk rHUPH20. &vie entitled to receive reimbursements for progdiesearch and development services
bulk rHUPH20 to Roche at its request.

Under the terms of the Roche Collaboration, Rochiepay us a royalty on each product commercialiseder the agreement consis
of a midsingle digit percent of the net sales of such pecbdunless terminated earlier in accordance wiherms, the Roche Collaborat
continues in effect until the expiration of Rocheldigation to pay royalties. Roche has the oblgrato pay royalties with respect to e
product in each country, during the period equahtlonger of: (a) the duration of any valid claifour patents covering rHuPH20 or of
specified patents developed under the collaboratieich valid claim covers the product in such coymr (b) tenyears following the date
the first commercial sale of such product in suohntry.

Due to our continuing involvement obligations (fexample, support activities associated with rHuPH28venues from the upfrc
payment, exclusive designation fees, annual licemsi@tenance fees and salesed payment ("Roche Deferred Revenues") wererddfan:
are being recognized over the term of the RochdaBoiation. In addition, we received prepaymentamfrRoche associated with
manufacture of bulk rHUPH20 for Roche. The manuifidie) prepayments have been deferred and are bedognized as revenue at the t
bulk rHUPH20 is delivered to Roche.

For the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and, 204 recognized amortization of the Roche DefeRetienues and manufactur
prepayments as revenues under collaborative agresrtwtaling approximately $5.9 million , $3.4 nwh , and $2.0 million respectively
Total Roche Deferred Revenues and manufacturingagraents were approximately $41.6 million and $3Biion as ofDecember 31, 20:
and 2012, respectively. For the years ended Deae&ihe2013, 2012 and 2011 , we recognized $0 , $&llon , and $5.0 million,
respectively, as revenues under collaborative ageets in accordance with the Milestone Method edlato the achievement of cert
regulatory and clinical milestones pursuant totérens of the Roche Collaboration.

Gammagard Collaboration

In September 2007, we entered into a license atidbooative agreement with Baxter, under which Baxbbtained a worldwid
exclusive license to develop and commercialize adyet consisting of rHUPH20 combined with a curBakter product, GAMMAGARI
LIQUID ™ (the “Gammagard Collaboration”). As of December 3113 , we have received $17.0 milliander the Gammagard Collaborat
including the $10.0 million upfront license fee pagnt, a $3.0 million regulatory milestone
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payment and a $4.0 million salbased payment. Baxter will pay us a royalty on gaoduct commercialized under the agreement cangist
a mid-single digit percent of the net sales of gudduct.

In May 2013, the European Commission granted Bax@keting authorization in all EU Member Statestfee use of HyQvia (solutic
for subcutaneous use), a combination of GAMMAGARUID and rHuPH20 in dual vial units, as replaceméerapy for adult patier
with primary and secondary immunodeficiencies. Baxaunched HyQuvia in the first EU country in J@§13 and in a number of other
countries in the second half of 2013. Baxter plem&xpand the launch to additional EU countrie@i4. The achievement of the f
commercial sale triggered a $4.0 million paymenuso We determined this payment to be a shésed payment. Due to our contint
involvement obligations, revenue from the sdlased payment was deferred and is being recogrozed the remaining term of t
Gammagard Collaboration.

The Gammagard Collaboration is applicable to battakd formulation combinations. Baxter assumegdallelopment, manufacturit
clinical, regulatory, sales and marketing costseurtle Gammagard Collaboration, while we are resibtan for the supply of bulk rHuUPH:
We perform research and development activities saqply bulk rHUPH20 at the request of Baxter, aredraimbursed by Baxter under
terms of the Gammagard Collaboration. In addit®erter has certain product development and comualéaiion obligations in major mark
identified in the Gammagard Collaboration.

Unless terminated earlier in accordance with it the Gammagard Collaboration continues in effietil the expiration of Baxtel
obligation to pay royalties. Baxter has the obligato pay royalties, with respect to each proda@ach country, during the period equal tc
longer of: (a) the duration of any valid claim afrgpatents covering rHUPH20 or other specified miateleveloped under the collabora
which valid claim covers the product in such cowrdr (b) tenyears following the date of the first commerciadlesaf such product in su
country.

Due to our continuing involvement obligations (Bample, support activities associated with rHuPd@8yme), the upfront and sales
based payments were deferred and are being reespoizer the term of the Gammagard Collaboration. rdémgnized revenue from 1
upfront and sales-based payments in the amourpmbaimately $606,000 , $483,000 and $483,000 Herytears endeBecember 31, 201
2012 and 2011 , respectively. Deferred revenudimngldo the upfront and salémsed payments under the Gammagard Collaboratia
approximately $10.5 million and $7.1 million as¥cember 31, 2013 and 2012 , respectively.

Other Collaborations

In December 2012, we and Pfizer entered into aaboHation and license agreement, under which Pfiasrthe worldwide license
develop and commercialize products combining rHUPERzyme with Pfizer proprietary biologics directedsixtargets, of which three we
specified (the “Pfizer Collaboration”). Targets miag selected on an exclusive or non-exclusive bésisof December 31, 2013we hav
received $11.0 million in upfront and license feyments for the licenses to four specified exclidargets and twadditional targets whic
Pfizer has the right to elect in the future upoympant of additional fees. Unless terminated eaitieaccordance with its terms, the Pf
Collaboration continues in effect until the laté(ip expiration of the last to expire of the valithims of our patents covering rHuPH20 or @
specified patents developed under the collaboratioich valid claim covers a product developed urnitiercollaboration, and (ii) expiration
the last to expire royalty term for a product depeld under the collaboration. The royalty term gireduct developed under the Pf
Collaboration, with respect to each country, cdssid the period equal to the longer of: (a) theation of any valid claim of our pate
covering rHUPH20 or other specified patents dewedopnder the collaboration which valid claim covirs product in such country or (t8r
years following the date of the first commercidksaf such product in such country. Pfizer may ieate the agreement prior to expiration
any reason in its entirety or on a target-by-talgetis upon 30 daysior written notice to us. Upon any such termioatithe license granted
Pfizer (in total or with respect to the terminatadyet, as applicable) will terminate, providedwewer, that in the event of expiration of
agreement, the licenses granted will become peahatan-exclusive and fully paid-up.

In May 2011, we and ViroPharma entered into a boltation and license agreement, under which ViraRhaobtained a worldwic
exclusive license for the use of rHUPH20 enzymeéhim development and commercialization of a sub&aas injectable formulation
ViroPharma's commercialized product, Cinr§4€1 esterase inhibitor [human]) (the “ViroPharmdl&moration”).
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In addition, the license provided ViroPharma wiktlasivity to C1 esterase inhibitor and to the kigsry angioedema indication, along v
three additional orphan indications. As of Decenffer 2013 , we received $14.0 million from ViroPiar, including the$9.0 millior
nonrefundable upfront license fee payment and @ $dlion clinical development milestone payment. ViroPhaterainated the collaborati
agreement in February 2014.

In June 2011, we and Intrexon entered into a cofkion and license agreement, under which Intrextmained a worldwide exclusi
license for the use of rHUPH20 enzyme in the deraknt and commercialization of a subcutaneous talpbe formulation of Intrexor
recombinant human alpha l-antitrypsin (rtHUALAT)e(thntrexon Collaboration”)In addition, the license provides Intrexon with lexstvity
for a defined indication (“Exclusive Field”). As dbecember 31, 2013 , we have received $11.0 milfrmm Intrexon, including
nonrefundable upfront license fee payment of $9illam . We are entitled to receive a royalty on each peodommercialized under 1
agreement consisting of a percentage of the nes sdisuch product ranging from mid-single digitsto a low doubledigit percentage. Unle
terminated earlier in accordance with its terms, Itiirexon Collaboration continues in effect uitig later of (i) expiration of the last to exf
of the valid claims of our patents covering rHuPH22Oother specified patents developed under thialwaiation which valid claim covers
product developed under the collaboration, ande§piration of the last to expire royalty term #oproduct developed under the collabora
The royalty term of a product developed under thieekon Collaboration, with respect to each courtonsists of the period equal to the lor
of: (a) the duration of any valid claim of our pattecovering rHUPH20 or other specified patentetigped under the collaboration which v.
claim covers the product in such country or (b)ytears following the date of the first commercidkesaf such product in such country. Intre
may terminate the agreement prior to expirationafoy reason on a product-by-product basis upora98mtior written notice to us. Upon a
such termination, the license granted to Intrexoridtal or with respect to the terminated prodastapplicable) will terminate. Intrexon's cl
executive officer, chairman of its board of direstand major shareholder is also a member of oardbaof directors.

We identified the deliverables at the inceptiontiod Pfizer, ViroPharma and Intrexon agreements kvhie the license, research
development services and supply of bulk rHUPH20.HA%e determined that the license, research anela@@went services and supply of t
rHUPH20 individually represent separate units afoaating, because each deliverable has standalioe.vThe estimated selling prices
these units of accounting were determined basednarket conditions, the terms of comparable collatiee arrangements for simi
technology in the pharmaceutical and biotech inmgustd entityspecific factors such as the terms of our previmilborative agreements, «
pricing practices and pricing objectives and thaureof the research and development services tpebrmed for the collaborators. 1
arrangement consideration was allocated to theelalbles based on the relative selling price method

The amount allocable to the delivered unit or uoitsaccounting is limited to the amount that is wontingent upon the delivery
additional items or meeting other specified perfance conditions (the noncontingent amount). As swah excluded from the allocal
arrangement consideration the milestone paymentsja exclusivity fees and royalties regardlesshef probability of receipt. Based on
results of our analysis, we allocated the $11.0Ganilicense fees from Pfizer, the $9.0 million tgft license fee from ViroPharma and $8(
million upfront license fee from Intrexon to the license deliverable under each of the arrangements. \Werdmed that the upfront payme
were earned upon the granting of the worldwide]wsiee right to our technology to the collaboratorghese arrangements. As a result
recognized the $11.0 million license fee underRfizer Collaboration, the $9.0 milliaupfront license fee under the ViroPharma Collabon
and the $9.0 milliompfront license fee received under the Intrexoridbalration as revenues under collaborative agreeniretthe period whe
such license fees were earned. There wenewenues recognized related to milestone paymemntsruhese collaborations for the years e
December 31, 2013 and 2012 . For the year endedrblegr 31, 2011, we recognized the $3.0 millnifestone payment as revenues u
collaborative agreements in accordance with thedfiine Method related to the achievement of a dpwent milestone pursuant to the te
of the ViroPharma Collaboration.

Pfizer and Intrexon are each solely responsibletierdevelopment, manufacturing and marketing of products resulting from the
respective collaborations. We are entitled to neegiayments for research and development servicgssapply of bulk rHUPH20 to the
collaborators if requested by such collaborator. eognize amounts allocated to research and dawelot services as revenues ui
collaborative agreements as the related servieepaformed. We recognize amounts allocated tedhes of bulk rHUPH20 as revenues u
collaborative agreements when such bulk rHUPH2@ Imaet all required specifications
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by the collaborators and the related title and oloss and damages have passed to the collabar&te cannot predict the timing of deliv
of research and development services and bulk ri20rR44 they are at the collaborators' requests.

Pursuant to the terms of our existing collaboratioallectively, we are entitled to receive addiibmilestone payments for the succes
development of the elected targets in the aggregfate to approximately $63.0 millionpon achievement of specified clinical developr
milestone events and up to approximately $48.0anilipon achievement of specified regulatory milestewents in connection with specif
regulatory filings and receipt of marketing apprisva

5. Certain Balance Sheet Item

Accounts receivable, net consisted of the following

December 31, December 31,
2013 2012
Accounts receivable from product sales to collatuosa $ 449531 % —
Accounts receivable from revenues under collabeeareements 3,707,24 15,058,16
Accounts receivable from other product sales 1,505,00- 823,06
9,707,561 15,881,22
Allowance for distribution fees and discounts (610,48 (178,14

$ 9,097,08 $ 15,703,08

Inventories consisted of the following:

December 31, December 31,

2013 2012
Raw materials $ 1,136,81 $ 1,127,06.
Work-in-process 4,280,071 792,25
Finished goods 753,09: 751,37¢

$ 6,16998 $ 2,670,69

Prepaid expenses and other assets consisted folltveing:

December 31, December 31,
2013 2012

Prepaid manufacturing expenses $ 5,884,040 $ 8,152,60:
Prepaid research and development expenses 3,522,251 2,274,55.
Other prepaid expenses 1,338,75! 2,250,79.
Other assets 356,32¢ 74,94«
11,101,37 12,752,88

Less long-term portion 2,675,69: —

$ 8,42568 $ 12,752,88
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Property and equipment, net consisted of the faligw

December 31, December 31,
2013 2012
Research equipment $ 7,713,850 $ 6,360,00
Computer and office equipment 1,948,85! 1,432,97
Leasehold improvements 1,408,02! 1,138,111
Building @ — 1,450,001
11,070,73 10,381,08
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (7,649,22) (6,680,62)

$ 3,421,500 $ 3,700,46:

(1) Represented capitalized building under a bigilduit lease arrangement where we were consideredwher (for accounting purpos
only) during the construction period. Upon the ctetipn of the building construction in the fourtliarter of 2013, we met the sale
leaseback criteria for decognition of the building asset and liabilitygtbfore, the building asset was removed from thesalidate:
balance sheet as of December 31, 2013.

Depreciation and amortization expense was apprdei;n&1.2 million , $1.1 million and $1.1 milliorof the years endeldecember 3:
2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Accrued expenses consisted of the following:

December 31, December 31,

2013 2012
Accrued compensation and payroll taxes $ 7,07534 $ 4,053,59
Accrued outsourced research and development expense 3,377,251 1,239,05!
Accrued outsourced manufacturing expenses 3,233,01: 984,19:
Other accrued expenses 1,234,83. 1,506,61!

$ 1492044 $ 7,783,444

Deferred revenue consisted of the following:

December 31, December 31,

2013 2012
Collaborative agreements $ 51,184,89 $ 43,222,47
Product sales 1,958,38 623,51(
Total deferred revenue 53,143,27 43,845,98
Less current portion 7,397,82! 8,891,01
Deferred revenue, net of current portion $ 45,745,44 $ 34,954,96

6. Long-Term Debt, Net

In December 2012, we entered into a Loan and SgcAgreement (the “Original Loan Agreementlith Oxford Finance LL¢
(“Oxford”) and Silicon Valley Bank (“SVB”) (colledtely, the “Lenders”) for a $30 million secured gie-draw term loan facility with
maturity date, as amended, of January 1, 2017 Ddaember 2012, we drew down $30 millionder the Original Loan Agreement. -
proceeds were to be used for working capital antbge business requirements. The term loan boineed fnterest rate of 7.55%er annun
The monthly repayment schedule included interest payments in arrears for the first 12 monthsllowed by equal principal and inter
payments for the remaining term. The original téwam required a final payment
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of $2.55 millionwhich was due when the term loan became due or thigoprepayment of the facility. In connection witie original term loa
we received proceeds of $29.7 million , net of d#fering costs.

On December 27, 2013, we entered into an AmendeldRestated Loan and Security Agreement (the “Logme@ment”)with the
Lenders, amending and restating in its entiretyQhiginal Loan Agreement. The Loan Agreement exseihié original term loan and provi
for an additional $20 million new term loan, bringithe total term loan balance to $50 millioklpon closing of the Loan Agreement,
received proceeds of approximately $19 milliamet of accrued interest outstanding as of Decerdbe2013. The proceeds are to be use
working capital and general business requiremeriie. amended term loan facility matures on JanuaB018. Except for extending tl
principal payments and maturity date of the origieam loan and increasing the loan balance to i®8on , no other terms were modifi
The present value of the future cash flows undemntlodified terms described did not exceed the ptesdue of the future cash flows under
original terms by more than 10% . As such, we &edlhis amendment as a modification.

Consistent with the original loan, the Loan Agreeimgrovides for a 7.55%nterest rate on the term loan and a final payneguial tc
8.5% of the original principal amount, or $4.25Imi , which is due when the term loan becomes due on tipe prepayment of the facili
The amended term loan repayment schedule provatemterest only payments in arrears for the firBtmonths, followed by consecuti
equal monthly payments of principal and interesairears starting in February 2015 and continuimgugh the maturity date. We have
option to prepay the outstanding balance of tha tean in full, subject to a prepayment fee of B8%depending upon when the prepayn
occurs.

In connection with the term loan, the debt offeroasts have been recorded as a debt discount ocoasplidated balance sheet wi
together with the final payment and fixed intemagé payments are being amortized to interest esgpgmoughout the life of the term loan ut
the effective interest rate method.

The term loan is secured by substantially all @& #issets of the Company and our subsidiary, Halezynt., except that the collate
does not include any intellectual property (inchgllicensing, collaboration and similar agreemeelsting thereto), and certain other excl.
assets. The Loan Agreement contains customarysemiaions, warranties and covenants by us, whigkmants limit our ability to conve
sell, lease, transfer, assign or otherwise dispbsertain of our assets; engage in any busind®s titan the businesses currently engaged
us or reasonably related thereto; liquidate orali®s make certain management changes; undergairtathange of control events; cre
incur, assume, or be liable with respect to cerirailebtedness; grant certain liens; pay dividendb rmake certain other restricted payme
make certain investments; make payments on anyduabed debt; and enter into transactions with @ngur affiliates outside of the ordin:
course of business or permit our subsidiaries tthdasame. In addition, subject to certain excegtiove are required to maintain with Sili
Valley Bank our primary deposit accounts, secwsiiecounts and commodities, and to do the sanmufaiomestic subsidiary.

The Loan Agreement also contains customary indecatiibn obligations and customary events of defantiuding, among other thing
our failure to fulfill certain of our obligationsnder the Loan Agreement and the occurrence of amahtdverse change which is defined
material adverse change in our business, operatiorc®ndition (financial or otherwise), a mateiiapairment of the prospect of repaymer
any portion of the loan, or a material impairmenttie perfection or priority of lender's lien irethollateral or in the value of such collatera
the event of default by us under the Loan AgreentaetLenders would be entitled to exercise theinedies thereunder, including the rigk
accelerate the debt, upon which we may be requoredpay all amounts then outstanding under thenl&greement, which could harm «
financial condition.

As of December 31, 2013, we were in compliance waitimaterial covenants under the Loan Agreemedtthere was no material adve
change in our business, operations or condition.
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Future maturities and interest payments underaim toan as of December 31, 2013, are as follows:

2014 $ 3,460,41
2015 17,435,63
2016 18,677,51
2017 18,677,51
2018 5,806,45!
Total minimum payments 64,057,53
Less amount representing interest (14,057,53)
Gross balance of long-term debt 50,000,00
Less unamortized debt discount (228,26)
Present value of long-term debt 49,771,73

Less current portion of long-term debt —
Long-term debt, less current portion and unamadtizebt discount $ 49,771,73

Interest expense, including amortization of debtdunt, related to the long-term debt for the yeaed December 31, 2013 and 2012
was approximately $3.3 million and $28,000 , refipely.

7. Stockholders’ [Deficit) Equity

During 2013, we issued an aggregate of 1,270s3B2es of common stock, in connection with the @ges of stock options for cast
the aggregate amount of approximately $5.5 milliom addition, we issued 461,72Zhares of common stock, net of RSAs cancele
connection with the grants of RSAs and 92,201 shafeeommon stock upon vesting of certain RSUs. RB& holders surrenderéd,92:
RSUs to pay for minimum withholding taxes totalmgproximately $431,000 .

In May 2013, our stockholders approved an amendteeotrr Certificate of Incorporation to increase authorized number of shares
common stock from 150 million shares to 200 millgirares.

During 2012, we issued an aggregate of 444d8ifes of common stock in connection with the @gescof stock options for cash in
aggregate amount of approximately $2.0 million atfdition, we issued 374,1%Bares of common stock, net of RSAs canceled, imectior
with the grants of RSAs and 81,070 shares of comstock upon vesting of certain RSUs. The RSU heldairrendered 46,93RSUs to pa
for minimum withholding taxes totaling approximat&347,000 .

In February 2012, we completed an underwrittenipudffering and issued 7,820,000 shares of comnocksincluding 1,020,008hare
sold pursuant to the full exercise of an oaélotment option granted to the underwriter. Alltbé shares were offered at a public offering |
of $10.61 per share, generating approximately $&tilkon in net proceeds. Of the 7,820,080ares of common stock sold, Randal J. Ki
member of our board of directors, through his i@fils, purchased 1,360,080ares of common stock in this offering at the jpubifering price
of $10.61 per share for a total of approximatelst.8Imillion .

During 2011, we issued an aggregate of 3,045,546estof common stock in connection with the exercisf 3,137,056hares of stoc
options for cash in the aggregate amount of apprately $4.7 million . In addition, we issued 347B3&®ares of common stock in connec
with the grants of RSAs and 15,000 shares of comstmek upon vesting of certain RSUs.
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8. Equity Incentive Plans

We currently grant stock options, restricted stawlards and restricted stock units under the AmeaedRestated 2011 Stock Plar
May 2013, our stockholders approved the AmendedRaestated 2011 Stock Plan, which provides for tfaatgof up to 12.5 milliorshares ¢
common stock (subject to certain limitations ascdbsd in the Amended and Restated 2011 Stock Riasglected employees, consultants
non-employee members of our Board of Directors ("Owditirectors™) as stock options, stock appreciatights, restricted stock awar
restricted stock unit awards and performance awdrds Amended and Restated 2011 Stock Plan reptaseprior stock plans, consisting
our 2008 Outside Directors' Stock Plan, 2008 Stlan, 2006 Stock Plan and 2004 Stock Plan (“Prian$?, collectively with the Amende
and Restated 2011 Stock Plan, the “PlanBhe Prior Plans were terminated such that no amfditiawards could be granted under the
Plans, but the terms of the Prior Plans remairffecewith respect to outstanding awards until theg exercised, settled or canceled. The |
were approved by the stockholders. Awards are stibjeterms and conditions established by the Cosgatgon Committee of our Board
Directors.

During the year ended December 31, 2013 , we gitasttarebased awards under the Amended and Restated 26&k Mian. We als
granted restricted stock awards to the Outsidedre under the 2008 Outside Directagtbck Plan until it was terminated in May 2013
December 31, 2013, 7,437,270 shares were subjexitstanding awards and 6,946,331 shares werkakleafor future grants of shabase:
awards. At the present time, management inten@sst@e new common shares upon the exercise of sgotibns, issuance of restricted st
awards and settlement of restricted stock units.

Stock Options.Options granted under each of the Plans must Aaexercise price equal to at least 10iRhe fair market value of o
common stock on the date of grant. The optionsgeitierally have a maximum contractual term of tesry and vest at the rate of one-fowfth
the shares on the first anniversary of the datgrafit and 1/4®f the shares monthly thereafter. Certain optioara® provide for accelerat
vesting if there is a change in control (as defimethe Plans).
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A summary of our stock option award activity asnfl for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012@htis as follows:

Weighted
Average
Shares Weighted Remaining Aggregate
Underlying Average Exercise Contractual Intrinsic
Stock Options Price per Share Term (yrs) Value
Outstanding at January 1, 2011 7,975,36! $3.87
Granted 1,624,76 $7.79
Exercised (3,137,05)) $1.71
Canceled/forfeited (593,29) $6.72
Outstanding at December 31, 2011 5,869,78 $5.82
Granted 1,215,44: $9.90
Exercised (444,63) $4.56
Canceled/forfeited (260,72%) $8.34
Outstanding at December 31, 2012 6,379,86 $6.59
Granted 1,806,39; $7.14
Exercised (1,270,36) $4.34
Canceled/forfeited (214,98 $8.18
Outstanding at December 31, 2013 6,700,91! $7.11 6.4 $52.¢ million
Vested and expected to vest at December 31, 2013 6,352,65: $7.07 6.3 $50.2 million
Exercisable at December 31, 2013 3,747,56 $6.55 4.8 $31.€ million

The weighted average grant-date fair values obaogtgranted during the years ended December 3B, 2012 and 2011 were $4.461
share, $5.63 per share and $4.57 per share, resgbectAs of December 31, 2013 , approximately $@nillion of total unrecognize
compensation costs related to n@sted stock option awards was expected to be néedyover a weighted average period of approxiiy
2.5 years. The intrinsic value of options exercidadng the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012@btl was approximately $8.3 millign
$2.9 million and $16.6 million , respectively. Casglteived from stock option exercises for the yesdedDecember 31, 2013, 2012 and 2
was approximately $5.5 million , $2.0 million and.$ million , respectively.

The fair value of each option award is estimatedtton date of grant using the Black-Scholes-Mertptiom pricing model (“Black-
Scholes model”jhat uses the assumptions noted in the followibtetaExpected volatility is based on historicalatdity of our common stoc
The expected term of options granted is based atyses of historical employee termination rates apiion exercises. The rigkee interes
rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield for aogeconsistent with the expected term of the optioeffect at the time of the grant. 1
dividend yield assumption is based on the expextaif no future dividend payments by us. Assumgtiosed in the Blackcholes model we
as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Expected volatility 70.172.5% 64.069.2¥% 64.065.1%
Average expected term (in years) 5.7 5.€ 5.€
Risk-free interest rate 0.862.00% 0.8041.15% 1.142.55%
Expected dividend yield 0% 0% 0%

Restricted Stock AwardsRestricted stock awards are grants that entitlehtiider to acquire shares of our common stock &t ae ¢
fixed price, which is typically nominal. The shacss/ered by a restricted stock award cannot be ptédged, or
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otherwise disposed of until the award vests and myested shares may be reacquired by us for tigsnakr purchase price following t
awardee’s termination of service. The restrictedlstawards will generally vest at the rate of dmerth of the shares on each anniversary c
date of grant. Annual grants of restricted stocki@s to Outside Directors typically vest in fuletfirst day the awardee may trade our stor
compliance with our insider trading policy follovgirthe date immediately preceding the first annuagtimg of stockholders following the gr
date.

The following table summarizes our restricted staskard activity during the years ended Decembe313, 2012 and 2011 :

Weighted

Average

Number of Grant Date

Shares Fair Value
Unvested at January 1, 2011 120,00( $ 7.61
Granted 353,50¢ $ 6.51
Vested (120,000 $ 7.67
Forfeited (5,625 $ 6.67
Unvested at December 31, 2011 347,880 $ 6.51
Granted 380,15¢ $ 10.2¢
Vested (339,75) % 6.51
Forfeited (5,969 $ 10.81
Unvested at December 31, 2012 382,32( $ 10.21
Granted 476,09¢ $ 6.8¢
Vested (211,179 $ 8.7¢
Forfeited (14,367 $ 8.17
Unvested at December 31, 2013 632,87 g 8.2¢

The fair value of the restricted stock awards isdslaon the market value of our common stock ord#te of grant. The total gradate
fair value of restricted stock awards vested duthmey years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2@&Japproximately $1.9 million$2.z
million and $0.9 million , respectively. We recoged approximately $2.2 million , $2.1 million andl.$ million of sharebased compensati
expense related to restricted stock awards foy¢laes ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011eatdsgly. As of December 31, 201 8ota
unrecognized compensation cost related to unvesteatds was approximately $2.5 millignwhich is expected to be recognized ov
weighted-average period of approximately 2.3 years.

Restricted Stock Units A restricted stock unit is a promise by us to ésaushare of our common stock upon vesting of ttie During
the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 20&Xgranted 323,700 , 682,146 and 163,808res of restricted stock units, respectivel
no purchase price, to certain employees. The céstristock units will generally vest at the rateonéfourth of the shares on each anniver
of the date of grant. Of the total 163,000 shafegstricted stock units granted during the yeateghDecember 31, 2011, 148,08tares wel
subject to percentage vesting based upon achievesheartain corporate goals and the employeestigoimg services through May 2012.
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The following table summarizes our restricted stook activity during the years ended December2®1,3, 2012 and 2011 :

Weighted
Average Weighted Aggregate
Number of Purchase  Average Remaining Intrinsic
Shares Price Contractual Term (yrs) Value
Unvested at January 1, 2011 — $ —
Granted 163,000 $ —
Vested (15,000 $ —
Forfeited — $ —
Unvested at December 31, 2011 148,000 $ —
Granted 682,14t $§ —
Vested (128,000 $ —
Forfeited (20,000 $ —
Unvested at December 31, 2012 682,14t $ —
Granted 323,70( $ —
Vested (154,129 $ —
Forfeited (115,36) $ —
Unvested at December 31, 2013 736,35! $ — 1.6 $11.C million
Expected to vest at December 31, 2013 62764 $ — 15 $9.4 million

The estimated fair value of the restricted stocksuwas based on the market value of our commookstm the date of grant. T
weighted average grant-date fair value of restlisimck units granted during the years ended DeeeBih 2013, 2012 and 2011 was $6,69
$10.61 and $6.71 per share, respectively. The totahsic value of restricted stock units vesteding the years endedecember 31, 201
2012 and 2011 was approximately $1.1 million , $8iBion and $0.1 million , respectively. We recazgd approximately $1.8 million$1.t
million and $0.7 million of share-based compensagapense related to the restricted stock unitshf@ryears endeldecember 31, 2013, 20
and 2011 , respectively. As of December 31, 20b%) unrecognized estimated unamortized compeanrsabst related to novested restricte
stock units outstanding as of that date was appratdly $4.2 million , which is expected to be retagd over a weightedverage amortizatic
period of approximately 3.0 years.

9. Commitments and Contingencie
Operating Leases

Our administrative offices and research facilittee located in San Diego, California. We lease ggregate of approximately6,00(
square feet of office and research space.

In June 2011, we entered into an amended andedd&sse (the “11388 Lease”) with BMR-388 Sorrento Valley Road LP for the of
and research facilities located at 11388 Sorreraiey Road, San Diego, California ("11388 Propértfhe 11388 Lease commenced in .
2011 and continues through January 20T8e 11388 Lease supersedes the lease agreentieB@iSorrento, LLC entered into in July 2C
Under the terms of the 11388 Lease, the initial thigrrent payment was approximately $38,0@@ of costs and property taxes associated
the operation and maintenance of the leased fasilicommencing in December 2011 and increasegpoogimately $65,00Gtarting i
January 2013. Thereafter, the annual base rentbijed to approximately 2.5%nnual increases each year throughout the termeof138
Lease. In addition, we received a cash incentivappiroximately $98,000 , a tenant improvement aloee of $300,008nd free and reduc
rent totaling approximately $744,0@hder the terms of the 11388 Lease. Combined waghunamortized deferred rent under the Ori
Lease, unamortized deferred
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rent associated with the 11388 Lease of $953,0@D %in1 million was included in deferred rent asDEcember 31, 2013 and 2012
respectively.

In July 2007, we entered into a sublease agreeftiemt‘11404 Sublease”) with Avanir Pharmaceuticéls, (“Avanir”) for Avanir's
excess leased facilities located at 11404 Sorrgatley Road, San Diego, California for office aresearch space (“11404 Propertfy a
monthly rent payment of approximately $54,00@:t of costs and property taxes associated Witloperation and maintenance of the suble
facilities. The 11404 Sublease expired in Janu&®i32. The annual base rent was subject to approgiynd% annual increases each y
throughout the terms of the 11404 Sublease.

In April 2009, we entered into a sublease agreerfteet“11408 Subleasetyith Avanir for office and research space located B10¢
Sorrento Valley Road, San Diego, California (“114B8operty”), which expired in January 2013The monthly rent payments, wh
commenced in January 2010, were approximately $21add were subject to an annual increase of appately 3% .

In June 2011, we entered into a lease agreement'1tM04/11408 Lease”) with BMR-Sorrento Plaza LEBMR-Sorrento”) for the
11404 Property and 11408 Property which commengeganuary 2013 and continues through January 2@#suant to the terms of
11404/11408 Lease, the initial monthly rent paymermtpproximately $71,000et of costs and property taxes associated witlopleeation an
maintenance of the leased facilities and is sulifpetpproximately 2.5%nnual increases each year throughout the terrheofl1404/114(
Lease.

In October 2012, we entered into a lease agree(tlent11436 Lease”) with Caborrento, Ltd. for the 11436 Sorrento Valley Ro&dy
Diego, California ("11436 Property"). Pursuanthe terms of the 11436 Lease, the lessor completdgaid for certain improvements on
building before the commencement of the lease imeltber 2013. This lease expires in January 20IBe initial monthly rent payment
approximately $24,300et of costs and property taxes associated witlopieeation and maintenance of the leased facilitigsch commence
in November 2013 and is subject to approximately 8%ual increases each year throughout the terrheofl1436 Lease. In addition,
received free and reduced rent totaling approxima$&58,000 . Under the terms of the 11436 Lease,were the “deemed ownerfof
accounting purposes only) of the facility during ttonstruction period. As such, we recorded ant aé$1.5 millionas of December 31, 20:
representing the fair value of the building withcarresponding longerm lease financing obligation. Upon completion tbé building
construction in the fourth quarter of 2013, we tinet sale-leaseback criteria for deeognition of the building asset and liabilitygtkfore, th
building asset and corresponding liability were oged from the consolidated balance sheet as ofrbleee31, 2013.

We pay a pro rata share of operating costs, insaransts, utilities and real property taxes inalifog the landlords for the sublea
facilities.

Additionally, we lease certain office equipment endperating leases. Total rent expense was appadaly $1.7 million $1.6 millior
and $1.5 million for the years ended December 81322012 and 2011 , respectively.

Approximate annual future minimum operating leaggnpents as of December 31, 2013 are as follows:

Operating

Year: Leases
2014 $ 1,995,001
2015 2,062,00!
2016 2,081,001
2017 2,122,001
2018 80,00(
Thereafter —
Total minimum lease payments $ 8,340,001
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Other Commitments

In order to scale up the production of bulk rHUPH2@ to identify another manufacturer that woultpheeet anticipated producti
obligations arising from our proprietary programmedaour collaborations, we entered into a Technol®ggnsfer Agreement and a Clini
Supply Agreement with Cook Pharmica LLC (“CookThe technology transfer was completed in 2008. 0092 multiple batches of bt
rHUPH20 were produced to support planned futureazl studies.

In March 2010, we entered into a Commercial Supgidyeement with Cook (the “Cook Commercial Supplyrégment”).Under th
terms of the Cook Commercial Supply Agreement, Calkmanufacture certain batches of bulk rHuPHB@ttwill be used for commerc
supply of certain products and product candidafesler the terms of the Cook Commercial Supply Agrest, we are committed to cert
minimum annual purchases of bulk rHUPH20 equalotar fquarters of forecasted supply. At December2,3 , we had &3.0 millior
minimum purchase obligation in connection with @@k Commercial Supply Agreement.

In March 2010, we amended our Commercial SupplyeAgrent (the “March 2010 Avid Amendmentijth Avid Bioservices, Inc
("Avid") which was originally entered into in Felamy 2005 and amended in December 2006. Under tinestef the March 2010 Av
Amendment, we are committed to certain minimum ahpurchases of bulk rHUPH20 equal to three quadéforecasted supply. In additi
Avid has the right to manufacture and supply aaienpercentage of bulk rHUPH20 that will be use#iyjfenexrecombinant. ADecember 3:
2013, we had a minimum purchase obligation of exiprately $142,000 .

In March 2010, we entered into a second CommeS8uiaply Agreement with Avid (the “Avid Commercial galy Agreement”)Unde!
the terms of the Avid Commercial Supply Agreemeve,are committed to certain minimum annual purchadeéulk rHUPH20 equal to thr
quarters of forecasted supply. In addition, Avid tize right to manufacture and supply a certaicgrgage of bulk rHUPH20 that will be u
in the collaboration products and product candslat¢ December 31, 2013 , we had a $6.0 millimnimum purchase obligation in conneci
with this agreement.

In June 2011, we entered into a commercial manurfilac and supply agreement with Baxter, under wielxter provides the final f
and finishing steps in the production processipienexrecombinant for a limited period of time. The ialtterm of the agreement with Bay
was extended to December 31, 2015, subject to duréxtensions in accordance with the terms and igond of the agreement.
December 31, 2013, we had a minimum purchaseathdigin connection with this agreement of appraatiety $1.8 million .

In June 2011, we entered into a services agreewidmtanother third party manufacturer for the tealogy transfer and manufacture
Hylenexrecombinant. At December 31, 2013 , we had no mininpurchase obligation in connection with this agrent.

Legal Contingencies

From time to time, we may be involved in disputas|uding litigation, relating to claims arising toof operations in the normal course
our business. Any of these claims could subjedbusostly legal expenses and, while we generalliebe that we have adequate insuranc
cover many different types of liabilities, our imance carriers may deny coverage or our policytirmay be inadequate to fully satisfy
damage awards or settlements. If this were to happe payment of any such awards could have ariabaelverse effect on our consolide
results of operations and financial position. Aabdiglly, any such claims, whether or not successmlild damage our reputation and busit
We currently are not a party to any legal procegslithe adverse outcome of which, in managemeantinion, individually or in the aggreg:
would have a material adverse effect on our codatdid results of operations or financial position.

10. Income Taxe:

Significant components of our net deferred tax asaeDecember 31, 2013 and 2012 are shown beloval#ation allowance d$162.(
million and $128.4 million has been establishedtizet the net deferred tax assets as of DecembeP@®L3 and 2012 respectively, &
realization of such assets is uncertain.
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December 31,

2013 2012
Deferred tax assets:

Net operating loss carryforwards $ 116,572,00 $ 86,732,00
Deferred revenue 13,324,00 17,345,00
Research and development credits 28,867,00 20,286,00
Share-based compensation 2,495,001 2,975,001
Depreciation — 179,00(
Other, net 853,00( 926,00(
162,111,00 128,443,00
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets (161,968,00) (128,443,00)
Deferred tax assets, net of valuation 143,00( —

Deferred tax liabilities:
Depreciation (143,000 —
Net deferred tax liabilities (143,001 —
Net deferred tax assets $ — § —

The provision for income taxes on earnings subjecincome taxes differs from the statutory feddrmiome tax rate at due to -
following:

December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Federal income tax at 34% $ (28,383,00) $ (18,208,00) $ (6,722,00I
State income tax, net of federal benefit (1,745,00) (3,023,001 (1,153,00)
Increase in valuation allowance 33,525,00 20,954,00 9,935,001
Tax effect on non-deductible expenses and other 5,219,001 1,293,001 1,671,00!
Research and development credits (8,616,00) (1,016,00i) (3,731,00)
$ — $ — —

At December 31, 2013 , we had federal and Califotak net operating loss carryforwards of approxéiya$327.7 million and276.¢
million , respectively. Included in these amounts federal and California net operating lossespgpireximately $27.9 milliorattributable t
stock option deductions of which the tax benefil & credited to equity when realized. The fedarad California tax loss carryforwards \
begin to expire in 2018 and 2014 , respectivelyesmpreviously utilized.

At December 31, 2013 , we also had federal andf@@aia research and development tax credit carwdods of approximatel$21.¢
million and $10.5 million , respectively. The fedkresearch and development tax credits will bégiexpire in 2024unless previously utilize
The California research and development tax creditcarryforward indefinitely until utilized.

Pursuant to Internal Revenue Code Section 382artheal use of the net operating loss carryforwartsresearch and developmenti
credits could be limited by any greater than 50%meship change during any thrgear testing period. As a result of any such owhrip
change, portions of our net operating loss carwéods and research and development tax creditsudject to annual limitations. We rece
completed an updated Section 382 analysis regattiedimitation of the net operating losses anceaesh and development credits a
December 31, 2012Based upon the analysis, we determined that ahigechanges occurred in prior years. Howeveratireual limitation
on net operating loss and research and developtaerdredit carryforwards will not have a materiapiact on the future utilization of st
carryforwards.
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At December 31, 2013 and 201®ur unrecognized income tax benefits and ungettai positions were not material and would nc
recognized, affect the effective tax rate. Inteeagt/or penalties related to uncertain income tsitjpns are included by us as a compone
income tax expense. For the years ended Decemb8033, 2012 and 2011 , we recognized no interagéoalties.

We are subject to taxation in the U.S. and in varistate jurisdictions. Our tax years for 1998 famd/ard are subject to examination
the U.S. and California tax authorities due todheyforward of unutilized net operating losses esgkarch and development credits.

11. Employee Savings Pla

We have an employee savings plan pursuant to Setfib(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. All emplayaee eligible to participa
provided they meet the requirements of the plan.a’éenot required to make matching contributiondeurthe plan. However, we volunta
contributed to the plan approximately $633,00008600 and $355,000 for the years ended Decembh&03B, 2012 and 2011 , respectively.

12. Related Party Transaction:

In June 2011, we and Intrexon entered into theekain Collaboration, under which Intrexon obtainedaldwide exclusive license {
the use of rHUPH20 enzyme in the development eftewaneous injectable formulation of Intrexon’sambinant human alphadntitrypsir
(rHUA1AT). Intrexon’s chief executive officer and chairman of its boafdirectors, Randal J. Kirk, is also a membeowf Board of Director
The collaborative arrangement with Intrexon wasiewed and approved by our Board of Directors inoagance with our related pa
transaction policy. For the years ended DecembefB13, 2012 and 2011 , we recognized $1.0 millig1.0 million and $9.0 million
respectively, in revenue under collaborative ages@s pursuant to the terms of the Intrexon Collation. See Note 4Collaborative
Agreement, for a further discussion of the Intrexon Colladtan.

13. Subsequent Event

On February 10, 2014, we completed an underwrjitéslic offering and issued 8,846,153 shares of comstock, including 1,153,846
shares sold pursuant to the full exercise of am-alletment option granted to the underwriters. @lkthe shares were offered at a public
offering price of $13.00 per share, generating exiprately $107.8 million in proceeds after dedugtihe underwriting discounts and
commissions and estimated expenses.
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14. Summary of Unaudited Quarterly Financial Information

The following is a summary of our unaudited quaytegsults for the years ended December 31, 204842 :

Quarter Ended
2013 (Unaudited): March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,

Total revenues $ 1183354 $ 1445381 $ 16,013,16 $ 12,498,93
Gross profit on product salés $ 769,620 $ 1,815,90. $ 9,342,18 $ 6,266,25!
Total operating expenses $ 3032931 $ 3657445 $ 3450702 $ 33,822,29
Net loss $ (19,288,36) $ (22,91151) $ (19,292,36) $ (21,986,30)
Net loss per share, basic and diluted $ 0.17) $ 0.20) $ 0.17) $ (0.19
Shares used in computing basic and diluted net loss

per share 112,416,79 112,486,21 112,765,15 113,550,22

Quarter Ended
2012 (Unaudited): March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,

Total revenue® $ 7,440,17" $ 7,757,17" $ 5,334,322 $ 21,793,54
Gross profit on product sales $ 116,65( $ 381,82: $ 488,71 $ 805,85!
Total operating expenses $ 2258057 $ 2180527 $ 25364,16 $ 26,200,66
Net loss $ (15119,18) $ (14,021,11) $ (20,005,84) $  (4,405,85)
Net loss per share, basic and diluted $ (0.19 $ (0.19) $ (0.1¢) $ (0.09)
Shares used in computing basic and diluted net loss

per share 107,589,51 112,063,66 112,305,00 112,323,05

(1) Gross profit on product sales for the quarters dnlleme 30, 2013, September 30, 2013 and Decemb@032 excluded manufacturi
costs related to the product sales of bulk rHuP20Herceptin SC and HyQvia in the amounts of $8@8,, $6.5 million and2.€
million , respectively. Such costs were incurred prior toogean marketing approvals for Herceptin SC an@Wly, and therefore, th
were charged to research and development expantss periods the costs were incurred.

(2) Revenues for the quarter ended December 312 2@luded $9.5 milliorin revenues under collaborative agreements fromPtiiee
Collaboration.
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HALOZYME THERAPEUTICS, INC.

Schedule I

Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

Balance at
Beginning of Balance at End of
Period Additions Deductions Period

For the year ended December 31, 2013
Accounts receivable allowanc®s

For the year ended December 31, 2012
Accounts receivable allowanc®s

For the year ended December 31, 2011
Accounts receivable allowanc&s

$ 178,14 $ 2,979.64 $ (2,547,30) $ 610,48:
$ 15,42¢ $ 770,61 $ (607,90) $ 178,14(

$ — § 15,42¢ $ — 3 15,42¢

(1) Allowances are for chargebacks, prompt payndesttounts and distribution fees relatedHydenexrecombinant product sal
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EXHIBIT 10.2€

FORM CEO CHANGE IN CONTROL AGREEMENT

This agreement is dated and is by etveelen HALOZYME THERAPEUTICS, INC., a Delaware corgtion (the “
Company,” “us,” “we " or “ our”), and [ ] (“_-yolior “ your").

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Company (tfBoard”) considers it essential to foster the continueghlwyment of key
executives and believes it is in the best intereStse Company and its stockholders to have youtioued dedication, notwithstanding the
possibility, threat, or occurrence of a Change amitol of the Company (as defined below).

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual ews contained in this agreement, and other gondd/aluable consideratio
the receipt and sufficiency of which are herebynaeidedged, the parties agree as follows:

1. “ At Will” Employment You agree that you will continue to be an “atiivéimployee, as defined under applicable law, of
the Company’s operating subsidiary, Halozyme, Aesuch, your employment may be terminated at emg for any or no reason without
liability, except as otherwise provided in this @gment or any other employee benefit plan in whah participate immediately before your
termination of employment. Nothing in this agreetrmmfers on you any right to continued employrm@mestricts our right to terminate your
employment at any time for any or no reason.

2. Change in Control Termination

(a) _Payments and Benefitd we terminate your employment without Causeif gou resign for Good Reason, on or wit
12 months after a Change in Control (as each digeithterm is defined below), we shall provide ytba following:

() Your annual base salary earned through the datrmination and any vested accrued benefits, texient not
previously paid or deferred under a tax-qualifiechonqualified deferred
compensation arrangement, to be paid in a lumpwitinin the time periods
mandated by applicable law after your terminatiberaployment (“ Accrued

Obligations”);

(ii) Subject to Section 2(b) below, an amount equalttm&s your then-current annual base salary (armated
without regard to any diminution thereof that gaige to Good Reason), to be
paid in a lump sum no later than sixty (60) dayerafour termination of
employment;

(iii) Subject to Section 2(b) below, we shall continuprtwvide you (and, if applicable, your spouse digitde
dependents), at the Company’s expense, with sulEtaisimilar coverage
under our group health plans, in which you (or }hmarticipated immediately
before your termination of employment, for a peradd.8 months after your
termination of employment; on the condition thas ttontinued coverage w
cease if, before the end of the 18-month period,ly@come eligible to
participate in another employer-provided group tieplan providing
substantially similar coverage; and

(iv)Subject to Section 2(b) below, we shall cause 100%l equity awards granted to you on or after &tat 3,

2008 to become fully vested and nonforfeitable upaur termination of
employment and otherwise exercisable in accordance
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with the terms of the applicable equity plan andalhagreement pursuant to which such awards were
granted; except to the extent that this acceleraiforesting would disqualify a payment intendedtalify
as “performance-based compensation” (as definedrufdéction 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986, as amended and any regulations and Treasiggrge promulgated thereunder (the * CHjiérom
being so qualified.

(v)Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in thiseement, if we terminate your employment withouti§g or if
you resign for Good Reason, before a Change inr@lpaind if you reasonak
demonstrate that your termination of employm@)twas at the request of a
third party who has taken steps reasonably caledlat effect the Change in
Control or(B) otherwise arose in connection with or anticipatiéthe Chang
in Control, then for purposes of this Section 2gayr termination of
employment will be deemed to have occurred on thenGe in Control.

(b) _ReleaseYou agree that any payment or benefit providedieamhis agreement pursuant to Section 2(a)(ii),aind (iv)
hereof and not otherwise required by law is condid upon your execution and delivery to us (andnmewvocation) of a general release of
claims, in form and substance acceptable to usjmatixty (60) days following the date of your ténation of employment. No payment or
benefit not otherwise required by law will be pbifore the general release of claims becomes effegpon the expiration of any applicable
revocation period; provided, that, to the extemstahty (60) day period spans two (2) taxable yghespayments and benefits provided under
this agreement pursuant to Section 2(a)(ii), &ny (iv) hereof shall be paid in the later taxatdar. If you do not execute the general release
claims and such release does not become irrevouedithie the specified period you will automaticaflyrfeit any right to receive the payments
and benefits provided under this agreement purdoa®éction 2(a)(ii), (i) and (iv) hereof.

(c) _Cause“Cause” means, solely for purposes of this agezdras determined in good faith by the Board, which
determination will be conclusive, your:

(i)conviction of, or plea of nolo contendere to, @il or crime involving moral turpituc

(i) fraud with respect to, or misappropriation of, dmyds or property of the Company, or any subsidiamgtomer,
or vendor;

(iii) personal dishonesty, willful violation of any lame, or regulation (other than minor traffic vittas or similar
offenses), or breach of fiduciary duty that invay®ersonal profit;

(iv)willful misconduct in connection with your duti

(v)illegal use or distribution of drug

(vi)violation of any material written rule, regulatiqgerocedure, or policy of the Company applicablgda that coul
reasonably be expected to result in demonstrabta tmthe Company, as
determined by the Board in good faith; or

(vii)material breach of any provision of any employmentdisclosure, nonsolicitation, or other similaaterial
agreement executed by you for the benefit of the@y that could

reasonably be expected to result in demonstraliha tmthe Company, as
determined by the Board in good faith.
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(d) _Change in ControlA Change in Control shall be deemed to have aeduf any of the following shall have occurred:

(yany Person becomes the beneficial owner (withimtkaning of Rule 138-promulgated under the Exchange /#

of fifty percent (50%) or more of either (A) theetivoutstanding shares of
common stock of the Company (th®ttstanding Company Common Stock
") or (B) the combined voting power of the thensiahding voting securities
of the Company entitled to vote generally in thecgbn of directors (the "
Outstanding Company Voting Securiti¢}; provided, however, that, for
purposes of this definition of Change in Contrbk following acquisitions
shall not constitute a Change in Control: (1) aoguasition directly from the
Company, (2) any acquisition by the Company, (3) acquisition by any
employee benefit plan (or related trust) sponsoraedaintained by the
Company or any of its affiliates or (4) any acatingi pursuant to a transaction
that complies with clauses (iii)(A), (iii)(B) andi}(C) of this definition of
Change in Control;

(i individuals who, as of the date hereof, constitheeBoard (the tThcumbent Board”) cease for any reason to

constitute at least a majority of the Board; preddhowever, that any
individual becoming a director subsequent to thte tiareof whose election,
or nomination for election by the Company's stodttbrs, was approved by a
vote of at least a majority of the directors themgrising the Incumbent
Board shall be considered as though such individaal a member of the
Incumbent Board, but excluding, for this purpose; such individual whose
initial assumption of office occurs as a resulanfactual or threatened elect
contest with respect to the election or removaligéctors or other actual or
threatened solicitation of proxies or consents bgrobehalf of a Person other
than the Board;

(iii) consummation of a reorganization, merger, statugbare exchange or consolidation or similar tratisac
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involving the Company or any of its subsidiariesate or other disposition
all or substantially all of the assets of the Compar the acquisition of
assets or securities of another entity by the Camppa any of its subsidiaries
(each, a ‘Business Combinatiori), in each case unless, following such
Business Combination, (A) all or substantiallyaflthe individuals and
entities that were the beneficial owners of thestartding Company Comm
Stock and the Outstanding Company Voting Securiitiesediately prior to
such Business Combination beneficially own, diseotl indirectly, at least
fifty percent (50%) of the then-outstanding sharesommon stock (or, for a
non-corporate entity, equivalent securities) arddbmbined voting power of
the then-outstanding voting securities entitleddte generally in the election
of directors (or, for a non-corporate entity, eglént governing body), as the
case may be, of the entity resulting from such Bess Combination
(including, without limitation, an entity that, agesult of such transaction,
owns the Company or all or substantially all of @@mpany's assets either
directly or through one or more subsidiaries) ihstantially the same
proportions as their ownership immediately priostich Business
Combination of the Outstanding Company Common Stoakthe
Outstanding Company Voting Securities, as the nzsgbe, (B) no Person
(excluding any entity resulting from such Busin€gsnbination or any
employee benefit plan (or related trust) of the @any or such entity
resulting from such Business Combination) bendficiawns, directly or
indirectly, fifty percent (50%) or more of, respgety, the then-outstanding
shares of common stock (or, for a non-corporatigyeguivalent securities)
of the entity resulting from such




Business Combination or the combined voting powéhe theneutstanding voting securities of such en
except to the extent that such ownership existent fr the Business Combination and (C) at leasggority
of the members of the board of directors (or, fopa-corporate entity, equivalent governing bodythe
entity resulting from such Business Combinationevaembers of the Incumbent Board at the time of the
execution of the initial agreement or of the actiéithe Board providing for such Business Comburatior

(iv)approval by the stockholders of the Company ofrafete liquidation or dissolution of the Compse
In construing this definition of Change in Contral,Person” means any individual, entity or groughim the meaning of Section 13
(d)(3) or 14(d)(2) of the Securities Exchange Ac1©34, as amended, other than employee benefis@ponsored or maintained by the
Company and by entities controlled by the Compargrnounderwriter of the stock of the Company iregistered public offering.

(e) _Good ReasarfGood Reason” means, solely for purposes ofabigement, without your consent, any of the follayvi
conditions:

(i)a material diminution in your annual base sa
(iiya material diminution in your title, position, desi, or responsibilities, or the assignment to yoduties that are
materially inconsistent with the scope of dutied agsponsibilities associated

with your position immediately before the Chang&ntrol;

(i) a material diminution in the authority, dutiesresponsibilities of the supervisor to whom you @guired to
report;

(iv)a material diminution in the budget over which yetain authority

(v)any requirement by the Company that you physigallgcate from your current work location to anotherrk
location 30 or more miles away; or

(vi)any other action or inaction that constitutes aemialtbreach by us of our obligations under thiseagent
so long as you notify us no later than 90 days #ffite existence of any of these conditions andailéd cure the condition within 30 days after

receipt of the notice. Notwithstanding the foregpino Good Reason exists unless your terminati@mgfloyment occurs no later than one
year after the initial existence of any conditigatdd in this Section 2(e

3. _Death; Disability If your employment terminates by reason of deattdisability” (as defined under the Company’s determ
disability plan then in effect) within 12 monthgeafa Change in Control or otherwise, we shall havebligation to you or your legal
representatives under this agreement, excegajmayment of Accrued Obligations (which we shall payou or your estate or beneficiary, as
applicable, within the time period mandated by aggtlle law after you die or become disabled); @)aontinuation coverage required under
Code Section 4980B or analogous state continuateerage laws.

4. _Exclusivity of Payments and BenefifBhis agreement supersedes all prior agreementsway have with us regarding
compensation or benefits that may become payaklderinection with a change in control of the Comp@mlyether or not the change in control
constitutes a Change in Control), including anyjsion contained in any employment agreement, d&fer, or change-in-control agreement.
You acknowledge and agree that any payments rettewesuant to this agreement shall be in lieu gffayments the Company would
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otherwise make to you under the Company’s generadrance policy, as such policy may be revised nae or administered from time to
time. Except as otherwise provided in this Sectipnothing in this agreement will prevent or lim@ur continuing or future participation in ¢
Company plan, policy, or practice for which you ntpalify.

5. Limitation on Payments and Benefits

(&) _Tax Liability. You shall bear all expense of, and be solelyaesible for, all federal, state, local, or non-Uzkes due
with respect to any payment received under this@mgent, including, without limitation, any excise imposed by Code Section 4999.

(b) _Modified CutBack Rule. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in tagreement, if any payment or benefit to be
paid under this agreement_(* Contract Paym&nt®gether with any other payment or benefit thati have the right, in connection with a
Change in Control or the termination of your emphant, to receive from us or from any entity thad imember of an “affiliated group” (as
defined under Code Section 1504(a) without regau@dde Section 1504(b)) of which we are a membetuding, without limitation, any
restricted stock, stock option, or similar righttiee lapse or termination of any restriction orihar vesting or exercisability of any of the
foregoing (collectively with the Contract Paymeritse “ Total Paymenty, constitutes an “excess parachute payment” éliseld under Code
Section 280G(b)), the Total Payments will be reducethe extent necessary to prevent any portighef otal Payments from becoming
nondeductible by the Company under Code Sectios280subject to the excise tax imposed under Cedéich 4999 but only if, by reason of
such reduction, the net after-tax benefit recetwegou will exceed the net after-tax benefit thatiyould receive if no such reduction was
made. For this purpose, “net after-tax benefit” ns{g the total of all payments and the value of alldfés which you receive or are then
entitled to receive from the Company that wouldstitute “excess parachute payments” within the rimepof Code Section 280G, le§B the
amount of all federal, state, and local income sgp@yable with respect to the foregoing calculatetie maximum marginal income tax rate
each year in which the foregoing shall be paiddo ¢based on the rate in effect for such year tfogh in the Code as in effect at the time of
the first payment of the foregoing), 16§ the amount of excise taxes imposed with respeitte@ayments and benefits described in clause
above by Code Section 4999 (or any successor poowvisereto), and any similar tax imposed by statlocal law, and any interest or penalties
with respect to such excise tax.

(c) _Determination Proces3he determination of whether it is necessaryeeréase the Total Payments pursuant to Sectic
5(b) hereof must be made in good faith by a natipmacognized accounting firm (the “ Accountingifi”) selected by the Company. This
determination, together with supporting calculasiamd documentation, will be provided to the Conypamd you within forty-five (45) days
after your final day of employment, and will be chrsive and binding upon you and the Company, @bsanifest error. In the event that the
Accounting Firm is serving as accountant or auditothe individual, entity, or group effecting t@#ange in Control, we shall appoint anothe
nationally recognized accounting firm to make tleéedmination required under this agreement (in tvlsise, that accounting firm will be
referred to as the “Accounting Firm” under thisegment). We shall bear all fees of the AccountimpHf a reduction in the Total Payments
is necessary, reduction shall occur in the follgvmder: (A) by first reducing or eliminating therion of the Total Payments which are not
payable in cash and are not attributable to equitgtrds (other than that portion of the Total Payiisabject to clause (C) hereof), (B) then by
reducing or eliminating cash payments (other tiha portion of the Total Payments subject to cld@ehereof), (C) then by reducing or
eliminating the portion of the Payments which avépayable in cash and are attributable to equitgrds, and (D) then by reducing or
eliminating the portion of the Payments (whethergtde in cash or not payable in cash) to which JueaRegulation § 1.280G-Q/A 24(c) (o
successor thereto) applies, in each case in revedse beginning with payments or benefits whiah tarbe paid the farthest in time.

6. Section 409A Compliance

(a) This agreement is intended to comply withptherwise be exempt from, Code Section 409A.
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(b) We shall undertake to administer, interpaet] construe this agreement in a manner thatrtte®sult in the impositio
on you of any additional tax, penalty, or intenestler Code Section 409A.

(c) If the Company determines in good faith #huay provision of this agreement would cause yauadar an additional tax,
penalty, or interest under Code Section 409A, thm@any and you shall use reasonable efforts tamesnch provision, if possible, in a
mutually agreeable fashion to maintain to the maximextent practicable the original intent of thelagable provision without violating the
provisions of Code Section 409A or causing the isiian of such additional tax, penalty, or interestler Code Section 409A.

(d) The preceding provisions, however, will betconstrued as a guarantee by the Company giatigular tax effect to
you under this agreement. We shall not be liablgotofor any payment or benefit paid under thiseagrent that is determined to result ir
additional tax, penalty, or interest under CodetiBret09A, nor for reporting in good faith any pagmt or benefit made under this agreement
as an amount includible in gross income under CGRetion 409A.

(e) Anyreimbursement of expenses of or any igion of in-kind benefits to you, as specified unttés agreement, is
subject to the following condition§) the expenses eligible for reimbursement or the arhoiin-kind benefits provided in one taxable ydar
not affect the expenses eligible for reimburseneerthe amount of in-kind benefits provided in arlyey taxable year, except for any medical
reimbursement arrangement providing for the reirsboment of expenses referred to in Code Sectiorb),Qtj we shall reimburse an eligible
expense no later than the end of the year afteyehein which you incurred the expense; éiidthe right to reimbursement or in-kind benefits
is not subject to liquidation or exchange for aeothenefit.

(H “Termination of employment,” “resignationgt words of similar import, as used in this agreetmeeans your
“separation from service” (as defined under CodetiSe 409A) for purposes of any payment or benefier this agreement that is a payment
of deferred compensation subject to Code Secti®@h\40

(g) If a payment obligation under this agreensiges on account your separation from servicéewlau are a “specified
employee” (as defined under Code Section 409A a&terchined in good faith by the Board), any paynuéritleferred compensation” (as
defined under Treasury regulation Section 1.409¥1(, after giving effect to the exemptions in dsary regulation Sections 1.409A-1(b)(3)
through (b)(12)) that is scheduled to be paid withimonths after your separation from service agttrue without interest and will be paid
within 15 days after the end of the 6-month pebiedinning on the date of your separation from serar, if earlier, within 15 days after the
appointment of the personal representative or égead your estate following your death.

(h) Whenever a payment under this agreementfsgsea payment period with reference to a numbietags (e.g., paymen
shall be made within thirty (30) days following thiermination Date”)the actual date of payment within the specifiedqeeshall be within th
sole discretion of the Company. If under this agreet, an amount is paid in two or more installmeaésh installment shall be treated as a
separate payment.

7. _SuccessorsThis agreement is personal to you and may nasbigned other than by will or the laws of deseut distribution
without our prior written consent. This agreementrés to the benefit of and is enforceable by yepresentatives. Likewise, this agreement
inures to the benefit of and is binding upon thenPany and its successors and assigns. The Compatyexjuire any successor (whether
direct or indirect, by purchase, merger, consoiiaator otherwise) to all or substantially all bktbusiness and/or assets of the Company
expressly to assume and agree to perform this imgmtein the same manner and to the same exterthth&ompany would have been require
to perform it if no such succession had taken plAseused in this agreement, the term “Companyfl shaan both the Company as defined
above and any such successor.

8. _Notices All notices and other communications hereundestrba in writing and must be given by hand deliveryhe other pari
or by registered or certified mail, return recegquested, postage prepaid, addressed as follows:
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If to the employee:
To the Company’s address of record for the employee

If to the Company:

Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc.

Attention: Chief Financial Officer/Chair of Competiisn Committee
11388 Sorrento Valley Road

San Diego, California 92121

or to any other address as either party shall hawéshed to the other in writing in accordancehitis Section 8. Notice is effective when
actually received by the addressee.

9. _Severability The invalidity or unenforceability of any provisi of this agreement will not affect the validityenforceability of
any other provision of this agreement.

10. _Withholding We may withhold from any amount payable undes #yreement federal, state, local, or hb8- taxes required
be withheld under applicable law.

11. _Amendment; WaiverNo provision of this agreement may be modifiedjwed, or discharged except by a writing signeddtp
parties. The failure of either party to insist ugdrict compliance with any provision of this agremt or assert any right either party may have
hereunder does not constitute a waiver of the prowior right under this agreement.

12. _Applicable Law This agreement is governed by the laws of theeQthCalifornia, without reference to principlefsconflict of
laws, as these laws are applied to agreements éet@alifornia residents entered into and to begoeréd entirely within the State of
California.

13. _CounterpartsThis agreement may be executed in two or morateoparts and via facsimile, each being an origamal all of
which, when taken together, is deemed one instrimen

14. _Termination This agreement shall terminate on the earliest of

(a) the date your employment terminates, if youplyment is terminated or you resign (i) prioat@€hange in Control, or
(ii) on or after a Change in Control, other thartly Company without Cause or due to your resigndtr Good
Reason;

(b) at the end of the 12 month period after a CeangControl, unless your employment has been teatad within such 12
month period by the Company without Cause or dusto resignation for Good Reason; or

(c) upon satisfaction of all of the Company's ohfigns under this agreement, if your employmentideen terminated within
the 12 month period after a Change in Control ley@lompany without Cause or due to your resigndtioiood
Reason.

[ Signature page followls

US_ACTIVE:\44101127\4\51306.0001




The parties are signing this Change in Control Agrent on the date stated in the introductory clause

HALOZYME THERAPEUTICS, INC.

By:
Name:
Title:

EMPLOYEE

[CEO]
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EXHIBIT 10.3¢
AMENDED AND RESTATED LOAN AND SECURITY AGREEMENT

THIS AMENDED AND RESTATED LOAN AND SECURITY AGREEME NT (as the same may from time to time be amer
modified, supplemented or restated, thisgreement”) dated as of December 27, 2013 (thEffective Date”) among OXFORD FINANC
LLC, a Delaware limited liability company with arffice located at 133 North Fairfax Street, Alexaadwirginia 22314 (“Oxford "), as
collateral agent (in such capacityCbllateral Agent "), the Lenders listed on Schedule hdreof or otherwise a party hereto from time tce
including Oxford in its capacity as a Lender andISODN VALLEY BANK, a California corporation with amffice located at 3003 Tasnmr
Drive, Santa Clara, CA 95054 Bank " or “ SVB ") (each a “Lender " and collectively, the “Lenders "), and HALOZYME
THERAPEUTICS, INC. a Delaware corporationRarent ") and HALOZYME, INC., a California corporation (falozyme”; Halozyme an
Parent are individually and collectively, jointiya severally, “Borrower ), both with offices located at 11388 Sorrento ValRgad, Sa
Diego, CA 92121, amends and restates in its entirett certain Loan and Security Agreement datedfd3ecember 28, 2012 by and am
Collateral Agent, Oxford, in its capacity as a LendSVB, and other lenders party thereto from tbmeéime and Borrower (the Original
Agreement”) and provides the terms on which the Lenders skall ko Borrower and Borrower shall repay the Lesd€&he parties agree
follows:

1. ACCOUNTING AND OTHER TERMS

1.1 Accounting terms not defined in this Agreemsimll be construed in accordance with GAAP. Catauia and determinatio
must be made in accordance with GAAP. Capitalizrth$ not otherwise defined in this Agreement shalle the meanings set forth
Section 13. All other terms contained in this Agneat, unless otherwise indicated, shall have thenmeg provided by the Code to the ex
such terms are defined therein. All referencesBofiars ” or “ $” are United States Dollars, unless otherwise noted

2. LOANS AND TERMS OF PAYMENT

2.1 Promise to Pay.Borrower hereby unconditionally promises to payhebender, the outstanding principal amount of altrit
Loans advanced to Borrower by such Lender and edcand unpaid interest thereon and any other amalug hereunder as and when du
accordance with this Agreement.

2.2 Term Loans.

(a) _Availability.

(i) Subject to the terms and conditions of tivggibal Agreement, the Lenders, severally and outtly, loaned t
Borrower on the Effective Date (as defined in thggidal Agreement) an advance according to eachi@al Lenders Term Loan Commitme
(as defined in the Original Agreement) as set forihSchedule 1.1 of the Original Agreement (sucint®ans referred to each individually
an “ Original Term Loan ” and collectively as “Original Term Loans ") in the aggregate principal amount of Thirty Millid»ollars
($30,000,000), the aggregate outstanding amounthi¢h shall, as of the Effective Date, be goverhgdthe terms and provisions of t
Agreement. After repayment, no Original Term Loarey be re-borrowed.

(i) Subject to the terms and conditions of tAigreement, the Lenders agree, severally and matf\jpto lend tc
Borrower on the Effective Date, term loans as folo

(A) SVB shall make a term loan to Borrower ie timount of Nine Million Dollars ($9,000,000.000€t"
SVB Pay Off Term Loan ), the proceeds of which will be used to repay alli@dilons owing from Borrower to SVB in respect bg
Original Term Loan made by SVB under the Origingrdement in an amount equal to the unpaid prindipknce of such Original Term Lc
which remains outstanding as of the Effective Date;




(B) SVB shall make a term loan to Borrowerhe amount of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00)e(t
SVB New Money Term Loan” and together with the SVB Pay Off Term Loan, tH8VB Term Loan”);

(C) Oxford shall make a term loan to Borrower the amount of Nineteen Million Dolle
($19,000,000.00) (the Oxford New Money Term Loan” and together with the Oxford Original Term Loaollectively, the “Oxford Term
Loan ”; the Oxford Term Loan, together with the SVB Tekbwan, each a Term Loan ” and collectively, the Term Loans”). When repaic
the Term Loans may not be re-borrowed.

(b) _RepaymentFrom and after the Effective Date, Borrower shadlke monthly payments of interest only commenain
the first (1) Payment Date following the Effective Date, ingest of the aggregate amount of Term Loans outsigrmh the Effective Da
(for the avoidance of doubt, such amount shalludelthe amount of the Oxford Original Term Loanstanding on the Effective Date), ¢
continuing on the Payment Date of each successimethmthereafter through and including the PaymeateCimmediately preceding |
Amortization Date. Borrower agrees to pay, on tlilediive Date, any initial partial monthly intergsayment otherwise due for the pel
between the Funding Date of the Term Loans andintePayment Date thereof. Commencing on the Amatibn Date, and continuing on
Payment Date of each month thereafter, Borrowelt sfeke consecutive equal monthly payments of ppomlcand interest, in arrears, to e
Lender, as calculated by Collateral Agent (whicltwations shall be deemed correct absent margfest) based upon: (1) the amount of ¢
Lender's Term Loan, (2) the effective rate of iet&; as determined in Section 2.3(a), and (3) ayrepnt schedule equal to thigyx (36
months. All unpaid principal and accrued and unjirtielrest with respect to the Term Loans is duemable in full on the Maturity Date. T
Term Loans may only be prepaid in accordance wéittiSns 2.2(c) and 2.2(d).

(c) _Mandatory Prepaymentdf the Term Loans are accelerated following tikeusrence of an Event of Default, Borro
shall immediately pay to Lenders, payable to easfder in accordance with its respective Pro Rataesan amount equal to the sum of: (i
outstanding principal of the Term Loans plus acdraed unpaid interest thereon through the prepaychae, (ii) the Final Payment, (iii) t
Prepayment Fee, plus (iv) all other Obligations i@ due and payable, including LendeéEgpenses and interest at the Default Rate
respect to any past due amounts. Notwithstandingwithout duplication with) the foregoing, on tMaturity Date, if the Final Payment
not previously been paid in full in connection witie prepayment of the Term Loans in full, Borrowséall pay to Collateral Agent, 1
payment to each Lender in accordance with its smePro Rata Share, the Final Payment in respette Term Loan(s) (which, for t
avoidance of doubt, shall be in addition to thesErg Final Payment set forth in Section 2.5(b)).

(d) _Permitted Prepayment of Term LoarBorrower shall have the option to prepay all, bat less than all, of the Te
Loans advanced by the Lenders under this Agreerpemtided Borrower (i) provides written notice tolateral Agent of its election to pref
the Term Loans at least ten (10) days prior to suelpayment, and (ii) pays to the Lenders on the dasuch prepayment, payable to ¢
Lender in accordance with its respective Pro Réar&s an amount equal to the sum of (A) all outtitam principal of the Term Loans p
accrued and unpaid interest thereon through theagreent date, (B) the Final Payment, (C) the Preyeay Fee, plus (D) all other Obligatic
that are due and payable, including Lenders’ Exgeasd interest at the Default Rate with respeahyopast due amounts.

2.3 Payment of Interest on the Credit Extensions.

(a) _nterest Rat&Subject to Section 2.3(b), the principal amounstanding under the Term Loans shall accrue inteites
fixed per annum rate (which rate shall be fixedtfoe duration of each Term Loan) equal to sevenfiiydfive- hundredths percent (7.55¢
which interest shall be payable monthly in arrdar@accordance with Sections 2.2(b) and 2.3(e).résteshall accrue on each Term L
commencing on, and including, the Funding DateunhsTerm Loan, and shall accrue on the principabwarh outstanding under such T
Loan through and including the day on which sucimTEkoan is paid in full.

(b) Default Rate Immediately upon the occurrence and during thaicoance of an Event of Default, Obligations <
accrue interest at a fixed per annum rate equéiletoate that is otherwise applicable thereto




plus five percentage points (5.00%) (thBéfault Rate”). Fees and expenses which are required to be paBbbypwer pursuant to the Lo
Documents (including, without limitation, LendeiSkpenses) but are not paid when due shall bearestteintil paid at a rate equal to
highest rate applicable to the Obligations. Paynoergtcceptance of the increased interest rate gredvin this Section 2.3(b) is not a permi
alternative to timely payment and shall not conggita waiver of any Event of Default or otherwisejpdice or limit any rights or remedies
Collateral Agent.

(c) 36G-Day Year. Interest shall be computed on the basis of &thumdred sixty (360) day year consisting of twel2
months of thirty (30) days.

(d) Debit of Accounts Collateral Agent and each Lender may debit (orHAGny deposit accounts, maintained
Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries, including tBesignated Deposit Account, for principal and iestrpayments or any other amol
Borrower owes the Lenders under the Loan Documeghé&n due. Any such debits (or ACH activity) shait nonstitute a sebff.

(e) _PaymentsExcept as otherwise expressly provided hereipagiments by Borrower under the Loan Documentf bl
made to the respective Lender to which such paysnem owed, at such Lendeoffice in immediately available funds on the dspecifie(
herein. Unless otherwise provided, interest is pkeyanonthly on the Payment Date of each month. Raysnof principal and/or inter
received after 12:00 noon Eastern time are consitlerceived at the opening of business on theBwsihess Day. When a payment is due
day that is not a Business Day, the payment istideeext Business Day and additional fees or istees applicable, shall continue to ac
until paid. All payments to be made by Borrowereharder or under any other Loan Document, inclugiagments of principal and intere
and all fees, expenses, indemnities and reimbunsesmshall be made without seff, recoupment or counterclaim, in lawful moneythé
United States and in immediately available funds.

2.4  Secured Promissory NotesEach Term Loan shall be evidenced by a Secured iBsomy Note or Notes either previou
issued under the Original Agreement or in the fattached as Exhibit Bereto (each a Secured Promissory Not€), and shall be repayal
as set forth in this Agreement. At any Lendeequest, in its sole discretion, Borrower stadlie new or replacement Notes to such Lenc
lieu of those outstanding as of the Effective Dgt®vided that any such Lender shall return angtéxg Notes being so replaced promptly ¢
receipt of such new or replacement Notes). Borrawevocably authorizes each Lender to make oreande made, on or about the Funi
Date of any Term Loan or at the time of receipany payment of principal on such Lende8ecured Promissory Note, an appropriate no
on such Lendes Secured Promissory Note Record reflecting theimyad such Term Loan or (as the case may be)dbeipt of such payme
The outstanding amount of each Term Loan set fontisuch Lendes Secured Promissory Note Record shall be prima faddence (abse
manifest error) of the principal amount thereof mgvand unpaid to such Lender, but the failure twir@, or any error in so recording, any <
amount on such Lender'Secured Promissory Note Record shall not limibtherwise affect the obligations of Borrower undey Secure
Promissory Note or any other Loan Document to nmadaments of principal of or interest on any Secureaimissory Note when due. Uy
receipt of an affidavit of an officer of a Lendes #® the loss, theft, destruction, or mutilationitefSecured Promissory Not®orrower sha
issue, in lieu thereof, a replacement Secured Rony Note in the same principal amount thereofadritte tenor.

2.5 FeesBorrower shall pay to Collateral Agent:

(a) _Final PaymentThe Final Payment, when due hereunder, to beedhaetween the Lenders in accordance with
respective Pro Rata Shares;

(b) _Existing Final PaymentOn the Effective Date, Lenders shall receivertrespective Pro Rata Shares (for this purj
as defined under the Original Agreement) owing loyrBwer for the accrued portion of the Final Paytr@or this purpose, as defined un
the Original Agreement) in the aggregate amouriight Hundred Seventeen Thousand One Hundred Fal®#/100 Dollars ($817,104.¢
(the “ Existing Final Payment ). Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the ddval Agreement or any other Loan Document,
Lenders agree that other than the Existing Fingiriemt, Borrower shall have no further obligatiorthmiespect to the “Final Payments(
defined in the Original Agreement). For the avoiaif doubt, (a) Oxford’s portion of the Existingn& Payment is Five Hundred Fiftyix
Thousand Five Hundred Ninety-Four and 38/100 Dsl{&556,594.38), and




(b) SVB’s portion of the Existing Final Paymenfliw@o Hundred Sixty Thousand Five Hundred Ten and@3Dollars ($260,510.53);

(c) _Prepayment FeeThe Prepayment Fee, when due hereunder, to bedshatween the Lenders in accordance with
respective Pro Rata Shares. Notwithstanding anyttarihe contrary in the Original Agreement or atlyer Loan Document, the Lenders a
that the Borrower shall have no obligation withpest to the “Prepayment Fee” (as defined in thgi®ai Agreement);

(d) _LendersExpenses All Lenders’ Expenses (including reasonable atgs’fees and expenses for documentation
negotiation of this Agreement, but excluding ateysi fees and expenses for the unsigned consent anddamendocumentation in connect
with the creation of Halozyme’s Subsidiary locate@®ermuda) incurred through and after the Effecdate, when due.

(d) _Fees Fully EarnedBorrower shall not be entitled to any credit,ateh or repayment of any fees earned by Coll:
Agent or Lenders pursuant to this Agreement nostéhding any termination of this Agreement or thspgnsion or termination of Lenders
obligation to make loans and advances hereunddiat®&al Agent and each Lender may deduct amounisgby Borrower under the claut
of this Section 2.5 pursuant to the terms of SaecZia(d).

2.6 Withholding. Payments received by the Lenders from Borrowerurater will be made free and clear of and withowtudgior
for any and all present or future taxes, leviespasts, duties, deductions, withholdings, assessnésts or other charges imposed by
governmental authority (including any interest, iidds to tax or penalties applicable thereto). &fmally, however, if at any time ai
Governmental Authority, applicable law, regulationinternational agreement requires Borrower to enaky withholding or deduction frc
any such payment or other sum payable hereundietbenders, Borrower hereby covenants and aghe¢the amount due from Borrov
with respect to such payment or other sum payadleumder will be increased to the extent necegsagysure that, after the making of s
required withholding or deduction, each Lender ine® a net sum equal to the sum which it would haaeived had no withholding
deduction been required and Borrower shall payfuheamount withheld or deducted to the relevantv&@omental Authority. Borrower wi
upon request, furnish the Lenders with proof reabbn satisfactory to the Lenders indicating thatrBaer has made such withhold
payment; provided, however, that Borrower needmake any withholding payment if the amount or uglief such withholding payment
contested in good faith by appropriate and timebcpedings and as to which payment in full is bohdereserved against by Borrower.
agreements and obligations of Borrower containgtii;jiSection 2.6 shall survive the terminatiorito$ Agreement.

3. CONDITIONS OF LOANS

3.1 Conditions Precedent to Initial Credit Extension.Each Lendes obligation to make a Term Loan on the EffectiveteDis
subject to the condition precedent that Collaté&gént and each Lender shall consent to or shale hraceived, in form and substa
satisfactory to Collateral Agent and each Lende following documents, and completion of the faflog matters:

(e) duly executed original signatures to thiseegnent;

() duly executed original Control Agreementagcle duly executed by each Borrower, as applicabith respect to ar
Collateral Accounts maintained by Borrower;

(g) duly executed original Secured Promissoryeldan favor of each Lender according to its Commaitt Percentage;
(h) the Operating Documents and good standintjficates of each Borrower certified by the Seargtof State (c

equivalent agency) of such Borrowefurisdiction of organization or formation and legarisdiction in which each Borrower is qualifi¢éo
conduct business, each as of a date no earlietthiréyn (30) days prior to the Effective Date




(i) acompleted Perfection Certificate for e&drrower;
() the Annual Projections, for the current calar year;
(k) duly executed original officer’s certificaftier each Borrower, in the form attached heret&xdsibit E ;

() certified copies, dated as of date no eatl@n thirty (30) days prior to the Effective Dat#f financing stateme
searches, as Collateral Agent shall request, acaonieg by written evidence (including any UCC teration statements) that the active Li
indicated in any such financing statements eitlbastitute Permitted Liens or have been or, in cotioe with the initial Credit Extension, w
be terminated or released:;

(m) alandlord’'s consent executed in favor ofi@eral Agent in respect of all of Borrower’s ledsocations;

(n) a bailee waiver executed in favor of CollateAgent in respect of each third party bailee sghBorrower maintair
Collateral having a book value in excess of Two ¢thed Fifty Thousand Dollars ($250,000.00);

(o) aduly executed legal opinion of counseBtwrower dated as of the Effective Date;

(p) evidence satisfactory to Collateral Agend #me Lenders that the insurance policies requise8ection 6.5 hereof are
full force and effect, together with appropriatédence showing loss payable and/or additional edwlauses or endorsements in favc
Collateral Agent, for the ratable benefit of thenters;

(@) payment of the fees and Lenders’ Expensas duie as specified in Section 2.5 hereof;

(r) receipt by (i) the Lenders of an executedlddirsement Letter in the form of Exhibit Battached hereto; and (ii) SVB
an executed Loan Payment/Advance Request Forneifotm of Exhibit B-2 attached hereto; and

(s) the representations and warranties in Seé&tibereof shall be true, accurate and complegdl imaterial respects on |
date of the Disbursement Letter (and the Loan Payvdvance Request Form) and on the Funding DathefCredit Extension; provide
however, that such materiality qualifier shall et applicable to any representations and warrattiesalready are qualified or modified
materiality in the text thereof; and provided, hat that those representations and warranties elgreeferring to a specific date shall be 1
accurate and complete in all material respectd asah date, and no Event of Default shall haveuned and be continuing or result from
Credit Extension.

3.2 Covenant to Deliver.Borrower agrees to deliver to Collateral Agent dhne Lenders each item required to be delivert
Collateral Agent under this Agreement as a congifioecedent to any Credit Extension. Borrower esglyeagrees that a Credit Exten:
made prior to the receipt by Collateral Agent oy &ander of any such item shall not constitute &emby Collateral Agent or any Lender
Borrower’s obligation to deliver such item, and awgeh Credit Extension in the absence of a requiesd shall be made in each Lendesole
discretion.

3.3 Procedures for Borrowing. Subject to the prior satisfaction of all other apgible conditions to the making of a Term Loar
forth in this Agreement, to obtain a Term Loan, B@rer shall notify the Lenders (which notice shiadl irrevocable) by electronic mi
facsimile, or telephone by 12:00 noon Eastern time (1) Business Day prior to the date the Ternmlisdo be made. Together with any <
electronic, facsimile or telephonic notificationpBower shall deliver to the Lenders by electramiail or facsimile a completed Disbursen
Letter (and the Loan Payment/Advance Request Fuiith, respect to SVB) executed by a Responsiblec@ffior his or her designee. -
Lenders may rely on any telephone notice given Ipgrson whom a Lender reasonably believes is adRsgige Officer or designee. On
Funding Date, each Lender shall credit and/or fean&s applicable) to the Designated Deposit Aotoan amount equal to its Term L«
Commitment.




4. CREATION OF SECURITY INTEREST

4.1  Grant of Security Interest. Borrower hereby grants Collateral Agent, for thtabée benefit of the Lenders, to secure
payment and performance in full of all of the Obligns, a continuing security interest in, and gixito Collateral Agent, for the rats
benefit of the Lenders, the Collateral, whereverated, whether now owned or hereafter acquiredrising, and all proceeds and prodi
thereof. Borrower represents, warrants, and cousri@iat the security interest granted herein is stmall at all times continue to be a 1
priority perfected security interest in the Coltale subject in priority only to the Liens descidbi@ clauses (c), (h), (j) and (k) of the definil
of Permitted Liens. If Borrower shall acquire a ¢oercial tort claim (as defined in the Code) withatential value in excess of Two Hund
Fifty Thousand Dollars ($250,000.00), Borrower,Isheomptly notify Collateral Agent in a writing gned by Borrower, as the case may b
the general details thereof (and further detailmag be reasonably required by Collateral Agent) grant to Collateral Agent, for the rate
benefit of the Lenders, in such writing a secunitierest therein and in the proceeds thereof, @dnuthe terms of this Agreement, with s
writing to be in form and substance reasonablsfatiory to Collateral Agent.

Borrower acknowledges that it previously has emtesnd/or may in the future enter, into Bank Sexsidgreements with Bar
Regardless of the terms of any Bank Services Agea¢nBorrower agrees that any amounts Borrower d@egesk thereunder shall be deeme
be Obligations hereunder and that it is the in@mBorrower and Bank to have all such Obligatiorswsed by the first priority perfect
security interest in the Collateral granted herg@nbject only to Permitted Liens that may have sopepriority to Banks Lien in thi
Agreement).

If this Agreement is terminated, Collateral Agsentiien in the Collateral shall continue until théli@ations (other than incho:
indemnity obligations) are repaid in full in caghpon payment in full in cash of the Obligationsh@tthan inchoate indemnity obligations)
at such time as the Lendembligation to make Credit Extensions has terminatédllateral Agent shall, at the sole cost and aspeo
Borrower, release its Liens in the Collateral alidights therein shall revert to Borrower. In theent (x) all Obligations (other than inchc
indemnity obligations), except for Bank Serviceg aatisfied in full, and (y) this Agreement isntémated, Bank shall terminate the sect
interest granted herein upon Borrower providinghozalateral acceptable to Bank in its good faitisibess judgment for Bank Services, if
In the event such Bank Services consist of outétgnidetters of Credit, Borrower shall provide torikacash collateral in an amount equz
(x) if such Letters of Credit are denominated inll@xg, then one hundred five percent (105.00%); @ndf such Letters of Credit a
denominated in a Foreign Currency, then one huntnegbercent (110.00%), of the Dollar Equivalentha face amount of all such Letter:
Credit plus all interest, fees, and costs due dreimome due in connection therewith (as estimayeBamk in its good faith business judgme
to secure all of the Obligations relating to suettérs of Credit.

4.2  Authorization to File Financing Statements.Borrower hereby authorizes Collateral Agent to filancing statements or te
any other action required to perfect Collateral @tige security interests in the Collateral, withoutic®tto Borrower, with all approprie
jurisdictions to perfect or protect Collateral At's interest or rights under the Loan Documentspitiolg a notice that any disposition of
Collateral, except to the extent permitted by #rens of this Agreement, by Borrower, or any othersBn, shall be deemed to violate the ri
of Collateral Agent under the Code.

5. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

Borrower represents and warrants to Collateral Aged the Lenders as follows at all times:

5.1 Due Organization, Authorization: Power and Authority. Borrower and each of its Subsidiaries is duly éxgsand in goo
standing as a Registered Organization in its jigigxhs of organization or formation and Borrowedasach of its Subsidiaries is qualified
licensed to do business and is in good standiraninjurisdiction in which the conduct of its busises or its ownership of property req
that it be qualified except where the failure tostocould not reasonably be expected to have arafedverse Change. In connection v
this Agreement, Borrower and each of its Subsid&ahas delivered to Collateral Agent a completetepgon certificate signed by an officer
Borrower or such Subsidiary (each #&é&rfection Certificate ” and collectively, the “Perfection Certificates”). Borrower represents a
warrants that (a) Borrower and each of its Subd&aexact legal name is that which is




indicated on its respective Perfection Certificatel on the signature page of each Loan Documenmhiich it is a party; (b) Borrower and e:
of its Subsidiaries is an organization of the tgmel is organized in the jurisdiction set forth tariespective Perfection Certificate; (c) €
Perfection Certificate accurately sets forth eatBarrower’s and its Subsidiariestganizational identification number or accuratetigtes th:
Borrower or such Subsidiary has none; (d) eacheBtoih Certificate accurately sets forth Borroweatsd each of its Subsidiarieglace o
business, or, if more than one, its chief executifiice as well as Borrower's and each of its Sdiasies’ mailing address (if different than
chief executive office); (e) Borrower and each tsf $ubsidiaries (and each of its respective presdees) have not, in the past five (5) ye
changed its jurisdiction of organization, organizaal structure or type, or any organizational nemassigned by its jurisdiction; and (f)
other information set forth on the Perfection Gidites pertaining to Borrower and each of its $libses, is accurate and complete ir
material respects (it being understood and agtestcdBorrower and each of its Subsidiaries may ftione to time update certain informatior
the Perfection Certificates (including the inforinatset forth in clause (d) above) after the EffecDate to the extent permitted by one or r
specific provisions in this Agreement). If Borrowear any of its Subsidiaries is not now a Registe@gdanization but later becomes ¢
Borrower shall notify Collateral Agent of such oc@nce and provide Collateral Agent with such Peisorganizational identification numi
within five (5) Business Days of receiving suchanigational identification number.

The execution, delivery and performance by Borroamd each of its Subsidiaries of the Loan Documtmtshich it is a party ha
been duly authorized, and do not (i) conflict withy of Borrower’s or such Subsidiarie®’ganizational documents, including its respet
Operating Documents, (ii) contravene, conflict witlonstitute a default under or violate any matdRiequirement of Law applicable there
(iii) contravene, conflict or violate any applicabbrder, writ, judgment, injunction, decree, deteation or award of any Governmer
Authority by which Borrower or such Subsidiary,any of their property or assets may be bound acédfl, (iv) require any action by, filir
registration, or qualification with, or Governmenggpproval from, any Governmental Authority (exceqatch Governmental Approvals wh
have already been obtained and are in full forakedfect) or are being obtained pursuant to Sediagb), or (v) constitute an event of def
under any material agreement by which Borrowemyr @ such Subsidiaries, or their respective priggris bound. Neither Borrower nor :
of its Subsidiaries is in default under any agresne which it is a party or by which it or any it assets is bound in which such default ¢
reasonably be expected to have a Material Advehssn@e.

5.2 Collateral.

(e) Borrower and each its Subsidiaries have ditledto, have rights in, and the power to transfach item of the Collatel
upon which it purports to grant a Lien under theahdocuments, free and clear of any and all Liercegt Permitted Liens, and neit
Borrower nor any of its Subsidiaries have any Dépdscounts, Securities Accounts, Commodity Accauot other investment accounts o
than the Collateral Accounts or the other investnaatounts, if any, described in the Perfectiontiizates delivered to Collateral Agent
connection herewith with respect of which Borroveersuch Subsidiary has given Collateral Agent motnd taken such actions as
necessary to give Collateral Agent a perfected rifgcimterest therein to the extent required un8ection 6.6. The Accounts are bona 1
existing obligations of the Account Debtors.

(H On the Effective Date, and except as disatben the Perfection Certificate (i) the Collatésahot in the possession
any third party bailee (such as a warehouse), andn¢ such third party bailee possesses compsnehthe Collateral in excess of T
Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($250,000.00). Nariethe components of the Collateral shall be maiet at locations other than
disclosed in the Perfection Certificates on thes&ff/e Date or as permitted pursuant to Sectioh.6.1

() AllInventory is in all material respectsgdod and marketable quality, free from materidédes.

(h) Borrower and each of its Subsidiaries is bk owner of the Intellectual Property each respely purports to ow!
free and clear of all Liens other than Permitteehisi (i) Each of Borrower’s and its Subsidiariéatents is valid and enforceable and no p:
Borrower’s or its Subsidiariedhtellectual Property has been judged invalid oenforceable, in whole or in part, and (ii) to thesbo
Borrower’s knowledge, no claim has




been made in writing that any part of the IntellattProperty or any practice by Borrower or its Sdiaries violates the rights of any tt
party except to the extent such claim could noswaably be expected to have a Material Adverse @haBxcept as noted on the Perfec
Certificates, neither Borrower nor any of its Sudlimiies is a party to, nor is bound by, any malkdiG@nse or other material agreemn
constituting Collateral with respect to which Bamer or such Subsidiary is the licensee that (ihfoits or otherwise restricts Borrower or
Subsidiaries from granting a security interest orrBwer’s or such Subsidiariesiterest in such material license or material agwe® or an
other property, or (ii) for which a default undertermination of could interfere in any materiaspect with Collateral Agent’s or any Lender’
right to sell any Collateral.

5.3 Litigation. Except as disclosed (i) on the Perfection Certifisaor (ii) in accordance with Section 6.9 her¢bé&re are n
actions, suits, investigations, or proceedings pendr, to the knowledge of the Responsible Officghreatened in writing by or agai
Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries involving méhan Two Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($250,00).0

5.4  No Material Deterioration in Financial Condition; Financial StatementsAll consolidated financial statements for Borro
and its Subsidiaries, delivered to Collateral Ageaitly present, in conformity with GAAP, in all rtexial respects the consolidated finar
condition of Borrower and its Subsidiaries, and ¢tbasolidated results of operations of Borrower @m@ubsidiaries. There has not been
material deterioration in the consolidated finah@andition of Borrower and its Subsidiaries siritbe date of the most recent finan
statements submitted to any Lender.

5.5 Solvency.Borrower, together with its Subsidiaries on a cdidated basis, is Solvent.

5.6 Regulatory Compliance.Neither Borrower nor any of its Subsidiaries is“Bwvestment company” or a company “controlled’
by an “investment companyinder the Investment Company Act of 1940, as antndeither Borrower nor any of its Subsidiariegigage
as one of its important activities in extendingditréor margin stock (under Regulations X, T anefthe Federal Reserve Board of Govern
Borrower and each of its Subsidiaries has complieall material respects with the Federal Fair laBtandards Act. Neither Borrower nor
of its Subsidiaries is a “holding company” or afffiteate” of a “holding company” or a “subsidiaryompany” of a “holding companyds eac
term is defined and used in the Public Utility Halgl Company Act of 2005. Neither Borrower nor aifyt® Subsidiaries has violated any la
ordinances or rules, the violation of which coutdsonably be expected to have a Material Adversem@h Neither Borrowes'nor any of it
Subsidiaries’ properties or assets has been us8divgwer or such Subsidiary or, to BorroweeKnowledge, by previous Persons, in dispo
producing, storing, treating, or transporting aaydrdous substance other than in material comgiaith applicable laws. Borrower and e
of its Subsidiaries has obtained all consents, @a@s and authorizations of, made all declaratimnglings with, and given all notices to,
Governmental Authorities that are necessary toigoettheir respective businesses as currently adadu

None of Borrower, any of its Subsidiaries, or afyBorrower’s or its Subsidiarieg\ffiliates or any of their respective agents actm
benefiting in any capacity in connection with thansactions contemplated by this Agreement im(jiolation of any AntiTerrorism Law
(i) engaging in or conspiring to engage in anyisaction that evades or avoids, or has the purpioseading or avoiding or attempts to viol:
any of the prohibitions set forth in any Asfierrorism Law, or (iii) is a Blocked Person. NonfeBorrower, any of its Subsidiaries, or to
knowledge of Borrower and any of their Affiliates agents, acting or benefiting in any capacity onmection with the transactic
contemplated by this Agreement, (x) conducts arsif@ass or engages in making or receiving any dmstidn of funds, goods or services t
for the benefit of any Blocked Person, or (y) dealsor otherwise engages in any transaction rajatb, any property or interest in propt
blocked pursuant to Executive Order No. 13224, simjlar executive order or other Anfierrorism Law.

5.7 Investments.Neither Borrower nor any of its Subsidiaries ownyg atock, shares, partnership interests or otheityegecuritie
except for Permitted Investments.

5.8 Tax Returns and Payments; Pension ContributionsBorrower and each of its Subsidiaries has timdbdfiall required ta
returns and reports, and Borrower and each ofubsigliaries, has timely paid all foreign,




federal, state, and local taxes, assessments, itepasl contributions owed by Borrower and suchs®iiaries, in all jurisdictions in whi
Borrower or any such Subsidiary is subject to takeduding the United States, unless (i) such sagssessments, deposits and contributio
not, individually or in the aggregate, exceed Tdmdsand Dollars ($10,000), or (i) such taxes amd contested in accordance with
following sentence. Borrower and each of its Subsigls, may defer payment of any contested taxesviged that Borrower or su
Subsidiary, (a) in good faith contests its obligatto pay the taxes by appropriate proceedings jptlgrand diligently instituted and conduct
(b) in the case of taxes, assessment, deposit@ndhutions exceeding the amount permitted untbarse (i) above, notifies Collateral Ag
in writing of the commencement of, and any mated@&lelopment in, the proceedings, and (c) postsldon takes any other steps require
prevent the Governmental Authority levying such tested taxes from obtaining a Lien upon any of @udlateral that is other than a “
Permitted Lien .” Neither Borrower nor any of its Subsidiariesaiware of any claims or adjustments proposed foradrBorrowers or suc
Subsidiaries’ prior tax years which could result in additionatda becoming due and payable by Borrower or itssiglidries. Borrower ar
each of its Subsidiaries have paid all amounts gszog to fund all present pension, profit sharimgl a@eferred compensation plans
accordance with their terms, and neither Borrowar any of its Subsidiaries have, withdrawn fromtiggration in, and have not permiti
partial or complete termination of, or permitte@ thccurrence of any other event with respect tg, sach plan which could reasonably
expected to result in any liability of Borrower ¢ Subsidiaries, including any liability to thed@n Benefit Guaranty Corporation or
successors or any other Governmental Authority.

5.9 Use of ProceedsBorrower shall use the proceeds of the Credit Esitars solely as working capital and to fund its ayai
business requirements in accordance with the pomg<of this Agreement, and not for personal, fgmibusehold or agricultural purposes.

5.10 Full Disclosure.No written representation, warranty or other staehof Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries in aeytificate
or written statement given to Collateral Agent ay dender, as of the date such representation,awbror other statement was made, ti
together with all such written certificates andtten statements given to Collateral Agent or anpdez and in light of the circumstance:
which made, contains any untrue statement of amahfact or omits to state a material fact necgssa make the statements contained ir
certificates or statements not misleading (it beegpgnized that any projections and forecastsigeavby Borrower in good faith and ba
upon reasonable assumptions are not viewed as dactghat actual results during the period or pisricovered by such projections
forecasts may differ from the projected or foreedsesults).

6. AFFIRMATIVE COVENANTS

Borrower shall, and shall cause each of its Suasé&s to, do all of the following:
6.1 Government Compliance.

(i) Maintain its and all its Subsidiaridggal existence and good standing in their respegtirisdictions of organization a
maintain qualification in each jurisdiction in whithe failure to so qualify could reasonably beextpd to have a Material Adverse Cha
Comply with all laws, ordinances and regulationsvtich Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries is sehjéghe noncompliance with which co
reasonably be expected to have a Material Advehssn@e.

()) Obtain and keep in full force and effect, @l the Governmental Approvals necessary for tadggmance by Borrow
and its Subsidiaries of their respective busineaselsobligations under the Loan Documents and thatgf a security interest to Collate
Agent for the ratable benefit of the Lenders, ino&lthe Collateral. Borrower shall promptly proeid¢opies to Collateral Agent of any mate
Governmental Approvals obtained by Borrower or ahifs Subsidiaries.

6.2 Financial Statements, Reports, Certificates.

(a) Deliverto each Lender:




(i) as soon as available, but no later tharyfbivie (45) days after the last day of each calemplerter, a compal
prepared consolidated and consolidating balancetsicome statement and cash flow statement auydtie consolidated operations
Borrower and its Subsidiaries, for such quartetified by a Responsible Officer and in a form rasduly acceptable to Collateral Agent;

(i) as soon as available, but no later than d¢hdier of (x) two hundred ten (210) days aftee thst day c
Borrower’s fiscal year or (y) five (5) days of filing withé SEC, audited consolidated financial statememgggred under GAAP, consistet
applied, together with an unqualified opinion oe financial statements from an independent cedtifiablic accounting firm acceptable
Collateral Agent in its reasonable discretion;

(i) as soon as available, but no later tham darlier of (x) seven (7) days after approval ébétby Borrowers
Board of Directors or (y) sixty (60) days after tlast day of each of Borrower's fiscal years, Bareo's annual financial projections for
entire current fiscal year as approved by Borrosw@&dard of Directors, which such annual financialjgctions shall be set forth in a quart
format (such annual financial projections as omadjindelivered to Collateral Agent and the Lendars referred to herein as theAhnual
Projections”; provided that, any revisions of the Annual Patjens approved by BorrowerBoard of Directors shall be delivered to Collal
Agent and the Lenders no later than seven (7) dtgs such approval; and, unless Collateral Agetifias Borrower to the contrary in writil
within thirty (30) days after receipt thereof, tieem “Annual Projections” shall include such reuiss);

(iv) within five (5) days of delivery, copies @il statements, reports and notices made avail@bRBorrowers
security holders or holders of Subordinated Debt;

(v) within five (5) days of filing, all reportsn Form 16K, 10-Q and 8K filed with the Securities and Exchar
Commission,

(viy prompt notice of (A) any material changettie composition of the Intellectual Property, éBjlany event thi
could reasonably be expected to materially and raé@jeaffect the value of the Intellectual Propgrty

(vii) as soon as available, but no later thatytfive (45) days after the last day of each calemplerter, copies
the account statements for each Collateral Accoaihtained by Borrower or its Subsidiaries for timenediately preceding quarterly peri
which statements may be provided to Collateral Agewl each Lender by Borrower or directly from épplicable institution(s), and

(viii) other financial information as reasonalgguested by Collateral Agent or any Lender.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, documents requietié delivered pursuant to the terms hereof (tee#tent any such documents are inclt
in materials otherwise filed with the SEC) may ledivcered electronically and if so delivered, shaldeemed to have been delivered on the
on which Borrower posts such documents, or provédisk thereto, on Borrower’s website on the intdrat Borrower’s website address.

(b) Concurrently with the financial statemenpedfied in Section 6.2(a)(i) and (ii) above, deliio each Lender, a di
completed Compliance Certificate signed by a Resipda Officer.

(c) Keep proper books of record and accountcicoadance with GAAP in all material respects, inickhfull, true an
correct entries shall be made of all dealings aadstctions in relation to its business and a@&itBorrower shall, and shall cause each
Subsidiaries to, allow, at the sole cost of Borrgv@ollateral Agent or any Lender, during regulasiness hours upon reasonable prior n
(provided that no notice shall be required wherEgent of Default has occurred and is continuing)visit and inspect any of its properties
examine and make abstracts or copies from anys dfabks and records, and to conduct a collatedit and analysis of its operations and
Collateral. Such audits shall be conducted no rofien than twice every year unless (and more fretiy&) an Event of Default has occuri
and is continuing.

10




6.3 Inventory; Returns. Keep all Inventory in good and marketable conditivae from material defects except for Inventamy
which adequate reserves have been made. Returnallanéinces between Borrower, or any of its Subsiés, and their respective Acca
Debtors shall follow Borrower’s, or such Subsidiarycustomary practices as they exist at the Effedbate. Borrower must promptly not
Collateral Agent and the Lenders of all returngoxeries, disputes and claims that involve more thawo Hundred Fifty Thousand Doll:
($250,000.00) individually or in the aggregate iy @alendar year.

6.4 Taxes; PensionsTimely file and require each of its Subsidiarieditoely file, all required tax returns and repoatsd timeh
pay, and require each of its Subsidiaries to tinfigdy all foreign, federal, state, and materialdbtaxes, assessments, deposits and contrib
owed by Borrower or its Subsidiaries, except fdieded payment of any taxes contested pursuarthtetderms of Section 5.8 hereof, and ¢
deliver to Lenders, promptly upon demand, appropriartificates attesting to such payments, andgtiagmounts necessary to fund all pre
pension, profit sharing and deferred compensatianspin accordance with the terms of such plans.

6.5 Insurance. Keep Borrower’'s and its Subsidiaridsusiness and the Collateral insured for risks andmounts standard -
companies in Borrower’s and its Subsidiarieslustry and location and as Collateral Agent megsonably request. Insurance policies shi
in a form, with companies, and in amounts thatraesonably satisfactory to Collateral Agent anddeza. All property policies shall haw
lender’s losspayable endorsement showing Collateral Agent adelefoss payee and waive subrogation against @ddlatAgent, and ¢
liability policies shall show, or have endorsemestiewing, Collateral Agent, as additional insurétle Collateral Agent shall be namec
lender loss payee and/or additional insured wiipeet to any such insurance providing coveragespect of any Collateral, and each pro\
of any such insurance shall agree, by endorsemmt the policy or policies issued by it or by indagent instruments furnished to
Collateral Agent, that it will give the CollaterAbent thirty (30) days prior written notice befary such policy or policies shall be materi
altered or canceled. At Collateral Agentequest, Borrower shall deliver certified copiéspolicies and evidence of all premium payme
Proceeds payable under any policy shall, at Collatsgents option, be payable to Collateral Agent, for thable benefit of the Lenders,
account of the Obligations. Notwithstanding theefying, (a) so long as no Event of Default has weduand is continuing, Borrower st
have the option of applying the proceeds of anyalig policy up to Two Hundred Fifty Thousand Do#ig$250,000.00) with respect to
loss, but not exceeding Two Hundred Fifty ThousBedars ($250,000.00), in the aggregate for alkésunder all casualty policies in any
year, toward the replacement or repair of destrayedamaged property; provided that any such replaw repaired property (i) shall be
equal or like value as the replaced or repaireda@hl and (ii) shall be deemed Collateral in wh@ollateral Agent has been granted a
priority security interest (subject to Permitte@ihs$), and (b) after the occurrence and during dnéimuance of an Event of Default, all proce
payable under such casualty policy shall, at theoomf Collateral Agent, be payable to Collatekglent, for the ratable benefit of the Lend
on account of the Obligations. If Borrower or arfyits Subsidiaries fails to obtain insurance asunexgl under this Section 6.5 or to pay
amount or furnish any required proof of paymenthiod persons, Collateral Agent and/or any Lendaymake, at Borrowes’ expense, all
part of such payment or obtain such insurance igslicequired in this Section 6.5, and take anyoactinder the policies Collateral Agen
such Lender deems prudent in its good faith digmet

6.6 Operating Accounts.

(&) Maintain all of Borrower's and its Subsidés’ primary Collateral Accounts with Bank or its Affiies in accoun
which are subject to a Control Agreement in favioCollateral Agent.

(b) Borrower shall provide Collateral Agent fiy®) days’prior written notice before Borrower or any of Baibsidiarie
establishes any Collateral Account at or with aaysBn other than Bank or its Affiliates. In additidor each Collateral Account that Borroy
or any of its Subsidiaries, at any time maintaBgtrower or such Subsidiary shall cause the appliéchank or financial institution at or w
which such Collateral Account is maintained to execand deliver a Control Agreement or other appatg instrument with respect to si
Collateral Account to perfect Collateral Agentlien in such Collateral Account in accordancehwihe terms hereunder prior to
establishment of such Collateral Account, which @alnAgreement may not be terminated without prgitten consent of Collateral Age
The provisions of the previous sentence shall pptyeto deposit accounts exclusively used for
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payroll, payroll taxes and other employee wage lzamnefit payments to or for the benefit of Borrowgeor any of its Subsidiariegmployee
and identified to Collateral Agent by Borrower agls in the Perfection Certificates.

(c) Neither Borrower nor any of its Subsidiariskall maintain any Collateral Accounts except &ellal Account
maintained in accordance with Sections 6.6(a) ahd (

6.7 Protection of Intellectual Property Rights. Borrower and each of its Subsidiaries shall: (& e@mmmercially reasonable effc
to protect, defend and maintain the validity anébereability of its Intellectual Property that isaterial to Borrowes business; (b) promp
advise Collateral Agent in writing of material imfgement by a third party of its Intellectual Prage and (c) not allow any Intellectt
Property material to Borrowes’business to be abandoned, forfeited or dedid¢attte public unless Borrower determines it to bemercially
reasonable to do so in its prudent business judgarm@hconsistent with past practices.

6.8 Litigation Cooperation. Commencing on the Effective Date and continuingtlgh the termination of this Agreement, m
available to Collateral Agent and the Lenders, aithexpense to Collateral Agent or the Lendersy®eer and each of Borrower'officers
employees and agents and BorroweBooks, to the extent that Collateral Agent or &aepder may reasonably deem them necess:
prosecute or defend any thinolarty suit or proceeding instituted by or againstigeral Agent or any Lender with respect to arofl&eral o
relating to Borrower.

6.9  Notices of Litigation and Default. Borrower will give prompt written notice to Collaté Agent and the Lenders of ¢
litigation or governmental proceedings pendinghoeatened (in writing) against Borrower or anytefSubsidiaries, which could reasonabl
expected to result in damages or costs to Borr@wvany of its Subsidiaries of Two Hundred Fifty Tisand Dollars ($250,000.00) or mor¢
which could reasonably be expected to have a MdatAdverse Change. Without limiting or contradictiany other more specific provision
this Agreement, promptly (and in any event withinee (3) Business Days) upon Borrower becoming ewéathe existence of any Even
Default or event which, with the giving of notice massage of time, or both, would constitute annEwé Default, Borrower shall give writt
notice to Collateral Agent and the Lenders of sooturrence, which such notice shall include a nealsly detailed description of such Ever
Default or event which, with the giving of noticemmassage of time, or both, would constitute amEwé Default.

6.10 Intentionally Omitted.

6.11 Landlord Waivers; Bailee Waivers. In the event that Borrower or any of its Subsidigriafter the Effective Date, intend:
add any new offices or business locations, inclgdirarehouses, or otherwise store any portion ofCtbikateral with, or deliver any portion
the Collateral to, a bailee, in each case pursiwaBection 7.2, then Borrower or such Subsidiatyfisst notify Collateral Agent in writing an
in the event that the Collateral at any new locat®valued in excess of Two Hundred Fifty ThousBmdlars ($250,000.00) in the aggreg
Borrower shall use commercially reasonable efftstsause such bailee or landlord, as applicablexterute and deliver a bailee waive
landlord waiver, as applicable, in form and substareasonably satisfactory to Collateral Agentiptiothe addition of any new offices
business locations, or any such storage with dvelyito any such bailee, as the case may be.

6.12  Creation/Acquisition of Subsidiaries.In the event Borrower, or any of its Subsidiariesates or acquires any Subsidi
Borrower shall provide prior written notice to Gailtral Agent and each Lender of the creation ouiaitgpn of such new Subsidiary and t
all such action as may be reasonably required biateoal Agent or any Lender to cause each suctsi8ialy to become a e@orrowe
hereunder or to guarantee the Obligations of Boerounder the Loan Documents and, in each caset graantinuing pledge and secu
interest in and to the assets of such Subsidianystantially as described on Exhibith¥ereto); and Borrower (or its Subsidiary, as agie’
shall grant and pledge to Collateral Agent, for thiable benefit of the Lenders, a perfected sicimierest in the Shares of each such n
created or acquired Subsidiary. Nothing in thisti®ad5.12 shall be construed as permitting thet@yrar acquisition of any Subsidiary unl
otherwise expressly permitted by this Agreemerdamsented to in writing by Collateral Agent and Required Lenders.

6.13 Further Assurances.
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(a) Execute any further instruments and takéh&uraction as Collateral Agent or any Lender reabty requests to perf
or continue Collateral Agent’s Lien in the Collatkor to effect the purposes of this Agreement.

(b) Deliver to Collateral Agent and Lenders,hiitfive (5) days after the same are sent or reckicopies of all mater|
correspondence, reports, documents and other dilwigh any Governmental Authority that could reasuly be expected to have a mate
adverse effect on any of the Governmental Approwadgerial to Borrowes business or otherwise could reasonably be expdotbave
Material Adverse Change.

7. NEGATIVE COVENANTS

Borrower shall not, and shall not permit any of $isbsidiaries to, do any of the following withobetprior written consent of t
Required Lenders:

7.1 Dispositions. Convey, sell, lease, transfer, assign, disposer aftltierwise make cash payments consisting of (ctoligly, “
Transfer "), or permit any of its Subsidiaries to Transfer,aallany part of its business or property, exceptTi@nsfers (a) consisting of c:
payments (which may be made by charging such patgrenBorrowers corporate credit cards permitted hereunder)adetrcreditors ar
vendors in the ordinary course of business; (dpeéntory in the ordinary course of business; fcjvorn-out or obsolete Equipment; (d)
connection with Permitted Liens, Permitted Invesiteeand Permitted Licenses; (e) of machinery angipatent to the extent that st
machinery or equipment is exchanged for creditregiahe purchase price of similar replacement nmeckiior equipment or the proceed:
such Transfer are applied against the purchase pfisuch replacement machinery or equipment; i@n3fers of other property having a
market value not exceeding Five Hundred Thousankai3o($500,000.00) in the aggregate in any figedr of Borrower; (g) constitutil
equity financing transactions permitted under $&cf.2(c)(iii) below; and (h) Transfers in addititmthose specifically enumerated abov
the extent the same are specifically reflectedhénAnnual Projections.

7.2  Changes in Business, Management, Ownership, or Basgiss Locations(a) Engage in or permit any of its Subsidiarie
engage in any business other than the businesgageshin by Borrower as of the Effective Date @sanably related thereto; (b) liquidate
dissolve; or (c) (i) any Key Person shall ceaskeactively engaged in the management of Borrowkgss a replacement for such Key Pe
is approved by Borrowes’Board of Directors and engaged by Borrower withiimety (90) days of such change; (ii) permit Hgtoe to ceas
being a whollyewned Subsidiary of Parent; or (iii) enter into drgnsaction or series of related transactionshiitkvthe stockholders of Par
who were not stockholders immediately prior to finst such transaction own more than forty ninecpat (49.00%) of the voting stock
Parent immediately after giving effect to such s@ction or related series of such transactionsefatiian by the sale of Parentéquity
securities in a public offering, a private placemainpublic equity or to venture capital investsrslong as Parent identifies to Collateral A
the venture capital investors prior to the closifighe transaction). Borrower shall not, withoulesst fifteen (15) daygirior written notice t
Collateral Agent: (A) add any new offices or busiécations, including warehouses (unless suchaifféees or business locations contain
than Two Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($250,000i0 Collateral); (B) change its jurisdiction afganization, (C) change its organizatic
structure or type, (D) change its legal name, Jrcfiange any organizational number (if any) asgldneits jurisdiction of organization.

7.3 Mergers or Acquisitions. Merge or consolidate, or permit any of its Subsid&to merge or consolidate, with any other Pe
or acquire, or permit any of its Subsidiaries tquare, all or substantially all of the capital stpshares or property of another Person, exce
for Permitted Acquisitions and (i) that a Subsidiaray merge or consolidate into another Subsidjargvided such surviving Subsidiary i
“co-Borrower” hereunder or has provided a secured Ginaraf Borrowers Obligations hereunder) or with (or into) Borrowmovidec
Borrower is the surviving legal entity, and as loagyno Event of Default is occurring prior theretoarises as a result therefrom. Witt
limiting the foregoing, Borrower shall not, withoGollateral Agens prior written consent, enter into any bindingtcactual arrangement w
any Person to attempt to facilitate a merger ousitipn of Borrower, unless (i) no Event of Deflaekists when such agreement is enterec
by Borrower, (ii) such agreement does not give deetson the right to claim any fees, payments oradges from Borrower, and (iii) Borrow
notifies Collateral Agent in advance of enterintpisuch an agreement.
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7.4 Indebtedness.Create, incur, assume, or be liable for any Indbidss, or permit any Subsidiary to do so, othem Permitte:
Indebtedness.

7.5 Encumbrance.Create, incur, allow, or suffer any Lien on anyitefproperty, or assign or convey any right to reeéncome
including the sale of any Accounts, or permit aryt® Subsidiaries to do so, except for Permittéeink, or permit any Collateral not to
subject to the first priority security interest gt@d herein (except for Permitted Liens that amngéed by the terms of this Agreement to
priority over Collateral Agen$ Lien), or enter into any agreement, documentrunsent or other arrangement (except with or inofagl
Collateral Agent, for the ratable benefit of thenlers and except pursuant to Permitted Licenseh)amy Person which directly or indirec
prohibits or has the effect of prohibiting Borrower any of its Subsidiaries, from assigning, magiag, pledging, granting a security inte
in or upon, or encumbering any of Borrower’s orts@ubsidiarys Intellectual Property, except as is otherwisenitted in Section 7.1 here
and the definition of Permitted Liens” herein.

7.6  Maintenance of Collateral AccountsMaintain any Collateral Account except pursuarth®terms of Section 6.6 hereof.

7.7 Distributions; Investments. (a) Pay any dividends (other than dividends payadkely in capital stock) or make ¢
distribution or payment in respect of or redeertirger purchase any capital stock (other thanmgat®ns, retirements, or repurchases purs
to the terms of employee stock purchase plans, @mplrestricted stock agreements, stockholdersiglans, director or consultant st
option plans, or similar plans, provided such repases do not exceed One Million Dollars ($1,000.00) in the aggregate per fiscal yeal
(b) directly or indirectly make any Investment atkiean Permitted Investments, or permit any oSitbsidiaries to do so.

7.8  Transactions with Affiliates. Directly or indirectly enter into or permit to ekiany material transaction with any Affiliate
Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries, except forttapsactions that are in the ordinary course afd@wer’s or such Subsidiary’business, upt
fair and reasonable terms that are no less fawtabBorrower or such Subsidiary than would be iolbthin an arns length transaction witt
non-affiliated Person, (b) Investments permitted punsta clauses (d) and (h) of the definition of Pit®d Investments, and (c) Subordine
Debt or equity investments by Borrower’s investorBorrower or its Subsidiaries.

7.9 Subordinated Debt.(a) Make or permit any payment on any Subordin&tett, except under the terms of the subordine
intercreditor, or other similar agreement to whétith Subordinated Debt is subject, or (b) amendpaoyision in any document relating to
Subordinated Debt which would increase the amdarebf or adversely affect the subordination thiete@®bligations owed to the Lenders.

7.10 Compliance.Become an “investment company” or a company cdettdby an “investment companyinder the Investme
Company Act of 1940, as amended, or undertake @®bits important activities extending credit targhase or carry margin stock (as def
in Regulation U of the Board of Governors of theléml Reserve System), or use the proceeds of eegitExtension for that purpose; fail
meet the minimum funding requirements of ERISAmmiea Reportable Event or Prohibited Transactiend@fined in ERISA, to occur; fail
comply with the Federal Fair Labor Standards Actiotate any other law or regulation, or permit afyits Subsidiaries to do so, in each c
if the violation could reasonably be expected tweha Material Adverse Change; withdraw or permiy &ubsidiary to withdraw fro
participation in, permit partial or complete teriation of, or permit the occurrence of any othemgweth respect to, any present pension, [
sharing and deferred compensation plan which coeddonably be expected to result in any liabilityBorrower or any of its Subsidiari
including any liability to the Pension Benefit Gaaty Corporation or its successors or any othere@ovental Authority.

7.11 Compliance with Anti-Terrorism Laws. Collateral Agent hereby notifies Borrower and eatlts Subsidiaries that pursu
to the requirements of AntTerrorism Laws, and Collateral Agestpolicies and practices, Collateral Agent is regfliito obtain, verify ar
record certain information and documentation tlukntifies Borrower and each of its Subsidiaries #relr principals, which informatic
includes the name and address of Borrower and @&fith Subsidiaries and their principals and suttfepinformation that will allow Collater
Agent to identify such party in accordance with iAierrorism Laws. Neither Borrower nor any of its Sidkaries shall, nor shall Borrower
any of its Subsidiaries permit any Affiliate withBorrower’s or its Subsidiary’s control to, dirgctir indirectly,
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knowingly enter into any documents, instrumentseaments or contracts with any Person listed orORAC Lists. Borrower and each of
Subsidiaries shall immediately notify Collateral exg if Borrower or such Subsidiary has knowledgat tBorrower, or any Subsidiary
Affiliate of Borrower, is listed on the OFAC Lists (a) is convicted on, (b) pleadslo contender¢o, (c) is indicted on, or (d) is arraigned
held over on charges involving money launderingradicate crimes to money laundering. Neither Begwonor any of its Subsidiaries sh
nor shall Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries, péremy Affiliate within Borrower’s or its Subsidigrs control to, directly or indirectl
(i) conduct any business or engage in any trarwacti dealing with any Blocked Person, includingghaut limitation, the making or receivi
of any contribution of funds, goods or servicestdor the benefit of any Blocked Person, (ii) deglor otherwise engage in any transac
relating to, any property or interests in propdstgcked pursuant to Executive Order No. 13224 oy similar executive order or ott
Anti-Terrorism Law, or (iii) engage in or conspire t@age in any transaction that evades or avoidsasithe purpose of evading or avoid
or attempts to violate, any of the prohibitionsfeeth in Executive Order No. 13224 or other Affterrorism Law.

8. EVENTS OF DEFAULT

Any one of the following shall constitute an evehtlefault (an “Event of Default”) under this Agreement:

8.1 Payment Default. Borrower fails to (a) make any payment of principalinterest on any Credit Extension on its duedal
(b) pay any other Obligations within three (3) Busis Days after such Obligations are due and payaililich three (3) Business Day gr
period shall not apply to payments due on the Migtiate or the date of acceleration pursuant totiSe 9.1 (a) hereof). During the ci
period, the failure to cure the payment defauttasan Event of Default (but no Credit Extensiofi & made during the cure period);

8.2 Covenant Default.

(&) Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries fails r@glects to perform any obligation in Sections @mhancial Statemen
Reports, Certificates), 6.4 (Taxes), 6.5 (Insurgn6es (Operating Accounts), 6.7 (Protection ofelleictual Property Rights), 6.9 (Notice
Litigation and Default), 6.11 (Landlord Waivers;ilga Waivers), 6.12 (Creation/Acquisition of Subaites) or 6.13 (Further Assurances
Borrower violates any covenant in Section 7; or

(b) Borrower, or any of its Subsidiaries, faillsneglects to perform, keep, or observe any dren, provision, conditio
covenant or agreement contained in this Agreemeahy Loan Documents, and as to any default (dthem those specified in this Sectiol
under such other term, provision, condition, coverma agreement that can be cured, has failedr® the default within ten (10) days after
occurrence thereof; provided, however, that if degault cannot by its nature be cured within the ({E0) day period or cannot after dilig
attempts by Borrower be cured within such ten @&y period, and such default is likely to be cunéthin a reasonable time, then Borro
shall have an additional period (which shall noaity case exceed thirty (30) days) to attempt te such default, and within such reason
time period the failure to cure the default shait he deemed an Event of Default (but no CredieBsions shall be made during such
period). Grace periods provided under this Sedladl not apply to any covenants set forth in satise (a) above;

8.3 Material Adverse Change.A Material Adverse Change occurs;
8.4 Attachment; Levy; Restraint on Business.

(d) (i) The service of process seeking to attéghtrustee or similar process, any funds of Bamoor any of its Subsidiari
or of any entity under control of Borrower or itsilfSidiaries on deposit with any Lender or any Lersddffiliate or any bank or oth
institution at which Borrower or any of its Subsides maintains a Collateral Account, or (ii) aio®wf lien, levy, or assessment is filed ag:
Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries or their regpecassets by any government agency, and the saoher subclauses (i) and (ii) hereof
not, within ten (10) days after the occurrence @ébérdischarged or stayed (whether through theinmpsf a bond or otherwise); provid
however, no Credit Extensions shall be made duaimgten (10) day cure period; and
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(e) (i) any material portion of Borrower’s oryaof its Subsidiariesassets is attached, seized, levied on, or come
possession of a trustee or receiver, or (ii) anyrtcorder enjoins, restrains, or prevents Borroaresiny of its Subsidiaries from conducting
part of its business;

8.5 Insolvency. (a) Borrower (when taken on a consolidated basik w8 Subsidiaries) is or becomes Insolvent; (b)rBwer o
any of its Subsidiaries begins an Insolvency Prdiceg or (c) an Insolvency Proceeding is begun regjaBorrower or any of its Subsidiar
and not dismissed or stayed within forfive (45) days (but no Credit Extensions shall kedenwhile Borrower or any Subsidiary is Insol
and/or until any Insolvency Proceeding is dismiysed

8.6 Other Agreements.There is a default in any agreement to which Boemoar any of its Subsidiaries is a party with adhparty
or parties resulting in a right by such third pastyparties, whether or not exercised, to acceddta maturity of any Indebtedness in an an
in excess of Two Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars5®00.00) or that could reasonably be expectédte a Material Adverse Change;

8.7 Judgments.One or more judgments, orders, or decrees fordlgenpnt of money in an amount, individually or ie thggregat
of at least Two Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($280.00) (not covered by independent thpdrty insurance as to which liability has b
accepted by such insurance carrier) shall be reddagainst Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries ahall remain unsatisfied, unvacated
unstayed for a period of ten (10) days after theyahereof (provided that no Credit Extensiond Wwé made prior to the satisfaction, vacal
or stay of such judgment, order or decree);

8.8  Misrepresentations.Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries or any Persaing at the direction or under the authority ofridevel
or any of its Subsidiaries makes any representatianranty, or other statement now or later in thigeement, any Loan Document or in
writing delivered to Collateral Agent and/or Lensler to induce Collateral Agent and/or the Lendergnter this Agreement or any L
Document, and such representation, warranty, aratatement is incorrect in any material respd@mmade;

8.9  Subordinated Debt. A default or breach occurs under any agreementdmtvBorrower or any of its Subsidiaries and
creditor of Borrower or any of its Subsidiariesttianed a subordination, intercreditor, or otherilsr agreement with Collateral Agent or
Lenders, or any creditor that has signed such ezeatent with Collateral Agent or the Lenders breadmy terms of such agreement;

8.10 Guaranty. (a) Any Guaranty terminates or ceases for any reasde in full force and effect; (b) any Guarantimes nc
perform any obligation or covenant under any Guaraie) any circumstance described in Sections 848, 8.5, 8.7, or 8.8 occurs with resj
to any Guarantor; or (d) the liquidation, winding, or termination of existence of any Guarantor;

8.11  Governmental Approvals. Any Governmental Approval shall have been revokedgcinded, suspended, modified in
adverse manner, or not renewed in the ordinaryseofar a full termand such revocation, rescission, suspension, modifinatr nor-renewa
has resulted in or could reasonably be expecteekidt in a Material Adverse Change; or

8.12  Lien Priority. Any Lien created hereunder or by any other LoanuDuent shall at any time fail to constitute a vadiat
perfected Lien on any of the Collateral purportedbé secured thereby, subject to no prior or efjigad, other than Permitted Liens which
permitted to have priority in accordance with taents of this Agreement.

9. RIGHTS AND REMEDIES

9.1 Rights and Remedies.

(c) Upon the occurrence and during the contingaof an Event of Default, Collateral Agent maydaat the writte
direction of Required Lenders shall, without noticedemand, do any or all of the following:
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(i) deliver notice of the Event of Default to Bower, (ii) by notice to Borrower declare all Obligats immediately due and payable (but i
Event of Default described in Section 8.5 occur©aligations shall be immediately due and payatitbout any action by Collateral Agent
the Lenders) or (iii) by notice to Borrower suspenderminate the obligations, if any, of the Lersdto advance money or extend credit
Borrower’s benefit under this Agreement or under any otlgeeement between Borrower and Collateral Agentanttie Lenders (but if
Event of Default described in Section 8.5 occurslligations, if any, of the Lenders to advancenepor extend credit for Borrowerbenefi
under this Agreement or under any other agreenetmtden Borrower and Collateral Agent and/or thedegs shall be immediately termina
without any action by Collateral Agent or the Lergje

(d) Without limiting the rights of Collateral &gt and the Lenders set forth in Section 9.1(ay@jpgpon the occurrence ¢
during the continuance of an Event of Default, &wmlfal Agent shall have the right, without noticalemand, to do any or all of the following:

(i) foreclose upon and/or sell or otherwise ilitaie, the Collateral;

(i) apply to the Obligations any (a) balances @eposits of Borrower that Collateral Agent oy &ender holds ¢
controls, or (b) any amount held or controlled lfl&teral Agent or any Lender owing to or for thredit or the account of Borrower; and/or

(i) commence and prosecute an Insolvency Rydicey or consent to Borrower commencing any Insaly
Proceeding.

(e) Without limiting the rights of Collateral &gt and the Lenders set forth in Sections 9.1(d) () above, upon tl
occurrence and during the continuance of an Evebetault, Collateral Agent shall have the righitheut notice or demand, to do any or a
the following:

(i) settle or adjust disputes and claims disewtlth Account Debtors for amounts on terms andhiry order th:
Collateral Agent considers advisable, notify anysBe owing Borrower money of Collateral Agensecurity interest in such funds, and ve
the amount of such account;

(i) make any payments and do any acts it camsichecessary or reasonable to protect the Calladed/or it
security interest in the Collateral. Borrower stedksemble the Collateral if Collateral Agent re¢gmesd make it available in a locatior
Collateral Agent reasonably designates. Collateg@nt may enter premises where the Collateraldatkd, take and maintain possession o
part of the Collateral, and pay, purchase, contestompromise any Lien which appears to be pnicuperior to its security interest and pa
expenses incurred. Borrower grants Collateral Agetitense to enter and occupy any of its premigdéthout charge, to exercise any
Collateral Agent's rights or remedies;

(iii)  ship, reclaim, recover, store, finish, m&din, repair, prepare for sale, and/or advertiseséle, the Collater:
Collateral Agent is hereby granted a nerclusive, royaltyfree license or other right to use, without charBerrower’s and each of i
Subsidiaries’labels, patents, copyrights, mask works, rightaigé of any name, trade secrets, trade names, taakienservice marks, a
advertising matter, or any similar property asdttpins to the Collateral, in completing productiafp advertising for sale, and selling
Collateral and, in connection with Collateral Agsrexercise of its rights under this Section 9.@rBwer’s and each of its Subsidiariegjhts
under all licenses and all franchise agreementgitmCollateral Agent, for the benefit of the Lensl

(iv) place a “hold”on any account maintained with Collateral Agentttoe Lenders and/or deliver a notice
exclusive control, any entittement order, or ottigections or instructions pursuant to any Con&gteement or similar agreements provic
control of any Collateral;

(v) demand and receive possession of Borrovigotaks;
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(vi) appoint a receiver to seize, manage anlizeeany of the Collateral, and such receiver shalle any right ar
authority as any competent court will grant or autte in accordance with any applicable law, ingtgdany power or authority to manage
business of Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries;

(vii) subject to clauses 9.1(a) and (b), exerail rights and remedies available to Collatergéit and each Lenc
under the Loan Documents or at law or equity, idirlg all remedies provided under the Code (inclgdiisposal of the Collateral pursuan
the terms thereof);

(viii) for any Letters of Credit, demand thatrmBmwer (i) deposit cash with Bank in an amount édodXx) if suct
Letters of Credit are denominated in Dollars, teae hundred five percent (105.00%); and (y) if suetters of Credit are denominated |
Foreign Currency, then one hundred ten percent.QD%6), of the Dollar Equivalent of the aggregateefamount of all Letters of Cre
remaining undrawn (plus all interest, fees, andscdsie or to become due in connection therewithegsnated by Bank in its good fe
business judgment)), to secure all of the Obligeticelating to such Letters of Credit, as colldteezurity for the repayment of any fut
drawings under such Letters of Credit, and Borrostall forthwith deposit and pay such amounts, @hgay in advance all letter of cre
fees scheduled to be paid or payable over the réngaierm of any Letters of Credit; and

(ix) terminate any FX Contracts.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Section Qolthe contrary, upon the occurrence of any Everefhult, Collateral Agent shall have
right to exercise any and all remedies referennetlis Section 9.1 without the written consent efjRired Lenders following the occurrenc
an Exigent Circumstance. As used in the immedigtedgeding sentence Exigent Circumstance” means any event or circumstance the
the reasonable judgment of Collateral Agent, immilyethreatens the ability of Collateral Agent ®alize upon all or any material portior
the Collateral, such as, without limitation, fraleht removal, concealment, or abscondment thedesftruction or material waste thereof
failure of Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries afteasonable demand to maintain or reinstate adegaaualty insurance coverage, or whic
the judgment of Collateral Agent, could reasonddgyexpected to result in a material diminutionafue of the Collateral.

9.2 Power of Attorney. Borrower hereby irrevocably appoints Collateral Agas its lawful attorneyin—-fact, exercisable upon t
occurrence and during the continuance of an Evebetault, to: (a) endorse Borrower’s or any of$tsbsidiarieshame on any checks or ot
forms of payment or security; (b) sign Borrowertsamy of its Subsidiariegsiame on any invoice or bill of lading for any Accdwor draft:
against Account Debtors; (c) settle and adjustudespand claims about the Accounts directly witltdnt Debtors, for amounts and on te
Collateral Agent determines reasonable; (d) madttles and adjust all claims under Borroveeirisurance policies; (e) pay, contest or setty
Lien, charge, encumbrance, security interest, awtrae claim in or to the Collateral, or any judgikased thereon, or otherwise take
action to terminate or discharge the same; antiafisfer the Collateral into the name of Collatékgent or a third party as the Code or
applicable law permits. Borrower hereby appointda@eral Agent as its lawful attornein-fact to sign Borrower’s or any of its Subsidiaries
name on any documents necessary to perfect orncenthe perfection of Collateral AgemtSecurity interest in the Collateral regardles
whether an Event of Default has occurred untilGltligations (other than inchoate indemnity obliga) have been satisfied in full ¢
Collateral Agent and the Lenders are under no éurtibligation to make Credit Extensions hereun@etlateral Agents foregoing appointme
as Borrower’'s or any of its Subsidiaries’ attornayfact, and all of Collateral Agerst'rights and powers, coupled with an interest
irrevocable until all Obligations (other than inelb® indemnity obligations) have been fully repaid performed and Collateral Agesitind th
Lenders’ obligation to provide Credit Extensionsrmates.

9.3 Protective PaymentsIf Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries fail to olstahe insurance called for by Section 6.5 or feilpay
any premium thereon or fails to pay any other amaurich Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries is ghlied to pay under this Agreement or
other Loan Document, Collateral Agent may obtaiohsinsurance or make such payment, and all amamizaid by Collateral Agent ¢
Lenders’Expenses and immediately due and payable, beariagest at the Default Rate, and secured by the@ddl. Collateral Agent w
make reasonable efforts to provide Borrower wittiagoof Collateral Agent obtaining such insurancenaking such payment
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at the time it is obtained or paid or within a i@able time thereafter. No such payments by Codhigent are deemed an agreement to 1
similar payments in the future or Collateral Agenwaiver of any Event of Default.

9.4  Application of Payments and ProceedsNotwithstanding anything to the contrary contairiecthis Agreement, upon t
occurrence and during the continuance of an Evebiefault, (&) Borrower irrevocably waives the righ direct the application of any and
payments at any time or times thereafter receiye@dilateral Agent from or on behalf of Borroweramy of its Subsidiaries of all or any f
of the Obligations, and, as between Borrower onatie hand and Collateral Agent and Lenders on theroCollateral Agent shall have
continuing and exclusive right to apply and to @gmny and all payments received against the @btigs in such manner as Collateral A
may deem advisable notwithstanding any previousiGgn by Collateral Agent, and (b) the proceeflany sale of, or other realization u
all or any part of the Collateral shall be applificst, to the LendersExpenses; second, to accrued and unpaid interetieo®bligation
(including any interest which, but for the provissoof the United States Bankruptcy Code, would heoaued on such amounts); third, to
principal amount of the Obligations outstandinggl &ourth, to any other indebtedness or obligatiohBorrower owing to Collateral Agent
any Lender under the Loan Documents. Any balancairing shall be delivered to Borrower or to whaeway be lawfully entitled to recei
such balance or as a court of competent jurisdictiay direct. In carrying out the foregoing, (x) @amts received shall be applied in
numerical order provided until exhausted priorhte &pplication to the next succeeding category,(@hdach of the Persons entitled to rec
a payment in any particular category shall recaiweamount equal to its pro rata share of amouradadle to be applied pursuant theretc
such category. Any reference in this Agreementtalbocation between or sharing by the Lendersngfright, interest or obligation “ratably,”
“proportionally” or in similar terms shall refer to Pro Rata Shantess expressly provided otherwise. Collateral Agenif applicable, eac
Lender, shall promptly remit to the other Lendarstssums as may be necessary to ensure the ragglalgment of each Lendserportion o
any Term Loan and the ratable distribution of iestr fees and reimbursements paid or made by BerrdMotwithstanding the foregoing
Lender receiving a scheduled payment shall noebpansible for determining whether the other Lendéso received their scheduled payr
on such date; provided, however, if it is lateredetined that a Lender received more than its ratabare of scheduled payments made ol
date or dates, then such Lender shall remit toaGathl Agent or other Lenders such sums as magbessary to ensure the ratable payme
such scheduled payments, as instructed by Colladgent. If any payment or distribution of any kind character, whether in cash, prope
or securities, shall be received by a Lender inesgaof its ratable share, then the portion of sueyment or distribution in excess of s
Lenders ratable share shall be received by such Lendeugt for and shall be promptly paid over to thieeo Lender for application to t
payments of amounts due on the other Lenddaims. To the extent any payment for the accofiidasrower is required to be returned ¢
voidable transfer or otherwise, the Lenders staitigbute to one another as is necessary to ertkatesuch return of payment is on a pro
basis. If any Lender shall obtain possession of@oNateral, it shall hold such Collateral for ifsend as agent and bailee for Collateral A
and other Lenders for purposes of perfecting GalidtAgent’s security interest therein.

9.5 Liability for Collateral. So long as Collateral Agent and the Lenders comyitly reasonable banking practices regarding
safekeeping of the Collateral in the possessiomdeer the control of Collateral Agent and the Lesd€ollateral Agent and the Lenders <
not be liable or responsible for: (a) the safekegmuif the Collateral; (b) any loss or damage toGl#ateral; (c) any diminution in the value
the Collateral; or (d) any act or default of anyriea, warehouseman, bailee, or other Person. B@rdears all risk of loss, damage
destruction of the Collateral.

9.6 No Waiver; Remedies Cumulative.Failure by Collateral Agent or any Lender, at aimet or times, to require str
performance by Borrower of any provision of thisrégment or any other Loan Document shall not waaffect, or diminish any right
Collateral Agent or any Lender thereafter to demsinidt performance and compliance herewith oredéh. No waiver hereunder shall
effective unless signed by Collateral Agent andReequired Lenders and then is only effective fer $pecific instance and purpose for whi
is given. The rights and remedies of Collateral Wgand the Lenders under this Agreement and therdtban Documents are cumulat
Collateral Agent and the Lenders have all right$ @medies provided under the Code, any applidableby law, or in equity. The exercise
Collateral Agent or any Lender of one right or reljmés not an election, and Collateral Agent’s oy denders waiver of any Event of Defa
is not a continuing waiver. Collateral Agent's aiyd_ender’s delay in exercising any remedy is naia@ver, election, or acquiescence.
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9.7 Demand Waiver. Borrower waives, to the fullest extent permitted law, demand, notice of default or dishonor, notid
payment and nonpayment, notice of any default, apment at maturity, release, compromise, settlemexténsion, or renewal of accou
documents, instruments, chattel paper, and guasihigd by Collateral Agent or any Lender on wtcirower or any Subsidiary is liable.

10. NOTICES

All notices, consents, requests, approvals, demadsther communication (collectively,Communication ") by any party to th
Agreement or any other Loan Document must be itingriand shall be deemed to have been validly senrywen, or delivered: (a) upon
earlier of actual receipt and three (3) Businesgsldter deposit in the U.S. malil, first class,istared or certified mail return receipt reques
with proper postage prepaid; (b) upon transmissidren sent by facsimile transmission; (c) one (a}iBess Day after deposit with a reput
overnight courier with all charges prepaid; orvidien delivered, if handdelivered by messenger, all of which shall be askird to the party
be notified and sent to the address, facsimile rarmdr email address indicated below. Any of Cellat Agent, Lender or Borrower
change its mailing address or facsimile numberitsng the other party written notice thereof in amtance with the terms of this Section 10.

If to Borrower: HALOZYME THERAPEUTICS, INC.

HALOZYME, INC.

11388 Sorrento Valley Road
San Diego, CA 92121

Attn: David Ramsay, CFO
(858) 704-8260 [0]
dramsay@halozyme.com

If to Collateral Agent: OXFORD FINANCE LLC
133 North Fairfax Street
Alexandria, Virginia 22314
Attention: Legal Department

Fax: (703) 5195225
Email: LegalDepartment@oxfordfinance.com

with a copy to SILICON VALLEY BANK
4370 La Jolla Village Drive
Suite 860
San Diego, CA 92122
Attn: Kevin Wallace
Tel.: (858) 784.3353
Fax: (858 ) 622-1424
Email: kwallace@svb.com

with a copy (which shall not VLP Law Group LLP
constitute notice) to: 3411 Cypress Drive
Falls Church, Virginia 22042
Attn: Denise G. Zack
Fax: (703) 260-6551
Email: dzack@vlplawgroup.com

11. CHOICE OF LAW, VENUE AND JURY TRIAL WAIVER, AND JUD ICIAL REFERENCE

California law governs the Loan Documents withoegiard to principles of conflicts of law. Borrowepllateral Agent and ea
Lender each submit to the exclusive jurisdictiontlté State and Federal courts in Santa Clara Cp@dlifornia; provided, however, tt
nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to opei@preclude Collateral Agent or any Lender fratimding suit or taking other legal acti
in any other jurisdiction to realize on the
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Collateral or any other security for the Obligatpor to enforce a judgment or other court ordefawor of Collateral Agent or any Lend
Borrower expressly submits and consents in advameaich jurisdiction in any action or suit commeshée any such court, and Borrov
hereby waives any objection that it may have bagsah lack of personal jurisdiction, improper venaeforum non conveniens and her
consents to the granting of such legal or equiteddief as is deemed appropriate by such courtrdegr hereby waives personal service o
summons, complaints, and other process issuedcim &ction or suit and agrees that service of suahnsons, complaints, and other prox
may be made by registered or certified mail addess Borrower at the address set forth in, or egbently provided by Borrower
accordance with, Section 10 of this Agreement dnad $ervice so made shall be deemed completed tingoearlier to occur of Borrower’
actual receipt thereof or three (3) days after difpo the U.S. mails, proper postage prepaid.

TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, BORROWER, COLLATERAL AGENT AND EACH LENDER
EACH WAIVE THEIR RIGHT TO A JURY TRIAL OF ANY CLAIM OR CAUSE OF ACTION ARISING OUT OF OR BASED
UPON THIS AGREEMENT, THE LOAN DOCUMENTS OR ANY CONT EMPLATED TRANSACTION, INCLUDING CONTRACT,
TORT, BREACH OF DUTY AND ALL OTHER CLAIMS. THIS WAI VER IS A MATERIAL INDUCEMENT FOR EACH PARTY
TO ENTER INTO THIS AGREEMENT. EACH PARTY HAS REVIEW ED THIS WAIVER WITH ITS COUNSEL.

WITHOUT INTENDING IN ANY WAY TO LIMIT THE PARTIES' AGREEMENT TO WAIVE THEIR RESPECTIVE RIGHT TO
TRIAL BY JURY, if the above waiver of the right t trial by jury is not enforceable, the partiesett@eragree that any and all dispute
controversies of any nature between them arisirapattime shall be decided by a reference to aapijudge, mutually selected by the pa
(or, if they cannot agree, by the Presiding Judge Santa Clara County, California Superior Cpappointed in accordance with Califor
Code of Civil Procedure Section 638 (or pursuartamparable provisions of federal law if the digpfalls within the exclusive jurisdiction
the federal courts), sitting without a jury, in &ilara County, California; and the parties hersllymit to the jurisdiction of such court. -
reference proceedings shall be conducted purswaahd in accordance with the provisions of Califer@ode of Civil Procedure 88 6
through 645.1, inclusive. The private judge shalldthe power, among others, to grant provisiogl#ft including without limitation, enterir
temporary restraining orders, issuing preliminamg aermanent injunctions and appointing recaivail such proceedings shall be closed tc
public and confidential and all records relatingréto shall be permanently sealed. If during thersm of any dispute, a party desires to
provisional relief, but a judge has not been apjgdirat that point pursuant to the judicial refeeepoocedures, then such party may apply t
Santa Clara County, California Superior Court factsrelief. The proceeding before the private juslgall be conducted in the same mann
it would be before a court under the rules of en@eapplicable to judicial proceedings. The padieall be entitled to discovery which shal
conducted in the same manner as it would be befareurt under the rules of discovery applicablgutiicial proceedings. The private juc
shall oversee discovery and may enforce all disgougles and orders applicable to judicial procagdiin the same manner as a trial ¢
judge. The parties agree that the selected or afgubprivate judge shall have the power to decidssues in the action or proceeding, whe
of fact or of law, and shall report a statementdetision thereon pursuant to California Code ofilGvocedure § 644(a). Nothing in t
paragraph shall limit the right of any party at aiye to exercise selhelp remedies, foreclose against collateral, oaiabprovisione
remedies. The private judge shall also determinissles relating to the applicability, interprétat and enforceability of this paragraph.

12. GENERAL PROVISIONS

12.1  Successors and Assign3his Agreement binds and is for the benefit of $hiecessors and permitted assigns of each
Borrower may not transfer, pledge or assign thise&gent or any rights or obligations under it with@ollateral Agent’'s and each Lender’
prior written consent (which may be granted or Wil in Collateral Agent’'s and each Lendediscretion, subject to Section 12.6).
Lenders have the right, without the consent ofaiice to Borrower, to sell, transfer, assign, pkedwegotiate, or grant participation in (any ¢
sale, transfer, assignment, negotiation, or grér participation, a ‘Lender Transfer ”) all or any part of, or any interest in, the Lensf
obligations, rights, and benefits under this Agreatrand the other Loan Documersovided, however, that any such Lender Transfer (o
than a transfer, pledge, sale or assignment toligiblE Assignee) of its obligations, rights, andnefits under this Agreement and the c
Loan Documents shall require the prior written @msf the Required Lenders (such approved assigme®Approved Lender ") . Borrowel
and Collateral Agent shall be entitled to contitueeal
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solely and directly with such Lender in connectigith the interests so assigned until Collateral #gghall have received and accepte
effective assignment agreement in form satisfactornCollateral Agent executed, delivered and fudympleted by the applicable par
thereto, and shall have received such other infoemaegarding such Eligible Assignee or Approveshtler as Collateral Agent reason:
shall require. Notwithstanding anything to the cant contained herein, so long as no Event of Defaas occurred and is continuing,
Lender Transfer (other than a Lender Transfem(ijeispect of any warrant to purchase stock, oiir(igonnection with (x) assignments b
Lender due to a forced divestiture at the requesing regulatory agency; or (y) upon the occurreotta default, event of default or sim
occurrence with respect to a Lender’s own finan@ingecuritization transactions) shall be permijtteithout Borrowers consent, to any Pers
which is an Affiliate or Subsidiary of Borrower,direct competitor of Borrower or a vulture hedgedueach as determined by Collat
Agent.

12.2  Indemnification. Borrower agrees to indemnify, defend and hold Getkl Agent and the Lenders and their respe
directors, officers, employees, agents, attorneysny other Person affiliated with or represeni@alateral Agent or the Lenders (each, an
Indemnified Person”) harmless against: (a) all obligations, demaradgims, and liabilities (collectively, Claims ") asserted by any ott
party in connection with; related to; following; arising from, out of or under, the transactionstemplated by the Loan Documents;
(b) all losses or Lender&xpenses incurred, or paid by Indemnified Persotoimection with; related to; following; or arisifigm, out of o
under, the transactions contemplated by the Loatubents between Collateral Agent, and/or the Lendad Borrower (including reasone
attorneys’ fees and expenses), in each case, efareptaims and/or losses directly caused by suctemnified Persos’ gross negligence
willful misconduct. Borrower hereby further inderfies, defends and holds each Indemnified Persomleas from and against any anc
liabilities, obligations, losses, damages, pengltections, judgments, suits, claims, costs, exgeasd disbursements of any kind or n¢
whatsoever (including the fees and disbursementsoafisel for such Indemnified Person) in connectigth any investigative, respon
remedial, administrative or judicial matter or pgeding, whether or not such Indemnified Personl $feldesignated a party thereto
including any such proceeding initiated by or ohdl&of Borrower, and the reasonable expenseswvastigation by engineers, environme
consultants and similar technical personnel andcamymission, fee or compensation claimed by ankdir¢other than any broker retainec
Collateral Agent or Lenders) asserting any righpagment for the transactions contemplated heretighumay be imposed on, incurred b
asserted against such Indemnified Person as a oésarlin connection with the transactions contéatga hereby and the use or intended u
the proceeds of the loan proceeds except for iligsi] obligations, losses, damages, penaltiegrestjudgments, suits, claims, costs, expe
and disbursements directly caused by such Indeethferson’s gross negligence or willful misconduct.

12.3 Time of EssenceTime is of the essence for the performance of bligations in this Agreement.

12.4  Severability of Provisions.Each provision of this Agreement is severable frewery other provision in determining
enforceability of any provision.

12.5 Correction of Loan Documents.Collateral Agent and the Lenders may correct paderdgrs and fill in any blanks in tt
Agreement and the other Loan Documents consistightthhe agreement of the parties

12.6  Amendments in Writing; Integration. (1) No amendment, modification, termination or veiwof any provision of th
Agreement or any other Loan Document, no approvatamsent thereunder, or any consent to any depalty Borrower or any of i
Subsidiaries therefrom, shall in any event be éffecunless the same shall be in writing and sigbgdorrower, Collateral Agent and
Required Lenders provided that:

(i) no such amendment, waiver or other modiftcathat would have the effect of increasing omuadg a Lendeg
Term Loan Commitment or Commitment Percentage &leadiffective as to such Lender without such Lelsderitten consent;

(i) no such amendment, waiver or modificatibattwould affect the rights and duties of Collatérgent shall b
effective without Collateral Agent’s written consem signature;
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(i) no such amendment, waiver or other modifion shall, unless signed by all the Lenders direaffectec
thereby, (A) reduce the principal of, rate of ieron or any fees with respect to any Term Loaformive any principal, interest (other tt
default interest) or fees (other than late chargatl) respect to any Term Loan (B) postpone the deted for, or waive, any payment
principal of any Term Loan or of interest on anyiie_oan (other than default interest) or any feessigled for hereunder (other than
charges or for any termination of any commitme(@); change the definition of the ternrRequired Lenders” or the percentage of Lend
which shall be required for the Lenders to take attjon hereunder; (D) release all or substant&lllpf any material portion of the Collate
authorize Borrower to sell or otherwise disposelbbr substantially all or any material portiontbe Collateral or release any Guarantor ¢
or any portion of the Obligations or its guaranbjigations with respect thereto, except, in eadeasith respect to this clause (D), as other
may be expressly permitted under this Agreementherother Loan Documents (including in connectioithvany disposition permitte
hereunder); (E) amend, waive or otherwise modifg Bection 12.6 or the definitions of the termsduse this Section 12.6 insofar as
definitions affect the substance of this Sectior618F) consent to the assignment, delegation leeraransfer by Borrower of any of its rig
and obligations under any Loan Document or rel®@seower of its payment obligations under any L@xtument, except, in each case
respect to this clause (F), pursuant to a mergeroosolidation permitted pursuant to this Agreemé€@) amend any of the provisions
Section 9.4 or amend any of the definitions of Reda Share, Term Loan Commitment, Commitment P&geror that provide for the Lend
to receive their Pro Rata Shares of any fees, patansetoffs or proceeds of Collateral hereundér;stibordinate the Liens granted in favc
Collateral Agent securing the Obligations; or (f)end any of the provisions of Section 12.10. Ihé&eby understood and agreed tha
Lenders shall be deemed directly affected by amament, waiver or other modification of the typechibed in the preceding clauses (C),
(E), (F), (G) and (H) of the preceding sentence;

(iv) the provisions of the foregoing clauses (i) and (iii) are subject to the provisions afyainterlender or agen
agreement among the Lenders and Collateral Agergupat to which any Lender may agree to give itsseat in connection with a
amendment, waiver or modification of the Loan Doeuis only in the event of the unanimous agreemfesit benders.

(b) Other than as expressly provided for in ®act2.6(a)(i}-(iii), Collateral Agent may, if requested by the Ragc
Lenders, from time to time designate covenanthimAgreement less restrictive by notification teepresentative of Borrower.

(c) This Agreement and the Loan Documents remitethe entire agreement about this subject mattdrsupersede pr
negotiations or agreements. All prior agreementsletstandings, representations, warranties, andtiatigns between the parties about
subject matter of this Agreement and the Loan Dantsimerge into this Agreement and the Loan Doctsnen

12.7 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number ohtesparts and by different parties on sep:i
counterparts, each of which, when executed angeteli, is an original, and all taken together, tibute one Agreement.

12.8  Survival. All covenants, representations and warranties niadbis Agreement continue in full force and efferttil thic
Agreement has terminated pursuant to its termsa#ir@bligations (other than inchoate indemnity ghtions and any other obligations wh
by their terms, are to survive the termination ok tAgreement) have been satisfied. Without lingitithe foregoing, except as otherv
provided in Section 4.1, the grant of security ies¢ by Borrower in Section 4.1 shall survive umhie termination of all Bank Servic
Agreements. The obligation of Borrower in Secti@?2ito indemnify each Lender and Collateral Agastwell as the confidentiality provisic
in Section 12.9 below, shall survive until the statof limitations with respect to such claim ousa of action shall have run.

12.9 Confidentiality. In handling any confidential information of Borrowehe Lenders and Collateral Agent shall exerdti
same degree of care that it exercises for their psprietary information, but disclosure of infortiea may be made: (a) subject to the te
and conditions of this Agreement, to the Lendersl &ollateral Agent's Subsidiaries or Affiliates; im connection with a Lendey’owr
financing or securitization transactions and ugwndccurrence of a default, event of default oiilaimoccurrence with respect to such finan
or securitization
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transaction; (b) to prospective transferees (othan those identified in (a) above) or purchasdrany interest in the Credit Extensit
(provided, however, the Lenders and Collateral Agdrall, except upon the occurrence and duringcthinuance of an Event of Defa
obtain such prospective transferee’s or purchasateement to the terms of this provision or talar confidentiality terms); (c) as required
law, regulation, subpoena, or other order; (d) enders’ or Collateral Agertt'regulators or as otherwise required in connectiith ar
examination or audit; (e) as Collateral Agent reafdy considers appropriate in exercising remedigker the Loan Documents; and (f) to t
party service providers of the Lenders and/or @Geii Agent so long as such service providers lexeguted a confidentiality agreement \
the Lenders and Collateral Agent with terms no lesstrictive than those contained herein. Confidérinformation does not inclus
information that either: (i) is in the public domair in the Lenders’ and/or Collateral Agenpossession when disclosed to the Lenders ¢
Collateral Agent, or becomes part of the public donafter disclosure to the Lenders and/or ColitAgent; or (ii) is disclosed to the Lend
and/or Collateral Agent by a third party, if thenders and/or Collateral Agent does not know thattttird party is prohibited from disclosi
the information. Collateral Agent and the Lenderaynuse confidential information for any purposeglunling, without limitation, for th
development of client databases, reporting purp@esmarket analysis. The provisions of the immedly preceding sentence shall survive
termination of this Agreement. The agreements plediunder this Section 12.9 supersede all pricgeagents, understanding, representat
warranties, and negotiations between the partieatahe subject matter of this Section 12.9.

12.10 Right of Set Off. Borrower hereby grants to Collateral Agent andaohelender, a lien, security interest and righsetf of
as security for all Obligations to Collateral Agemd each Lender hereunder, whether now existirgeogafter arising upon and agains
deposits, credits, collateral and property, novheneafter in the possession, custody, safekeepinggrdrol of Collateral Agent or the Lend
or any entity under the control of Collateral Agenthe Lenders (including a Collateral Agent &ifi¢) or in transit to any of them. At any ti
after the occurrence and during the continuancandtvent of Default, without demand or notice, &@tal Agent or the Lenders may sel
the same or any part thereof and apply the saramytdiability or obligation of Borrower even thoughmatured and regardless of the adeq
of any other collateral securing the Obligation®&NYAAND ALL RIGHTS TO REQUIRE COLLATERAL AGENT TO EXRCISE IT¢
RIGHTS OR REMEDIES WITH RESPECT TO ANY OTHER COLLARAL WHICH SECURES THE OBLIGATIONS, PRIOR 1
EXERCISING ITS RIGHT OF SETOFF WITH RESPECT TO SUDHPOSITS, CREDITS OR OTHER PROPERTY OF BORROWERE
HEREBY KNOWINGLY, VOLUNTARILY AND IRREVOCABLY WAIVE D.

12.11 Silicon Valley Bank as Agent Collateral Agent hereby appoints Silicon Vallegri& (“SVB ") as its agent (and SVB here¢
accepts such appointment) for the purpose of pi@mfg€ollateral Agens Liens in assets which, in accordance with Art&ler Article 9, a
applicable, of the Code can be perfected by possess control, including without limitation, all &osit Accounts maintained at SVB.

12.12 Cooperation of Borrower. If necessary, Borrower agrees to (i) execute arguah@nts (including new Secured Promis
Notes) reasonably required to effectuate and acladne each assignment of a Term Loan Commitmehban to an assignee in accorde
with Section 12.1, (ii) make Borrowarmanagement available to meet with Collateral Aged prospective participants and assignees of
Loan Commitments or Credit Extensions (which megtishall be conducted no more often than twiceyetveglve months unless an Even
Default has occurred and is continuing), and &g%ist Collateral Agent or the Lenders in the pragian of information relating to the financ
affairs of Borrower as any prospective participanassignee of a Term Loan Commitment or Term Lreasonably may request. Subject tc
provisions of Section 12.9, Borrower authorizeshelaender to disclose to any prospective participarassignee of a Term Loan Commitm
any and all information in such Lendgpossession concerning Borrower and its finaradfairs which has been delivered to such Lendeor
on behalf of Borrower pursuant to this Agreementwhich has been delivered to such Lender by obetmalf of Borrower in connection w
such Lender’s credit evaluation of Borrower primentering into this Agreement.

12.13 Borrower Liability . Either Borrower may, acting singly, request Crdetensions hereunder. Each Borrower he
appoints the other as agent for the other for atppses hereunder, including with respect to rainge<redit Extensions hereunder. E
Borrower hereunder shall be jointly and severalbjigated to repay all Credit Extensions made hedeunregardless of which Borrov
actually receives said Credit Extension, as if eBolrower hereunder directly received all Creditdfsions. Each Borrower waives (a)
suretyship defenses available to it

24




under the Code or any other applicable law, inclgdiwithout limitation, the benefit of Californiaiil Code Section 2815 permittii
revocation as to future transactions and the beoéfCalifornia Civil Code Sections 1432, 2809, 282819, 2839, 2845, 2847, 2848, 2!
2850, and 2899 and 3433, and (b) any right to reqQollateral Agent or any Lender to: (i) procegaiast any Borrower or any other per:
(ii) proceed against or exhaust any security; iDrfursue any other remedy. Collateral Agent andmy Lender may exercise or not exer
any right or remedy it has against any Borroweary security it holds (including the right to folese by judicial or norjudicial sale) withot
affecting any Borrowes liability. Notwithstanding any other provision thfis Agreement or other related document, eachddar irrevocabl
waives all rights that it may have at law or in iggyincluding, without limitation, any law subrotijag Borrower to the rights of Collate
Agent and the Lenders under this Agreement) to segitribution, indemnification or any other form mfimbursement from any ott
Borrower, or any other Person now or hereafter arily or secondarily liable for any of the Obligats, for any payment made by Borro
with respect to the Obligations in connection witiis Agreement or otherwise and all rights thahight have to benefit from, or to particip
in, any security for the Obligations as a resultaaly payment made by Borrower with respect to thigations in connection with tt
Agreement or otherwise. Any agreement providing ifcdemnification, reimbursement or any other areangnt prohibited under ti
Section shall be null and void. If any payment ed@to a Borrower in contravention of this Sectsuch Borrower shall hold such paymer
trust for Collateral Agent and the Lenders and sueyment shall be promptly delivered to Collatekgent for application to the Obligatiol
whether matured or unmatured.

12.14 Electronic Execution of Documents. The words “execution,” “signed,” “signatur@hd words of like import in any Lo
Document shall be deemed to include electronicadiges or the keeping of records in electronic faeath of which shall be of the same |
effect, validity and enforceability as a manualkgeuted signature or the use of a pdpesed recordkeeping systems, as the case maythe
extent and as provided for in any applicable lagluding, without limitation, any state law basedtbe Uniform Electronic Transactions Act.

12.15 Captions . The headings used in this Agreement are for auewee only and shall not affect the interpretatidrthis
Agreement.

12.16  Construction of Agreement. The parties mutually acknowledge that they armirthttorneys have participated in
preparation and negotiation of this Agreement.dses of uncertainty this Agreement shall be coadtmithout regard to which of the par
caused the uncertainty to exist.

12.17 Relationship. The relationship of the parties to this Agreenismtetermined solely by the provisions of this égmnent. Th
parties do not intend to create any agency, pati@rjoint venture, trust, fiduciary or other t@aship with duties or incidents different fr
those of parties to an arm’s-length contract.

12.18 Effect of Amendment and RestatementExcept as otherwise set forth herein, this Agrednierintended to and dc
completely amend and restate, without novationQhiginal Agreement. All security interests grantedier the Original Agreement are her
confirmed and ratified as of the date first grarded filed and shall continue to secure all Oblga under this Agreement.

13. DEFINITIONS

13.1 Definitions. As used in this Agreement, the following terms hthesfollowing meanings:

“ Account” is any “accountas defined in the Code with such additions to saom as may hereafter be made, and includes, w
limitation, all accounts receivable and other sawing to Borrower.

“ Account Debtor” is any “account debtor” as defined in the Codéwguch additions to such term as may hereaftendste.
“ Affiliate " of any Person is a Person that owns or controéctijr or indirectly the Person, any Person thatrds or is controlled k

or is under common control with the Person, and edi¢chat Persos’ senior executive officers, directors, partnew, dor any Person that it
limited liability company, that Person’s managemnd anembers.

25




“ Agreement” is defined in the preamble hereof.
“ Amortization Date " is February 1, 2015.
“ Annual Projections” is defined in Section 6.2(a).

“ Anti —-Terrorism Laws " are any laws relating to terrorism or money laumdgrincluding Executive Order No. 13224 (effec
September 24, 2001), the USA PATRIOT Act, the lamsprising or implementing the Bank Secrecy Actd déime laws administered
OFAC.

“ Approved Fund " is any (i) investment company, fund, trust, se@ation vehicle or conduit that is (or will be) extged in making
purchasing, holding or otherwise investing in comiad loans and similar extensions of credit in thidinary course of its business or (ii)
Person (other than a natural person) which temippraarehouses loans for any Lender or any entégatibed in the preceding clause (i)
that, with respect to each of the preceding cla@3emd (i), is administered or managed by (&eader, (b) an Affiliate of a Lender or (c
Person (other than a natural person) or an Aféilafta Person (other than a natural person) thatrasters or manages a Lender.

“ Approved Lender " is defined in Section 12.1.

“ Bank Services” are any products, credit services, and/or finana@ommodations previously, now, or hereafter mhedi tc
Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries by Bank or &ank Affiliate, including, without limitation, anietters of credit, cash management sen
(including, without limitation, merchant servicekrect deposit of payroll, business credit caragl eheck cashing services), interest rate !
arrangements, and foreign exchange services asuathyproducts or services may be identified in Bamnarious agreements related the
(each, a ‘Bank Services Agreement).

“ Bank " is defined in the preamble hereof.

“ Blocked Person” is any Person: (a) listed in the annex to, or lentise subject to the provisions of, Executive édrido. 1322
(b) a Person owned or controlled by, or acting doron behalf of, any Person that is listed in theex to, or is otherwise subject to
provisions of, Executive Order No. 13224, (c) asearwith which any Lender is prohibited from deglior otherwise engaging in &
transaction by any AntiTerrorism Law, (d) a Person that commits, threat@nsonspires to commit or supports “terrorisas defined i
Executive Order No. 13224, or (e) a Person thatasied a “specially designated national” or “blocketson”on the most current li
published by OFAC or other similar list.

“ Borrower " is defined in the preamble hereof.

“ Borrower’'s Books " are Borrower’s or any of its Subsidiaridsboks and records including ledgers, federal, datk dax return
records regarding Borrower’s or its Subsidiari@ssets or liabilities, the Collateral, businessrafiens or financial condition, and all compt
programs or storage or any equipment containing suormation.

“ Business Day' is any day that is not a Saturday, Sunday oryaatawhich Collateral Agent is closed.

“ Cash Equivalents” are (a) marketable direct obligations issued owondtionally guaranteed by the United States or aggncy c
any State thereof having maturities of not moretbae (1) year from the date of acquisition; (bhaorercial paper maturing no more than
(1) year after its creation and having the higlieihg from either Standard & Poor’'s Ratings GraupMoody’s Investors Service, Inc., &
(c) certificates of deposit maturing no more thawe ¢1) year after issue provided that the accaunthich any such certificate of deposi
maintained is subject to a Control Agreement irofaaf Collateral Agent. For the avoidance of dodibé direct purchase by Borrower or an
its Subsidiaries of any Auction Rate Securitiesparchasing participations in, or entering into &yye of swap or other derivative transaci
or otherwise holding or engaging in any ownershigriest in any type of Auction Rate Security byaer or any of its Subsidiaries shall
conclusively determined by the Lenders as an iiidégCash Equivalent, and any such transactiorl slptessly violate each other provisiol
this Agreement governing Permitted

26




Investments. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Cashi¥ajents does not include and Borrower, and eddts Gubsidiaries, are prohibited fri
purchasing, purchasing participations in, enteiimg any type of swap or other equivalent derivativansaction, or otherwise holding
engaging in any ownership interest in any type @btdnstrument, including, without limitation, amprporate or municipal bonds witt
long-term nominal maturity for which the interest rasereset through a dutch auction and more commafrned to as aauction rat
security (each, anAuction Rate Security”).

“ Claims ” are defined in Section 12.2.

“ Code” is the Uniform Commercial Code, as the same mayn ftime to time, be enacted and in effect in theteSof Californie
provided, that, to the extent that the Code is usedefine any term herein or in any Loan Docuneerd such term is defined differently
different Articles or Divisions of the Code, thefidéion of such term contained in Article or Divag 9 shall govern; provided further, tha
the event that, by reason of mandatory provisidnsw, any or all of the attachment, perfection,poiority of, or remedies with respect
Collateral Agents Lien on any Collateral is governed by the Unifo@ammercial Code in effect in a jurisdiction otltban the State
California, the term “Codeshall mean the Uniform Commercial Code as enaatediraeffect in such other jurisdiction solely fourposes ¢
the provisions thereof relating to such attachmeatfection, priority, or remedies and for purposkdefinitions relating to such provisions.

“ Collateral " is any and all properties, rights and assetsaf®ver described on Exhibit A

“ Collateral Account ” is any Deposit Account, Securities Account, or Cardity Account, or any other bank account maintaiby
Borrower or any Subsidiary at any time; provideattho Excluded Account shall constitute a Colldtéount.

“ Collateral Agent” is, Oxford, not in its individual capacity, but et in its capacity as agent on behalf of and fiar benefit of th
Lenders.

“ Commitment Percentagé€’ is set forth in Schedule 1,las amended from time to time.

“ Commodity Account” is any “commodity accountas defined in the Code with such additions to secin as may hereafter
made.

“ Communication " is defined in Section 10.
“ Compliance Certificate” is that certain certificate in the form attachezteto as Exhibit C

“ Contingent Obligation " is, for any Person, any direct or indirect lialilicontingent or not, of that Person for (a) anyeibtednes
lease, dividend, letter of credit or other obligatiof another such as an obligation directly orirextly guaranteed, endorsed,-coade
discounted or sold with recourse by that Persofprowhich that Person is directly or indirectigtile; (b) any obligations for undrawn letter
credit for the account of that Person; and (cphllgations from any interest rate, currency or nwdity swap agreement, interest rate ce
collar agreement, or other agreement or arrangedesignated to protect a Person against fluctuationterest rates, currency exchange |
or commodity prices; but “Contingent Obligatiodbes not include endorsements in the ordinary eowfsbusiness. The amount ¢
Contingent Obligation is the stated or determinetbant of the primary obligation for which the Caorgent Obligation is made or, if t
determinable, the maximum reasonably anticipateility for it determined by the Person in goodHaibut the amount may not exceed
maximum of the obligations under any guaranteetogrosupport arrangement.

“ Control Agreement ” is any control agreement entered into among thevgigpy institution at which Borrower or any of
Subsidiaries maintains a Deposit Account or thensges intermediary or commodity intermediary dtigh Borrower or any of its Subsidiar
maintains a Securities Account or a Commodity ActpBorrower and such Subsidiary, and Collateraémgpursuant to which Collate
Agent obtains control (within the
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meaning of the Code) for the benefit of the Lendsesr such Deposit Account, Securities AccountZommodity Account.

“ Copyrights " are any and all copyright rights, copyright apgiimas, copyright registrations and like protectionseach work ¢
authorship and derivative work thereof, whetherlighled or unpublished and whether or not the sdsteamnstitutes a trade secret.

“ Credit Extension” is any Term Loan or any other extension of crégitCollateral Agent or Lenders for Borroweienefit unde
this Agreement.

“ Default Rate” is defined in Section 2.3(b).

“ Deposit Account” is any “deposit account” as defined in the Cod#éhwuch additions to such term as may hereaftenfde.
“ Designated Deposit Account is Borrower’s deposit account, account number=*1625, maintained with Bank.

“ Disbursement Letter” is that certain form attached hereto as ExhibiflB

“ Dollar Equivalent " is, at any time, (a) with respect to any amountdeinated in Dollars, such amount, and (b) with eespo an
amount denominated in a Foreign Currency, the edgi amount therefor in Dollars as determined byplBat such time on the basis of
then-prevailing rate of exchange in San Francisco, Gatif, for sales of the Foreign Currency for trensb the country issuing such Fore
Currency.

“ Dollars ,” “ dollars ” and “$” each mean lawful money of the United 8tat
“ EBITDA " shall mean (a) Net Income, plus (b) Interest Expeptus (c) to the extent deducted in the caloutatif Net Income
depreciation expense and amortization expense(@juscome tax expense.

“ Effective Date” is defined in the preamble of this Agreement.

“ Eligible Assignee” is (i) a Lender, (ii) an Affiliate of a Lender, ifiian Approved Fund and (iv) any commercial bardyisgs an
loan association or savings bank or any otheryentitich is an “accredited investorag defined in Regulation D under the Securities &
1933, as amended) and which extends credit or loays as one of its businesses, including insuraooganies, mutual funds, lease finan
companies and commercial finance companies, in easl, which either (A) has a rating of BBB or leigfrom Standard & Poas’Rating
Group and a rating of Baa2 or higher from Moadyfivestors Service, Inc. at the date that it bexomlLender or (B) has total assets in e
of Five Billion Dollars ($5,000,000,000.00), anddach case of clauses (i) through (iv), which, tlgtoits applicable lending office, is capz
of lending to Borrower without the imposition of yamwithholding or similar taxes; provided that natwgtanding the foregoing Eligible
Assignee” shall not include, unless an Event ofaD&fhas occurred and is continuing, (i) Borroweramy of Borrowers Affiliates ol
Subsidiaries or (ii) a direct competitor of Borrawar a vulture hedge fund, each as determined bjatemal Agent. Notwithstanding t
foregoing, (x) in connection with assignments dyeader due to a forced divestiture at the requiahy regulatory agency, the restrictions
forth herein shall not apply and Eligible Assigrd®ll mean any Person or party and (y) in connectidh a Lenders own financing ¢
securitization transactions, the restrictions eethfherein shall not apply and Eligible Assignbalsmean any Person or party providing ¢
financing or formed to undertake such securitizati@nsaction and any transferee of such Persgamy upon the occurrence of a def:
event of default or similar occurrence with resgecsuch financing or securitization transactiorgvided that no such sale, transfer, pledc
assignment under this clause (y) shall release kanHer from any of its obligations hereunder drstitute any such Person or party for ¢
Lender as a party hereto until Collateral Agentldiave received and accepted an effective assighagreement from such Person or par
form satisfactory to Collateral Agent executed,vd@kd and fully completed by the applicable partieereto, and shall have received :
other information regarding such Eligible Assig@eeCollateral Agent reasonably shall require.
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“ Equipment " is all “equipment”as defined in the Code with such additions to siecin as may hereafter be made, and incl
without limitation all machinery, fixtures, goodsehicles (including motor vehicles and trailersygdany interest in any of the foregoing.

“ Equity Interest " is, with respect to any Person, any and all shanésrests, partnership interests (whether gerardimited)
membership interests, rights to purchase, warraspns, participations or other equivalents, udhg membership interests (howe
designated, whether voting or nonvoting), of eqaitysuch Person, and any other interest or padiicip that confers on a Person the rigl
receive a share of the profits and losses of, siridutions of property of, such Person, includiogpvertible and exchangeable debt securities.

“ ERISA " is the Employee Retirement Income Security Aci874, as amended, and its regulations.
“ Event of Default” is defined in Section 8.

“ Excluded Account” is any Deposit Account maintained by Borrower oy &ubsidiary at any time used exclusively for p#ytax
withholding or employee benefits.

“ Existing Final Payment” is defined in Section 2.5(b) hereof.

“ Final Payment” is a payment (in addition to and not a substitufionthe regular monthly payments of principal aamtrue:
interest, and the Existing Final Payment) due enetrliest to occur of (a) the Maturity Date, ortfie acceleration of any Term Loan, or (c)
prepayment of a Term Loan pursuant to Section Rd(¢d), equal to the original principal amountsaich Term Loan multiplied by the Fi
Payment Percentage, payable to Lenders in accadeitit their respective Pro Rata Shares.

“ Final Payment Percentag€ is eight and one-half of one percent (8.50%).

“ Foreign Currency " means lawful money of a country other than thetéthStates.

“ Foreign Subsidiary” is a Subsidiary that is not an entity organizeder the laws of the United States or any territbgreof.
“ Funding Date” is any date on which a Credit Extension is mawerton account of Borrower which shall be a BusinBay.

“ FX Contract ” is any foreign exchange contract by and betweemdB@r and Bank under which Borrower commits to pas
from or sell to Bank a specific amount of Foreigur@ncy on a specified date.

“ GAAP " is generally accepted accounting principles sehforthe opinions and pronouncements of the ActingrPrinciples Boat
of the American Institute of Certified Public Acatdants and statements and pronouncements of thadtal Accounting Standards Board ¢
such other statements by such other Person as enagpsoved by a significant segment of the accogrgrofession in the United States, wi
are applicable to the circumstances as of theafatetermination.

“ General Intangibles” are all “general intangiblesds defined in the Code in effect on the date hengthf such additions to su
term as may hereafter be made, and includes witlmitation, all copyright rights, copyright appéiions, copyright registrations and |
protections in each work of authorship and deniagativork, whether published or unpublished, any matetrademarks, service marks anc
the extent permitted under applicable law, any iappbns therefor, whether registered or not, aagé secret rights, including any right:
unpatented inventions, payment intangibles, rogmlttontract rights, goodwill, franchise agreemgmnischase orders, customer lists, route
telephone numbers, domain names, claims, incometed tax refunds, security and other depositdpng to purchase or sell real or pers
property, rights in all litigation presently or leafter pending (whether in contract, tort or othise) insurance policies (including with
limitation key man, property damage, and businetstiuption insurance), payments of insurance gids to payment of any kind.
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“ Governmental Approval " is any consent, authorization, approval, ordernse, franchise, permit, certificate, accreditg
registration, filing or notice, of, issued by, franto, or other act by or in respect of, any Gamagntal Authority.

“ Governmental Authority ” is any nation or government, any state or otheitipal subdivision thereof, any agency, autho
instrumentality, regulatory body, court, centrahkar other entity exercising executive, legislafijudicial, taxing, regulatory or administrai
functions of or pertaining to government, any siigas exchange and any selégulatory organization.

“ Guarantor " is any Person providing a Guaranty in favor ofl@eral Agent.

“ Guaranty " is any guarantee of all or any part of the Obligati as the same may from time to time be amendstited, modifie
or otherwise supplemented.

“ Halozyme” is defined in the preamble hereof.

“ Indebtedness’ is (a) indebtedness for borrowed money or the defigorice of property or services, such as reinmdaent and oth
obligations for surety bonds and letters of credi},obligations evidenced by notes, bonds, deleatar similar instruments, (c) capital le
obligations, and (d) Contingent Obligations.

“ Indemnified Person” is defined in Section 12.2.

“ Insolvency Proceeding” is any proceeding by or against any Person underUhited States Bankruptcy Code, or any ¢
bankruptcy or insolvency law, including assignmefus the benefit of creditors, compositions, extens generally with its creditors,
proceedings seeking reorganization, arrangementher relief.

“ Insolvent” means not Solvent.

“ Intellectual Property ” means all of Borrower’s or any Subsidiary’s rigtitile and interest in and to the following:

(a) its Copyrights, Trademarks and Patents;

(b) any and all trade secrets and trade sedhbtsr including, without limitation, any rights tonpatented inventior
know-how, operating manuals;

(c) any and all source code;
(d) any and all design rights which may be aldé to Borrower;

(e) any and all claims for damages by way of, gaesent and future infringement of any of theefwing, with the right, b
not the obligation, to sue for and collect such dges for said use or infringement of the IntellatRroperty rights identified above;

() all amendments, renewals and extensionsipfod the Copyrights, Trademarks or Patents; and

(g) and to the extent not already included @fthregoing, all licensing, produce sale, jointtuee, collaboration and simil
agreements relating to any of the foregoing..

“ Interest Expense” means for any fiscal period, interest expenseefivr cash or nocash) determined in accordance with G/
for the relevant period ending on such date, iriolgidn any event, interest expense with respeantoCredit Extension and other Indebted
of Borrower and its Subsidiaries, including, withdimitation or duplication, all commissions, disods, or related amortization and other
and charges with respect to letters of
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credit and bankersacceptance financing and the net costs associatbdnterest rate swap, cap, and similar arrangespend the intere
portion of any deferred payment obligation (inchglieases of all types).

“ Inventory " is all “inventory” as defined in the Code in effect on the date heréthf such additions to such term as may hereaf
made, and includes without limitation all merchamdiraw materials, parts, supplies, packing angpghg materials, work in process
finished products, including without limitation suénventory as is temporarily out of any Personustody or possession or in transit
including any returned goods and any documentilefrépresenting any of the above.

“ Investment” is any beneficial ownership interest in any Per@ooluding stock, partnership interest or otherusiges), and an
loan, advance, payment or capital contributionrtyp Rerson.

“ Key Person” is each of Borrowes (i) Chief Executive Officer, who is Gregory |.dst as of the Effective Date and (ii) Ct
Financial Officer, who is David Ramsay as of théeEfive Date.

“ Lender " is any one of the Lenders.

“ Lenders” are the Persons identified on ScheduleHeteto and each assignee that becomes a partistddgheement pursuant
Section 12.1.

“ Lenders’ Expenses' are all audit fees and expenses, costs, and egpgincluding reasonable attornefe®s and expenses, as \
as appraisal fees, fees incurred on account ofskamches, inspection fees, and filing fees) feparing, amending, negotiating, administel
defending and enforcing the Loan Documents (inclgdiwithout limitation, those incurred in connectiovith appeals or Insolven
Proceedings) or otherwise incurred by Collatera¢tgand/or the Lenders in connection with the LDacuments.

“ Letter of Credit” is a standby or commercial letter of credit issbgdBank upon request of Borrower based upon anicgijan
guarantee, indemnity, or similar agreement.
“ Lien " is a claim, mortgage, deed of trust, levy, chaggedge, security interest, or other encumbranceargf kind, whethe
voluntarily incurred or arising by operation of lawotherwise against any property.

“ Loan Documents” are, collectively, this Agreement, the Perfectiocertficates, each Compliance Certificate, each Disbmer
Letter, each Loan Payment/Advance Request Formaapdank Services Agreement, the Post Closing t,ettech Control Agreement, ei
landlord and bailee agreement, any subordinatioeeggents, any note, or notes or guaranties exetwyt&brrower or any other Person,
any other present or future agreement enteredoypt®orrower, any Guarantor or any other PersonHerbenefit of the Lenders and Collat
Agent in connection with this Agreement or the @réd Agreement; all as amended, restated, or otisermodified.

“ Loan Payment/Advance Request Forni is that certain form attached hereto as Exhibi2B

“ Material Adverse Change” is (a) a material impairment in the perfectionpoiority of Collateral Agens Lien in the Collateral or
the value of such Collateral; (b) a material adeersange in the business, operations or condifinancial or otherwise) of Borrower or &
Subsidiary; or (c) a material impairment of thegmect of repayment of any portion of the Obligagion

“ Maturity Date " is January 1, 2018.

“ Net Income” means, as calculated on a consolidated basis fooBer and its Subsidiaries for any period as at date o
determination, the net profit (or loss), after psion for taxes, of Borrower and its Subsidiaries $uch period taken as a single accoul

period.

“ Obligations " are all of Borrower’s obligations to pay when damey debts, principal, interest, LendeEXpenses, the Prepaym
Fee, the Final Payment, the Existing Final Paymemd, other amounts Borrower owes the
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Lenders now or later, in connection with, relatedftllowing, or arising from, out of or under, $hAgreement or, the other Loan Document
otherwise, including, without limitation, all oblgjons relating to letters of credit (includingméiursement obligations for drawn and undr
letters of credit), cash management services, arigh exchange contracts, if any, and includingrist accruing after Insolvency Proceed
begin (whether or not allowed) and debts, lialgiiti or obligations of Borrower assigned to the lezadand/or Collateral Agent, and
performance of Borrower’s duties under the Loan iboents.

“ OFAC " is the U.S. Department of Treasury Office of RgreAssets Control.

“ OFAC Lists " are, collectively, the Specially Designated Natlenand Blocked Persons List maintained by OFAC yams$ t¢
Executive Order No. 13224, 66 Fed. Reg. 49079 (S&pt2001) and/or any other list of terroristsadner restricted Persons maintai
pursuant to any of the rules and regulations of OFA pursuant to any other applicable Executivee@ad

“ Operating Documents” are, for any Person, such Persoférmation documents, as certified by the SecyaibState (or equivale
agency) of such Persanjurisdiction of organization on a date that iseaolier than thirty (30) days prior to the EffeetiDate, and, (a) if su
Person is a corporation, its bylaws in current fofim)if such Person is a limited liability company, litmited liability company agreement |
similar agreement), and (c) if such Person is d@npaship, its partnership agreement (or similareagrent), each of the foregoing with
current amendments or modifications thereto.

“ Original Agreement ” is defined in the preamble hereof.

“ Original Term Loan " is defined in Section 2.2(a)(i) hereof.

“ Oxford New Money Term Loan” is defined in Section 2.2(a)(ii)(C) hereof.

“ Oxford Original Term Loan " means the Original Term Loan made by Oxford orefifiective date of the Original Agreement in
aggregate principal amount of Twenty-One MillionlRcs ($21,000,000.00), which remains outstandinghe Effective Date.

“ Oxford Term Loan " is defined in Section 2.2(a)(ii)(C) hereof.
“ Parent” is defined in the preamble hereof.

“ Patents " means all patents, patent applications and likeeptions including without limitation improvementsjvisions
continuations, renewals, reissues, extensions amihcations-in-part of the same.

“ Payment Date” is the first (1*!) calendar day of each calendar month, commenairfgebruary 1, 2013.

“ Perfection Certificate” and “ Perfection Certificates” is defined in Section 5.1.

“ Permitted Acquisition " is any transaction or series of related transastiesulting in the acquisition by Borrower or arypSidiary
whether by purchase, merger or otherwise, of afiutastantially all of the assets of, all of the Bginterests of, or a business line or unit

division of, any Person, provided that:

(&) immediately prior to, and after giving effe¢bereto, no Event of Default shall have occurmed be continuing or would res
therefrom;

(b) all transactions in connection therewithlisha consummated, in all material respects, iroed@nce with applicable law;

(c) all acquisition consideration for each Pétmai Acquisition shall consist solely of Equity énésts of Parent, subject to
limitation on changes of ownership of Parent sehftn Section 7.2;
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(d) in the case of the purchase or other adiprisof Equity Interests, all of the Equity Intet@gexcept for any such Equity Intel
in the nature of directorgjualifying shares required pursuant to applicabie)lacquired or otherwise issued by such Persasmgrnewl
formed Subsidiary in connection with such acqusitshall be wholly owned by Borrower or a Subsigiar

(e) Borrower shall have delivered to the Colaltédgent and Lenders at least fifteen (15) Bussneays (or such shorter perioc
may be acceptable to Collateral Agent and Lenderisy to such proposed acquisition (i) a copy & fhurchase agreement related tc
proposed acquisition (and any related documensoredbly requested by the Collateral Agent and Lendéi) a general description of 1
acquired assets or acquired business line or wrdivision and the competitive position of such ibess line or unit or division within t
industry, (iii) the sources and uses of funds taifice the proposed acquisition and (iv) to ther@xa®ailable, quarterly and annual aud
financial statements of the Person whose Equigrésts or assets are being acquired for the twW&R)emonth period immediately prior to si
proposed acquisition;

() such Permitted Acquisition shall only invehassets located in the United States and com@raiousiness, or those assets
business, in substantially the same business @s bifi business in which Borrower and its Subsidsaare engaged;

(g) the assets being acquired or the Personevqgsity Interests are being acquired shall noehaegative consolidated EBITL
(as determined in accordance with Borrowestandard or customary accounting procedureshgluhie twelve (12) consecutive month pe
most recently concluded prior to the date of sujussition;

(h) such Permitted Acquisition shall be consahand shall have been approved by the target’slbafdirectors;

() no additional Indebtedness shall be incuraxbumed or otherwise be reflected on a consetidaslance sheet of the Borro
and target after giving effect to such Permittedjéisition.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contairtestein, in order for any acquisition of Equity Irtsts or assets of another Persc
constitute a “Permitted Acquisition”, Borrower mastmply with all of the following:

(A) concurrent with the closing of such PerndttAcquisition, the applicable Borrower (or Subsig)amaking such Permitti
Acquisition and the target shall have executed sladduments and taken such actions as may be rdquider Section 6.12;

(B) the applicable Borrower shall have delivetecollateral Agent and Lenders, in form and sabs¢ satisfactory to the Collate
Agent and Lenders and sufficiently in advance (&mcany case no later than ten (10) Business Dai® po such Permitte
Acquisition), such other financial information, dincial analysis, documentation or other informatiefating to such Permitt
Acquisition and the pro forma certifications reauirby clause (C) below, in each case, as Collatégaint and Lenders sh
reasonably request; and

(C) on or prior to the date of such Permittedjéisition, the Collateral Agent and Lenders shalldrreceived, in form and substa
reasonably satisfactory to the Collateral Agent &medders , a certificate of the chief financial icéf of Borrower certifyin
compliance with the requirements contained in thédinition of “Permitted Acquisitions’and with the other terms of the Lc
Documents (before and after giving effect to suemiitted Acquisition).

“ Permitted Indebtedness’ is:

(&) Borrower’s Indebtedness to the Lenders amitht@ral Agent under this Agreement and the otlam Documents;

(b) Indebtedness existing on the Effective [atd disclosed on the Perfection Certificate(s);
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(c) Subordinated Debt;
(d) unsecured Indebtedness to trade creditorsried in the ordinary course of business;

(e) Indebtedness consisting of capitalized leaslegations and purchase money Indebtedness, ¢h ease incurred |
Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries to finance #wguisition, repair, improvement or constructionfigéd or capital assets of such per:
provided that (i) the aggregate outstanding prialcigmount of all such Indebtedness does not exééesl Hundred Thousand Doll:
($500,000.00) at any time and (ii) the principaloamt of such Indebtedness does not exceed the lofsbie cost or fair market value of
property so acquired or built or of such repairsngerovements financed with such Indebtedness (eedsured at the time of such acquisi
repair, improvement or construction is made);

(H Indebtedness incurred as a result of endgrsiegotiable instruments received in the ordinzoyrse of Borrower
business;

(g) Indebtedness of a Borrower or any Subsidiaving to a Borrower;
(h) Indebtedness in respect of advance payngntsistomers under purchase contracts in the axdomurse of business;

() Indebtedness consisting of guaranty oblmaiin respect of loans and advances to emplogéfasrs or directors of ar
Borrower or Subsidiary in the ordinary course ofsiness and permitted pursuant to clause (h) of dbénition of “Permitte
Investments” (including for travel, entertainmentlaelocation expenses);

() Indebtedness to Bank in respect of Bank 8essin an amount not to exceed One Million Fiventhed Thousar
Dollars ($1,500,000.00%ssthe amount of Indebtedness existing pursuant tesel@m) below, in the aggregate at any time;

(k) unsecured Indebtedness in respect of comoceedit card programs (including American Exp®&s¥isa® anc
MasterCard® products) in an aggregate principalarhaot to exceed One Million Dollars ($1,000,0003he aggregate at any time;

() Indebtedness in respect of interest, reerency or commodity swap agreement, interdsteap or collar agreeme
or other agreement or arrangement designated tegira Person against fluctuation in interest ratasrency exchange rates or commc
prices, entered into in the ordinary course of Baer’'s business and not for speculative purposes;

(m) Indebtedness in respect of letters of craditissued by Bank supporting trade payables asee entered into in 1
ordinary course of business in an aggregate p@hemount not to exceed Five Hundred Thousand Bo{#500,000.00) at any time;

(n) Indebtedness in the form of convertible debovided that (i) all Obligations (other than lmate indemnity obligatio
and Obligations in respect of Bank Services whiatehbeen casbellateralized in accordance with Section 4.1)iadefeasibly paid in full i
cash contemporaneously with the first closing ofhsgonvertible debt transaction and (ii) Borrowéels have complied with all noti
requirements and other prepayment terms set ferthily and

(o) extensions, refinancings, modifications, adraents and restatements of any items of Permittbebtedness (a) throu
(e) above, provided that the principal amount tbeie not increased (other than with respect tawext and unpaid interest thereon and
applicable premiums) or the terms thereof are nodifired to impose materially more burdensome teapsn Borrower, or its Subsidiary,
the case may be.
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“ Permitted Investments” are:
(8 Investments disclosed on the Perfectionif@xate(s) and existing on the Effective Date;

(b) (i) Investments consisting of cash and Claghivalents, and (ii) any Investments permittedBmyrower’s investmer
policy, as amended from time to time, provided shath investment policy (and any such amendmengtitiehas been approved in writing
Collateral Agent;

(c) Investments consisting of the endorsementegotiable instruments for deposit or collectigrsimilar transactions
the ordinary course of Borrower;

(d) (i) Investments of Parent in Halozyme, aiijdifvestments of Borrower in any domestic Sukesigiwhich has joined tt
Agreement as a cbherrower hereunder; provided that Borrower and ssighsidiary shall have complied in all respecthv@ection 6.12 ar
taken all action necessary to perfect Collateramg Lien in the Collateral of such Subsidiary;

(e) Permitted Acquisitions;
(H Investments consisting of Deposit Accoumtsvhich Collateral Agent has a perfected securitgrest;
(@) Investments in connection with Transfersméed by Section 7.1;

(h) Investments consisting of (i) travel advane®ad employee relocation loans and other empltyses and advances
the ordinary course of business, and (ii) loansrtployees, officers or directors relating to thechase of equity securities of Borrower o
Subsidiaries pursuant to employee stock purchasespr agreements approved by Borrow@&bard of Directors; not to exceed Two Hunt
Fifty Thousand Dollars ($250,000.00) in the aggtedar (i) and (ii) in any fiscal year;

(i) Investments (including debt obligations) ee®d in connection with the bankruptcy or reorgation of customers
suppliers and in settlement of delinquent obligaiof, and other disputes with, customers or sepplarising in the ordinary course
business;

() Investments consisting of notes receivalfleo prepaid royalties and other credit extensidosustomers and suppli
who are not Affiliates, in the ordinary course afsmess; provided that this paragraph (h) shallappiy to Investments of Borrower in ¢
Subsidiary;

(k) non-cash Investments in joint ventures oatsgic alliances in the ordinary course of Borrdwéusiness consisting
Permitted Licenses of technology, the developméteahnology or the providing of technical suppairtgd

() in addition to Investments otherwise pergdttby this Section, Investments by Borrower or &upsidiary in a
aggregate amount not to exceed Two Hundred FifguEand Dollars ($250,000.00) in any fiscal year.

“ Permitted Licenses” are (A) licenses of over-thesunter software that is commercially available the public, and (E
non-exclusive and exclusive licenses for the use ofitelectual Property of Borrower or any of itsiSidiaries entered into in the ordin
course of business, providethat, with respect to each such license desciibethuse (B), (i) no Event of Default has occdrog is continuin
at the time of such license; (ii) the license ciatgs an armdength transaction, the terms of which, on thetefado not provide for a sale
assignment of any Intellectual Property; (iii) metcase of any exclusive license, (x) Borrowervees copies of the final executed licen:
documents in connection with the exclusive licepgamptly upon consummation thereof, (y) any suckrse is made in connection wit
bona fide corporate collaboration or partnershiyg & approved by Borrower’s (or the applicable Sdiary’s) board of directors, and (z) ¢
such license could not result in a legal transfeitle of the licensed property but (a)
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may be exclusive as to a particular field of usé/angeographic territory outside of the Unitedt&saor (b) may be exclusive for a partic
field of use within the geographic territory of thimited States; and (iv) all upfront payments, foga, milestone payments or other proct
arising from the licensing agreement that are peytbBorrower or any of its Subsidiaries are paid Deposit Account that is governed |
Control Agreement.

“ Permitted Liens” are:

(a) Liens existing on the Effective Date anctitised on the Perfection Certificates or arisindarrthis Agreement and |
other Loan Documents;

(b) Liens for taxes, fees, assessments or @beernment charges or levies, either (i) not dué payable or (ii) beir
contested in good faith and for which Borrower naiims adequate reserves on its Books, providednihatotice of any such Lien has b
filed or recorded under the Internal Revenue Cdde86, as amended, and the Treasury Regulaticrsted thereunder;

(c) liens securing Indebtedness permitted umtirse (e) of the definition of Permitted Indebtedness,” provided the
(i) such liens exist prior to the acquisition of,aitach substantially simultaneous with, or withirenty (20) days after the, acquisition, le
repair, improvement or construction of, such progpénanced or leased by such Indebtedness andu@ liens do not extend to any prop
of Borrower other than the property (and proceduseof) acquired, leased or built, or the improvetseor repairs, financed by st
Indebtedness;

(d) Liens of carriers, warehousemen, suppli@rsther Persons that are possessory in natuiagiisthe ordinary course
business so long as such Liens attach only to bovgnsecuring liabilities in the aggregate amonwit to exceed Two Hundred Fifty Thous
Dollars ($250,000.00), and which are not delinqguentemain payable without penalty or which arengetontested in good faith and
appropriate proceedings which proceedings havefthet of preventing the forfeiture or sale of flreperty subject thereto;

(e) Liens to secure payment of workers’ compgoisaemployment insurance, eldge pensions, social security and ¢
like obligations incurred in the ordinary coursebasiness (other than Liens imposed by ERISA);

() Liens incurred in the extension, renewalefinancing of the indebtedness secured by Liessrdeed in (a) through (c
butany extension, renewal or replacement Lien mudintieed to the property encumbered by the existifen and the principal amount of 1
indebtedness may not increase;

(g) leases or subleases of real property graimtétle ordinary course of Borrowsrbusiness (or, if referring to anot
Person, in the ordinary course of such Person'snbss), and leases, subleases,—eanlusive licenses or sublicenses of personal pig
(other than Intellectual Property) granted in tihimary course of Borrowes’business (or, if referring to another Persothéordinary cour
of such Persoss’ business), if the leases, subleases, licensesudnidenses do not prohibit granting CollaterakAgor any Lender a secul
interest therein;

(h) bankes liens, rights of setoff and Liens in favor ofdirial institutions incurred in the ordinary coursfebusines
arising in connection with Borrowex’deposit accounts or securities accounts heldict mstitutions solely to secure payment of feed
similar costs and expenses and provided such atsatmmaintained in compliance with Section 6.8@reof;

(i) Liens arising from judgments, decrees om@iments in circumstances not constituting an EwénbDefault unde
Section 8.4 or 8.7;

()) Liens on cash collateral securing Borrowetdebtedness to Bank under clause (j) of theniiefn of Permitte

Indebtedness, provided that the amount of such caligteral shall not exceed One Million Five HuedrThousand Dollars ($1,500,000.
lessthe amount of the Lien on cash collateral purstmotause (k) below, in the aggregate at any time
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(k) Liens on cash collateral securing Borrowdridebtedness under clause (m) of the definitfoResmitted Indebtedne:
provided that the amount of such cash collaterall stot exceed Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($300.00) in the aggregate at any ti
and

() Liens consisting of Permitted Licenses.

“ Person” is any individual, sole proprietorship, partnershimited liability company, joint venture, companyust, unincorporate
organization, association, corporation, institutipablic benefit corporation, firm, joint stock cpany, estate, entity or government agency.

“ Post Closing Letter” is that certain Post Closing Letter dated as of Efffective Date by and between Collateral Agent
Borrower.

“ Prepayment Fee” is, with respect to any Term Loan subject to prepayt prior to the Maturity Date, whether by mandator
voluntary prepayment, acceleration or otherwiseaddtitional fee payable to the Lenders in amountktp:

(i) for a prepayment made on or after the EffecDate through and including the first anniveysaf the Effectivi
Date, three percent (3.00%) of the principal amadirsuch Term Loan prepaid;

(i) for a prepayment made after the date whikhafter the first anniversary of the Effective Bahrough an
including the second anniversary of the Effectivad) two percent (2.00%) of the principal amounthef Term Loans prepaid; and

(i) for a prepayment made after the date whighfter the second anniversary of the Effectivae) one perce
(1.00%) of the principal amount of the Term Loanspaid.

“ Pro Rata Share” is, as of any date of determination, with respeadch Lender, a percentage (expressed as a demnnaded t
the ninth decimal place) determined by dividing th&tstanding principal amount of Term Loans heldsogh Lender by the aggrec
outstanding principal amount of all Term Loans.

“ Registered Organization” is any “registered organizatioras defined in the Code with such additions to deam as may hereaf
be made

“ Required Lenders” means (i) for so long as all of the Persons #ratLenders on the Effective Date (each @riginal Lender ")
have not assigned or transferred any of their éstsrin their Term Loans, Lenders holding one hedigrercent (100.00%) of the aggre:
outstanding principal balance of the Term Loangjipat any time from and after any Original Lendias assigned or transferred any intere
its Term Loans, Lenders holding at least sixty g@xcent (66.00%) of the aggregate outstanding ipahdalance of the Term Loans and
respect of this clause (ii), (A) each Original Lendhat has not assigned or transferred any podifdts Term Loans, (B) each assigne:
transferee of an Original Lendsrinterest in a Term Loan, but only to the extéatt such assignee or transferee is an Affiliatémprovec
Fund of such Original Lender, and (C) any Persawiging financing to any Person described in claygg and (B) above; provided, howe\
that this clause (C) shall only apply upon the ommce of a default, event of default or similactence with respect to such financing.

“ Requirement of Law ” is as to any Person, the organizational or govgrdiocuments of such Person, and any law (statut
common), treaty, rule or regulation or determirmatg an arbitrator or a court or other Governmeatathority, in each case applicable tc
binding upon such Person or any of its propertipawhich such Person or any of its property is sobj

“ Responsible Officer” is any of the President, Chief Executive Officer,Chief Financial Officer of Borrower acting atan

“ Secured Promissory Not¢ is defined in Section 2.4.
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“ Secured Promissory Note Record is a record maintained by each Lender with respe¢he outstanding Obligations owed
Borrower to Lender and credits made thereto.

“ Securities Account” is any “securities account” as defined in the €adth such additions to such term as may herebéieanade.

“ Shares” is one hundred percent (100.00%) of the issuedbatstanding capital stock, membership units orrosieeurities owned
held of record by Borrower or Borrowsr'Subsidiary, in any Subsidiary; provided thatthe event Borrower, demonstrates to Colla
Agent’s reasonable satisfaction, that a pledge of mae $ixty five percent (65.00%) of the Shares obeelgn Subsidiary, creates a pre:
and existing adverse tax consequence to Borrowderuthe U.S. Internal Revenue Code, “Shares” shalin sixtyfive percent (65.00%)
the issued and outstanding capital stock, memhenrshits or other securities owned or held of redmydBorrower or its Subsidiary in stL
Foreign Subsidiary.

“ Solvent” is, with respect to any Person: the fair salabddue of such Persom’consolidated assets (including goodwill m
disposition costs) exceeds the fair value of sustsdhs liabilities; such Person is not left with unreaaloly small capital after the transacti
in this Agreement; and such Person is able to fsageibts (including trade debts) as they mature.

“ Subordinated Debt” is indebtedness incurred by Borrower or any oSSibsidiaries subordinated to all Indebtedness ofdcel
and/or its Subsidiaries to the Lenders (pursuaatgabordination, intercreditor, or other similgreement in form and substance satisfactc
Collateral Agent and the Lenders entered into betw€ollateral Agent, Borrower, and/or any of itdbSidiaries, and the other creditor),
terms acceptable to Collateral Agent and the Lender

“ Subsidiary " is, with respect to any Person, any Person of wiiohe than fifty percent (50.00%) of the votingcit@r other equit
interests (in the case of Persons other than catipos) is owned or controlled, directly or indilgc by such Person or through one or n
intermediaries.

“ SVB New Money Term Loan” is defined in Section 2.2(a)(ii)(B) hereof.

“ SVB Pay Off Term Loan” is defined in Section 2.2(a)(ii)(A) hereof.

“ SVB Term Loan " is defined in Section 2.2(a)(ii)(B) hereof.

“ Term Loan " is defined in Section 2.2(a)(ii)(C) hereof.

“ Term Loan Commitment ” is, for any Lender, the obligation of such Lendemtake a Term Loan, up to the principal amount si
on Schedule 1.1* Term Loan Commitments” means the aggregate amount of such commitmerd bénders.

“ Trademarks ” means any trademark and servicemark rights, whetigéstered or not, applications to register amyisteations of th
same and like protections, and the entire good#ilhe business of Borrower connected with and ylinéd by such trademarks.

“ Transfer " is defined in Section 7.1.

[ Balance of Page Intentionally Left Blank
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF , the parties hereto have caused this Agreemdrg texecuted as of the Effective Date.

COLLATERAL AGENT: BORROWER:

OXFORD FINANCE LLC HALOZYME THERAPEUTICS, INC.
By /s/ Mark Davis By /s/ David A. Ramsay
Name__Mark Davis Name_: David A. Ramsay

Title : Vice-President Finance, Secretary & Treasurer Title : VP, Chief Financial Officer
LENDERS: HALOZYME, INC.

OXFORD FINANCE LLC
By /s/ David A. Ramsay
Name_: David A. Ramsay
By /s/ Mark Davis Title : VP, Chief Financial Officer
Name_: Mark Davis
Title : Vice-President Finance, Secretary & Treasurer

SILICON VALLEY BANK

By /s/ R. Michael White
Name_: R. Michael White
Title : Managing Director

[ Signature Page to Amended and Restated Loan anduBgcAgreement




SCHEDULE 1.1

Lenders and Commitments

Original Term Loans*

Lender Term Loan Commitment Commitment Percentage
OXFORD FINANCE LLC $21,000,000.00 70.00%
SILICON VALLEY BANK $9,000,000.00 30.00%

TOTAL $30,000,000.00 100.00%

Incremental Term Loan Amounts

Lender Term Loan Commitment Commitment Percentage
OXFORD FINANCE LLC $19,000,000.00 95.00%
SILICON VALLEY BANK $1,000,000.00 5.00%

TOTAL $20,000,000.00 100.00%

Aggregate (all Term Loans)

Lender Term Loan Commitment Commitment Percentage
OXFORD FINANCE LLC $40,000,000.00 80.00%
SILICON VALLEY BANK $10,000,000.00 20.00%

TOTAL $50,000,000.00 100.00%

*Original Terms Loans were made on December 282201




EXHIBIT A

Description of Collateral

The Collateral consists of all of Borrower’s rigtitie and interest in and to the following persiomaperty:

All goods, Accounts (including heattbare receivables), Equipment, Inventory, contragtts or rights to payment of money, lea
license agreements, franchise agreements, Genwmaigibles (except as noted below), commercial ttatms, documents, instrume
(including any promissory notes), chattel paper dilibr tangible or electronic), cash, deposit actsoamd other Collateral Accounts,
certificates of deposit, fixtures, letters of ctedghts (whether or not the letter of credit isdemnced by a writing), securities, and all o
investment property, supporting obligations, amérficial assets, whether now owned or hereaften@etjuvherever located; and

All Borrower’s Books relating to the foregoing, and any andlalims, rights and interests in any of the abow @hsubstitutions fo
additions, attachments, accessories, accessionsngndvements to and replacements, products, pdsceed insurance proceeds of any ¢
of the foregoing.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Collateral doesinclude any Intellectual Property; providedwewer, the Collateral shall inclu
all Accounts and all proceeds of Intellectual Propelf a judicial authority (including a U.S. Banlptcy Court) would hold that a secu
interest in the underlying Intellectual Propertynscessary to have a security interest in such ésoand such property that are procee:
Intellectual Property, then the Collateral shallomoatically, and effective as of the Effective Défier this purpose, as defined in the Orig
Agreement), include the Intellectual Property te éxtent necessary to permit perfection of ColédtAgent’s security interest in such Accou
and such other property of Borrower that are prdsead the Intellectual Property. Further, notwittmating any provision in this Agreemen
the contrary, the grant of security interest hestiall not extend to and the term “Collatersitiall not include (i) the Shares of Halozyme ov
by Parent, (ii) Excluded Accounts, and (iii) moten sixtyfive percent (65.00%) of the Shares of any Foresgivsidiary of Borrower
Borrower demonstrates to Collateral Agent’'s reablmaatisfaction that a pledge of more than sfitg-percent (65.00%) of the Shares of ¢
Foreign Subsidiary creates a present and existiigrae tax consequence to Borrower under the dt&nal Revenue Code.

Pursuant to the terms of a certain negative pledgengement with Collateral Agent and the LendBrrower has agreed not
encumber any of its Intellectual Property.




EXHIBIT B -1

Form of Disbursement Letter

[see attached]




DISBURSEMENT LETTER
December 27, 2013

The undersigned, being the duly elected and aaibALOZYME THERAPEUTICS, INC. a Delaware corporation (Parent ") anc
HALOZYME, INC. , a California corporation (Halozyme”; Halozyme and Parent are individually and colilesly, jointly and severally, *
Borrower "), both with offices located at 11388 Sorrento l¢glRoad, San Diego, CA 92121, do hereby certif@¥-ORD FINANCE LLC
(* Oxford " and “ Lender "), as collateral agent (the Collateral Agent ) in connection with that certain Amended and Redtaigan an
Security Agreement dated as of December 27, 201and among Borrower, Collateral Agent and the lezadrom time to time party ther:
(the “Loan Agreement”; with other capitalized terms used below havihg meanings ascribed thereto in the Loan Agreentiesitt)

1. The representations and warranties made lso®er in Section 5 of the Loan Agreement and i ¢ther Loan Documents
true and correct in all material respects as ofitite hereof.

2. No event or condition has occurred that woedstitute an Event of Default under the Loan Agment or any other Lo
Document.

3. Borrower is in compliance with the covenaantsl requirements contained in Sections 4, 6 arfdffed_oan Agreement.

4. All conditions referred to in Section 3 okethoan Agreement to the making of the Loan to beéenan or about the date her
have been satisfied or waived by Collateral Agent.

5. No Material Adverse Change has occurred.

6. The undersigned is a Responsible Officer.

[Balance of Page Intentionally Left Blank]




7.

8.

9.

Account Name:

The proceeds of the Term Loan shall be dimias follows:

Disbursement from Oxford:
Aggregate Oxford Term Loan Amount

Plus:
—--Deposit Received

Less:

--Amount of Original Term Loan
--Amount of Accrued Interest
--Amount of Existing Final Payment

[--Interim Interest

--Lender’s Legal Fees

Net Proceeds due from Oxford:

Disbursement from SVB:
Aggregate SVB Term Loan Amount

Plus:
--Deposit Received

Less:

--Amount of Original Term Loan
--Amount of Accrued Interest
--Amount of Existing Final Payment

[-—Interim Interest

Net Proceeds due from SVB:

TOTAL TERM LOAN NET PROCEEDS FROM LENDERS

The Term Loans shall amortize in accordanitie the Amortization Table attached hereto.

Bank Name:

Bank Address:

Account Number: 3300664625
ABA Number: 121140399

$
$
¢
¢ )

(63 )

$
$
$

G )

HALOZYME, INC.
Silicon Valley Bank

3003 Tasman Drive
Santa Clara, California 95054

The aggregate net proceeds of the Term Lslaal§ be transferred to the Designated Deposit Atas follows:




[Balance of Page Intentionally Left Blank]




Dated as of the date first set forth above.

BORROWER:

HALOZYME THERAPEUTICS, INC.

By _
Name:__
Title: _

HALOZYME, INC.

By _

Name:__

Title: _

COLLATERAL AGENT:

OXFORD FINANCE LLC

By _
Name:__
Title: _

LENDERS:

OXFORD FINANCE LLC

By _
Name:__
Title: _

SILICON VALLEY BANK

By_
Name_
Title: _

[ Signature Page to Disbursement Letter




AMORTIZATION TABLE
(Term Loan)




Oxford Finance & SVB
Amortization Table

Halozyme AAO02
Start Date: 12/27/2013 Disclaimer:
Interest Rate: 7.55% THIS 1S A STANDARD AMORTIZATION
Term: 48 1210 + 36 Pl SCHEDULE. IT IS NOT INTENDED TO BE
Payment: 51556 459 34 USED FOR PAYOFF PURPOSES.
Final Payment: $4,250,000.00 8.50%
Amount:  50,000,000.00
PMT Payment Beginning Monthly Ending
No. Date Balance Payment Interest Principal Balance
1114 Interim Interest Due 550.,000,000.00
1 2114 $50.000,000.00 $314,583.33 $314,583.33 $0.00 $50,000,000.00
2 N4 $50.000,000.00 $314,583.33 $314,583.33 50.00 $50,000,000.00
3 4/114 550.,000,000.00 $314 583.33 $314,6583.33 30.00 $560,000,000.00
4 5114 $50,000.000.00 $314,583.33 $314.583.33 $0.00 $50.000.000.00
5 6/1/14 $50.000.000.00 $314,583.33 $314.583.33 $0.00 $50.,000.000.00
6 7114 $50,000,000.00 $314,583.33 $314,583.33 30.00 $50,000,000.00
7 8/1/14 $560.000,000.00 $314,583.33 $314.583.33 50.00 $50.000,000.00
8 9114 $50.000,000.00 5314 .583.33 3314 583.33 $0.00 550.,000,000.00
9 101714 $60,000,000.00 $314,583.33 $314,583.33 30.00 $50,000,000.00
10 1MAM4 $50.000,000.00 $314,583.33 $314,583.33 50.00 $50,000.000.00
11 1211/14 550.000,000.00 5314 583.33 $314,683.33 50.00 5560.000,000.00
12 1115 $50,000,000.00 $314,583.33 $314,583.33 $0.00 $50,000.000.00
13 2115 $20,000.000.00 $1,556,453.34 $314.583.33 51.241.876.00 548,758,124 00
14 3MM5 548,758,124 .00 $1.556.459.34 $306,769.66 51,249,689 47 $47.608,434 52
15 4115 547,508,434 .52 51,556,459 34 $298.907.23 51,257 55210 546,250,882 .42
16 5115 546,250,882 42 $1.556.459.34 529099514 $1.265 464 20 544 985,418.22
17 6/1/15 544,985 418.22 $1,556.459.34 $283.033.26 51,273 426 08 $43.711,992.14
18 715 $43.711,992.14 $1,556.459.34 3275.021.28 $1.281.438.05 $42,430,554.08
19 8115 542 430,554 08 51.556.469.34 $266,956.90 $1.289.500.43 541,141,053.65
20 91115 $41,141.053.65 51,556,459 34 $258.845.80 51,297 613 54 $39,843.440.11
21 10115 $39.843440.11 51,556,459 34 $250.681.64 $1,305,777.63 $38,537.662.41
22 111115 538,537,662 .41 $1,556.459.34 5242 466.13 $1,313.993.21 537,223,669.20
23 121715 $37.223,669.20 51.556.459.34 $234,198.92 51,322 260 42 $35.901.408.79
24 11116 $35.901,408.79 $1.556.459.34 $225.879.70 $1.330,579.64 $34,570.829.15
25 2/1/16 $34,570,829.15 51,556,459 34 $217,508.13 $1,338.951.20 $33,231,877.94
26 nne $33,231.877.94 $1,556,453.34 $209.083.90 $1,347.375.44 $31.884,502.50
27 4/1/16 531,884,502 .50 $1.556.459.34 $200,606.66 $1,355,852 6b 530,528,649 83
28 51116 $30,528,649.83 51,556,459 34 $192,076.09 $1,364,383 25 $29,164,266.58
29 6/1/16 $29,164,266.58 $1.556.459.34 $183,491.84 51,372,967 49 $27,791,299.09
30 71116 $27,791,299.09 $1,556.459.34 $174,853.59 $1,381,605.75 $26,409,693.34
3 8/1/16 $26.409,693.34 $1,556.459.34 $166,160.99 £1.390,298.35 $25,019.394.99
32 9/1/16 525,019,394 .99 51.556.459.34 $157.413.69 $1.399.045 64 $23,620,349.34
33 10/1/16 $23,620,349.34 51,656,469 34 $148,611.36 $1,407.847.97 522,212 501.37
34 11118 $22.212.501.37 51,556,459 34 $139.753.65 51.416.705.68 $20.795.795.69
35 121116 520,795,795.69 $1.556.459.34 $130.840.21 51.425.619.12 $19.370176.57
36 17 $19.370.176.57 51,556,459 34 $121,870.69 51,434 588 64 $17,935,587.92
37 2nnr $17.935,587.92 $1.556.459.34 3112.844.74 $1.443.614.60 $16,491,973.33
38 nnT $16,491,973.33 $1,556.459.34 $103,762.00 51,452,697 34 $15,039.275.99
39 417 $156.039.275.99 $1,556.459.34 $94.622.11 §1.461,837.23 $13,577,438.76
40 51MT $13,577,438.76 51.556.459.34 568542472 51,471,034 62 $12.106.404 15
41 6117 512,106,404 15 51,656,469 34 $76,169.46 51,480,289 88 510.626,114.27
42 TAT $10.626.114.27 $1,556.459.34 $66.855.97 51.489.603.37 $9.136.510.90
43 8MT $9.136.510.90 $1.556.459.34 557 483.88 51,498,975 46 $7,637.535.44
44 9T $7.637.535.44 51,556,459 34 $48.052.83 $1,608 406 51 $6,129,125.93
45 10117 $6.129,128.93 $1.556.459.34 $38.562.44 51.,517.896.90 34.611.232.03
46 MAMT $4.611.232.03 $1,556.459.34 529,012.33 51,527 .447.00 $3.083.785.03
47 12117 $3.083.785.03 $1,556.459.34 $19,402.15 $1.537,057.13 51.546.727.84
48 1/1/18 51,546,727 84 51.556.459.34 $9.731.50 51,546,727 84 (30.00)
Final 1/1/M18 Final $4.250.000.00 $4,250.000.00 $0.00
Totals 364.057.636.14  $14,057.536.14  550.000,000.00




EXHIBIT B -2
Loan Payment/Advance Request Form
DEADLINE FOR SAME DAY PROCESSING IS NOON PACIFIC TI ME*

Fax To: 858-622-1424 Date:

LOAN PAYMENT
HALOZYME THERAPEUTICS, INC. and HALOZYME, INC.

From Account # 0 AcEount #
(Deposit Account #) (Loanchant #)
Principal $ and/or Interest $

Authorized Signature: ~ Phone Number:_
Print Name/Title,__

LOAN ADVANCE :
CompleteOutgoing Wire Requesection below if all or a portion of the funds frahis loan advance are for an outgoing wire.

From Account # 0 AcEount #
(Loan Account #) (Depositcaant #)

Amount of Advance $

All Borrower’s representations and warranties i& Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreeanerttue, correct and complete in all material eespon the date of the
request for an advance; provided, however, that suateriality qualifier shall not be applicableatioy representations and warranties that alreadgusified or modified by
materiality in the text thereof; and provided, hat that those representations and warranties esigreeferring to a specific date shall be trueuaate and complete in all material
respects as of such date :

Authorized Signature: . Phone Number:_
Print Name/Title;__

OUTGOING WIRE REQUEST
Complete only if all or a portion of funds from theloan advance above is to be wired.
Deadline for same day processing is noon, PacifieT

Beneficiary Name: Amount of Wire: $ _
Beneficiary Bank: Account Number:_
City and State;__

Beneficiary Bank Transit (ABA) #:__ Beneficiary Bank Code (Swift, Sort, Chip, etc.)

(For International Wire Only)
Intermediary Bank: _  Transit (ABA) #__
For Further Credit to:

Special Instruction:
By signing below, | (we) acknowledge and agree itma(our) funds transfer request shall be processedcordance with and subject to the terms anti¢émns set forth in th
agreements(s) covering funds transfer service(siciwagreements(s) were previously received anduged by me (us).

Authorized Signature: 2™Signature (if required):
Print Name/Title: Print Name/Title:
Telephone #: Telephone #:




EXHIBIT C

Compliance Certificate

TO: OXFORD FINANCE LLC, as Collateral Agent andrider
SILICON VALLEY BANK, as Lender

FROM: HALOZYME THERAPEUTICS, INC.
HALOZYME, INC.

The undersigned authorized officers (collectivelye “ Officers ") of HALOZYME THERAPEUTICS, INC. and HALOZYME, INC
(individually and collectively, jointly and sevelgl “ Borrower "), hereby certify that in accordance with the termd aonditions of th
Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreemeahthyamong Borrower, Collateral Agent, and the leeadrom time to time party ther:
(the “Loan Agreement;” capitalized terms used but not otherwise defihetkin shall have the meanings given them in trenLAgreement),

(&) Borrower is in complete compliance for tlegipd ending with all required cawes except as noted below;

(b) There are no Events of Default, except aschbelow;

(c) Except as noted below, all representationt \@arranties of Borrower stated in the Loan Docot®i@re true and correct in all mate
respects on this date and for the period desciib€i, above; provided, however, that such matityigualifier shall not be applicable to &
representations and warranties that already ardfigdaor modified by materiality in the text thef and provided, further that thc
representations and warranties expressly refetoirggspecific date shall be true, accurate and s all material respects as of such date.

(d) Borrower, and each of Borrower’s Subsidigyrieas timely filed all required tax returns andoms, Borrower, and each of Borrower’
Subsidiaries, has timely paid all foreign, fedes#hte, and local taxes, assessments, depositoatributions owed by Borrower, or Subsidii
except as otherwise permitted pursuant to the tefrSgction 5.8 of the Loan Agreement;

(e) No Liens have been levied or claims madenag8orrower or any of its Subsidiaries relatimgunpaid employee payroll or benefits
which Borrower has not previously provided writtastification to Collateral Agent and the Lenders.

Attached are the required documents, if any, supmpour certification(s). The Officers, on behaff each Borrower (as applicable), furt
certify that the attached financial statements @epared in accordance with Generally Accepted Anting Principles (GAAP) and ¢
consistently applied from one period to the nextegt as explained in an accompanying letter omiatets and except, in the case of unau
financial statements, for the absence of footnatessubject to yeaend audit adjustments as to the interim finandetements.

Please indicate compliance status since the lasti@pliance Certificate by circling Yes, No, or N/A urder “Complies” column.




1)
2)

3)

5)

6)
7
8)

9)

Reporting Covenant

Requirement Actual

Complies

Financial statements

Annual (CPA Audited)
statements

Annual Financial
Projections/Budget (prepared
a monthly basis)

8-K, 10-K and 16-Q Filings

Compliance Certificate
IP Report

Total amount of Borrower’s
cash and cash equivalents at
last day of the measurement
period

Total amount of Borrower’s
Subsidiaries’ cash and cash
equivalents at the last day of the

measurement period

Deposit and Securities Accounts

Quarterly within 45 days

Earlier of 5 days after filing
with SEC or 210 days after
FYE

Annually (earlier of 7 days
following board-approval or
60 days after FYE) and when
revised

If applicable, within 5 days of
filing

Monthly within 45 days
When required

(Please list all accounts; attach separate sheetdtlitional space needed)

Institution Name
1)
2)
3)
4)

Other Matters

Account Number

Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes

New Account?

No
No
No
No

1) Have there been any changes in management sit¢astiCompliance Certificate?

2) Agreement?

3)

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Have there been any transfers/sales/disposalefretint of Collateral or IP prohibited by the Loan

Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes

Have there been any new or pending claims or cafsagion against Borrower that involve more than
Two Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($250,000.00)?

Have there been any amendments of or other chaogles capitalization table of Borrower and to the
4)  Operating Documents of Borrower or any of its Sdiasies? If yes, provide copies of any such
amendments or changes with this Compliance Ceatéic

No
No

No

No

No
No

No

No

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

N/A
N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A
N/A

N/A

N/A

Account Control Agreement in place?

No
No
No
No

No

No

No

No




Exceptions

Please explain any exceptions with respect to ¢hification above: (If no exceptions exist, stdti® exceptions.” Attach separate sheet if
additional space needed.)

HALOZYME THERAPEUTICS, INC. HALOZYME, INC.

By: By:
Name: Name:
Title: Title:
Date: Date:

LENDER USE ONLY

Received by: Date:

Verified by: Date: ___

Compliance Status: Yes No




EXHIBIT D

Form of Secured Promissory Note

SECURED PROMISSORY NOTE
(Term Loan)

$ Dated: December 27, 2013

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned, HALOZYME THERAEUTICS, INC. a Delaware corporation Parent ") anc
HALOZYME, INC., a California corporation (Halozyme”; Halozyme and Parent are individually and colleadly, jointly and severally, “
Borrower "), both with offices located at 11388 Sorrento ValRgad, San Diego, CA 92121, HEREBY PROMISE TO PAMhe order ¢
[OXFORD FINANCE LLC][SILICON VALLEY BANK] (* Lender ") the principal amount of | MILLION DOLIRE
% ) or such lesser amount as shadll doe outstanding principal balance of the Tewarmade to Borrower by Lender,
interest on the aggregate unpaid principal amofistich Term Loan, at the rates and in accordantfethve terms of the Amended and Rest
Loan and Security Agreement dated December 27, P91and among Borrower, Lender, Oxford Finance LBE Collateral Agent, and 1
other Lenders from time to time party thereto (azemded, restated, supplemented or otherwise mddif@m time to time, the ‘Loan
Agreement”). If not sooner paid, the entire principal amount afidaccrued and unpaid interest hereunder shatlueeand payable on 1
Maturity Date as set forth in the Loan AgreememyA&apitalized term not otherwise defined hereialldmave the meaning attributed to s
term in the Loan Agreement.

Principal, interest and all other amounts due wétspect to the Term Loan, are payable in lawful eyoof the United States of America
Lender as set forth in the Loan Agreement andSkisured Promissory Note (this\'bte ”). The principal amount of this Note and the inte
rate applicable thereto, and all payments made ne&pect thereto, shall be recorded by Lenderanat, to any transfer hereof, endorsed or
grid attached hereto which is part of this Note.

The Loan Agreement, among other things, (a) pravifte the making of a secured Term Loan by LendeBorrower, and (b) contai
provisions for acceleration of the maturity herapbn the happening of certain stated events.

This Note may not be prepaid except as set forBeiction 2.2 (c) and Section 2.2(d) of the Loane&gnent.

This Note and the obligation of Borrower to rephg unpaid principal amount of the Term Loan, irder@n the Term Loan and all ot
amounts due Lender under the Loan Agreement igsgaunder the Loan Agreement.

Presentment for payment, demand, notice of pratedtall other demands and notices of any kind imeotion with the execution, delive
performance and enforcement of this Note are henetiyed.

Borrower shall pay all reasonable fees and expeirsglsding, without limitation, reasonable attoysefees and costs, incurred by Lende
the enforcement or attempt to enforce any of Boerdswobligations hereunder not performed when due.

This Note shall be governed by, and construed atedgreted in accordance with, the internal lawthefState of California.

The ownership of an interest in this Note shallregistered on a record of ownership maintained bgder or its agent. Notwithstand
anything else in this Note to the contrary, théntig the principal of, and stated interest ons thote may be transferred only if the transf
registered on such record of ownership and thesteaee is identified as the owner of an interegsh@obligation. Borrower shall be entitlec
treat the registered holder of this Note (as resoron such recordf ownership) as the owner in fact thereof forpltposes and shall not
bound to recognize any equitable or other claimrtimterest in this Note on the part of any otherspn or entity.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Borrower has caused this Notbe duly executed by one of its officers thereuhity authorized on tt
date hereof.

BORROWER:
HALOZYME THERAPEUTICS, INC.
By_

Name._
Title: _

HALOZYME, INC.
By_

Name_
Title: _




LOAN INTEREST RATE AND PAYMENTS OF PRINCIPAL

Principal Scheduled
Date Amount Interest Rate Payment Amount Notation By




EXHIBIT E

CORPORATE BORROWING CERTIFICATE

BORROWER: [HALOZYME THERAPEUTICS, INC.] DATE : December 27, 201
[HALOZYME, INC.]
Lenders: OXFORD FINANCE LLC, as Collateral Agent and Lender

SILICON VALLEY BANK, as Lender

| hereby certify as follows, as of the date setf@bove:
1. | am the Secretary, Assistant Secretary logradfficer of Borrower. My title is as set fortielbw.

2. Borrower’s exact legal name is set forth aboBorrower is a corporation existing under the dawf the State of [DELAWARE]
[CALIFORNIA] .

3. Attached hereto as Exhibit#nd_Exhibit B, respectively, are true, correct and complete eopif (i) Borrowers Articles/Certificate ¢
Incorporation (including amendments), as filed witle Secretary of State of the state in which Beemwis incorporated as set forth
paragraph 2 above; and (ii) BorronerBylaws. Neither such Articles/Certificate of Imgoration nor such Bylaws have been amer
annulled, rescinded, revoked or supplemented, aold Articles/Certificate of Incorporation and suBjlaws remain in full force and effect

of the date hereof.

4. The following resolutions were duly and vbliddopted by Borrowes Board of Directors at a duly held meeting of sdalectors (o
pursuant to a unanimous written consent or oth#ragized corporate action). Such resolutions areilliforce and effect as of the date he
and have not been in any way modified, repealestimded, amended or revoked, and the Lenders nhapmahem until each Lender recei
written notice of revocation from Borrower.
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RESOLVED , thatany oneof the following officers or employees of Borrowarhose names, titles and signatures are below,ati
on behalf of Borrower:

Authorized to Add

or Remove
Name Title Signature Signatories
- - O
- - O
- - O
O

RESOLVED FURTHER, thatany oneof the persons designated above with a checkedésixle his or her name may, from tim
time, add or remove any individuals to and fromdbeve list of persons authorized to act on batfeforrower.

RESOLVED FURTHER, that such individuals may, on behalf of Borrower:

Borrow Money . Borrow money from the Lenders.

Execute Loan Documents Execute any loan documents any Lender requires.

Grant Security . Grant Collateral Agent a security interest in aff3orrower’s assets.

Negotiate Items. Negotiate or discount all drafts, trade accepanpromissory notes, or other indebtedness inhwBarrower has ¢
interest and receive cash or otherwise use theepdsc

Further Acts . Designate other individuals to request advanpay, fees and costs and execute other documentgreeraent
(including documents or agreement that waive Boemsvright to a jury trial) they believe to be necegst effectuate sur
resolutions.

RESOLVED FURTHER, that all acts authorized by the above resolutiarisany prior acts relating thereto are ratified.
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5. The persons listed above are Borrower’s effior employees with their titles and signatuhesa next to their names.

By: _
Name_
Title: _

*** |f the Secretary, Assistant Secretary or otleartifying officer executing above is designatedh®yresolutions set forth in paragraph 4
one of the authorized signing officers, this Cixdife must also be signed by a second authoriZezkobr director of Borrower.

I, the of B orrowerlhecertify as to paragraphs 1 through 5 above, as
[print title]
of the date set forth above.

By:__
Name_
Title: _

[ Signature Page to Corporate Borrowing Certificate




EXHIBIT A

Articles/Certificate of Incorporation (including am endments)

AMENDED AND RESTATED CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
OF
HALOZYME THERAPEUTICS, INC.
(Pursuant to Sections 242 and 245 of the GenengddCation Law of the State of Delaware)

Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc., a corporation orgahaed existing under the General Corporation LathefState of Delaware on August 23,
2007 (the “Corporation”) certifies as follows:

1. The Corporation’s Amended and Restated @maté of Incorporation was duly adopted by the BazfrDirectors and sole stockholder by
written consent in accordance with Sections 2422%of the General Corporation Law.

2. The Corporation’s Certificate of Incorporatis amended and restated to read in full as falow
FIRST: The name of the corporation is:
Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc.

SECOND: The address of its registered office in 8tate of Delaware is The Corporation Trust Compd309 Orange Street, City
Wilmington, County of New Castle. The name of tegistered agent at that address is The Corporatigst Company.

THIRD: The nature of the business or purposes todmelucted or promoted is to engage in any lawdtloa activity for which corporatiol
may be organized under the General Corporation dfaidelaware.

FOURTH: The corporation is authorized to issue thasses of stock, to be designated “Common Staeitti’ a par value of $0.001 per shi
and “Preferred Stock,ith a par value of $0.001 per share. The total Imemof shares of Common Stock that the corporasivedl hav:
authority to issue is 150,000,000, and the totahiper of shares of Preferred Stock that the cororathall have authority to issue
20,000,000.

The corporatiors Board of Directors is authorized, subject to &mytations prescribed by law, to provide for tresuance of the shares
Preferred Stock in series, and by filing a cerifec pursuant to the applicable law of the statBelaware, to establish from time to time
number of shares to be included in each such sengsto fix the designation, powers, preferencesragghts of the shares of each such s
and any qualifications, limitations or restrictiath&reof. The number of authorized shares of aaysobf capital stock of the corporation ma
increased or decreased (but not below the numbsharkes thereof then outstanding) by the affirneatiote of the holders of a majority of
outstanding Common Stock of the corporation, withibe approval of the holders of the Preferred Igtoc of any series thereof, unless
approval of any such holders is required pursuattié certificate or certificates establishing aryies of Preferred Stock.

FIFTH:

A. The business and affairs of the corporation shalnanaged by or under the direction of the BoarDigctors. In addition
the powers and authority expressly conferred upemtby statute or by this Certificate of Incorpmator the Bylaws of tt
corporation, the directors are hereby empoweredxgrcise all such powers and do all such acts himfjg as may t
exercised or done by the corporation. Electionifaiors need not be by written ballot, unlessBlkws so provide.




B. Any action required or permitted to be taken bystaekholders of the Corporation must be effecteal duly called annual
special meeting of stockholders of the Corporatind may not be effected by any consent in writipguich stockholders.

SIXTH: The Board of Directors is expressly empowiete adopt, amend or repeal Bylaws of the CorponatAny adoption, amendment
repeal of Bylaws of the Corporation by the BoardDafectors shall require the approval of a majodfythe directors present at any regule
special meeting of the Board of Directors at whaciuorum is present. The stockholders shall alse pawer to adopt, amend or repeal
Bylaws of the Corporation. Any adoption, amendmantepeal of Bylaws of the Corporation by the stamllers shall require, in addition
any vote of the holders of any class or seriesafksof the Corporation required by law or by t@iertificate of Incorporation, the affirmati
vote of the holders of at least a majority of tlting power of all of the then outstanding sharethe capital stock of the Corporation enti
to vote generally in the election of directors,imgttogether as a single class.

SEVENTH: A director of the Corporation shall not personally liable to the Corporation or its stowkiers for monetary damages for bre
of fiduciary duty as a director, except for liabjl(i) for any breach of the directerduty of loyalty to the Corporation or its stoclders, (i) foi
acts or omissions not in good faith or which invemlvintentional misconduct or a knowing violation lafv, (iii) under Section 174 of t
Delaware General Corporation Law, or (iv) for argnsaction from which the director derived an inganopersonal benefit.

If the Delaware General Corporation Law is hereadteended to authorize the further eliminationimithtion of the liability of a director, the
the liability of a director of the Corporation shibé eliminated or limited to the fullest extentrétted by the Delaware General Corpora
Law, as so amended.

Any repeal or modification of the foregoing prowiss of this Article SEVENTH by the stockholderstbé Corporation shall not advers
affect any right or protection of a director of fierporation existing at the time of such repeahodification.

EIGHTH: The Corporation reserves the right to amendepeal any provision contained in this Cerdifec of Incorporation in the mani
prescribed by the laws of the State of Delawareadintdights conferred upon stockholders are grastdgject to this reservation.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Corporation has caused Amended and Restated Certificate to be signed dylyaauthorized officer on tF
8th day of October, 2007.

Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc.

/s/ Jonathan E. Lim
Jonathan E. Lim
President and Chief Executive Officer
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EXHIBIT B

Bylaws

BYLAWS OF
HALOZYME THERAPEUTICS, INC.
ARTICLE |
STOCKHOLDERS

1.1 Place of MeetingsAll meetings of stockholders shall be held atsplace (if any) within or without the State of Befare as may be
designated from time to time by the Board of Dioest(the “Board”).

1.2 Annual Meeting The annual meeting of stockholders for the ebectif directors and for the transaction of sucteotiusiness as may
properly be brought before the meeting shall be bela date to be fixed by the Board of Directardha time and place to be fixed by the
Board of Directors and stated in the notice ofrtreeting. In lieu of holding an annual meeting otkholders at a designated place, the Boarc
of Directors may, in its sole discretion, determihat any annual meeting of stockholders may bé dalely by means of remote
communication.

1.3 Special MeetingsSpecial meetings of stockholders may be callethgttime by the Board of Directors, the Chairmathe Board, o
the holders of record of not less than 50% of tieres entitled to cast votes at the meeting, fgmpampose or purposes prescribed in the notic
of the meeting and shall be held at such placanff), on such date and at such time as the Boaydiman lieu of holding a special meeting
stockholders at a designated place, the BoardrefcRirs may, in its sole discretion, determine #mt special meeting of stockholders may be
held solely by means of remote communication. Bessrtransacted at any special meeting of stockisosdall be confined to the purpose or
purposes stated in the notice of meeting.

Upon a request in writing sent by registered nmthe Secretary of the corporation by any stockdmodst stockholders entitled to reque
special meeting of stockholders pursuant to thigi&e 1.3, which request contains the informatiequired pursuant to Sections 1.10 and 2.1¢
as applicable, and upon a determination by theeSagrof the validity of such request, it shallthe duty of the Secretary to present the rec
to the Board of Directors, whereupon the Board wé&ors (a) shall determine a place and time fichameeting, which time shall be not less
than 100 nor more than 120 days after the recéipich request, and (b) shall fix, in accordandi Biection 4.5, a record date for the
determination of stockholders entitled to voteusttsmeeting. Upon Board action as provided in 8#stion 1.3, the Secretary of the
corporation shall cause notice to be given to thekholders, in accordance with Section 1.4 heithaf, a meeting will be held for the purposes
set forth in the stockholder’s request, as wehlmmg additional purpose or purposes determined &Bthard of Directors in accordance with this
Section 1.3.

1.4 Notice of Meetings

(a) Written notice of each meeting of stockholdersether annual or special, shall be given nottlegs 10 nor more than 60 days
before the date on which the meeting is to be heldach stockholder entitled to vote at such mgegxcept as otherwise provided herein ¢
required by law (meaning here and hereafter, asined|from time to time by the Delaware Generalg@oation Law or the Certificate of
Incorporation). The notice of any meeting shaltesthe place, if any, date and hour of the meetind,the means of remote communication, if
any, by which stockholders and proxy holders magéemed to be present in person and vote at suetingpeThe notice of a special meeting
shall state, in addition, the purpose or purposesvhich the meeting is called. If mailed, notisegiven when deposited in the United States
mail, postage prepaid, directed to the stockhaddidnis address as it appears on the records abtiperation.
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(b) Notice to stockholders may be given by persdetivery, mail, or, with the consent of the stockler entitled to receive notice,
by facsimile or other means of electronic transmisslf mailed, such notice shall be delivered logtage prepaid envelope directed to each
stockholder at such stockholder’s address as ansgn the records of the corporation and shatldmmed given when deposited in the Unitec
States mail. Notice given by electronic transmisgiarsuant to this subsection shall be deemed g(L&if by facsimile telecommunication,
when directed to a facsimile telecommunication nendi which the stockholder has consented to reagitice; (2) if by electronic mail, when
directed to an electronic mail address at whichstbekholder has consented to receive noticef {8) posting on an electronic network
together with separate notice to the stockholdeuch specific posting, upon the later of (A) spolsting and (B) the giving of such separate
notice; and (4) if by any other form of electrohi@nsmission, when directed to the stockholderaffidavit of the secretary or an assistant
secretary or of the transfer agent or other agktiteocorporation that the notice has been givepdrgonal delivery, by mail, or by a form of
electronic transmission shall, in the absenceafdr be prima facie evidence of the facts staterkth.

(c) Notice of any meeting of stockholders needb®given to any stockholder if waived by such shtadéter either in a writing
signed by such stockholder or by electronic trassian, whether such waiver is given before or aftexh meeting is held. If such a waiver is
given by electronic transmission, the electroramsmission must either set forth or be submitted imformation from which it can be
determined that the electronic transmission walsaizted by the stockholder.

1.5 Voting List. The officer who has charge of the stock ledgehefcorporation shall prepare, at least 10 daj@®each meeting of
stockholders, a complete list of the stockholdetitled to vote at the meeting, arranged in alptiahkorder for each class of stock and
showing the address of each stockholder and thdeauof shares registered in the name of each sbdah Such list shall be open to the
examination of any such stockholder, for any puepgarmane to the meeting, during ordinary busihesss, for a period of at least 10 days
prior to the meeting, in the manner provided by.l@he list shall also be produced and kept atithe &ind place of the meeting during the
whole time of the meeting, and may be inspectedryystockholder who is present. This list shaledeine the identity of the stockholders
entitled to vote at the meeting and the numbehafes held by each of them.

1.6 Quorum Except as otherwise provided by law or these Bglahe holders of a majority of the shares ofddgital stock of the
corporation entitled to vote at the meeting, pregeperson or represented by proxy, shall constituquorum for the transaction of business.
Where a separate class vote by a class or classesi@s is required, a majority of the sharesuchsclass or classes or series present in persa
or represented by proxy shall constitute a quorntitled to take action with respect to that votetloat matter.

1.7 Adjournments Any meeting of stockholders may be adjournedipa@ther time and to any other place at which atmgef
stockholders may be held under these Bylaws bghh@&man of the meeting or, in the absence of peckon, by any officer entitled to preside
at or to act as secretary of such meeting, or byntiiders of a majority of the shares of stock gmésr represented at the meeting and entitled
to vote, although less than a quorum. When a ngéiadjourned to another place, date or time terihotice need not be given of the
adjourned meeting if the date, time, and placanyf, thereof, and the means of remote communicdfiany, by which stockholders and proxy
holders may be deemed to be present in personatadtsuch adjourned meeting, are announced atdleéng at which the adjournment is
taken; provided, however, that if the date of adiparned meeting is more than 30 days after the fitmtwhich the meeting was originally
noticed, or if a new record date is fixed for tligoarned meeting, written notice of the place nyadate, and time of the adjourned meeting
the means of remote communications, if any, by tvisiockholders and proxy holders may be deemed fwrdsent in person and vote at such
adjourned meeting, shall be given in conformityeléth. At the adjourned meeting, the corporatiory tmansact any business which might
have been transacted at the original meeting.

1.8 Voting and ProxiesEach stockholder shall have one vote for eaclestfastock entitled to vote held of record by satdckholder
and a proportionate vote for each fractional skarbeld, unless otherwise provided by law or inGleetificate of Incorporation. Each
stockholder of record entitled to vote at a meetihgtockholders may vote in person or may autleoaizy other person or persons to vote o
for him by written proxy executed by
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the stockholder or his authorized agent or by astrassion permitted by law and delivered to ther&acy of the corporation. Any copy,
facsimile transmission or other reliable reprodutinf the writing or transmission created pursdarthis Section may be substituted or used i
lieu of the original writing or transmission foryaand all purposes for which the original writingteansmission could be used, provided that
such copy, facsimile transmission or other reprtidacshall be a complete reproduction of the erdiiginal writing or transmission.

1.9 Action at Meeting When a quorum is present at any meeting, anyieheof directors shall be determined by a pluyatif the votes
cast by the stockholders entitled to vote at tket&ln, and any other matter shall be determined majority in voting power of the shares
present in person or represented by proxy andexhtid vote on the matter (or if there are two arenclasses of stock entitled to vote as
separate classes, then in the case of each swsh &leajority of the shares of each such claseptén person or represented by proxy and
entitled to vote on the matter) shall decide sualtten, except when a different vote is requireckgress provision of law, the Certificate of
Incorporation or these Bylaws.

All voting, including on the election of directofsit excepting where otherwise required by law, ipayy a voice vote provided,
however, that upon demand therefor by a stockhadgtied to vote or his or her proxy, a vote bjldiashall be taken. Each ballot shall state
the name of the stockholder or proxy voting anchsatber information as may be required under tleguiure established for the meeting. The
corporation may, and to the extent required by Eivell, in advance of any meeting of stockholdappoint one or more inspectors to act at th
meeting and make a written report thereof. The @@fon may designate one or more persons asemaié inspector to replace any inspecto
who fails to act. If no inspector or alternatelideato act at a meeting of stockholders, the pepeniding at the meeting may, and to the exten
required by law, shall, appoint one or more inspecto act at the meeting. Each inspector, befoterig upon the discharge of his duties,
shall take and sign an oath to faithfully exectieduties of inspector with strict impartiality aadcording to the best of his or her ability.

1.10 Notice of Stockholder Business

(a) At an annual or special meeting of the stoatéud, only such business shall be conducted ashehed been properly brought
before the meeting. To be properly brought beforarmual meeting, business must be (i) specifigdemotice of meeting (or any supplement
thereto) given by or at the direction of the Boafdirectors, (ii) properly brought before the niagtby or at the direction of the Board of
Directors, or (iii) properly brought before the rtieg by a stockholder of record. For business tptoperly brought before an annual meeting
by a stockholder, it must be a proper matter foclgtolder action under the Delaware General Cotfmordaw and the stockholder must have
given timely notice thereof in writing to the Seteng of the corporation. To be timely, a stockholgeposal to be presented at an annual
meeting shall be received at the corporation’sgipial executive offices not less than 120 daysrgddhe first anniversary of the date that the
corporation’s (or its predecessor’s) proxy statetmeas released to stockholders in connection viighprrevious year’s annual meeting of
stockholders, except that if no annual meeting ned in the previous year or the date of the anmesdting is more than 30 days earlier than
the date contemplated at the time of the previ@as’y proxy statement, notice by the stockholdeitsettimely must be received not later than
the close of business on the 10th day followingdig on which the date of the annual meeting idiplytannounced. “Public announcement”
for purposes hereof shall have the meaning sét forArticle Il, Section 2.15(c) of these Bylaws.no event shall the public announcement of
an adjournment or postponement of an annual meetingnence a new time period (or extend any timsggfor the giving of a
stockholder’s notice as described above. To begslpprought before a special meeting, businesd bribrought before the meeting by or at
the direction of the Board of Directors.

(b) A stockholders notice to the Secretary of the corporation stetlforth as to each matter the stockholder praptmsbring befor
the annual meeting (i) a brief description of tlusibess desired to be brought before the meeiihthé name and address, as they appear on
the Company’s books, of the stockholder proposugi dusiness and the name and address of the diahefiner, if any, on whose behalf the
business is being brought, (iii) the class and remalh shares of the corporation which are ownecfieially and of record by the stockholder
and such other beneficial owngiv) any material interest of the stockholder andhsother beneficial owner in such business anavfidther
either such stockholder or beneficial owner intetoddeliver a proxy
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statement and form of proxy to holders of at I¢lastpercentage of the corporation’s voting shaggsired under applicable law to carry the
proposal.

(c) Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions ofstiidylaw, a stockholder shall also comply with glplcable requirements of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Patid the rules and regulations thereunder withaetsto the matters set forth in this
Bylaw. Nothing in this Bylaw shall be deemed tceaffany rights of stockholders to request inclusibproposals in the corporation’s proxy
statement pursuant to Rule 14a-8 under the Exchaage

1.11 Conduct of Busines#t every meeting of the stockholders, the Chairragthe Board, or, in his or her absence, thei@ees, or, in
his or her absence, such other person as may loénégh by the Board of Directors, shall act as whan. The Secretary of the corporation or ¢
person designated by the chairman of the meetialyj &tt as secretary of the meeting. Unless otlerapproved by the chairman of the
meeting, attendance at the stockholders’ meetingsisicted to stockholders of record, personsaiztd in accordance with Section 1.8 of
these Bylaws to act by proxy, and officers of theporation.

The chairman of the meeting shall call the meetiingrder, establish the agenda, and conduct thaedassof the meeting in accordance
therewith or, at the chairman’s discretion, it nyconducted otherwise in accordance with the wisti¢ghe stockholders in attendance. The
date and time of the opening and closing of thésgol each matter upon which the stockholders vate at the meeting shall be announced a
the meeting.

The chairman shall also conduct the meeting inrderty manner, rule on the precedence of, and piireeon, motions and other
procedural matters, and exercise discretion wipeet to such procedural matters with fairnessgaradl faith toward all those entitled to take
part. Without limiting the foregoing, the chairmaray (a) restrict attendance at any time to boraidckholders of record and their proxies
and other persons in attendance at the invitatidheopresiding officer or Board of Directors, flepstrict use of audio or video recording dev
at the meeting, and (c) impose reasonable limithieramount of time taken up at the meeting onudision in general or on remarks by any
stockholder. Should any person in attendance becomdy or obstruct the meeting proceedings, tharaian shall have the power to have
such person removed from the meeting. Notwithstamdnything in the Bylaws to the contrary, no basishall be conducted at a meeting
except in accordance with the procedures set fortthis Section 1.11 and Section 1.10 above. Théretan of a meeting may determine and
declare to the meeting that any proposed item sin@ss was not brought before the meeting in aaome with the provisions of this
Section 1.11 and Section 1.10, and if he shouldesermine, he shall so declare to the meeting apdach business not properly brought
before the meeting shall not be transacted.

1.12 Stockholder Action Without Meeting

(a) The record date for determining stockholdetgled to express consent to corporate action itirvgr without a meeting shall be
as fixed by the Board of Directors in accordancingiection 4.5 or as otherwise established undeStction 1.12. Any persons seeking to
have the stockholders authorize or take corporeteraby written consent without a meeting shajl written notice addressed to the Secretary
of the corporation and delivered to the corporatiod signed by stockholders of record holding ass than 50% of the outstanding shares
entitled to vote at a meeting, request that a tedate be fixed for such purpose. Such personsisthatockholders of record of the corporatior
(and, with respect to any beneficial owners, ifetié#nt, on whose behalf such action is proposelg,ibauch beneficial owners were the
beneficial owners of shares of the corporationpgidh at the time the notice is delivered to ther&eary of the corporation and as of the record
date, (ii) who are entitled to consent to corpogation in writing without a meeting and (iii) wimbherwise comply with this Section 1.12. The
proposed action must constitute a proper mattestfurkholder action under the Delaware General @atjpn Law. The written notice must
contain the information set forth in Section 1.)24hd updates or supplements to such notice mystdwéded at the times and in the forms
required by Section 1.12(b). Following receipttud hotice, the Board of Directors shall have 10sdaydetermine the validity of the request,
and if appropriate, adopt a resolution fixing theard date for such purpose. The record date fdr purpose shall be no more than 10 days
after the date upon which the resolution fixing teeord date is adopted by the Board of Directasshall not precede the date such resolt
is adopted. If the Board of Directors fails witHifl days
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after the corporation receives such notice to fir@rd date for such purpose, the record daté lstahe day on which the first written consent
is delivered to the corporation in the manner dbsdrin Section 1.12(d), except that, if prior antby the Board of Directors is required by
law, the record date shall be at the close of lassion the day on which the Board of Directors tadttye resolution taking such prior action.

(b) Any stockholders’ notice required by Sectioh2[(a) must describe the action that the stockhslpgeypose to take by written
consent. For each such proposal other than noraimsator the election of directors, every noticesbyckholders must set forth (i) the
information required by Section 1.10(b) as thougthsstockholders were intending to bring a matefote an annual meeting of stockholders,
(ii) the text of the proposal (including the textamy resolutions to be effected by consent andahguage of any proposed amendment to the
Bylaws of the corporation), (iii) the reasons foligiting consents for the proposal, (iv) any matkinterests in the proposal held by the
stockholders and the beneficial owners, if anywbiose behalf the action is to be taken, and (v)ahgr information relating to the
stockholders, the beneficial owners, or the propibsd would be required to be disclosed in filinggonnection with the solicitation of proxi
or consents pursuant to Section 14 of the Exchaetjand the rules and regulations promulgated thredter (or any successor provision of the
Exchange Act or the rules or regulations promulgéitereunder).

In addition to the foregoing, the notice must stateto the stockholders giving the notice andotbreeficial owners, if any, on whose
behalf the notice is given, a description of alhagements or understandings between such stoeklsadd any other person or persons
regarding the proposed action by consent. The catipo may require the stockholders of record anbémeficial owner requesting a record
date for proposed stockholder action by consefurtish such other information as it may reasonabtjuire to determine the validity of the
request for a record date.

The stockholders seeking to have the stockholdgtmeze or take corporate action by written consé@thout a meeting shall further
update and supplement such notice, if necessathasthe information provided or required to beyided in such notice pursuant to this
Section 1.12 shall be true and correct as of tberdedate for determining stockholders entitleéxpress consent to corporate action without
meeting and as of the date that is 5 businessptaysto the date the consent solicitation is comeoeel, and such update and supplement shal
be delivered to, or mailed and received by, the&ary of the corporation at the principal execaitbffices of the corporation not later than 5
business days after such record date (in the debe apdate and supplement required to be madéthas record date), and not later than 3
business days prior to the date the consent slmit is commenced (in the case of the update applesment required to be made as of 5
business days prior to the date the consent slimitis commenced).

Notwithstanding anything in these Bylaws to thetcany, no action may be taken by the stockholdgratitten consent without a
meeting except in accordance with this Section.1flthe Board of Directors shall determine thay asquest to fix a record date or to take
stockholder action by written consent without a timgewas not properly made in accordance with ttowigions of this Section 1.12, or the
stockholders seeking to take such action do narefise comply with the provisions of this Sectiah2, including this Section 1.12(b), then
the Board of Directors shall not be required todirecord date and any such purported action biyerrconsent shall be null and void to the
fullest extent permitted by applicable law. In afidi to the requirements of this Section 1.12 wétkpect to stockholders seeking to take an
action by written consent without a meeting, eaefspn seeking to have the stockholders authoritakercorporate action by written consent
without a meeting shall comply with all requiremenf applicable law, including all requirementdioé Exchange Act, with respect to such
action.

(c) Every written consent purporting to take orhauize the taking of corporate action (each, a ‘€&mt”) must bear the date of
signature of each stockholder who signs the Consedtno Consent shall be effective to take thparate action referred to therein unless,
within 60 days of the earliest dated Consent dediden the manner required by this section, Corsssighed by a sufficient number of
stockholders to take such action are so deliveyéde corporation.
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(d) Consents must be delivered to the corporatiodddivery to its registered office in the StateDaflaware or its principal place of
business. Delivery must be made by hand or byfigettor registered mail, return receipt requested.

In the event of the delivery to the corporatioranfy Consents, the Secretary of the corporatioayon other officer of the corporation as
the Board of Directors may designate, shall pro¥idehe safe-keeping of such Consents and anjecel@vocations and shall promptly
conduct such ministerial review of the sufficierafyall Consents and any related revocations anteofalidity of the action to be taken by
stockholder consent as the Secretary of the catiparar such other officer of the corporation las Board of Directors may designate, deems
necessary or appropriate, including, without litidita, whether the stockholders of a number of shheving the requisite voting power to
authorize or take the action specified in the Cotsshave given consent; provided, however, thaSé@etary of the corporation, or such othel
officer of the corporation as the Board of Direstaray designate, may alternatively designate twsgms, who shall not be members of the
Board of Directors, to serve as inspectors (“Ingprst) with respect to such Consent, and such letspe shall discharge the functions of the
Secretary of the corporation, or such other offafethe corporation as the Board of Directors magiginate, under this section. If after such
investigation the Secretary of the corporationhsother officer of the corporation as the Boardokctors may designate, or the Inspectors,
shall determine that the action purported to haenttaken is duly authorized by the Consents fétashall forthwith be certified on the
records of the corporation kept for the purposeeobrding the proceedings of meetings of stockhs|dend the Consents shall be filed in such
records.

In conducting the investigation required by thist&m, the Secretary of the corporation, such otlficer of the corporation as the Board
of Directors may designate, or the Inspectors, ratthe expense of the corporation, retain spésal counsel and any other necessary or
appropriate professional advisors, and such otbesogmnel as such person or persons may deem ngcessppropriate and shall be fully
protected in relying in good faith upon the opinafrsuch counsel or advisors.

(e) No action by written consent without a meeshgll be effective until such date as the Secraihitiie corporation, such other
officer of the corporation as the Board of Direstaray designate, or the Inspectors, as applicabtéfy to the corporation that the Consents
delivered to the corporation in accordance withti®acl.12(d), represent at least the minimum nunafbe@otes that would be necessary to take
the corporate action.

() Nothing contained in this section shall in amgty be construed to suggest or imply that the Bo&mirectors or any stockholder
shall not be entitled to contest the validity oy @onsent or related revocations, whether befoigter such certification by the Secretary of
corporation, such other officer of the corporatésnthe Board of Directors may designate, or thpda®rs, as applicable, or to take any other
action (including, without limitation, the commemeent, prosecution, or defense of any litigatiorhw#spect thereto, and the seeking of
injunctive relief in such litigation).

1.13 Meetings by Remote Communicatidhauthorized by the Board of Directors, and sabfo such guidelines and procedures as the Boa
may adopt, stockholders and proxy holders not playlgi present at a meeting of stockholders maymbgns of remote communication,
participate in the meeting and be deemed presguérgon and vote at the meeting, whether such ngemstito be held at a designated place o
solely by means of remote communication, provided i) the corporation shall implement reasonaidasures to verify that each person
deemed present and permitted to vote at the melgyimgeans of remote communication is a stockhadd@roxy holder, (ii) the corporation
shall implement reasonable measures to provide stockholders and proxy holders a reasonable oppitytto participate in the meeting and
to vote on matters submitted to the stockholderdutding an opportunity to read or hear the prooeedof the meeting substantially
concurrently with such proceedings, and (iii) ifyatockholder or proxy holder votes or takes otiidion at the meeting by means of remote
communication, a record of such vote or other acsizall be maintained by the corporation.

ARTICLE Il
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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2.1 General PowersThe business and affairs of the corporation df@lnanaged by or under the direction of a Boamictors, who
may exercise all of the powers of the corporatixcegt as otherwise provided by law or the Certtéaaf Incorporation. In the event of a
vacancy in the Board of Directors, the remainingctiors, except as otherwise provided by law, mayaise the powers of the full Board until
the vacancy is filled.

2.2 Number and Term of OfficeSubject to the rights of the holders of any seofpreferred stock to elect directors under $jmeti
circumstances, the number of directors shall iihtiae one (1) and, thereafter, shall be fixed friome to time exclusively by the Board of
Directors pursuant to a resolution adopted by antgjof the total number of authorized directorhéther or not there exist any vacancies in
previously authorized directorships at the time amgh resolution is presented to the Board for idiop At such time as the Board of
Directors has three or more members, the Boardrecrs shall be divided into three classes, eta$s to serve for a term of three (3) years
and to be as nearly equal in number as possibdessClshall be comprised of directors who shdtialty serve until the annual meeting of
stockholders in 2008, and thereafter for term$odd years and until their successor shall have bleeted and qualified. Class Il shall be
comprised of directors who shall initially servetilithe annual meeting of stockholders in 2009, thedeafter for terms of three years and unti
their successors shall have been elected and igdallass Il shall be comprised of directors vehall initially serve until the annual meeting
of stockholders in 2010, and thereafter for terfnthiee years and until their successors shall haem elected and qualified. Directors shall b
elected at each annual meeting of the stockhotddrsld office until the expiration of their respige term, but if any such annual meeting is
not held or the directors are not elected at ampahmeeting, the directors may be elected at pagial meeting of stockholders held for that
purpose, or at the next annual meeting of stoclkdreltield thereafter. Each director, including actior elected to fill a vacancy, shall hold
office until the expiration of the term for whickeeted and until a successor has been electeduaiifiep or until his earlier resignation or
removal or his office has been declared vacariiemianner provided in these bylaws. Directors metdbe stockholders.

2.3 Vacancies and Newly Created Directorshifsbject to the rights of the holders of any seoiePreferred Stock then outstanding,
newly created directorships resulting from any éase in the authorized number of directors or @wancies in the Board of Directors resul
from death, resignation, retirement, disqualifieator other cause (including removal from officegbyote of the stockholders) may be filled
only by a majority vote of the directors then ificd, though less than a quorum (and not by stdcldns), or by the sole remaining director i
directors so chosen shall hold office until theieagon of the applicable term for that particutirector seat or until such director’s successor
shall have been duly elected and qualified. No e in the number of authorized directors shaliteh the term of any incumbent director.

2.4 Resignation Any director may resign by delivering notice initimg or by electronic transmission to the Presid€hairman of the
Board or Secretary. Such resignation shall be gffecipon receipt unless it is specified to be effe at some other time or upon the
happening of some other event.

2.5 Removal Subject to the rights of the holders of any sediPreferred Stock then outstanding, any dirsctarthe entire Board of
Directors, may be removed from office at any tinvéh or without cause, by the affirmative vote bétholders of two-thirds (2/3rds) of the
voting power of all of the outstanding shares qfitzd stock entitled to vote generally in the ele@ctof directors, voting together as a single
class. Vacancies in the Board of Directors resglfiom such removal may be filled by a majoritytloé directors then in office, though less
than a quorum, or by the sole remaining directared&ors so chosen shall hold office until the terfhoffice of the class to which they have
been elected expires.

2.6 Reqular MeetingsRegular meetings of the Board of Directors mayéle without notice at such time and place, eithignin or
without the State of Delaware, as shall be detezthinom time to time by the Board of Directors; yided that any director who is absent w
such a determination is made shall be given natiitke determination. A regular meeting of the Bbaf Directors may be held without notice
immediately after and at the same place as thesammeeting of stockholders.
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2.7 Special MeetingsSpecial meetings of the Board of Directors magdited by the Chairman of the Board, the Presidetivo or
more directors and may be held at any time anceplaithin or without the State of Delaware.

2.8 Notice of Special MeetingsNotice of any special meeting of directors shallgiven to each director by whom it is not waibgdhe
Secretary or by the officer or one of the directtalling the meeting. Notice shall be duly giveretch director by (i) giving notice to such
director in person or by telephone, electronicgraission or voice message system at least 24 hoadvance of the meeting, (ii) sending a
facsimile to his last known facsimile number, oliviring written notice by hand to his last knowmsiness or home address, at least 24 hour:
in advance of the meeting, or (iii) mailing writtantice to his last known business or home addreksast three days in advance of the
meeting. A notice or waiver of notice of a meetofghe Board of Directors need not specify the psgs of the meeting. Unless otherwise
indicated in the notice thereof, any and all bustnmay be transacted at a special meeting.

2.9 Participationn Meetings by Telephone Conference Calls or Olhethods of CommunicationDirectors or any members of any
committee designated by the directors may partieipaa meeting of the Board of Directors or suchmmittee by means of conference
telephone or other communications equipment by mieawhich all persons participating in the meettiag hear each other, and participation
by such means shall constitute presence in petssuch meeting.

2.10 Quorum A majority of the total number of authorized diters shall constitute a quorum at any meetingnefBoard of Directors. |
the absence of a quorum at any such meeting, aityabthe directors present may adjourn the nmegfiom time to time without further
notice other than announcement at the meetind,aigtiorum shall be present. Interested direct@yg be counted in determining the presence
of a quorum at a meeting of the Board of Directarat a meeting of a committee which authorizearéiqular contract or transaction.

2.11 Action at Meeting At any meeting of the Board of Directors at whacuorum is present, the vote of a majority othpresent
shall be sufficient to take any action, unlessfeedint vote is specified by law, the Certificafdrmcorporation or these Bylaws.

2.12 Action by Written ConsentAny action required or permitted to be takenrat meeting of the Board of Directors or of any
committee of the Board of Directors may be takethaut a meeting if all members of the Board or catte®, as the case may be, consent to
the action in writing or by electronic transmissiand the writings or electronic transmissionsfiee with the minutes of proceedings of the
Board or committee. Such filing shall be in papenf if the minutes are maintained in paper form simall be in electronic form if the minutes
are maintained in electronic form.

2.13_Committees The Board of Directors may designate one or nesoramittees, each committee to consist of one oerobthe
directors of the corporation, with such lawfullyielgated powers and duties as it therefor confersetve at the pleasure of the Board. The
Board may designate one or more directors as aliemembers of any committee, who may replace bsgrd or disqualified member at any
meeting of the committee. In the absence or digfipation of a member of a committee, the membemembers of the committee present at
any meeting and not disqualified from voting, wiegthr not he or they constitute a quorum, may unansly appoint another member of the
Board of Directors to act at the meeting in thecplaf any such absent or disqualified member. Arghsommittee, to the extent provided in
the resolution of the Board of Directors and subjeche provisions of the Delaware General CorpomnaLaw, shall have and may exercise all
the powers and authority of the Board of Direciarthe management of the business and affairseo€dinporation and may authorize the se
the corporation to be affixed to all papers whiclymequire it. Each such committee shall keep mneiand make such reports as the Board o
Directors may from time to time request. Excepth@sBoard of Directors may otherwise determine, @mymittee may make rules for the
conduct of its business, but unless otherwise gexl/by such rules, its business shall be condadetkarly as possible in the same manner a
is provided in these Bylaws for the Board of Dimest
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2.14 Compensation of Director®irectors may be paid such compensation for th&ivices and such reimbursement for expenses of
attendance at meetings as the Board of Directoysfroe time to time determine. No such paymentighra@clude any director from serving
corporation or any of its parent or subsidiary cogpions in any other capacity and receiving corspéan for such service.

2.15 Nomination of Director Candidates

(a) Subject to the rights of holders of any classasies of Preferred Stock then outstanding, natitns for the election of Directc
at an annual meeting may be made by (i) the BoRirectors or a duly authorized committee thereofii) any stockholder entitled to vote in
the election of Directors generally who compliestvihe procedures set forth in this Bylaw and wa stockholder of record at the time no
is delivered to the Secretary of the corporationy Atockholder entitled to vote in the electiorDafectors generally may nominate one or mor
persons for election as Directors at an annualimggenly if timely notice of such stockholder’s éntt to make such nomination or nominations
has been given in writing to the Secretary of thigoration. To be timely, a stockholder nominafiona director to be elected at an annual
meeting shall be received at the corporation’sgipial executive offices not less than 120 calewmidgss in advance of the first anniversary of
the date that the corporation’s (or the corporasignedecessor’s) proxy statement was releasetkislders in connection with the previous
yeals annual meeting of stockholders, except thabinnual meeting was held in the previous yeah@date of the annual meeting has beet
advanced by more than 30 calendar days from theeatettemplated at the time of the previous yeadgystatement, notice by the
stockholders to be timely must be received not ldi@n the close of business on the tenth dayuartig the day on which public announcemen
of the date of such meeting is first made. Eacl suntice shall set forth: (i) the name and addoéske stockholder who intends to make the
nomination, of the beneficial owner, if any, on whdehalf the nomination is being made and of &meqm or persons to be nominated; (ii) a
representation that the stockholder is a holdeeodrd of stock of the corporation entitled to vitethe election of Directors on the date of
such notice and intends to appear in person ordymt the meeting to nominate the person or parspecified in the notice; (iii) a
description of all arrangements or understandirgg&/&en the stockholder or such beneficial ownereswth nominee and any other person or
persons (naming such person or persons) pursuarftioh the nomination or nominations are to be madéhe stockholder; (iv) such other
information regarding each nominee proposed by stmtkholder as would be required to be includea jmoxy statement filed pursuant to the
proxy rules of the Securities and Exchange Comurisgiad the nominee been nominated, or intendbd ttominated, by the Board of
Directors; (v) the consent of each nominee to sasva director of the corporation if so elected); tfve class and number of shares of the
corporation that are owned beneficially and of rdday such stockholder and such beneficial owned; (&ii) whether either such stockholder
or beneficial owner intends to deliver a proxy eta¢nt and form of proxy to holders of at leastgbecentage of the corporatienvoting share
required under applicable law to carry the propdsaho event shall the public announcement ofdjalanment or postponement of an annual
meeting commence a new time period (or extend iamy period) for the giving of a stockholder’s netias described above. Notwithstanding
the third sentence of this Section 2.15(a), inetent that the number of Directors to be electethainnual meeting is increased and there is r
public announcement by the corporation naming thmainees for the additional directorships at le&§t days prior to the first anniversary of
the date that the corporation’s (or its predecésgproxy statement was released to stockholdecsimection with the previous year's annual
meeting, a stockholder’s notice required by thisti®a 2.15(a) shall also be considered timely,dnly with respect to nominees for the
additional directorships, if it shall be deliveredthe Secretary at the principal executive offioEthe corporation not later than the close of
business on the 10th day following the day on wisieth public announcement is first made by the@atjon.

(b) Nominations of persons for election to the Blai Directors may be made at a special meetirgjarikholders at which
directors are to be elected pursuant to the cotipora notice of meeting by (i) or at the directiohthe Board of Directors or a committee
thereof or (ii) any stockholder of the corporatigho is entitled to vote at the meeting, who conpligth the notice procedures set forth in this
Bylaw and who is a stockholder of record at thestuch notice is delivered to the Secretary ottirporation. In the event the corporation
calls a special meeting of stockholders for thgppse of electing one or more directors to the Badudirectors, any such stockholder may
nominate a person or persons (as the case mafobe)ection to such position(s) as are specifiethe corporation’s notice of meeting, if the
stockholder’s notice as required by paragraph f{#)is Bylaw shall be
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delivered to the Secretary at the principal exeeutiffices of the corporation not earlier than #¢h day prior to such special meeting and not
later than the close of business on the lateref7thth day prior to such special meeting or théa tat following the day on which public
announcement is first made of the date of the apaweting and of the nominees proposed by thedBoaDirectors to be elected at such
meeting. In no event shall the public announceméan adjournment or postponement of a specialingeebmmence a new time period (or
extend any time period) for the giving of a stodkleo’s notice as described above.

(c) For purposes of these Bylaws, “public annourexhshall mean disclosure in a press release teghdwy the Dow Jones News
Service, Associated Press or comparable natiowes service or in a document publicly filed by theporation with the Securities and
Exchange Commission pursuant to Section 13, 14) of the Exchange Act.

(d) Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions ofstiylaw, a stockholder shall also comply with @plcable requirements of the
Exchange Act and the rules and regulations therunih respect to the matters set forth in thisaBy Nothing in this Bylaw shall be deemed
to affect any rights of stockholders to requeskhision of proposals in the corporation’s proxy staént pursuant to Rule 14a-8 under the
Exchange Act.

(e) Only persons nominated in accordance with tbegalures set forth in this Section 2.15 shallllggbde to serve as directors.
Except as otherwise provided by law, the chairnfah@meeting shall have the power and duty (aletermine whether a nomination was
made in accordance with the procedures set forthisnSection 2.15 and (b) if any proposed nomdamatias not made in compliance with this
Section 2.15, to declare that such nomination $fealisregarded.

(f) If the chairman of the meeting for the electafrDirectors determines that a nomination of aagdidate for election as a
Director at such meeting was not made in accordaiittethe applicable provisions of this Section3.4uch nomination shall be void;
provided, however, that nothing in this Sectiorb2shall be deemed to limit any voting rights uploa dccurrence of dividend arrearages
provided to holders of Preferred Stock pursuarhé¢oPreferred Stock designation for any seriegefePred Stock.

ARTICLE Il
OFFICERS

3.1 Enumeration The officers of the corporation shall consisad®hief Executive Officer, a President, a Secretafjreasurer, a Chief
Financial Officer and such other officers with swther titles as the Board of Directors shall deiee, including, at the discretion of the Bo.
of Directors, a Chairman of the Board of Directargl one or more Vice Presidents and Assistant 8e@® The Board of Directors may
appoint such other officers as it may deem appatgri

3.2 Election/AppointmentOfficers shall be elected annually by the BodrBioectors at its first meeting following the araluneeting of
stockholders. Officers may be appointed by the BadDirectors at any other meeting. The Board wé&ors may appoint, or empower the
president to appoint, such other officers and agastthe business of the corporation may requaeh ef whom shall hold office for such
period, have such authority, and perform such dwtieare provided in these Bylaws or as the Bdabirectors may from time to time
determine.

3.3 Qualification. No officer need be a stockholder. Any two or moffices may be held by the same person.

3.4 Tenure Except as otherwise provided by law, by the @eatie of Incorporation or by these Bylaws, eadicef shall hold office
until his successor is elected and qualified, unéedifferent term is specified in the vote apgamhim, or until his earlier death, resignatior
removal.

3.5 Resignation and Removahny officer may resign by delivering his writteasignation to the corporation at its principaiadfor to
the President or Secretary. Such resignation bladffective upon receipt unless it is specifiebeceffective at some other time or upon the
happening of some other event. Any officer eletigthe Board of Directors may be removed at an tiwith or without cause, by the Board
of Directors or, except in the
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case of an officer chosen by the Board of Diregtoysany officer upon whom such power of removayrha conferred by the Board of
Directors.

3.6 Chairman of the Boardrhe Board of Directors may appoint a ChairmathefBoard. If the Board of Directors appoints ai@han
of the Board, he shall perform such duties andgmsssuch powers as are assigned to him by the Bb&idectors. Unless otherwise provided
by the Board of Directors, he shall preside atraktings of the Board of Directors.

3.7 Chief Executive OfficerThe Chief Executive Officer of the corporatiorabhsubject to the direction of the Board of Dias, have
general supervision, direction and control of theibess and the officers of the corporation. Hdl gheside at all meetings of the stockholders
and, in the absence or nonexistence of a Chairrhdre Board, at all meetings of the Board of Dicest He shall have the general powers and
duties of management usually vested in the chie€atxve officer of a corporation, including genesapervision, direction and control of the
business and supervision of other officers of t@aration, and shall have such other powers atidslas may be prescribed by the Board of
Directors or these Bylaws.

3.8 President Subject to the direction of the Board of Direstand such supervisory powers as may be givengsetBylaws or the
Board of Directors to the Chairman of the Boardher Chief Executive Officer, if such titles be hélgother officers, the President shall have
general supervision, direction and control of theibess and supervision of other officers of thgpamtion. Unless otherwise designated by
Board of Directors, the President shall be the {Ihiecutive Officer of the corporation. The Presitdshall have such other powers and duties
as may be prescribed by the Board of Directorbiesd Bylaws. He or she shall have power to sigtkstertificates, contracts and other
instruments of the corporation which are authoriaed shall have general supervision and directfall @f the other officers, employees and
agents of the corporation, other than the Chairofdahe Board and the Chief Executive Officer.

3.9 Vice PresidentsAny Vice President shall perform such duties pasisess such powers as the Board of Directored?bsident may
from time to time prescribe. In the event of theeaixe, inability or refusal to act of the Presidém Vice President (or if there shall be more
than one, the Vice Presidents in the order detexrdhby the Board of Directors) shall perform theiehiof the President and when so
performing shall have at the powers of and be stiltgeall the restrictions upon the President. Bbard of Directors may assign to any Vice
President the title of Executive Vice Presidenfi8eVice President or any other title selectedhsy Board of Directors.

3.10 Secretary and Assistant Secretarieise Secretary shall perform such duties and slaak such powers as the Board of Directors ol
the President may from time to time prescribe.ddiion, the Secretary shall perform such duties lzeve such powers as are incident to the
office of the Secretary, including, without limiian, the duty and power to give notices of all nregs of stockholders and special meetings of
the Board of Directors, to keep a record of theecpedings of all meetings of stockholders and ther@of Directors, to maintain a stock ledger
and prepare lists of stockholders and their addeeas required, to be custodian of corporate recamd the corporate seal and to affix and
attest to the same on documents.

Any Assistant Secretary shall perform such duties @ossess such powers as the Board of Directmrhief Executive Officer, the
President or the Secretary may from time to tinesgribe. In the event of the absence, inabilityefusal to act of the Secretary, the Assistant
Secretary (or if there shall be more than oneAgstant Secretaries in the order determined é\Btiard of Directors) shall perform the du
and exercise the powers of the Secretary.

In the absence of the Secretary or any Assistacte8ey at any meeting of stockholders or directibrs person presiding at the meeting
shall designate a temporary secretary to keepaadexd the meeting.

3.11 Treasurer The Treasurer shall perform such duties and baeh powers as are incident to the office of tre=rsincluding without
limitation, the duty and power to keep and be resjime for all funds and securities of the corpioratto maintain the financial records of the
corporation, to deposit funds of the corporatiodépositories as authorized, to disburse such fasdaithorized, to make proper accounts of
such funds, and to
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render as required by the Board of Directors actoahall such transactions and of the financialditton of the corporation.

3.12 Chief Financial OfficerThe Chief Financial Officer shall perform suchids and shall have such powers as may from tintien®
be assigned to him by the Board of Directors, theefdExecutive Officer or the President. Unlesseoilise designated by the Board of
Directors, the Chief Financial Officer shall be fhreasurer of the corporation.

3.13 Salaries Officers of the corporation shall be entitledstah salaries, compensation or reimbursement dsbghfixed or allowed
from time to time by the Board of Directors.

3.14 Delegation of Authority The Board of Directors may from time to time dglte the powers or duties of any officer to anyeoth
officers or agents, notwithstanding any provisiengof.

ARTICLE IV
CAPITAL STOCK

4.1 Issuance of StockSubject to the provisions of the Certificate mEdrporation, the whole or any part of any unissogdnce of the
authorized capital stock of the corporation onille or any part of any unissued balance of thieaaized capital stock of the corporation
held in its treasury may be issued, sold, transtear otherwise disposed of by vote of the BoarBioéctors in such manner, for such
consideration and on such terms as the Board efcRirs may determine.

4.2 Certificates of StockThe shares of the corporation shall be repreddnteertificates, provided that the Board of Dicgs may
provide by resolution or resolutions that somelbofaany class or series of its stock shall beartificated shares; provided, however, that no
such resolution shall apply to shares representeddertificate until such certificate is surrereteto the corporation. Every holder of stock of
the corporation represented by certificates, apdnwvritten request to the corporation’s transtgarda or registrar, any holder of uncertificated
shares, shall be entitled to have a certificatsuirh form as may be prescribed by law and by ther@of Directors, certifying the number and
class of shares owned by him in the corporatiochEsaich certificate shall be signed by, or in tama of the corporation by, the Chairman or
Vice Chairman, if any, of the Board of Directors tlee President or a Vice President, and the Treasu an Assistant Treasurer, or the
Secretary or an Assistant Secretary of the corfporafny or all of the signatures on the certifeatay be a facsimile.

Each certificate for shares of stock which are ecthio any restriction on transfer pursuant toGketificate of Incorporation, the Bylaws,
applicable securities laws or any agreement amoggamber of shareholders or among such holderghendorporation shall have
conspicuously noted on the face or back of thefwatie either the full text of the restriction arstatement of the existence of such restriction.

4.3 Transfers Except as otherwise established by rules andatigus adopted by the Board of Directors, andettitp applicable law,
shares of stock may be transferred on the bookseaforporation: (i) in the case of shares repttesky a certificate, by the surrender to the
corporation or its transfer agent of the certiicegpresenting such shares properly endorsed omganied by a written assignment or power
of attorney properly executed, and with such pafafuthority or authenticity of signature as thepawation or its transfer agent may
reasonably require; and (ii) in the case of unfiestied shares, upon the receipt of proper transgtructions from the registered owner ther
Except as may be otherwise required by law, théif@ate of Incorporation or the Bylaws, the coration shall be entitled to treat the record
holder of stock as shown on its books as the owhsuch stock for all purposes, including the paghw# dividends and the right to vote with
respect to such stock, regardless of any transfietige or other disposition of such stock untilshares have been transferred on the books o
the corporation in accordance with the requiremefithese Bylaws.

4.4 1 ost, Stolen or Destroyed CertificateEhe corporation may issue a new certificate oflsin place of any previously issued
certificate alleged to have been lost, stolen,estryed, or it may issue uncertificated sharéiseifshares represented by such certificate have
been designated as uncertificated shares in acooedsith
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Section 4.2, upon such terms and conditions aBdiaed of Directors may prescribe, including thesgrgation of reasonable evidence of such
loss, theft or destruction and the giving of sunteimnity as the Board of Directors may requirettier protection of the corporation or any
transfer agent or registrar (including the delivefy bond in an amount determined by the corpomati

4.5 Record Date The Board of Directors may fix in advance a relatate for the determination of the stockholdetgled to notice of or
to vote at any meeting of stockholders, or entitiedeceive payment of any dividend or other distiion or allotment of any rights in respec
any change, concession or exchange of stock, dhéopurpose of any other lawful action. Such réaate shall not precede the date on whicl
the resolution fixing the record date is adopted stmall not be more than 60 nor less than 10 def@dthe date of such meeting, nor more
than 60 days prior to any other action to whichhstezord date relates.

If no record date is fixed by the Board of Direstahe record date for determining stockholdergledtto notice of or to vote at a meet
of stockholders shall be at the close of busineshe day before the day on which notice is givenif notice is waived, at the close of
business on the day before the day on which theingeis held. If no record date is fixed by the Bbaf Directors, the record date for
determining stockholders entitled to express cangecorporate action in writing without a meetingen no prior action by the Board of
Directors is necessary shall be the day on whieHitht written consent is expressed. The recotd fta determining stockholders for any ot
purpose shall be at the close of business on thewavhich the Board of Directors adopts the retsmturelating to such purpose.

A determination of stockholders of record entitledhotice of or to vote at a meeting of stockhaddgnall apply to any adjournment of the
meeting; provided, however, that the Board of Dimexz may fix a new record date for the adjourneétng.

ARTICLE V
GENERAL PROVISIONS

5.1 Fiscal Year The fiscal year of the corporation shall be asdiby the Board of Directors.
5.2 Corporate SealThe corporate seal shall be in such form as sleadipproved by the Board of Directors.

5.3 Waiver of Notice Whenever any notice whatsoever is required tgicen by law, by the Certificate of Incorporationty these
Bylaws, a waiver of such notice either in writirigreed by the person entitled to such notice or faerson’s duly authorized attorney, or by
electronic transmission or any other method peeatittnder the Delaware General Corporation Law, dvdiefore, at or after the time stated
in such waiver, or the appearance of such perspersions at such meeting in person or by proxyl sealeemed equivalent to such notice.
Neither the business nor the purpose of any meaged be specified in such a waiver. Attendaneamwatmeeting shall constitute waiver
notice except attendance for the sole purposejettibg to the timeliness of notice.

5.4 Actions with Respect to Securities of Otherfgooations. Except as the Board of Directors may otherwissagtate, the Chief
Executive Officer or President or any officer o ttorporation authorized by the Chief Executivei@®if or President shall have the power to
vote and otherwise act on behalf of the corporaiioperson or proxy, and may waive notice of, antlas, or appoint any person or persons t
act as, proxy or attorney-in-fact to this corparat{with or without power of substitution) at anyeting of stockholders or shareholders (or
with respect to any action of stockholders) of attyer corporation or organization, the securitiesloich may be held by this corporation and
otherwise to exercise any and all rights and powwtish this corporation may possess by reasonisfctirporation’s ownership of securities in
such other corporation or other organization.

5.5 Evidence of Authority A certificate by the Secretary, or an Assistagtr8tary, or a temporary Secretary, as to anyratdien by the
stockholders, directors, a committee or any offmerepresentative of the corporation shall adltpeasons who rely on the certificate in good
faith be conclusive evidence of such action.
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5.6 Certificate of IncorporationAll references in these Bylaws to the Certificaténcorporation shall be deemed to refer to the
Certificate of Incorporation of the corporation,aaeended and in effect from time to time.

5.7 Severability Any determination that any provision of thesedys is for any reason inapplicable, illegal or feefive shall not affect
or invalidate any other provision of these Bylaws.

5.8 Pronouns All pronouns used in these Bylaws shall be deetnedfer to the masculine, feminine or neutergsiar or plural, as the
identity of the person or persons may require.

5.9 Notices Except as otherwise specifically provided heinequired by law, all notices required to be give any stockholder,
director, officer, employee or agent shall be iiiting and may in every instance be effectively givsy hand delivery to the recipient thereof,
by depositing such notice in the mails, postagd,mai by sending such notice by commercial cowg@évice, or by facsimile or other electronic
transmission, provided that notice to stockholdgrelectronic transmission shall be given in theansa provided in Section 232 of the
Delaware General Corporation Law. Any such notltaise addressed to such stockholder, directficesf employee or agent at his or her
last known address as the same appears on the bbtiescorporation. The time when such noticeldi@mldeemed to be given shall be the 1
such notice is received by such stockholder, directficer, employee or agent, or by any persaepting such notice on behalf of such
person, if delivered by hand, facsimile, other &t@tuc transmission or commercial courier servarethe time such notice is dispatched, if
delivered through the mails. Without limiting themner by which notice otherwise may be given eiffetyt, notice to any stockholder shall be
deemed given: (1) if by facsimile, when directe@toumber at which the stockholder has consentegttEve notice; (2) if by electronic mail,
when directed to an electronic mail address at fwttie stockholder has consented to receive nd®3éf by a posting on an electronic network
together with separate notice to the stockholdeuch specific posting, upon the later of (A) spolsting and (B) the giving of such separate
notice; (4) if by any other form of electronic temission, when directed to the stockholder; andf By mail, when deposited in the mail,
postage prepaid, directed to the stockholder dt stackholder’'s address as it appears on the readrithe corporation.

5.10 Reliance Upon Books, Reports and RecoEisch director, each member of any committee deségl by the Board of Directors, ¢
each officer of the corporation shall, in the parfance of his duties, be fully protected in relyingyood faith upon the books of account or
other records of the corporation as provided by, lasluding reports made to the corporation by ahigs officers, by an independent certified
public accountant, or by an appraiser selected rgidlsonable care.

5.11 Time PeriodsIn applying any provision of these Bylaws whieuguire that an act be done or not done a specifietber of days
prior to an event or that an act be done duringraog of a specified number of days prior to annéyvealendar days shall be used, the day
doing of the act shall be excluded, and the dah@fkevent shall be included.

5.12_Facsimile Signaturedn addition to the provisions for use of facsmrsignatures elsewhere specifically authorizetiése Bylaws,
facsimile signatures of any officer or officerstbé corporation may be used whenever and as ardltboby the Board of Directors or a
committee thereof.

ARTICLE VI
AMENDMENTS

6.1 By the Board of DirectorsExcept as otherwise set forth in these BylawasséBylaws may be altered, amended or repealeehor n
Bylaws may be adopted by the affirmative vote aigority of the directors present at any regulaspecial meeting of the Board of Directors
at which a quorum is present.

6.2 By the StockholdersExcept as otherwise set forth in these BylawssérBylaws may be altered, amended or repealeevoBylaws
may be adopted by the affirmative vote of the hds at least a majority of the voting power dfadlthe shares of capital stock of the
corporation issued and outstanding and entitlagte generally in any election of directors, votiogether as a single class. Such vote may b
held at any annual meeting of
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stockholders, or at any special meeting of stoakérsl provided that notice of such alteration, ameamt, repeal or adoption of new Bylaws
shall have been stated in the notice of such sphmaating.

ARTICLE VI
INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

7.1 Right to Indemnification Each person who was or is made a party or istbned to be made a party to or is involved inaation,
suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, adnsiinative or investigative (“proceeding”), by reasurthe fact that he or she or a person of
whom he or she is the legal representative, isaw avdirector or officer of the corporation or isn@s serving at the request of the corporation
as a director or officer of another corporationasra controlling person of a partnership, joinituee, trust or other enterprise, including ser
with respect to employee benefit plans, whethebtms of such proceeding is alleged action infécia capacity as a director or officer, or in
any other capacity while serving as a directorféicer, shall be indemnified and held harmlessHiy torporation to the fullest extent
authorized by the Delaware General Corporation Lasithe same exists or may hereafter be amendgdr(lie case of any such amendment
only to the extent that such amendment permitedingoration to provide broader indemnification tiggthan said Law permitted the
corporation to provide prior to such amendmentjregjall expenses, liability and loss reasonabtyined or suffered by such person in
connection therewith and such indemnification sbatitinue as to a person who has ceased to becdtior officer and shall inure to the
benefit of his or her heirs, executors and admiaists;_provided however, that except as provided in Section 7.2 of thische VII, the
corporation shall indemnify any such person seekidgmnity in connection with a proceeding (or phgreof) initiated by such person only if
(a) such indemnification is expressly required éatade by law, (b) the proceeding (or part thereaf authorized by the Board of Director
the corporation, (c) such indemnification is praddby the corporation, in its sole discretion, parg to the powers vested in the corporation
under the Delaware General Corporation Law, otl{d)proceeding (or part thereof) is brought toldisth or enforce a right to indemnification
or advancement under an indemnity agreement optogy statute or law or otherwise as required uS@etion 145 of the Delaware General
Corporation Law. The rights hereunder shall be remttrights and shall include the right to be pigenses incurred in defending any such
proceeding in advance of its final disposition;\pded, however, that the payment of such expenses incurred bigeatdr or officer of the
corporation in his or her capacity as a directoofficer (and not in any other capacity in whicivéee was or is tendered by such person while
a director or officer, including, without limitatig service to an employee benefit plan) in advaridke final disposition of such proceeding,
shall be made only upon delivery to the corporatiban undertaking, by or on behalf of such directoofficer, to repay all amounts so
advanced if it should be determined ultimately iaffjudicial decision from which there is no fuettright to appeal that such director or
officer is not entitled to be indemnified understiection or otherwise.

7.2 Right of Claimant to Bring Suitlf a claim under Section 7.1 is not paid in tojl the corporation within 60 days after a writtéaim
has been received by the corporation, or 20 daflseiase of a claim for advancement of expenkeslaimant may at any time thereafter
bring suit against the corporation to recover thpaid amount of the claim and, if such suit isfieblous or brought in bad faith, the claimant
shall be entitled to be paid also the expenseagguuting such claim. It shall be a defense tosaigch action (other than an action brought to
enforce a claim for expenses incurred in defendimgproceeding in advance of its final dispositidrere the required undertaking, if any, has
been tendered to this corporation) that the clatrhas not met the standards of conduct which miggerimissible under the Delaware General
Corporation Law for the corporation to indemnifg ttlaimant for the amount claimed. Neither theufailof the corporation (including its
Board of Directors, independent legal counselfostiockholders) to have made a determination fpoitlle commencement of such action that
indemnification of the claimant is proper in thecoimstances because he or she has met the applgtabhtard of conduct set forth in the
Delaware General Corporation Law, nor an actuard&nation by the corporation (including its BoafdDirectors, independent legal counsel
or its stockholders) that the claimant has not snet applicable standard of conduct, shall be andefto the action or create a presumption
that claimant has not met the applicable standhecdrduct. In any suit brought by the corporatiomgcover an advancement of expenses
pursuant to the terms of an undertaking, the cajpor shall be entitled to recover such expenses aginal judicial decision from which the
is no further right to appeal that the indemnitas hot met any applicable standard for indemnifoaset forth in the Delaware General
Corporation Law. In any suit brought by the indet@aito enforce a right to indemnification or tosatvancement of expenses hereunder, or
brought by the
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corporation to recover an advancement of expensssiant to the terms of an undertaking, the buodgmmoving that the indemnitee is not
entitled to be indemnified, or to such advancenoémrixpenses, shall be on the corporation.

7.3 Indemnification of Employees and Agent&he corporation may, to the extent authorizedftone to time by the Board of Directors,
grant rights to indemnification, and to the advameat of related expenses, to any employee or afehé corporation to the fullest extent of
the provisions of this Article with respect to theemnification of and advancement of expensesrazbrs and officers of the corporation.

7.4 NonExclusivity of Rights. The rights conferred on any person in this Agti¢ll shall not be exclusive of any other right ainisuch
persons may have or hereafter acquire under ahyestarovision of the Certificate of Incorporatjdylaw, agreement, vote of stockholders or
disinterested directors or otherwise.

7.5 Indemnification ContractsThe Board of Directors is authorized to enteo iatcontract with any director, officer, employeeagent o
the corporation, or any person serving at the reiopfethe corporation as a director, officer, emypl® or agent of another corporation,
partnership, joint venture, trust or other entesgrincluding employee benefit plans, providingifatemnification rights equivalent to or, if the
Board of Directors so determines, greater tharsehmovided for in this Article VII.

7.6 Insurance The corporation shall maintain insurance to tktere reasonably available, at its expense, tceptatself and any such
director, officer, employee or agent of the corpioraor another corporation, partnership, jointteee, trust or other enterprise against any
expense, liability or loss, whether or not the cogtion would have the power to indemnify such peragainst such expense, liability or loss
under the Delaware General Corporation Law.

7.7 Effect of Amendment Any amendment, repeal or modification of any [smn of this Article VII shall not adversely affeany right o
protection of an indemnitee or his successor exjsiit the time of such amendment, repeal or madiin.
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DEBTORS: HALOZYME THERAPEUTICS, INC. and HAL OZYME, INC.
SECURED PARTY: OXFORD FINANCE LLC,
as Collateral Agent
EXHIBIT A TO UCC FINANCING STATEMENT

Description of Collateral

The Collateral consists of all of each Debtor’stjditle and interest in and to the following paral property:

All goods, Accounts (including heattbare receivables), Equipment, Inventory, contragtts or rights to payment of money, lea
license agreements, franchise agreements, Genwmaigibles (except as noted below), commercial ttatms, documents, instrume
(including any promissory notes), chattel paper dilibr tangible or electronic), cash, deposit actsoamd other Collateral Accounts,
certificates of deposit, fixtures, letters of ctedghts (whether or not the letter of credit isdemnced by a writing), securities, and all o
investment property, supporting obligations, améficial assets, whether now owned or hereaften@ctjuvherever located; and

All Borrower’s Books relating to the foregoing, and any andlalims, rights and interests in any of the abow @hsubstitutions fo
additions, attachments, accessories, accessionsngndvements to and replacements, products, pdscaed insurance proceeds of any ¢
of the foregoing.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Collateral doesinclude any Intellectual Property; providedwewer, the Collateral shall inclu
all Accounts and all proceeds of Intellectual Propelf a judicial authority (including a U.S. Banlptcy Court) would hold that a secu
interest in the underlying Intellectual Propertynscessary to have a security interest in such ésoand such property that are procee:
Intellectual Property, then the Collateral shallomuatically, and effective as of the Effective Défier this purpose, as defined in the Orig
Agreement), include the Intellectual Property te éxtent necessary to permit perfection of ColédtAgent’s security interest in such Accou
and such other property of Debtor that are proceédse Intellectual Property. Further, the ternofi@teral” shall not include (i) the Shares
Halozyme owned by Parent, (ii) Excluded Accounts] @ii) more than sixtyfive percent (65.00%) of the Shares of any For&gbsidiary ¢
Borrower if Debtor demonstrates to Secured Pargésonable satisfaction that a pledge of more shap-five percent (65.00%) of the Sha
of such Foreign Subsidiary creates a present aistirexadverse tax consequence to Debtor unddd iBelnternal Revenue Code.

Pursuant to the terms of a certain negative pleatgegngement with Collateral Agent and the LendBrsbtor has agreed not
encumber any of its Intellectual Property.

Capitalized terms used but not defined herein hhgemeanings ascribed in the Uniform Commercial €Cimdeffect in the State
California as in effect from time to time (the “G®Y or, if not defined in the Code, then in the Amended Restated Loan and Sect
Agreement by and between Debtor, Secured Partyhendther Lenders party thereto (as modified, aredrzhd/or restated from time to time).



SUBSIDIARIES OF HALOZYME THERAPEUTICS, INC.

State or Jurisdiction of
Name of Subsidiary Incorporation or Organization

Halozyme, Inc. California

Halozyme Holdings Ltd., a wholly owned subsidiary
of Halozyme, Inc. Bermuda

Percent
Owned

100%

100%

EXHIBIT 21.1



EXHIBIT 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
We consent to the incorporation by reference in the following Registration Statements:
(1) Registration Statement (Form S-3 No. 333-120448) of Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc.,
(2) Registration Statement (Form S-3 No. 333-179444) of Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc.,
(3) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-119969) pertaining to the Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. 2004 Stock Plan and
Nonstatutory Stock Option Agreement with Andrew Kim and Assumed Options Under the Deliatroph Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

Amended and Restated 2001 Stock Plan of Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc.,

(4) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-133829) pertaining to the Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. 2005 Outside Directors’ Stock
Plan and Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. 2006 Stock Plan of Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc.,

(5) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-152914) pertaining to the Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. 2008 Outside Directors’ Stock
Plan and Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. 2008 Stock Plan of Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc.,

(6) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-174013) pertaining to the Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. 2011 Stock Plan of Halozyme
Therapeutics, Inc., and

(7) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-188997) pertaining to the Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. Amended and Restated 2011
Stock Plan of Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc.;

of our reports dated February 28, 2014 , with respect to the consolidated financial statements and schedule of Halozyme

Therapeutics, Inc. and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting of Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. included in this
Annual Report (Form 10-K) of Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. for the year ended December 31, 2013 .

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

San Diego, California
February 28, 2014



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER

I, Helen I. Torley, M.B. Ch.B, M.R.C.P. , Chief Eowgive Officer of Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. dgrthat:

1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on FormKLOf Halozyme Therapeutics, In

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact otamstate a material fact necessary t
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsiunder which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the

period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemems other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the Registrant as of, andlfie periods presented in this rep

4, The Registrant’s other certifying officer andré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrard have:

a)

b)

d)

designed such disclosure controls and procedareaused such disclosure controls and procedaoee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Registrant, including its consolidhsibsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isihg prepared;

designed such internal control over finanaggilarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atamuoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

evaluated the effectiveness of the Registratitslosure controls and procedures and presenttsi report our conclusion
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on

such evaluation; and
disclosed in this report any change in the Regt’s internal control over financial reportithgat occurred during the

Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the Reaigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimeport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeadtf, the Registrant’s internal control over finahceporting; and

5. The Registrant’s other certifying officer andave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and thetazainmittee of the Registrant’s board of direct@mspersons performing the

equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknsdsehe design or operation of internal contraéofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refreahcial information
and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that ineslynanagement or other employees who have a simiifiole in the
Registrant’s internal control over financial refogt

Date: February 28, 2014 /sl Helen I. Torley, M.B. Ch.B, M.R.C.P.

Helen I. Torley, M.B. Ch.B, M.R.C.P.
President and Chief Executive Officer



EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER

I, David A. Ramsay, Chief Financial Officer of Halane Therapeutics, Inc. certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on FormKLOf Halozyme Therapeutics, In

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact otamstate a material fact necessary t
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsiunder which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the

period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemems other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the Registrant as of, andlfie periods presented in this rep

4, The Registrant’s other certifying officer andré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrard have:

a)

b)

d)

designed such disclosure controls and procedareaused such disclosure controls and procedaoee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Registrant, including its consolidhsibsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isihg prepared;

designed such internal control over finanaggilarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atamuoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

evaluated the effectiveness of the Registratitslosure controls and procedures and presenttsi report our conclusion
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on

such evaluation; and
disclosed in this report any change in the Regt’s internal control over financial reportithgat occurred during the

Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the Reaigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimeport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeadtf, the Registrant’s internal control over finahceporting; and

5. The Registrant’s other certifying officer andave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and thetazainmittee of the Registrant’s board of direct@mspersons performing the

equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknsdsehe design or operation of internal contraéofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refreahcial information
and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that ineslynanagement or other employees who have a simiifiole in the
Registrant’s internal control over financial refogt

Date: February 28, 2014 /sl David A. Ramsay

David A. Ramsay
Vice President, Chief Financial Officer



EXHIBIT 32

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of HalozymeeTdpeutics, Inc. (the “Registrant”) on Form 10-K tlee fiscal year ended December 31,
2013, as filed with the Securities and Exchangm@ssion on the date hereof (the “Report”), |, HeleTorley, M.B. Ch.B, M.R.C.P. , Chief
Executive Officer of the Registrant, certify, puastito 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted purdagdection 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

of 2002, that, to the best of my knowledge:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m); a

(2) The information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finanmialdition and results of operations of the
Registrant.

/sl Helen I. Torley, M.B. Ch.B, M.R.C.P.
Helen I. Torley, M.B. Ch.B, M.R.C.P.
President and Chief Executive Officer

Dated: February 28, 2014

In connection with the Annual Report of HalozymeeTdpeutics, Inc. (the “Registrant”) on Form 10-K tlee fiscal year ended December 31,
2013, as filed with the Securities and Exchangm@ssion on the date hereof (the “Report”), |, Db&i Ramsay , Chief Financial Officer of
the Registrant, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. iBect350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 ob#mbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the

best of my knowledge:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m); a

(2) The information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finanmaldition and results of operations of the
Registrant.

/s/ David A. Ramsay

David A. Ramsay
Vice President, Chief Financial Officer

Dated: February 28, 2014



